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Important information

The definitions and interpretations commencing on page 4 of this pre-listing statement apply mutatis
mutandis, to this important informadtion.

This pre-listing statement has been prepared on the assumption that the resolutions proposed in the notice
of general meeting forming part of the Imperial circular, which is mailed together with this prelisting
statement, will be passed at the combined general meeting of shareholders of Imperial to be held on 18 April
2008, and to the extent applicable, will be registered, and that the unbundling by Imperial of its investment
in Egstra, details of which are reflected in the Imperial circular, will be implemented.

The Egstra directors, whose names are set out on page 8 of this pre-listing statement, collectively and
individually, accept full responsibility for the accuracy of the information provided in this pre-listing
statement and certify that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, there are no other facts, the omission of
which would make any statement false or misleading, and confirm that they have made all reasonable
enquiries in this regard and confirm that this pre-listing statement contains all information required by the
Listings Requirements.

The Issuer Services Division of the JSE has agreed, subject to the fulfilment of the oulstanding conditions
precedent as reflected in the Imperial circular, to the listing of the issued ordinary share capital of Egstra in
the Diversified Industrials sub-sector of the General Industrials sector of the JSE lists under the name
“Eqstra” with effect from the commencement of business on Monday 12 May 2008.

On the commencement of listing, the authorised share capital of Egstra will comprise ordinary shares,
“A"” deferred ordinary shares and “B” deferred ordinary shares. The ordinary shares, “A” deferred ordinary
shares and “B” deferred ordinary shares will have a par value of 0.1 cent each. The authorised share capital
consislts of 360 000 000 ordinary shares, 20000 000 “A” deferred ordinary shares and 20 000 000
“B" deferred ordinary shares. The issued share capital will initially comprise 212 129 870 ordinary shares,
then increase to 258 389 870 ordinary shares, (after taking into account the MCC minority transactions as
set out in 7.2 of this document) 16 781 968 “A” deferred ordinary shares and 14 516 617 “B” deferred
ordinary shares. All ordinary shares rank pari passu.

The ordinary shares will only be traded in electronic form on the JSE and accordingly all shareholders who
hold ordinary shares in certificated form will have to dematerialise their certificated shares should they wish
Lo trade on the JSE.

Deloitte & Touche, Registered Auditors, whose reports are included in this pre-listing stalement, has given
and has not withdrawn its consent to the inclusion of its name and reports in this pre-listing statement in
the form and context in which they appear.

This pre-listing statement is available in English. Additional copies may be obtained during normal business
hours between 20 March 2008 and 19 May 2008, both days inclusive, from Eqgstra’s registered office, Rand
Merchant Bank and the transfer secretaries, the addresses of which are set out in the “Corporate information
and advisers” section of this pre-listing statement.



Corporate information and advisers

Company secretary and registered office
Liezl Moller, CA{SA)
12 Corobrick Road

Meadowdale
(PO Box 1590, Bedfordview, 2008)

Transfer secretaries

Computershare Investor Services (Proprietary) Limited

Ground Floor

70 Marshall Street

Johannesburg, 2001
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(A division of FirstRand Bank Limited)

1 Merchant Place

Corner Fredman Drive and Rivonia Road
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(PO Box 786273, Sandtion, 2146)

Date of incorporation
19 June 1998

Place of incorporation
South Africa

Legal adviser

Tugendhaft Wapnick Banchetti & Partners
20th Floor, Sandton City Office Towers
5th Street

Sandown

Sandton, 2196

(PO Box 786728, Sandion, 2146)

Reporting accountants and auditors

Deloitte & Touche

Buildings 1 and 2, Deloitte Place
The Woodlands, Woodlands Drive
Woodmead

Sandton, 2196

(Private Bag X6, Gallo Manor, 2052}

Sponsor

Merrill Lynch South Africa (Proprietary) Limited
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Sandown

Sandton, 2196

{PO Box 651987, Benmore, 2010)
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Important dates and times

The definitions and interpretations commencing on page 4 of this pre-listing statement have, where

necessary, been used in the important dates and times as set cut below:

2008

Combined general meeting Lo be held at Imperial Place Jeppe Quondam,
79 Boeing Road East, Bedfordview at 10:00 on

Results of the combined general meeting released on SENS on

Results of the combined general meeting published in the press on

Publication of abridged pre-listing statement on

Last day to trade in Imperial shares on the JSE to participate in the
unbundling on

Imperial shares trade ex the entitlement to the Egstra distribution shares on

Listing of Eqstra from the commencement of business on

Annocuncement of the specified ratio in respect of the apportionment of the
costs/base costs of Egstra for taxation/CGT purposes on

Record date to participate in the unbundling on

Egstra share certificates will be posted by registered post, at the risk of the

certificated Imperial ordinary shareholder concerned. Lo certificated shareholders

and dematerialised shareholders will have their safe custody accounts at the
CSDPF or broker updated on

Friday, 18 April

Friday, 18 April

Monday, 21 April

Wednesday, 30 April

Friday, 9 May

Monday, 12 May

Monday, 12 May

Wednesday, 14 May

Friday, 16 May

Monday, 19 May

Notes:

1. These dates and times are subject to change. Any material changes to the above dates will be released on SENS and published in the

press.

2. All times given in this pre-listing statement are local times in South Africa.



Definitions and interpretations

Throughout this pre-listing stalement and the annexures hereto, unless otherwise stated or the conlext
otherwise indicates, the words and expressions in the first column shall have the meanings stated opposite
them in the second column and words and expressions in the singutlar shall include the plural and vice versa.

words importing natural persons shall include corporations and associations of persons and vice versa and
any reference to one gender shall include the other gender:

“ALCO”
“articles™
“REE”

“board” or “directors”

“Bonus Scheme”
“CEO”

“certificated shareholders”

“certificated shares”

“CFO”
“Companies Act”

“conditions precedent”

“CSDP”

“Deloitte”

“deferred ordinary shares”

“Egstra” or “the Company”

“Egstra distribution shares”

“Egstra ordinary shares”

“Exchange Control Regulations”

“execulive directors”

“Government”

asset and liability committee;
the articles of association of Egstra;
Black Economic Empowerment;

the board of directors of the Company at the last practicable date
whose names appear on page 8 of this pre-listing statement;

the Imperial Bonus Right Scheme;
chiefl executive officer;

shareholders who elect to hold certificated ordinary shares in
Egstira;

Egstra ordinary shares which are not dematerialised and title to
which is represented by a share certificate or document of title;

chief financial officer;
the Companies Act (Act 61 of 1973), as amended;

the conditions precedent to which the unbundling and listing of
Egstra is subject, as reflected in the Imperial circular;

a Central Securities Depository Participant accepted as a participant
in terms of the Securities Services Act (Act 36 of 2004), as amended;

Deloitte & Touche, Registered Auditors;

“A’ deferred ordinary and “B” deferred ordinary shares of 0.1 cent
each in the share capital of the Company issued to Ukhamba and
Lereko Mohility, respectively;

Eqgstra Holdings Limited (previously known as Imperial Investment
Holdings (Proprietary) Limited) (Registration number
1998/011672/06), a company duly registered and incorporated
under the company laws of South Africa, the holding company of
the Group, all the shares of which are to be listed on the JSE, prior
to the unbundling, based on the suspensive conditions of the
unbundling, as described in the Imperial circular, being met;

the Eqgstra ordinary shares held by Imperial, which will be
unbundled to Imperial shareholders in terms of the unbundling and
in accordance with the Imperial circular;

issued ordinary shares of par value 0.1 cenl each in the issued
ordinary share capital of Egstra;

the Exchange Control Regulations, 1961, as amended, promulgated
in terms of section 9 of the Currency and Exchanges Act (Act 9 of
1933), as amended;

the CEO and the CFO of Egstra, each of whom is involved in the day
to day running of the business and is in full time salaried
employment of the Company and/or its subsidiaries;

the Government of South Africa;



“the Group”
“HE"
“HEPS”
“IFRS”

“Imperial”

“Imperial board”

“Imperial circular™

“Imperial deferred ordinary shares”

1}

“Imperial combined general meeting’

“Imperial Group”

“Imperial ordinary shares”

“Imperial ordinary shareholders”

“Imperial preference shares”

“Imperial preference shareholders”™

“Imperial preferred ordinary shares”

“Imperial registers”

“Imperial shareholders”

“Income Tax Act”

“Jibar”

“JSE”

“last practicable date”

“LDT~

the Company, its subsidiaries and associates;
headline earnings;

headline earnings per share;

International Financial Reporting Standards;

Imperial Holdings Limited (Registration number 1946/021048/08),
a public company duly registered and incorporated in accordance
with the laws of Scouth Africa, all of the issued Imperial ordinary
shares and Imperial preference shares of which are lisited on
the JSE;

the board of directors of Imperial al the last practicable date;

a bound document, dated 20 March 2008, containing the circular to
Imperial shareholders, relating to the unbundling of Imperial’s
entire shareholding in Eqgstra to Imperial ordinary shareholders,
which is enclosed in the envelope Logether with this prelisting
statement;

issued deferred ordinary shares in Imperial of a par value of 4 cents
each held by Ukhamba, which convert to ordinary shares when
certain predetermined growth rates in HE are achieved;

the combined general meeting of Imperial shareholders (o be held at
the registered office of Imperial, Imperial Place, Jeppe Quondam,
79 Boeing Road East, Bedfordview at 10:00 on 18 April 2008 to
consider and vote on the necessary resolutions to effect the
unbundling and listing;

Imperial and any of its subsidiaries or associates from time to time;

ordinary shares of par value 4 cents each in the issued share capital
of Imperial listed on the JSE:

holders of Imperial ordinary shares;

4 540 041 non-redeemable non-participating preference shares of a
par value of 4 cenls each in the issued share capital of Imperial,
listed on the JSE;

holders of Imperial preference shares;

issued preferred ordinary shares of a par value of 4 cents each,
issued to Lereko Mobility, which rank pari passu in all respects with
ordinary shares in respect of voling and which will automatically
convert into Imperial ordinary shares on 30 Seplember 2010 on a
one-for-one basis;

the applicable register of members of Imperial;

the holders of Imperial ordinary shares, Imperial preference shares,
Imperial deferred ordinary shares and Imperial preferred ordinary
shares;

the Income Tax Act {Act 58 of 1962), as amended;

the Johannesburg Interbank Agreed Rate, being the mid-market
rate for deposits in rand displayed on the appropriate page of the
Reuters screen;

JSE Limited (Regisiration number 2005/022939/06), a public
company duly registered and incorporated with limiled liability
under the company laws of South Africa, licensed to operate as an
exchange under the Securities Services Act (Act 38 of 2004), as
amended;

the last practicable date before the finalisation of this pre-listing
statement, being 11 March 2008;

the last day to trade in Imperial shares cum the rights in respect of
the Egsira shares;



“Lereko Mobility”

“listing”

“listing date”

“Listings Requirements”

“MCC”

“MCC minorities”

“MCC minority transaction”

“memorandum”

“MLSA”

“NACQ”
“Nozala”

“preferred ordinary shares”

“Rand” or “R”

“record date”

“Rand Merchant Bank” or “RMB”

“registered office”

“resolutions”

"SARB"
“SENS”

Lereko Mobility (Proprietary) Limited (Regisiration number
2004/034154/07), whose ordinary shares are owned 49% by Imperial
and 51% by Lereko Consortium, established for the purposes of
acquiring and holding Imperial preferred ordinary shares and
converted ordinary shares, as the case may be, in Imperial;

the listing of the ordinary shares of Egstra on the JSE on the listing
date;

the proposed date of the initial listing of Egstra on the JSE, which
is expected to be on Monday, 12 May 2008, when Imperial ordinary
shareholders commence trading their unbundled Egstra shares;

the Listings Requirements of the JSE, as amended from time to
time;

the MCC group of companies consisting of Civil Finance Company
(Proprietary) Limited (Registration number 1980/001068/07),
Explotech Marketing Services (Proprietary) Limited (Registration
number 1975/003533/07), Five Six Seven Glen Austin (Proprietary)
Limited (Registration number 1980/01068/07), MCC Contracts
(Proprietary) Limited (Registration number 1983/008084/07),
Mutual Construction Company (Transvaal) (Proprietary) Limited
(Registration number 1988/002721/07), Dorstland Earth Moving
(Proprietary) Limited (Registration number 1990/001/343/07) and
MCC Mining (Proprietary) Limiled (Registration number
1968/012783/07);

collectively the minorily shareholders in the issued share capital of
the retevant MCC company;

the proposed buy-out of the MCC mincrities in exchange for shares
in the listed Egstira,

the memorandum of association of Eqstra;

Merrill Lynch South Africa (Proprietary) Limited (Registration
number 1995/001805/07), a private company duly registered and
incerporated in accordance with the laws of South Africa;

nominal annual rate compounded quarterly;

Nozala Investments (Proprietary) Limited (Registration number
1996/004733/07), a private company duly registered and
incorporated in accordance with the laws of South Africa;

issued preferred ordinary shares of a par value of 4 cents each,
issued to Lereko Mobility, which rank pari passu in all respecis
with Imperial ordinary shares in respect of voting and which
will automatically convert into Imperial ordinary shares on
30 September 2010 ¢on a one-for-one basis;

South African Rand, the official currency of South Africa;

the date on which Imperial ordinary shareholders are required to be
registered as such in the Imperial registers in order to participate
in the unbundling, which is expected to be on 16 May 2008;

Rand Merchant Bank, a division of FirstRand Bank Limited
(Registration number 1929/001225/06), a public company duly
registered and incorporated with limited liability in accordance with
the company laws of South Africa;

the registered office of Imperial, Imperial Place Jeppe Quondam,
79 Boeing Read East, Bedfordview;

the resolutions required to be approved by Imperial shareholders to
implement the unbundling and listing as reflected in the Imperial
circular;

South African Reserve Bank;

Securities Exchange News Service of the JSE;



“Share Purchase Scheme”

“sharecholders” or
“Eqgstra shareholders”

“South Africa”

“Strate”

“this document” or
“this pre-listing statement”

“4ransfer secretaries”

“Ukhamba”

“unbundling”

“AT”

“VWAP”

the Imperial Executive Share Purchase Scheme;

the holders of Egstra ordinary shares and deferred ordinary shares;

the Republic of South Africa;

Strate Limited (Registration number 1998/022242/06), a public
company duly registered and incorporated with limited liability in
accordance with the company laws of South Africa which is licensed
as a central securities depository in terms of section 32 of the
Securities Services Act (Act 36 of 2004), as amended;

this pre-listing statement and the annexures hereto, 1o be issued by
Egstra on or aboul 20 March 2008, regarding the listing of Egstra
on the JSE;

Computershare Investor Services (Proprietary) Limited
(Registration number 2004/003647/07), a private company duly
registered and incorporated in South Africa whose address is
Ground Floor, 70 Marshall Street, Johannesburg, 2001 (PO Box
61051, Marshalltown, 2107);

Tugendhaft Wapnick Bancheiti & Partners, legal advisers and
attorneys to Imperial;

Ukhamba Holdings (Proprietary) Limited (Registration number
1998/017702/07), a privale company incorporaled in South Africa;

the unbundling by Imperial of all the shares held by it in Eqgstra by
way of a distribution in specie which will occur immedialely after
the listing in terms of section 90 of the Companies Act and
section 46 of the Income Tax Act, whereby Imperial ordinary
shareholders recorded in the register on 16 May 2008 will receive
one Egstra ordinary share for every one Imperial ordinary share
held;

Value-Added Tax payable in terms of the Value-Added Tax Act
{Act 89 of 1991), as amended; and

the volume weighted average price of a share traded on the JSE,
calculaled over Lhe relevant period of consecutive trading days,
which shall include any trading day on which the relevant share
has not traded, to four decimal places when quoted in Rand.
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Pre-listing statement

Introduction and purpose

The directors of Imperial, a diversified industrial company listed on the JSE, have taken the decision
after extensive deliberation and wide consultation to unbundle Eqstra to Imperial ordinary shareholders.
Eqgstra will be separately listed on the JSE under the "Diversified Industrials sub-sector of the General
Industrials™ sector. The JSE has approved the listing of Egstra’s ordinary shares under the code “EQS”
and ISIN: ZAEQO0117123.

Through its decentralised approach, Imperial has proven its ability to create businesses of considerable
scale. The Imperial board are of the opinion that Egstra, which comprises Imperial Fleet Services,
Imperial Flexi Fleet, Saficon Industrial Equipment. Impact Forklifts (UK), MCC and the disiributorships
for Terex and New Holland earthmoving equipment, has reached a level of scale and maturity to attract
it’s own debt and equity capital base.

Egstra has transformed itself from a leasing company into a diversilied leasing, industrial, construction
and mining equipment importer and distributor as well as being a major player in the hard rock
opencast contract mining and plant hire sectors. This transformation is a result of a combination of
organic growth, acquisitions and successfully obtaining distributorships for construction and mining
equipment and industrial products. These sectors offer significant growth potential given the global
demand for commodities and the South African infrastructural development curve. It has an asset base
of approximately R8 billion at 25 June 2007, comprising passenger and commercial vehicles, materials
handling and earthmoving equipment.

The Imperial board believes that the unbundling will enhance shareholder value through:

+ unlocking the growth potential of Egstra by structuring its balance sheet appropriately for the asset
intensive nature of its business and the annuity income stream generated;

+ unlocking more growth potential for Imperial by the elimination of the high capital demands of the
leasing business from its portfolio of businesses;

« providing shareholders with direct exposure to industrial, commodily and infrastructure-related
invesitments;

+ achieving sharper focus in the operations of the two listed entities; and
* an improved exposure to the intrinsic value of the two listed entities.
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Information relating to Imperial

Imperial was incorporated in South Africa on 15 March 1946 and is listed on the JSE under the
“Diversified Industrials” sub-sector of the “General Industrials” sector, JSE code ‘IPL. 1t is a diversified
multi-national mobility group with activities spanning motor vehicle and related operations across
virtually all modes of transport for people and freight. While capitalising on the synergies between its
businesses, its decentralised management structure actively encourages entrepreneurship, innovation
and industry-specific best practices.

The Imperial group currently operales through six divisions: logistics, car rental and tourism,
distributorships, dealerships, insurance and leasing and capital equipment. The activities of group
associates include {inancial services through Imperial Bank. Imperial is active in South Africa, selected
parts of Africa, the United Kingdom, Europe, Scandinavia and Australia.

The Imperial group’s activities in these markets encompass a wide range of related sales and services;
* integrated logistics solutions, combining asset ownership and intellectual capital;
s car rental and tourism;

»= motor vehicle and aircraft import and distribution, passenger and commercial vehicle dealerships,
sales and after-sales services;

* related financial services businesses aimed at extracting further value from mobility product
offerings, namely banking and insurance; and

* leasing, industrial, construction and mining equipment import and distribution, contract mining and
plant hire.

Since it listed in 1987, the Imperial group’s motor dealerships have expanded from 11 to more than 200
and from a single franchise to 34. s truck fleet has increased from 1 120 to 5 803, its passenger car
fleet has increased from 1 650 to 37 828. It has grown from three divisions comprising motor
dealerships, car rental and logistics to seven with the addition of leasing and capital equipment, vehicle
distribution, insurance and aviation to the portfolio. Revenue has increased from R219 million to
R66.2 billion and the staff complement has grown from 1 720 to 43 792.

Subsequent to a recent review of its business mix and pursuant to lmperial's objective of achieving
optimal growth and returns. a decision was made to exit capital-intensive activities by disposing of
aviation leasing and the unbundling of the leasing and capital equipment division.

Information relating to Eqstra

3.1 Incorporation

Egstra was incorporated and registered in South Africa on 19 June 1998 as a private company
under registration number 1998/011672/07.

3.2 Group structure

Egstra will consist of the lollowing three divisions, which are currently managed within Imperial
as stand-alone and aulonomous divisions:

3.2.1 Passenger and Cominercial Vehicles

Carries out leasing and value-added services in the passenger, light, medium and heavy
commercial vehicle market in South Africa and various African territories.

3.2.2 Industrial Equipment

Carries out the distribution, leasing and value-added services in the industrial equipment,
malerials handling and power generation markets in South Africa, various African
territories and in the United Kingdom.

3.2.3 Construction and Mining

Imports and distributes heavy-duty capital equipment used in the construction and mining
sectors, carries out opencast hard rock contract mining and plant hire. Operates in South
Africa and various African territories.
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3.3 Nature of business

3.3.1

3.3.2

Overview

Egstra is a diversified leasing, industrial, construction and mining equipment importer and
distributor as well as being a major player in the hard rock opencast contract mining and
plant hire sectors. Egstra has reached significant scale, with revenue of R5.2 billion and total
assets of approximately RS billion at 25 June 2007.

It trades under various stand-alone brand names in its respective markets and only the
Passenger and Commercial Vehicle division trades under the Imperial name. It is not
anticipated that the rebranding of this division will have any adverse impact on the business.
There is currently no Government protection, cther than applicable local tariff protection, or
any investment encouragement law affecting the business of Egstra.

Business model

Egstra’s primary sirategy is to be a business-to-business focused organisation that
differentiates its product offerings through value-added products and vertical integration
focused around specific asset classes. The following diagram illustirates Egstra’s business
model:

Figure 1: Eqstra value chain

Wholesale margin Interest differential Value add margin Disposal margin

Egstra’s business model altows for the management of an asset “from factory to scrap yard”.
Wholesale margin is captured at the initial point of the asset life by supplying the product
directly, negotiating directly with original equipment manufacturers or distributors.
Interest differential margin is extracted via the ability of the division to leverage its balance
sheet and have a lower cost of financing than that of the cusltomer. The value-added margin
is extracted by providing a complete package to clients via operating rentals that include
maintenance, parts, insurance and related services such as operators, fleet management and
reporting. The contracts are priced in a way that ensures the full absorption of asset costs
via the value-added services. As a result, a profit is typically realised on disposal. The
disposal margin is captured through the in-house disposal outlets and where prudent, assets
are refurbished and either added to the relevant division’s used equipment rental fleet or
disposed of.

Figure 2 further explains the value-added approach as well as the vertical integration that
exists.



Figure 2: Eqstra value chain

Division Distribute Lease or rent out Valune-add Seil asset
Passenger * Bulk procurement * Long-iterm leases » Maintenance + Dispose of assets
and with blue-chip client contracts and through own channels
Commercinl base insurance products
Vehicles + Approximately 25%H| » Truck trailer load

market share body and tanker

* Funding terms manufacturing
matched with lease = Commercial vehicle
contracts workshops and panel

shops for repairs

Industrial * Exclusive distributor | « 38%'® of SA forklift |+ Significant vajue- s Dispose of assets
Equipment of Toyota and market add from operators, through own channel
Clarklift forklifts, « SBignificant scope to maintenance, parts * Refurbishing asset for
BT Warehousing increase footprint and insurance a "second life” after
Equipment. Kalmar ocutside of forklifts initial lease period
Container Handling
Equipment.

Accelerale Battery
Charges, Hawker
Batteries and
Charges, Hako
Industrial Cleaning
Equipment, JCB
Tetetruck (nen-
exclusive)

The majority of all
forklifts sold are
leased to customers

Construction | » Distribution rights * Largest opencast * Developed into a » Internationally
and Mining for Terex and New hard-rock mining respected hard-rock tradable machinery
Holland Construction contractor in SA contract mining + Refurbishing asset for
(mining and * Focused on shorter- expert in SA a "second life” after
construction term plant hire, * Significant initial contract period
equipment) and attractive asset maintenance
Carraro parts » Considerable vertical expertise and
mtegration and national
leasing opportunities infrastructiure
available * Aftersales, finance

and insurance
facilitation

Souree: {11 Egstra estimate based on South African Vehicle Rental and Leasing Association fotal market size.
{2) As per World Industrial Truck Statisties orders placed on Original Equipment Manutacturer factories.

3.4 Operations

3.4.1 Passenger and Commercial Vehicles

The Passenger and Commercial Vehicles Leasing division provides fleet management
solutions for all makes of vehicles including passenger, light, medium and heavy
commercial vehicles to the South African and sub-Saharan markets. In addition to being a
market leader in the South African market, this division has considerable fleet interests in
Namibia, Swaziland, Lesotho and Bolswana with a rapidly expanding footprint in East and
West Africa. Through its business units, the division targets the needs of both the corporate
and government sectors.

The current fleet is valued at R2.7 billion.

Value-added products offered by the division include: managed maintenance, accident
management services, contract hire, in-house workshops, panel shops, tanker/body building,
auction, wholesale and retail facilities.

Divisional overview

R'million 2007 2006 2005
Revenue 2023 1 545 1 409
Operating profit 318 307 308
Assets 3415 2 881 2450
Liabilities 2 819 2 376 1 850

11
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Figure 3: Passenger and Commercial Vehicles divisional structure

Business unit Target market Products/Services
Passenger and light commercial vehicles Full Maintenance
to corporale enterprises in sub-Saharan Lease/Operaling Lease
Africa Contract hire

Managed products
Value-added services

Medium and heavy commercial vehicles, Full Maintenance

and specialist equipment to corporate Lease/Operating Lease

enterprises in South Africa Contract hire
Managed products
Workshops
Panelshops

Tanker/Body building
Value-added services

. Retail, wholesale and auction of passenger  Retail outlets
and light commercial vehicles in Vehicle auction and
HYPERCAR South Africa related financial
services

Virtual vehicle sourcing
dealership

3.4.2 Industrial Equipment

The Industirial Equipment division has a similar business model to the Passenger and
Commercial Vehicles Leasing division; it, however, operates in the industrial equipment and
materials handling sectors. This division enjoys market share leadership in the South
African forklift market. The Industrial Equipment division is focused around the product
lines rather than the Imperial brand. The current forklift rental and leasing fleet consists of
7 689 units in South Africa and 3 317 units in the United Kingdom.

The division is the exclusive distributor of Toyota and Clarklift Forklifts, BT Warehousing
Equipment, Kalmar Heavy Duty Forklifts and container handlers and Accelerate Battery
Chargers in Southern Africa. In addition, the division markets an extensive range of quality
materials handling accessories. The division has'a non-exclusive distribution agreement
with JCB Teletruck in Southern Africa and has exposure to the UK market through Impact
Handling, a forklift rental dealer. The Toyota forklift distribution agreement for South
Africa was renewed on 1 April 2007 and is valid for three years.

The range of services offered in Southern Africa include long and short-term rental service
and maintenance contracts, sales of new and used equipmeni and parts, fleet management,
driver training and batlery bay management. In addition to providing leasing equipment,
the division alsc provides value-added services such as repairs and maintenance, distribution
of equipment and insurance thereof.

Divisional overview

R'million ' 2007 2006 2005
Revenue 1 303 982 885
Operating profit 177 168 150
Assets 1 687 1 562 1523
Liabilities 1 466 1 330 1223




3.4.3

WARENOUSING EQUAPMENT
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3.4.2.1

3.4.2.2

TUF Forklifts

Tuf Forklifts provides a network for distributing pre-owned diesel, gas and electric
forklifts of all makes, with handling capacity from 1.8 tonnes to 32 tonnes. All
equipment is fully recondilioned and three classes of warranty are provided; each
designed to suit client needs and budget requirements, ensuring peace of mind every
time a ¢lient purchases a Tuf Forklift machine. Tuf Forklifts has branches in eight
locations, providing access to the major manufacturing centres of South Africa.
Tuf Forklifts provides the Industrial Equipment division with a mechanism to
effectively manage the residual value of its leased assets.

Impact Handling Ple (United Kingcdom)

Impact Forklift Trucks is an independent forklift rental dealer in the UK. Impact
was established in Hull, in 1985. Imperial acquired the business in 2000.

Impact has recently been awarded the Nissan Forklift dealership for territory
covering 50% of the UK Industrial Equipment market.

Construction and Mining

This division focuses on providing opencast mining services, renting mining and
construction equipment as well as importing and distributing New Holland Construction
and Terex mining and construction equipment. The continued resources and constiruction
boom has provided a significant opportunity for Egstra to provide equipment and related
services Lo the construction and mining industry. Significant contracts have been won from
the resources sector {especially platinum) and the construction sectors.

Divisional overview

R'million 2007 2006 2005
Revenue 1 B9S 493 -
Operating profit 343 869 -
Assets 2 584 969 -
Liabilities 2 009 664 -
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3.4.3.1

3.4.3.2

3.4.3.3

Contract Mining

MCC specialises in opencast contract mining of chrome, platinum, gold as well as
base metals. MCC is an industry leader in opencast hard rock mining and
environmental mining as well as planning, bulk earthworks and ground
rehabilitation. MCC will design and implement a mining plan and deliver the final
product at an economical cost per cubic meter or tonnes. In-depth project planning,
rehabilitation, surface blasting, hard rock mining and ore recovery are all part of
the complete mining package offered by MCC. MCC does not take any operational
mining risk, which remains with the mining company. The MCC group offers one of
the largest fleels of opencast mining equipment in South Africa. The MCC group’s
commitment extends to providing drilling and blasling expertise by providing
explosive technology and preducts to support the mining and earthmoving industry.
MCC’s project management division offers an all-in-one service, backed by the most
sophisticated software and design expertise to assist clients in assessing any job and
recommending the right plant at the most economical cost per unit. Project
management is a service that is equipped with experienced qualified professionals.
This division has operated throughout Southern Africa with projects currently in
South Africa, Zimbabwe and Namibia.

MCC opencast mining is currenily moving in excess of 5 million cubic meters of
overburden and ore per month. The fleet consists of:

+ Excavators: 50 to 360 tonnes:
¢ Haul irucks (Rigid and Articulated): 35 to 135 tonnes; and
¢ Support equipment includes loaders, dozers and water carts.

Plant Hire

MCC Plant Hire rents its heavy earthmoving equipment to customers on an hourly
basis with clearly defined daily minimums. Its customers vary from large blue chip
corporations to smaller construction operators where deposits are required up-front
to secure estimated usage.

MCC Plant Hire has national representation throughout South Africa. Its fleet
consists of over 500 large earth-moving units. MCC has extensive workshop and
plant rebuilding facilities to support its operation.

Plant available for hire includes:

* Graders +« Waler tankers 8 000! to 30 0001

* Rollers 10 Tonnes Smooth + Hydraulic Hammers 30 tonnes
Drum/Pad Foot + Articulated dump trucks

* Excavators 20 to 110 tonnes 20 to 60 tonnes

* Dozers 12 to 105 tonnes * Rigid dump trucks 30 to 100 tonnes

* Loaders 2.7 to 7.5 cubic metres

Construction and Mining Equipment

Egstra recently acquired the distribution rights to New Holland Construction
equipment and the Terex mining and construction range of products. Terex and New
Holland Construction are well-known brands in the international market that are
independently managed and largely compete in different markel segments.
Established international brands are well accepted locally and Eqstra is well placed
to build on its existing footprint to become a significant supplier of capital
equipment,

Construction equipment is comprised of a full range of prime movers and haulers
with a mass or paylcad of less than 100 tonnes. This includes excavators, dozers,
wheel loaders, graders, backhoe loaders and off-road articulated and rigid trucks.
Other equipment allied to the construction and building industries comprises road
building machines, telehandlers, skid steer loaders, compaction rollers and cranes.

The range of equipment involved in surface mining operations includes large
excavators with a mass exceeding 100 tonnes and rigid haul trucks with a payload
in excess of 100 tonnes. Other significant product lines include drill rigs, crushing
and screening equipment.
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Crawler dozers
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Materials Processing
and Mining
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3.4.4 Market leader

Egstra is a leading provider in each of its business areas execept for construction and mining
equipment where the Terex and New Holland Construction brands have recently been
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¢ Holcim SA
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* Mobile Telephone Networks
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3.4.5 Strengths

Egstra’s strength lies in its long track record, vertical integration and diversity. Eqstra is
focused along a central theme of extracting the maximum value from every assel through
vertical integration and value-added products and services, Over a long period Egsira has
accumulated expertise in understanding the high-quality assets it leases out and owns. This
often allows for the creation of a second lease life for most equipment. Eqsira’s focus is on
movable assets of high quality, which ensures thal asseis are easily tradable (sometimes
internationally) and market value is readily achievable. Established relationships with
equipment suppliers ensure that Egstra’s assets are revenue generating, rather than held for
inventory, and as a result the business has a relalively low working capital requirement.

The average length of the leasing contracts varies from 42 to 72 months, depending on the
asset class. These leases provide annuity income that more than covers the related interest,
amortisation and value-added costs.




3.4.6 BEEF credentials

Egstra will comply with relevant BEE legislation and anticipates oblaining an independent
assessment from a recognised BEE rating agency. From an ownership perspective, Egstra is
anticipated to have approximately 16% black equity ownership at the outset (including the
impact of the MCC minority transaction).

Bgstra’s legal entities will be created prior to the unbundling without the BEE equity
ownership component. However, immediately after the unbundling, Ukhamba will subscribe
for “A"” deferred crdinary shares and Lereko Mobility will subscribe for “B” deferred
ordinary shares, in Eqgstra, respectively. These two classes of shares will give the BEE
shareholders a 12.9% interest in Eqgstra, thereby enabling them to enjoy similar rights as
those which they enjoy in relation to the corresponding shares in Imperial.

In addition to the existing BEE shareholders, Nozala, a BEE shareholder in MCC, will
convert its holding in MCC Contracts (Proprietary) Limited and Mutual Construction
Company (Transvaal) (Proprietary) Limited into 8 272 000 Eqgstra shares upon listing.

3.4.6.1 Impact of the unbundling on the Imperial BEE arrangements

Imperial has implemented two BEE equity ownership transactions to date, one with
Ukhamba and the other with Lereko Mobility. It is the intention for both Ukhamba
and Lereko Mobility to be placed in the same economic position post the unbundling
as they were in before the unbundling, The effect on the Ukhamba and Lereko
Mobility BEE transactions is dealt with below.

In order to accommodate the unbundling, the terms and conditions of Imperial's
deferred ordinary shares and preferred ordinary shares will be amended in terms of
the special resolutions amending Articles 55 and 56 of the articles of asscciation of
Imperial, which form part of the notice of general meeting attached to the Imperial
circular.

3.4.6.2 Ukhamba

At the last practicable date, Ukhamba held 5 973 421 ordinary shares and
16 781 968 deferred ordinary shares in Imperial. In terms of the unbundling,
Ukhamba will receive 5 973 421 ordinary shares in Egsira.

In order to ensure that Ukhamba is not disadvantaged by the unbundling, Ukhamba
will be offered to subscribe for 16 781 968 “A” deferred ordinary shares in E¢stra at
their par value of 0.1 cent each. As a consequence, the hurdle rate which regulates
the conversion of the deferred ordinary shares to Imperial ordinary shares will be
amended to exclude Egstra while an equivalent hurdle rate, based on Egstra's
performance, will apply to the Eqstra “A” deferred ordinary shares.

Save as set out above, the salient terms and conditions of the “A” deferred ordinary
shares, which are contained in Article 58 of the articles, are substantially the same
as the current Imperial deferred ordinary shares except for the hurdle rates that
govern their conversion inlo ordinary shares.

Mechanics of conversion of the “A” deferred ordinary shares into Egstra ordinary
shares

* Principles of conversion

To the extent that Eqstra’s actual HE for any year exceeds the predetermined Base
HE Hurdles, a portion of these excess earnings will be deemed to be attributable
to Ukhamba (refer paragraph entitled “Value atiributable to Ukhamba” below).
At the end of each financial year of the initial conversion period, a certain number
of “A” deferred ordinary shares will convert into Eqstra ordinary shares. This
number will be determined such that the earnings attributable to Ukhamba over
that financial year equates to the market value of these ordinary shares based on
the five-month VWAP of an Eqgstra ordinary share, calculated over the five-month
period commencing on 1 March and ending on 31 July.

* Conversion of deferred ordinary shares in financial years 2008 (o 2011

The number of “A” deferred ordinary shares that will converl into Eqgstra
ordinary shares in the 2008 financial year will be equal to the number of deferred
ordinary shares in Imperial that convert into ordinary shares in Imperial. The
number of “A” deferred ordinary shares that convert thereafter into Eqgstra
ordinary shares will be determined based the principles below:
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Base HE Hurdles
Base HE Hurdles have been set for the three remaining financial years of the

initial conversion pericd, being 2009 to 2011. The 2008 base HE for Egsira were
calculated as R485 941 413 which is escalated annunally by 13%.

HE Thresholids

Two HE Thresholds, namely the ist HE Threshold and the 2nd HE Threshold,

have been set for each of the three financial years of the initial conversion period,

and have been determined as follows:

- the 1st HE Threshold for each financial year will be equal to 101.8% (being
115% divided by 113%) of the Base HE Hurdle for the applicable financial year;
and

- the 2nd HE Threshold for each financial year will be equal to 103.5% (being
117% divided by 113%) of the Base HE Hurdle for the applicable financial year.

Value attributable to Ukhamba

A portion of Eqstra’s Actual HE above the Base HE Hurdles will be deemed to be
attributable to Ukhamba each financial year within the initial conversion period,
calculated as follows:

— 25% of the amounl that Actual HE exceeds the Base HE Hurdle; plus
- 25% of the amount that Aciual HE exceeds the 1st HE Threshold; plus
— 25% of the amounl that Actual HE exceeds the 2nd HE Threshold.

In effect, Ukhamba will be attributed:

~ a proportion of actual HE in excess of the Base HE Hurdle;

- a grealer proportion of actual HE in excess of the 1st HE Threshold, being the
second-highest threshold; and

~ an even grealer proportion of actual HE in excess of the 2nd HE Threshold,
being the highest threshold.

Consequently, greater value is deemed to be altributable to Ukhamba as Egstra
achieves higher HE growth.

Calculation of converted shares

At the end of each financial year of the initial conversion period, the amount
caleulated as the value deemed to be attributable to Ukhamba will be ‘translated’
into a number of Egstra ordinary shares based on the five-month VWAP of
Egstra's ordinary shares, as listed on the JSE, over the five-month period
commencing on 1 March and ending on 31 July.

This number of “A” deferred ordinary shares will then convert into Egstra ordinary
shares, subject to pre-determined annual minimum and maximum limits referred
to below, which will be subsequently listed on the JSE on or about seven days after
the approval of the annual financial stalements by the board of directors.

Provisos for conversion calculation

- The Base HE Hurdles and HE Thresholds will be adjusted to account for share
issues and share buybacks resulting in a change in the capital base of the
Company

~ If Egstra’s actual HE fall short of the adjusted base HE hurdle in a particular
financial year, the following year’s Base HE Hurdle will be increased by an
amount equal to this deficit

— The Base HE Hurdles and HE Thresholds will be adjusted to account for
unbundlings, special dividends and material changes to expected inflation
rates

- For the calculation of the number of “A” deferred ordinary shares that convert
into Eqgstra ordinary shares, where the five-month VWAP of Egstra’s ordinary
shares (as referred to above) is below the NAV per share of Egstra, then the
NAV per share will be used in place of the five-month VWAP for the purposes
of this calculation

— The calculation of the number of “A” deferred ordinary shares that convert into
Egstra ordinary shares on an annual basis, during the initial conversion
pericd, will be subject to an annual minimum of 1 000 000 shares, adjusted for
movements in Egstra’s weighted average number of shares in issue, provided
that HEPS has grown by 10%;



3.4.6.3

- The calculation of the number of “A” deferred ordinary shares that convert into
Egstra ordinary shares on an annual basis, during the initial conversion
period, will be subject to an annual maximum of 2.5% of Egsira’s weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue; and

— If the annual maximum or minimum number of shares referred to above is
applied in a financial year, the delermination of the number of “A” deferred
ordinary shares that convert into Eqstra ordinary shares in the following year,
excluding the financial year immediately following the end of the initial
conversion period, will be:

» reduced by the difference between the minimum number of shares that
applied in the previous year and that number of shares thal would have
converted in the absence of the minimum being applied; or

» increased by the difference belween the maximum number of shares that
applied in the previous year and that number of shares that would have been
converted in the absence of 2 maximurn being applied.

» The extended conversion period

To the extent that there remain “A” deferred ordinary shares that have not
converted into Egstra ordinary shares by the end of the initial conversion period,
the transaction will continue into the extended conversion period. The number of
“A"” deferred ordinary shares that will convert into Egqstra ordinary shares on an
annual basis during the extended conversion period will be determtined, on a non-
cumulative basis, as follows:

- if Egstra's HEPS growth cover the previous financial year equals or exceeds
10%, then 500 Q00 “A” deferred ordinary shares will convert into Egstra
ordinary shares;

- if Egstra’s HEPS growth over the previous financial year equals or exceeds
11%, then 750 000 “A” deferred ordinary shares will convert into Egsira
ordinary shares;

- if Egstra’s HEPS growth over the previous financial year equals or exceeds
12%, then 1 000 D00 “A” deferred ordinary shares will convert inlo Egstra
ordinary shares;

- if Egstra’s HEPS growth over the previous financial year equals or exceeds
13%, then 1 250 000 “A” deferred ordinary shares will converl into Egstra
ordinary shares; and

- If Egstra’s HEPS growth over ihe previous financial year is lower than 10%,
there will be no conversion of “A” deferred ordinary shares into Egstra
ordinary shares for that particular year.

Lereko Mobility

At the last practicable date, Lereko Mobility held 14 516 617 preferred ordinary
shares in Imperial. These shares pay fixed coupons, which, in aggregalte, amount to
535 cents per annum per preferred ordinary share.

In order to implement the unbundling in the most efficient manner, Imperial has
decided not to amend the terms and conditions (and, in particular, the preferred
dividend), of the preferred ordinary shares in Imperial. Therefore, Imperial will
continue to pay the same fixed dividend coupons to the preferred ordinary
shareholders.

However, in order to ensure that Lereko Mobility is not disadvanlaged by the
unbundling, Lereko Mobility will, as parl of the unbundling, be offered to subscribe
for 14 516 617 “B” deferred ordinary shares in Eqgstra at their par value of 0.1 cent
each. :

To this end, Egstra will convert 20 000 000 of its authorised ordinary shares into
20 000 000 “B” deferred ordinary shares to facilitate the issue of 14 516 617
“B” deferred ordinary shares to Lereko Mobility. The terms and conditions of
the “B” deferred ordinary shares are contained in Article 57 of the articles.

Dispensation has been received from the JSE to create and authorise these shares to
have full voting rights despite the fact that they will not be listed on the JSE.
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The salient terms and conditions of the “B” deferred ordinary shares in Egstra,
which will otherwise be substantially the same as the preferred ordinary shares in
Imperial, will not entitle holders to a dividend in the normal course of events in the
period up to, and including, 30 September 2010. Accordingly, the “B” deferred
ordinary shares to be issued by Egstra to Lereko Mobility will have the following key
features:

¢ they will not pay a regular dividend in the period up to, and including,
30 September 2010;

s+ they will convert on a one-for-one basis into Eqgstra ordinary shares on
30 September 2010;

+ they will rank pari passu with Egstra ordinary shares in terms of voting; and

* they will be subject to a call option in favour of Egstra, exercisable on 15 June
2015, over a formula-determined number of converted shares, at their par value
of 0.1 cent each.

Eqgstra call option

In terms of the original vendor funding, Imperial provided Lereko Mobility with
Junior funding in the form of notional vendor funding. The noticnal vendor funding
is currently reflected as an asset in Imperial's books and will be split between
Imperial and Egstra. The split of the notional vendor funding will allow Egstra to
have a call cption over a formula-determined number of Egstra converted shares
exercisable on 15 June 2015 at their par value of 0.1 cent each.

Lereko Mobility will therefore provide Egstra with a right to repurchase on 15 June
2015 a formula-determined number of the Egstra converted shares at their par value
of 0.1 cent each, in terms of the Egstra call option. The number of the Egsira call
option shares to be repurchased by Eqgstra, in terms of the Eqstra call option, will be
determined based on the 20-day VWAP to be calculated over the period of
20 conseculive trading days up to and including 1 June 2015.

The number of Eqgstra call option shares which Eqgstra shall be deemed to have
purchased, shall be arrived al on the application of the following formula:

NV
N =
20-day VWAP - 0.1 cent
Where:
N = the number of converted shares purchased, rounded to the nearest

whole number;

NV = Peas x R1,944,977.646 + M x (Seas — Peas x FLOOR), subject to NV being
limited to 2 maximum amount equal to Peas x R2 290 985 185;

M = 2903 323, which price will be subject to adjustments relating to certain
corporate events;
Peas = the percentage thal VWAPeas constitutes of the sum of VWAP. and

VWAPEeas, where VWAPir. and VWAPegs are the volume weighted
average prices of an Imperial share and an Eqstra share, respectively,
in each case calculated over the 20 consecutive trading days following
the LDT in respect of the Egstra unbundling;

Seas = VWAP, provided that:
(a) if VWAP is less than Peas x FLOOR, it shall be deemed to be
Peas x FLOOR;
(b) if VWAP is greater than Peas x CAP, it shall be deemed to be
Peas x CAP;
FLOOR = R208.8675, which price will be subject to adjustments relating to

certain corporate events;

CAP = R327.843%9, which price will be subject to adjustments relating to
certain corporate events;

VWAPrL = the VWAP per share, quoled to four decimal places, for trades in
Imperial shares made on the JSE, calculated over the 20 consecutive
trading days following LDT in respect of the Egstra unbundling; and

VWAPras = the VWAP per share, quoted to four decimal places, for trades in Egstra

shares made on the JSE, calculated over the 20 consecutive trading
days following LDT in respect of the Egsira unbundling.
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3.4.6.4

The consideration payable by Eqgsira, upon its exercise of the Eqgstra call option, will
be the par value of 0.1 cent per share multiplied by the number of shares as
calculated using the above formula. This consideration will be paid by Eqgstra
from available cash resources, subject to the requirements of the Companies Act and
the JSE.

Prior to effecting a repurchase of the ordinary shares, in terms of the Eqstra call
option, a working capital confirmation as set out in the JSE Listings Requirements,
will be provided tc the JSE. The directors of Eqsira will, after the repurchase of the
ordinary shares, publish an announcement containing, inler alia, the working
capital statement as set out in paragraph 11.27 of the Listings Requirements.

Egstra’s claim under the Egstra call option will be subordinated to the claims of the
preference share funders, in respect of the dividends payable on the preference
shares and the redemption amount thereof and Lo the debenture holders in respect
of their claims against Lereko Mobility in terms of the debenture trust deed, both in
respect of the interest and redemption amount thereof.

Lereko Mobility call option

In order to enable Lereko Mobility to retain the same, or some lesser, number of
ordinary shares after the exercise of the Egstra call option, Lereko Mobility will have
a right to simultaneously acquire from Egstra that number of ordinary shares as
will equal the number of Egstra converted shares that Eqstra would have purchased
in terms of the Egsira call option, or part thereof. The price per ordinary share at
which Lereko Mobility will have the right to acquire such number of ordinary shares
will be the 20-day VWAP, up o and including 1 June 2015. Exercise of the Lereko
Mobility call option is conditional upon the exercise of the Egstra call option.

Eqgstra resolutions

Details of the resolutions which were passed by Egstra prior to the issue of this pre-
listing statement, as a prelude to the unbundling. inter alia. to accommodate the
various transactions referred to in this paragraph 3.4.6, are contained in the notice
of general meeting of Eqstra {or the meeting held on 14 March 2008, which is one
of the documents available for inspection in paragraph 13.

Conditions precedent to the issue of the “"A” and "B" deferred ordinary shares

The issue of the “A” and “B” deferred ordinary shares by Eqgstra will be subject to the
fuifilment of the following conditions precedent.:

* the conclusion of the third addendum to the subscription and shareholders
agreement in respecl. of the preferred crdinary shares;

¢ the shareholders of Eqstra in general meeting passing the resolutions required to
implement the transactions;

* the approval by the shareholders of Imperial of the Egstra unbundling; and
s the listing of the Egstra shares on the JSE.

Strategy and prospects

The directors of Egstra are optimistic about the growth prospects available in South Africa, Africa
and internationally. The company enjoys markel leadership in South Africa in leasing and fleet
management, industrial equipment and opencast hard rock contract mining.

Egstra has proven strategies in place to take advantage of the opportunities that exist, which
include, but are not limited to:

Stakeholders — Continue to re-invent the businesses to have a value-added and sought after
association with customers, shareholders, employees and business partners.

Organic growth — Focus on organic growth in existing lines of business through customer
retention and increased market penetration,

Commuodities and Construction — Positioned Lo benefit from the commodities and construction boom.

International - Export and apply the business model to English speaking sub-Saharan Africa
and Europe by moving into countries where Eqsira operations are already established ensuring
appropriate returns versus risk profiles.

Diversification — Diversify the business into other medium-ticket assel classes offering a total
value-added proposition and develop businesses to fill gaps in the current value chain.
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» Acquisitions — Identify complementary “boli-on” businesses that will enhance shareholder value
and customer retention and fil intoc the Egstra decentralised and entrepreneurial philosophy.

+ Vertical Integration - Promole synergies between divisions and individual business units to
ensure maximum profitability and increase customer offering; and

s Value-add - Continue to develop new value-added products and services to complement the
Egstra business model.

Approximalely 90% of Eqgstra's profits and revenues are derived in South Africa. Egstra is
extremely well-positioned to benefit from the infrastructure spend and the continued demand for
platinum and uranium. It is anticipated that the demand for platinum and uranium will continue
due to the global demand for catalytic converters and nuclear power. This will create significant
opportunities for the Contract Mining business. The current eleciricity crisis may impact
underground mining operations, but MCC will not be directly affected as all the contract-mining
activities are above ground and are not dependent on eleciricity.

With the increased infrastructure spend and buoyant resources seclor Terex and New Holland
Construction are ideally positioned to take advantage of this increased demand. This, together with
the financial backing of Egstra to creale regional after sales support networks, will establish them
in a very strong markel position in the Southern Africa region

The Passenger and Commercial Vehicle and Industrial Equipment businesses will continue to
benefit from the anticipated growth in the South African economy. Higher interest and inflation
rates and a weakening currency dramalically increases the corporate market's desire to lease rather
than own vehicles. Impact Forklifts (UK) will benefit from the recently awarded Nissan forkhifl
dealership agreement which gives Egstra a combined coverage of 50% of the UK forklift market.

Future growth will be achieved through a combination of organic growth, selective acquisitions,
diversification of asset classes and value-added services. Although we are proud of our South
African heritage the company will grow its African and global presence over time as opportunities
arise.

The directors of Eqgstra are committed to social economic upliftment and development in South
Africa and subscribe to the Government's transformation initiatives. At listing Eqstra will have
three black empowerment partners, namely Ukhamba, Lereko Mcbility and Nozala with a combined
shareholding of approximately 16%.

3.6 Experienced management team

The Egstra Executive Committee members have an an established track record and extensive
experience. Over the last five years, revenue has increased from R1 905 million to R5 228 million
(174% increase), operating assets have increased from R3 209 million to R7 199 million (124%
increase) and the staff complement has increased from 1 515 {o 4 657 employees (207% increase).

No part of Egsira will be managed by a third party.

Financial information

Prior to the listing of Egstra and as detailed in paragraph 6.2 below, the Imperial Leasing and Capital
Equipment division will be restructured into a single legal entity, being Eqstra. The historical financial
information for Egstra, previously known as Imperial Investment Holdings (Proprietary) Limited, a
dormant company, in respect of the 25 June 2007 year-end, is contained in Annexure 1 to this pre-listing
statement.

The independent reporting accountants’ report on the historical financial information of Imperial
Investment Holdings (Proprietary) Limited is set oul in Annexure 2 to this pre-listing stalement.

Historical financial information for the Imperial Leasing and Capital Equipment division in respect of
the financial years ended 25 June 2005, 25 .June 2006 and 25 June 2007, is set out in Annexure 3 to this
pre-listing statement,

The independent reporiing accountants' report on the historical financial information of the Imperial
Leasing and Capital Equipment division is set out in Annexure 4 to this pre-listing statement.

The unaudited interim financial information for the Imperial Leasing and Capital Equipment division for
the six months ended 31 December 2007 is set out in Annexure 5 to this pre-listing statement.

The unaudited pro forma financial informalion for the six months ended 31 December 2007 is set oul in
Annexure 6 to this pre-listing statement.



The independent reporting accountants’ report on the unaudited pro forma financial information of
Eqgstra is set out in Annexure 7 to this pre-listing statement.

Up to the last practicable date, there has been no material change in the financial or trading position of
Egstra since the interim reporting period ended 31 December 2007.

4.1 Funding considerations

4.1.1

Capital adequacy and capital management

The board of Egstra has approved the capital adequacy policy, which aims at ensuring that
the Company has sufficient amounts of equity to meel its growth ambitions and (o cover
unexpected losses that may result from market or operational risks. The required amount of
capital has been determined at a divisional and asset class level and by analysing the nature
and track record of the particular division.

Based on these calculations the Company has determined a minimum capital adequacy
requirement of 17%. On unbundling it is expected that Egstra will have a capital adequacy
ratic in excess of 21%.

The capital requirements of the business will be continuously monitored and reported Lo the
ALCO on a regular basis to ensure that the capital management principles are adhered to.

The capital management process together with the liabilily management functions are
critical aspects taken into consideration by the rating agency in detlermining the public
rating of Egstra. Egsira is expected to publish its credit rating shortly after being unbundled
and it is a requirement in terms of the funding package that the company will have a public
credit rating from at least one international rating agency. Based on the work that has been
carried out by the board together with certain international rating agencies, it is the
expectation of the board that this rating will be within the A national scale rating band.

The public rating of the Company by at least one international rating agency is seen as a
critical requirement for the future raising of funding directly from the debt capital markets
in the form of commercial paper and corporale bonds.

The funding strategy

The funding strategy for Egstra has been determined by the ALCO ensuring that the
funding has a maturity profile that exceeds that of the run-off profile of the underlying
assels, reduces refinancing risk and as much as possible matches the interest rate exposure
of the assets.

4.1.2.1 Funding requirements

The funding requirementis have been broken down into three main geographic
regions where funding is being raised in each region on a different basis. The three
regions are South Africa and common monetary areas (“SA funding package”), rest
of Africa and the United Kingdom. The rest of Africa and United Kingdom funding
is being done on a bilateral basis by each business in the various underlying
jurisdictions. The SA funding package will have common terms and conditions and
is expecied to have participation from both local and international financial
institutions. The expected range of funding commitments under each of these
regions is as follows:

SA funding package R6 350 million
Rest of Africa R600 million
United Kingdom R650 million

4.1.2.2 SA funding package

This package is broken down into three main facilities, being a long-term, short-
term and general banking facility. The long-term funding has a legal maturity date
of five years with a step up in the margin after year three, if the funding has not
been repaid from long-lerm capital market funding raised. The short-term funding
has a legal maturity date of two years with a step up in rate after one year if the
funding has not been repaid from short-term capital market funding.

The general banking facililies have nolice pericds of between 30 and 90 days and
will be used mainly to finance intra-month funding requirements.
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To provide Egstra with sufficient standby committed liquidity facilities, the short-
term facility referred to above, when repaid or for the undrawn portion of the facility
after one year, will convert into an equal amount of 18-month notice committed
standby liguidity facilities. These standby facilities will be used to mitigate any
refinancing risk on the short term capital market funding expected to be raised.

The expected ranges of the facilities within the SA funding package are shown

below:
(R’million)
Long-term facility R3 500
Short-term facility R1 700
General banking facility R1 150
R6 350

The 18-month notice committed standby facility will be equal to the short-term
facility amount.

4.1.2.3 Rest of Africa and United Kingdom funding packages

The rest of Africa and the United Kingdom funding packages will Be done on a
bilateral basis, with funding being matched to assets. The total facility for the rest
of Africa is expected to be equivalent to R600 million in local currencies.

The UK faeility is expected to be equivalent of £43 million or approximately
R650 million.

Material loans

The material borrowings at the last practicable date are contained in Annexure 15 to this
pre-listing statement. As noted above, new funding has been arranged for Eqgstra, which
funding will be drawn down upon the implementation of the corporatisation of Eqstra prior
to listing. The details of the lenders that have signed up to the SA funding package as at the
last practicable date are as follows

General
Name of lender Long-term Short-term banking
(R'million) facility facility facility
ABSA Bank Limited 750 500 150
FirstRand Bank Limited 750 500 150
Investec Bank Limited 300 - 100
Nedbank Limited 1 000 500 600
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited — Johannesburg Branch 200 - -
The Standard Bank of South Africa Limited 500 200 150
3 500 1 700 1150

Certain commitment fees will be paid by Egstra on the undrawn portion of the above
facilities.

Taking into account these commitment fees, it is expected that the initial weighted average
funding cost of the SA funding package will be 3-month Jibar plus 1.55% or currently
12.75% NACQ. It is expected that this funding rate will reduce to a level of 3-month Jibar
plus 1.35% once capital market funding has been accessed.

If the capital market funding is not accessed, it would be expected that this rate would
increase to 3-month Jibar plus 1.67% after 364 days and to 3-month Jibar plus 2.28% after
three years assuming that no capital market funding or alternative bank funding was raised.

4.1.3.1 Refinancing process

Prior to unbundling, Imperial will draw down on the new SA funding package
detailed above for the purpose of repaying all existing debt in the Leasing and
Capital Equipment divisions. Upon reorganisation of the Imperial group and prior
to unbundling, these facilities will be ceded to Egstra.

4.1.3.2 Guarantees

For the SA funding paclkage Eqstra, together with its subsidiaries in South Africa
and the common monetary area will guarantee all facilities. The new facilities are
unsecured.



4.1.4

4.1.5

4.1.8

4.1.7

Borrowing powers

Extracts from the articles reflecting the berrowing powers of Egstra exercisable by the
directors and the manner in which such borrowing powers may be varied are set out in
Annexure B to this pre-listing statement. The borrowing powers of directors of subsidiaries
are restricted only by the limits, if any, imposed by Eqstra.

Save for foreign bank funding provided to Impact Forklift in the United Kingdom, the
Company has not applied for foreign funding and borrowings have therefore not been
restricted in terms of Exchange Control Regulations.

There are no restrictions on the borrowing powers of Egsira and its subsidiaries other than
as contained in the articles as set out in Annexure 8 to this pre-listing statement and the
funding agreements mentioned in paragraph 4.1.2 above.

Borrowings

MCC has loans maturing within 12 months, which relale to instalment sale loans with
Imperial Capital Limited, Wesbank, Stannic and Nedbank Limited. These loans will be settled
with the term facilities that have been negotiated. The detailed schedule of borrowings is
illustrated in Annexure 15.

There is currently no loan capital outstanding.

Material inter-company finance and other transactions

Material inter-company finance at the last practicable date R’000
Imperial Capital Limited 1 447 999
Imperial Group (Proprietary) Limited 2 061 224
Imperial Mobility Finance BV 321 569
Imperial Logistics International GmbH Co. KG 75 552
Ukhamba Investments Group (Proprietary) Limited 28919

The loans are unsecured, have no fixed terms of repayment and are interest bearing.

It is the intention that the inter-company finance as set out above, will be replaced with the
newly arranged funding package, as described in paragraph 4.1.2 above,

Loans receivable

No malterial loans were made by Eqgstra and/or any of its subsidiaries at the last practicable
date, except for a loan of R72 million to the Imperial Executive Share Purchase Scheme in
order to fund loans made by the trust to Egsira execulives as set out under 5.6.

4.2 Material commitments, lease payments and contingent liabilities

4.2.1

4.2.2

Capital expenditure commitments

Capital expenditure commitments R'000

Authorised by directors but not contracted

(to be incurred over 18 months) 1 838 684

Contracted X 1 277 091
3115 775

The above capital expenditure commitments are in relation to property, plant and equipment
and leasing asseis. The Group has no malerial expenditure commitmenis regarding
intangible assets. Capital expenditure will be funded by a combination of external
borrowings, cash flow from operaticns and proceeds on sale of leasing assets in the normal
course of business.

Lease commitments

Lease commitments at the last practicable date R'000

Property rentals 65 938

External lease payments relate to operating lease cbligations of Eqstra and its subsidiaries
in relation to committed minimum lease payments for the financial year ending
30 June 2008.
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4.3

4.4

4.2.3 Contingent liabilities
The Company has issued guarantees amounting to:

Imperial Fleet Services (Botswana) (Proprietary) Limited R150 000 000
Imperial New Holland Equipment (Proprietary) Limited €15 000 000

Other than as disclosed above, there are no other material commitments, lease payments and
contingent liabilities.

Intangible assets

Goodwill is created on any acquisition or business combination where the purchase price exceeds
the fair value of all tangible and identifiable intangible assets and liabililies including the fair value
of any contingent liability broughti on balance sheel.

In terms of the new revisions to IFRS 3, Business Combinations, which Egsira adopted early,
goodwill of R880 million has not been recognised as part of the MCC minority transaction.

Working capital statement

The Eqgstra board is satisfied, having considered the effects of the unbundling and the separate

listing of Egstra, that:

* the Company and the Group will be able, in the ordinary course of business, to pay its debts for
a period of 12 months from the date of this pre-listing statement;

+ the assets of the Company and the Group will be in excess of the liabilities of the Company and
the Group, for a period of 12 months after the date of this pre-listing statement, measured in
accordance with the accounting policies used in the audited annual financial statements for the
year ended 25 June 2007;

¢ the ordinary share capital and reserves of the Company and the Group will be adequate lor a
period of 12 months from the date of this pre-listing statement; and

« the working capital of the Company and the Group will be adequate for a period of 12 months
from the date of this pre-listing statement.

Directors and senior management

5.1

Details of the directors and senior management

The names, ages, business addresses, functions, qualifications, occupations, nationalities and brief
resumes of the directors and senior management are set oul in Annexure 9 to this pre-listing
statement.

Other than detailed in the paragraph below, none of the directors have declared:
* any bankrupicies, insolvencies, or individual voluntary compromise arrangements;

» any receiverships, compulsory liquidations, creditors voluntary liquidations, administrations,
company voluntary arrangements or any compromise or arrangement with creditors generally
or any class of creditors of any company where the director is or was a director with an execulive
function of such company at the time of or within the twelve months preceding any such
event(s);

¢ any compulsory liquidations, administrations or partnership voluntary arrangements of any
partnership where the director is or was a partner at the time of or within the twelve months
preceding such event(s);

» any receiverships of any asset(s) of the director or of a partnership of which the person is or was
a partner at the time of or within the twelve months proceeding such event(s);

* any details of any public criticism of the director by statutory or regulatory authorities,
including recognised professional bodies, and whether the director has ever been disqualified by
a court from acting as a director of a company or from acting in the management or conduct of
the affairs of any company; and/or

+ any offence involving dishonesty.

During 2007, Imperial placed its subsidiary Safedrive Holdings (Proprietary} Limited (“Safedrive”)
into liquidation when it emerged in Lhe course of a dispute between Imperial and the minority
shareholders of Safedrive, that Safedrive, which was managed by the managing director appointed
by the minority shareholders, was unable to pay its debts in consequence of improper conduct of
the affairs of Safedrive by the managing director. This matter is presently the subject of an enquiry
in terms of section 417 of the Companies Acl which is being conducted by the liguidator of
Safedrive, supported by Imperial. At the time of the liguidation, Walter Hill was a non-executive
director of Safedrive.



5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

All of the existing directors have submitted or will submit to the JSE duly completed director’s
declarations in compliance with Schedule 21 of the Listings Requirements, while newly appointed
directors will submit to the JSE duly completed declarations in compliance with Schedule 21 of the
Listings Requirements.

Sections 26, 27 and 28 of the Eqstra articles of association define directors, alternate directors and
describes the powers and duties of directors.

Terms of office of directors

Executive directors have:.no fixed-term service contracts and condilions of employment are
governed by engagement letters. Executive directors retire between the age of 55 and 63. Pension
and provident funds are defined contribution schemes and no provision is made for restraint of
trade contract payments for executives. No person has the right Lo appoint any director other than
in the terms of the articles and except Ukhamba.

Directors’ powers

The relevant provisions of the articles of associalion of Egstra governing the qualification,
remuneration and borrowing powers of directors are sel oul in Annexure 8 to this pre-listing
statement.

The borrowing powers of Eqgstra and its subsidiaries have not been exceeded in the past three years.

Directors’ interests in securities

The interests of the directors and their associates in Imperial shares at the last practicable date and
as they are expecled to be in Egstra immediately following the listing are disclosed below:

Director Beneficial
Per-
centage
Direct Indirect Total in Egstra
Executive
W S Hill 177 783 - 177 783 0.001
E Clarke 34 000 - 34 000 0.000
Non-executive
V J Mokoena 35 000 - 35 000 0.000
246 783 - 2486 783

Directors’ interests in transactions

No director has or had any interest, whether direct or indirect, in any transaction which is or was
unusual in its nature or conditions or significant to the business of the Group taken as a whole and
which was effected by the Company during the current or immediately preceding financial year, or
during any earlier financial year and which remains in any respect outstanding or unperformed.

No director has been paid any monies to induce them to become a director in the three years
preceding the date of this pre-listing siatement.

The Egstra articles of association provide that any director who has an interest in a contract or
arrangement with the Company is obliged to declare that interest in terms of the Companies Act
and shall not be entitled to vote in a resolution relating thereto.

Remuneration of directors

The remuneration received by the directors is in respect of their directorships in the Group.
Relevant extracts detailing directors’ remuneration are set out under directors’ emoluments in
Annexure 3 to this pre-listing statement.

Executive directors may be eligible for incentive-based bonus payments at the discretion of the
Remuneration Committee. The listing of Egstra on the JSE will not result in any changes {o the
remuneration of the directors. W S Hill will in June 2012 become entitled to a performance bonus
of a maximum of R4 500 000 depending on the profit before tax of Egstra for the five years from
June 2008 to June 2012.

Other than the amounts due to the Imperial share scheme as indicated in the table below, no loans
have been made or security furnished by Egstra and or any of its subsidiaries to or for the benefit
of any director.
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Director Number of shares Company Amount due

(R'000)
W S Hill 150 Q00 Egstra Holdings Limited 22 755
E Clarke 34 000 Egstra Holdings Limited S 043
V J Mokoena 35 000 Imperial Holdings Limited 5 269

During the year ending 30 June 2008, there are no fees paid or accrued to a third partly in lieu of
director’s fees and no management function is to be outsourced in the foreseeable future.

There are no service contracts, existing or proposed, between any director and the Company or any
subsidiary and any member of the administrative/management or supervisory bodies that provides
for benefits on termination of employment other than payments in lieu of salary and benefits and
any expenses owed. No provision is made for retrenchment packages or restraint of trade
payments.

8. Share capital and share preminum
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6.1

6.2

6.3

Authorised and issued share capital

The authorised and issued share capital of the Company, on unbundling, after issue of the “A” and
“B” deferred ordinary shares and after the acquisition of the shareholding in MCC of the MCC
minorities is set cut below. Egstra has no treasury shares or debentures.

R'000
Authorised
360 000 000 ordinary shares of 0.1 cent (one-tenth of a cent) each 360
20 000 000 “A” deferred ordinary shares of 0.1 cent {(one-tenth of a cent) each 20
20 000 000 “B” deferred ordinary shares of 0.1 cent (one-tenth of a cent) each 20
Total authorised share capital 400
Issued
258 389 870 ordinary shares of 0.1 cent {one-tenth of a cent} each 258
16 781 968 “A” deferred ordinary shares of 0.1 cent (one-tenth of a cent} each 17
14 516 617 “B” deferred ordinary shares of 0.1 cent (one-tenth of a cent) each 15
Share premium 1 486 573
Total issued share capital 1 486 863

At the date of listing, the authorised share capital of Egstra will comprise 360 000 000 (three
hundred and sixty million) ordinary shares with a par value of 0.1 cent (one-tenth of a cent) each,
20 000 000 (lwenty million) “A” deferred ordinary shares with a par value of 0.1 cent (one-tenth of
a cent) each and 20 000 000 (twenty million) “B” deferréd ordinary shares with a par value of
0.1 cent {one-tenth of a cent) each. No new Imperial ordinary shares will be issued under the
existing share incentive schemes of Imperial prior {oc the listing. There have been no consolidations
of Egstra shares in the last three years.

Alterations to share capital

To prepare the Company for listing, Imperial embarked on a corporate action which resulted in the
creation of Egstra, which in turn acguired the various Group businesses and subsidiaries from
Imperial through the issue of shares to Imperial and the assumption of the debt associated with the
relevant assets as well as entering into the MCC minority transaction. Other than as sel out above,
there have been no alierations to the l8gstra share capital or any of its subsidiaries in the three
years preceding the last practicable dale.

Prior to the listing, the authorised share capital of Egstra has been increased from R1 000 to
R400 000 comprising 400 000 000 ordinary shares of 0.1 cenit each. Thereafier 40 000 000
ordinary shares were converted into 20 000 000 “A” deferred ordinary shares and 20 000 000 “B”
deferred ordinary shares.

Eqstra share incentive schemes

Egstra has adopted new share incentive schemes, the settlement principles and provisions are set
out in Annexure 10 to this pre-listing statement.

The Company will become a party to the amended Imperial Bonus Right Scheme in respect of
employees of Egstra who were granted bonus rights prior to the unbundling and who will be
employed by the group subsequeni to the unbundling. Please refer to paragraph 5.10 of the
Imperial circular for additional details.



6.4

6.5

6.6

Dividends and dividend policy

The Egstra directors intend to declare an annual dividend. Management does not anticipate to
declare a dividend for the period to 30 June 2008. The dividend policy will be reviewed by the Egstra
directors from time to time in light of the then prevailing circumstances, capital adequacy and cash
requirements of Egstra. Dividends will be declared in the third quarter of each calendar year.

Given the strong growth prospects for the business, it is anticipated that the dividend payout ratio
will be conservatively managed between 30% and 35% of atlributable headline earnings.

Any dividend remaining unclaimed for a period of three years from its declaration may, in
accordance with the articles, be forfeited by resolution of the directors for the benefit of the
Company. There are no arrangements under which future dividends are waived or agreed (o be
waived.

Control of share capital

The unissued authorised shares of the Company are under the control of the directors in terms of
the provisions of sections 221 and 222 of the Companies Act and any issue thereof is subject to the
Listings Requirements.

Rights attaching to Eqstra shares

All Egstira ordinary shares have equal rights to participate in the capital of Egstra. Any variation
in the rights attaching to Egstra ordinary shares will require a special resolution of Egstra
shareholders in general meeting in accordance with the articles.

In accordance with the articles, at any general meeling of Eqgstira shareholders. every Egstra
shareholder present in person or by authorised representative shall have one voie on a show of
hands, provided that a proxy shall, irrespective of the number of Egstra shareholders that proxy
represents, have only one vote. On a poll, every Eqgstra shareholder present in person or by proxy
shall have one vote for each ordinary share held by him/it.

Subject to the Companies Act, and subject to such authorities, consents and requirements as may
from time to time be stipulated by law and the Listings Requirements, the Company may from time
to time reduce its issued share capital, share premium account, stated capital and/or capital
redemption reserve fund by the passing of an ordinary resolution.

No preferential rights or option, whether a contract or arrangement, have been provided to any
person io subscribe for any Eqgstra securities.

6.6.1 Ordinary shares

At the date of listing, all ordinary shares will rank pari passu in every respect. There are no
preferential conversion or exchange rights of any kind attached Lo Egstra ordinary shares.
Subscribing for shares will include acquiring them from a person to whom they were
allotted or agreed Lo be allotled with a view (o selling them.

6.6.2 "A" deferred ordinary shares

Please refer to Special Resclution Number 1 in the notice of general meeting annexed to the
Imperial circular setting oul the revised hurdles for Imperial and to Article 56 of the articles
which sets out the hurdles for Egstra in respect of the “A” deferred ordinary shares.

6.6.3 “B” deferred ordinary shares
The “B” deferred ordinary shares to be issued by Eqgstra (o Lereko Mobility will have the
following key features:
* will not pay any dividend until 30 September 2010;
= will convert on a one-for-one basis into Egstra shares on 30 September 2010;
= will rank pari passu with Egstra ordinary shares in terms of voting; and

+ will be subject to a call option in favour of Egstra in June 2015 in respect of a formula
determined number of such shares, at their par value of 0.1 cent each.
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7. Information on shareholders
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7.1

7.2

7.3

Major sharehclders

Egstra has been operating as a stand-alone division of Imperial for the five years prior to the last
practicable date. Following the unbundling, Imperial will no longer be the controlling shareholder
and Imperial ordinary shareholders will hold Eqgstra ordinary shares in proportion to their
shareholdings in Imperial. Based on their Imperial shareholdings at the last practicable date and
taking into account the shares issued for the minority interests in MCC and the “A” and
“B" deferred ordinary shares issued to Ukhamba and Lereko, Eqstra shareholders, directly or
indirectly, beneficially holding 5% or more of the issued share capital of Egstra, excluding Eqgstra
directors, will be as follows:

Percentage

Number of of issued
issued shares share capital
immediately immediately

following following
Name the listing the listing
(millions)
Public Investment Corporation 39.0 13.5
Topclass Ventures (Proprietary) Limited
(an MCC minority)’ 31.2 10.8
Imperial Corporate Services
{(Imperial Treasury shares) 23.9 8.2
Ukhamba Holdings (Proprietary) Limited® 22.8 7.9
Lereko Mobility (Proprietary) Limited® 14.5 5.0
Notes:

1. The major sharcholder in Topclass Ventures {(Proprietary) Limited is the Michael Reid Barnes Family Trust.

2. Ukhamba Holdings (Proprietary) Limited is owned by Imperial (46.9%) and Ukhamba {53.1%) Ukhamba is in turn owned by
the Ukhamba Trust and the Ukhamba Development Trust. The Ukhamba Trust was established to benefit all of Imperials
historically disadvantaged employees.

3. Lereko Mobility (Proprietary) Limited shareholders are Imperial (49%) and Lereko Consortium (51%). Lereko Consortium is
a broad-based empowerment grouping that includes a women's group and lLereko Investmentis (Proprietary) Limited as its
shareholders.

Save as indicated above, the directors are not aware of the existence of any shareholder who
beneficially owns 5% or more of the issued share capital of Imperial, and will hence own 5% or more
of Eqgstra, based on the shareholdings in Imperial at the last practicable date. Subsequent to the
unbundling, as far as the directors are aware, there will be no controlling shareholders of Eqstra.

MCC minority transaction

In anticipation of the unbundling, an agreement has been reached for Egsira to acquire, subject to
the listing of Egstra, the shareholding of the MCC minorities in MCC by issuing the minority
shareholders with new shares in the listed Egstra. As a consequence, MCC minorities will receive
46 260 000 shares in Egsira, representing approximately 16% of the issued shares of Egstra as
consideration and MCC will be one of the largest business units in Egstra. The acquisition of the
MCC minority interest will better posilion Eqgstra for growth as it simplifies and strengthens the
capital structure and aligns sharehoelder interests.

Certain of the MCC minorities will be subject to a six-month “lock-up” period during which the those
MCC minorities will not be entitled to dispose of their Egsira shares prior to the expiry of six
months from 30 April 2008, onwards.

Additional detail on the MCC minority transaction is included in the Imperial circular.

Imperial’s intention with its residual stake in Eqstra

Imperial is evaluating options regarding the monetisation of its residual stake in Egstra in the
short to medium term. This residual stake is the effect of the treasury shares held through Imperial
Corporate Services (as detailed in paragraph 7.1 above). Options being evaluated could include a
disposal to a strategic buyer, including a possible sale to a BEE buyer, or an equity market disposal.



8. Acquisitions and disposals

8.1

8.2

8.3

Business and property acquisitions

The material business and property acquisitions made during the three years preceding the last
practicable date are set out in Annexure 14 to this pre-listing statement. Other than the MCC
minority transaction referred to in paragraph 7.2 above and the various acquisitions from Imperial
referred Lo in paragraph 6.2 above, there are currently no proposed acquisilions by Eqgstra or any
of its subsidiaries of any securities, the business undertakings of any other companies or any
immovable property or fixed assets or any options to acquire such property or fixed assets.

Disposals
There has been no material property disposed of during the three years preceding the last
practicable date.

Principal immovable property and leasehold properties

Details of the principle immovable properties owned by Eqstra and its subsidiaries and those leased
by Egstra and its subsidiaries are set out in Annexure 11 to this pre-listing stalement.

9. General

9.1

0.2

8.3

9.4

9.5

8.6

Corporate governance

Eqstra has adopted the corporate governance principles of Imperial that has long espoused high
standards of ethical behaviour and corporate governance. Egstra is committed to the principles of
openness, integrity and accountability in its dealings with all stakeholders and supports the code
of corporale practices and conduct as recommended by the King II Report on Corporate
Governance. Extracts of the corporale governance policies adopted by Egstra are set outl in
Annexure 12 to this pre-listing statement.

Litigation statement

Eqgstira is not party to any legal or arbitration proceedings, whether actual, pending or threatened.

Material contracts

Save as otherwise disclosed in this pre-listing statement and in the Imperial circular relating to
the MCC mincrity transaction and as disclosed in paragraph 4 of the Imperial circular, which
is enclosed in the envelope together with this pre-listing statement, and those referred in
paragraph 6.2 above, there are no material contracts that have been entered into by the Company
or a member of the Group within the two years immediately preceding the last practicable date or
are, or may be, malterial to Egstra or its subsidiaries at the last practicable date, otherwise than in
the ordinary course of business.

No contracts entered into at any time contain an obligation or settlement that is material to Egstra
or its subsidiaries al the last practicable date.
Material changes

Other than the new funding facilities detailed in paragraph 4.1.2 above and the MCC minority
transaction detailed in paragraph 7.2 above, there have been no material changes in the financial
or trading position of Eqgstra and its subsidiaries that has occurred between 1 January 2008 and
the last practicable date.

Management contracts

There are no management contracts currently ouisourced or expected to be outsourced.

Exchange Conitrol

9.6.1 Emigrants from the common monetary area

The unbundled Egstra shares received by Imperial ordinary shareholders who are emigrants
from the Common Monetary Area and whose registered address is outside South Africa, will:

+ in the case of dematerialised Imperial shareholders be credited to their blocked share
accounts at the CSDP controlling their blocked portfolios; and
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9.7

+ in the case of certificaled Imperial ordinary shareholders whose documents of title have
been restrictively endorsed under the Exchange Control Regulations, be endorsed “Non-
Resident” and will be sent to the Authorised Dealer in foreign exchange controlling their
blocked assets.

9.6.2 All other non-residents of the commmon monetary area

The unbundled Eqgstra shares received by the Imperial ordinary shareholders who are non-
residents of South Africa and who have never resided in South Africa and whose registered
address is oulside the common monetary area will:

* in the case of dematerialised Imperial ordinary shareholders be credited to their share
accounts at the CSDP controlling their portfolios; and

* in the case of a certificated linperial ordinary shareholder whose documents of title have
been restrictively endorsed under the Exchange Conirol Regulations, be deposited with an
Authorised Dealers in foreign exchange in South Africa nominated by such Imperial
ordinary shareholder. It will be incumbent on .the Imperial ordinary shareholder
concerned to nominate the Authorised Dealer and to instruct the nominated Authorised
Dealer as to the disposal of the relevant shares. If the information regarding the
Authorised Dealer is not given, the unbundled Egstra shares will be held in trust for the
Imperial ordinary shareholder concerned pending the receipt of the necessary
information or instruction.

Impact of the unbundling on the existing Imperial share incentive schemes

Two of the share schemes that Imperial currently has in place, require to be amended in order to
accommodate the unbundling:

* the Share Purchase Scheme; and
« the Bonus Scheme.

The Share Purchase Scheme enables Imperial to award options to selected employees of the Imperial
Group to purchase Imperial ordinary shares. The purchase price, together with interest thereon, is
payable by the participant over an extended period and the shares are pledged by the participant to
the trustees of the scheme as security for the payment. The scheme was designed to focus
management performance on creating shareholder value. The current rules of the Share Purchase
Scheme do not make specific provision for a transaction of the nature of the unbundling.

The Bonus Scheme is a typical. “phantom share scheme” which enables Imperial to award selected
employees of the Imperial Group the right to receive a cash bonus based on the apprecialion in the
number of notional Imperial shares awarded to the participant, from the time of the award to the
date of the bonus payment which is to occur after a period of several years. The scheme was,
likewise, designed to focus management performance on creating shareholder value. The current
rules of the Bonus Scheme do not make specific provision for a transaction of the nature of the
unbundling.

The Imperial board is of the view thaf participants in the schemes should not be advantaged or
prejudiced by the unbundling, and should be placed in a position after the unbundling that leaves
them as close as possible to the position that they would have been in, had it not been for the
unbundling. Specifically, as well, in respect of the Bonus Scheme, the bonus payment obligation to
the participanti in terms of that scheme ought to be transferred from Imperial to Egstra, in respect
of participants who were granted bonus rights prior to the unbundling and who will be employed
by Egstra after the unbundling. Accordingly, the directors have proposed the following
amendments to the two schemes:

9. 7.1 The Share Purchase Scheme

* The scheme is to be amended to provide that the Eqgstra shares which will be received by
a participant in terms of the unbundling will be subject to the pledge referred to in
paragraph 9.7 above; and

* al the same time, in order to enlist the consent of the participanis to the amendment
proposed above, certain provisions of the scheme which, it is considered, are unfavourable
for participants and detract from the purpose and objective of the scheme, will be
amended, essentially to permit an extension of the time period for payment of the
purchase price in circumnstances where the aggregate of the market value of the Imperial
shares and Egstra shares, which are the subject of the pledge, is less than the outstanding
debt.



9.7.2 The Bonus Scheme

* In respect of offers granted and accepted by participants prior to the unbundling, the
bonus is to be calculated with reference to the market value at the bonus payment date of
the Imperial notional shares linked to the bonus and an egquivalent number of Egstra
notional shares, less the market value of the Imperial notional shares al the date of the
grant of the bonus right, so that the participant is not disadvantaged by the unbundling;
and

* all participants who were granted bonus rights prior to the unbundling, and who,
consequent upon the unbundling, are employed by Egstra, will be paid their bonus
entitlement by Egsira instead of by Imperial.

In order to give effect to these proposals, the Share Purchase Scheme and the Bonus Scheme
require to be amended in the respects set oul in Ordinary Resolution Number 3 and Ordinary
Resclution Number 4 contained in the notice of general meeting attached to and forming
part of the Imperial circular, to which amendments the participants under the schemes have
consented, their consent being a requirement in terms of the schemes. The directors will not
vole their respective shares in Imperial on the resolutions relating to the amendments to the
ahove schemes in which they have an interest.

10. Advisers’ consents and interests

11.

Each of the merchant bank and transaction sponsor, sponsor, legal adviser, reporting accountants and
transfer secretaries have consernled in writing to act in the capacities stated and to their names being
included in this pre-listing statement and have not withdrawn their consent prior to the publication of
this pre-listing statement.

None of the advisers of the Company had an interest in the issued share capital of the Company at the
last practicable date.

The reporting accountants and auditors have given, and have not withdrawn. their consent to the issue
of this pre-listing statement with their reports included herein in the form and context in which they
appear.

Expenses relating to the listing

The cash expenses of the listing, as detailed below, are estimated to R16 million. All the fees payable to
the parties below are exclusive of VAT.

Service Service provider Amount
(R'000)

Advisory RMB 11100

Sponsor MLSA 138

Legal fees (including structuring and preparation of all
unbundling agreements and resolutions and tax advisory

fees on the BEE transactions) TWB 2 000
Funding facilities fees Webher Wentzel Bowens 300
Reporting accountants and auditors Deloitte 750
True and fair opinion Deloitte 400
Design and implementation of share incentive scheme PricewaterhouseCoopers 85
Printing and publication costs INCE 500
Design and launch of new corporale identity Roy Clucas Design
Process/Inscape 350
Invesior relations College Hill 300
Trade name search and registration Spoor and Fisher 15
JSE listing and documentation fees JSE 71
15 989

These costs will be borne by Egstra.

No amounts were paid, or have accrued as payable, within three years preceding the last practicable date,
or are proposed to be paid Lo any promoter.

No promoter had any material beneficial interest, direct, or indirect, in the promotion of Egstra or in any
property acquired or proposed to be acquired by Eqgstra out of the proceeds of the issue or during the
three years preceding the last practicable date.
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12.

13.

t4.

There have been no commissions paid or payable in respect of underwriting, There have been no
commissions, discounts, brokerages or other special terms granted during the three years preceding the
last practicable date in connection with the issue or sale of any securities, stock or debentures in the
capital of Eqstra, where this has not been disclosed in any audiled annual financial statements.

Conditions precedent to the unbundling

Shareholders are referred to paragraph 5.3 of the Imperial circular which contains the suspensive
conditions to the unbundling, including that the articles of association of Egsira and its subsidiaries
must be approved by the JSE at least six days prior to the last day to trade.

Directors’ responsibility statement

The directors of Egstra, whose names are given on page 8 of this pre-listing statement, collectively and
individually, accept full responsibility for the accuracy of the information given and certify to the best of
their knowledge and belief there are no facts that have been omitted which would make any statement
false or misleading, and that all reasonable enquiries to ascertain such facts have been made and that
this pre-listing statement contains all information required by the Listings Requirements.

Documents available for inspection

Caopies of the following documents will be available for inspection at the South African registered office
of Egstra during normal business hours (excluding Saturdays, Sundays and South African public
holidays) from the date of issue of this pre-listing statement up to and including 19 May 2008:

*» the memoranda and articles of association of Eqstra and its major subsidiaries;

¢ the annual financial statements of the Imperial Leasing and Capital Equipment division for the three
financial years ended 25 June 2005, 25 June 2006, 25 June 2007 and unaudited interim results for
the six months ended 31 December 2007, together with all notes, certificates or informaltion required
by the Companies Act;

* the signed independent reporting accountants’ report on the historical information of Egsira;

* writlen consents of the merchant bank and sponsor, investment bank and transaction sponsor to
Egstra, attorneys, reporting accountants and auditors and transfer secretaries to the inclusion of
their names in this document in the context and form in which they appear;

» the Imperial Bonus Right Scheme and the Imperial Executive Share Purchase Scheme (as amended),
* notice of general meeting of Fgstra, held on 14 March 2008;

¢ the MCC minority transaction agreements;

+ service agreemenis with executive directors and executive management;

* a copy of the Imperial circular and the documents referred to in paragraph 15 thereof; and

* a signed copy of this pre-listing statement (available in English only).

There are no trust deeds or agreements affecting the governance of Egstra or the interests of Egstra
shareholders.

SIGNED AT JOHANNESBURG ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF EQSTRA.

Walter Hill
Chief Executive Officer

20 March 2008
Johannesburg
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Annexure 1

Report of historical financial information of Imperial Investment Holdings

(Proprietary) Limited

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
and in the manner required by the Companies Act in South Africa. The principal accounting policies adopted
in the preparation of the financial statements are consistent in all material respects with those applied in the
previous year. The detailed accounting policies of this holding company and the group are reflected in note
1 of the group annual financial statements in annexure 3.

Balance sheet

At 25 June

Notes 2007 2006 2005

R R R

ASSETS
Current assets
Amount owing by holding company 2 78 623 78 623 342 403
Taxation 7 484
Total assels 78 623 78 623 349 887
EQUITY
Capital and reserves
Share capital 3 100 100 100
Distribulable reserve 78 523 78 523 117 140
Total equity 78 623 78 623 117 240
Current liabilities
Accounts payable - - 232 647
Total equity and liabilities 78 623 78 623 349 887
Income statement
For year ended 25 June

Notes 2007 2006 2005

R R R

Operating costs - 7 083 -
Operating loss - (7 083) -
Finance costs 4 - (32 271 -
Loss before taxation - (39 3400 -
Taxation 5 ° - (723) (2 579)
Loss after taxation - (38 617) 2 579
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Statement of changes in equity
For year ended 25 June

Distributable
Share capital reserve Total
R R R
Balance at 25 June 2004 100 114 5861 114 661
Net profit for the year - 2 579 2 579
Balance at 26 June 2005 100 117 140 117 240
Net loss for the year (38 617) (38 617)
Balance at 25 June 2008 100 78 523 78 823
Net profit for the year - - -
Balance at 25 June 2007 100 78 523 78 623
Cash flow statement
For year ended 25 June
Notes 2007 2006 2005
R R R
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash ulilised in operaling activities - (239 710) (1 737 296)
Interest paid - (32 277) -
Taxation refunded/(paid) - 8 207 (18 528)
- {263 780) (1 755 824)
Cash flows from financing activities
Amounts advanced by holding company - 263 780 1 755 824
Net change in cash and cash equivalents - - -
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year - - -
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year - - -
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
2007 2006 2005
R R R
2. Amount owing by holding company
Imperial Holdings Limited 78 623 78 623 342 403
The loan is unsecured, bears no interest,
and has no fixed terms of repayment.
3. Share capital
Authorised
1 DOC ordinary shares of R1.00 each
Issued
100 ordinary shares of R1.00 each 100 100 100
4. Finance costs
Receiver of Revenue - 32 277 -
5. Taxation
South African normal tax
- Prior year ' - (723) -
- Prior year adjustments - - (2 579)
- (723) (2 579)

6. Statutory expenses

All statutory expenses are borne by Imperial Holdings Limited.
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2007 2006 2005
R R R
7. Notes to the ecash flow statement
7.1 Cash utilised in operating activities
Net loss before laxation - (39 340) -
Adjustments for:
Finance costs - 32 277 -
- (7 063) -
Movements in working capital - (232 647) (1 737 296)
Decrease in accounts payable - (239 710) {1 737 2986)
7.2 Reconciliation of taxation paid during year
Credit in income statement - 723 2 579
Movement in taxation balance - 7 484 (21 107)
Amounts refunded - 8 207 (18 528)
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Annexure 2

Independent reporting aceountants’ report on the historical finaneial
information of Imperial Investment Holdings (Proprietary) Limited

The Directors

Imperial Investment Holdings (Proprietary) Limited
Imperial Place

Jeppe Quondam

79 Boeing Road East

Bedlordview, 2007

South Africa

Dear Sirs

REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANTS ON THE AUDITED HISTORICAL,
EALANCE SHEET, INCOME STATEMENT AND CASH FLOW STATEMENT (COLLECTIVELY REFERRED
TO AS “THE HISTORICAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION") OF IMPERIAL INVESTMENT HOLDINGS
(PROPRIETARY) LIMITED

Introduction

At your request and for the purposes of the pre-listing statement to Imperial Holdings Limited shareholders,
to be dated on or about 20 March 2008, we present our report on the historical financial information in
respect of the unbundling of the Imperial Leasing and Capital Equipment Division as set out in Annexure 1
of the pre-listing statement, in compliance with the Listings Requirements of the JSE Limited (“JSE").

Responsibility

The compilation, contents and presentation of the pre-listing statement are the responsibility of the
Company’s directors. Our responsibilily is to express an opinion on the historical financial information
included as Annexure 1 to the pre-listing stalement.

Scope

We have audited the financial information of Imperial Investment Holdings (Proprietary) Limited for the year
ended 25 June 2007 and reviewed the financial information for the years ended 25 June 2006 and 25 June
2005.

Basis of opinion
Audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance that the historical financial information
relaling to the year ended 25 June 2007 is free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial staiements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures thal are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting principles used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the direclors, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. )

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit-opinion.
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Review opinion

We conducted our review in accordance with the International Standard on Review Engagements 2410
applicable to the review of Financial Information. This standard requires that we plan and perform the
review Lo obtain moderate assurance that the historical financial information for the years ended 25 June
2006 and 25 June 2005, presented in terms of International Financial Reporling Standards and
IAS 34, is free of material misstatement. A review is limited primarily to enquiries of company personnel and
analytical procedures applied to financial data and this provides less assurance than an audit. We have not
performed an audit of the abovementioned historical financial information and, accordingly, we do not
express an audit opinion thereon.

Audit opinion

In our opinion, the historical financial information of Imperial Investment Holdings (Proprietary) Limited
for the year ended 25 June 2007 fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial position at that date,
and the resulls of the operations and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards and in the manner required by the Companies Act in South Africa.

Review opinion

Based on our review, nothing has come to cur attention that causes us to believe that the historical financial
information of Imperial Investment Holdings (Proprietary) Limited for the years ended 25 June 2006
and 25 June 2005, are not fairly presented, in all material respects, in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards, IAS 34 and the JSE Listings Requirements,

Consent

We consent to the inclusion of this report, which will form part of the pre-listing statement to shareholders
of Imperial Holdings Limited, to be issued on or about 20 March 2008, in the form and context in which it
appears.

Yours faithfully

Deloitte & Touche

Per B W Smith
Partner

11 March 2008

Buildings 1 and 2, Delcitte Place

The Woodlands Office Park, 20 Woodlands Drive
Woodmead

Sandton

2196

National Executive: G G Gelink, Chief Executive: A E Swiegers, Chief Operating Officer; G M Pinnock, Audit;
D L Kennedy, Financial Advisory Services and Tax: L Geeringh, Consulting; L. Bam, Corporate Finance and
Strategy: C R Beukman, Finance; T J Brown, Clients and Markets;

N T Mtoba, Chairman of the Board.

A full list of partners and directors is available on request.
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Annexure 3

Report of historical financial information of the Imperial Leasing and
Capital Equipment division

40

Introduction

The group consists of various separate legal entities and divisions that make up the Leasing and Capital
Equipment division of Imperial Holdings Limited, these being Imperial Fleet Services, Imperial Flexi
Fleet, Saficon Industrial Equipment, Impact Handling (UK), MCC and the distributorships for Terex and
New Holland earth moving equipment. Collectively these businesses comprise the Passenger and
Commercial vehicles division, Industrial Equipment division and Construction and Mining division as
detailed more fully in the body of the PLS under section 3. The information contained in this annexure
also includes certain immaterial entities which will not be taken over by Egstra, the impact of which is
shown in Annexure 8 and explained in note 3 to the pro forma financials as contained in that Annexure.
Various acquisitions have taken place over the past three years, most notably the MCC Group of
Companies in 2006 and Terex Africa in 2007, which has given rise to rapid growth.

In November 2007, Imperial announced the potential unbundling of this division. As part of the
unbundling process, a dormant investment holding company has been identified (Imperial Investment
Holdings (Proprietary) Limited) to be the holding company that will allow Imperial to unbundle and list
the division separately on the JSE. On 30 April 2008, the respective businesses comprising the Imperial
Leasing and Capital Equipment division will be sold as a going concern at net book value to their new
entities to form Egstra Holdings Limited (“"Eqgstra™).

The financial information of the Leasing and Capital Equipment Division for the three years ended
25 June is set out below. The report on this historical financial information is the responsibility of the
directors.

Other than the restructuring and the pro forma effects, which are set out in Annexure 6, no malerial
fact or circumstance has occurred between the latest financial year end of the division and the date of
the prelisting statement.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the accounting policies as outlined in note 1 to
the group annual financial statements.

The financial statements represent the combined f{inancial statemenis of the Leasing and Capital
Equipment division, which previously operated as separate entities within Imperial. As indicated above,
on 30 April 2008 the group will be unbundled into a consolidated group of companies through a
transaction under common control and the restructuring rules of the Income Tax Act.

Commentary
2007

During the year, the division successfully refined its business model towards a higher value-added
composition with the smooth integration of the MCC acquisition. It also obtained the distributorships for
Terex and New Holland Construction equipment effective from January and set up the appropriate
infrastructure to capitalise on the strong demand for capital equipment throughout the sub-continent
and for the divisions own requirements. Terex and New Holland Construction are global brands whose
suitability for sub-Saharan markets is evident in the level of orders received to date. This strategic
realignment is expected to address growing competition from manufacturers and banks by broadening
the divisions range of services and lessening the dependence on pure financial margin as a source of
income. The division also expanded its passenger vehicle operations and is now active in Nigeria, Kenya
and Tanzania in addition to its activities in the SADC territories. The industrial equipment business
secured strategic franchises to entrench its position in this market and the UK-based materials handling
rental business is being expanded into a national operation.



Qverall, the division achieved an excellent performance, with revenue increasing by 73% and operating
profit by 59%. After, finance charges, which increased by 43%, net profit before tax was 64% higher. The
division grew its asset base by R2.2 billion. Diversification into the ownership and operation of higher-
yielding earthmoving equipment benefited the division, as MCC and Terex gained several new opencast
mining contracts in the platinum industry and executed them successfully. These contracts are
continuing and substantial new business is under consideration. The plant-hire business, although a
relatively small contributor to earnings, is also benefiting from increased demand.

The passenger and commercial vehicle leasing business grew its fleet by 13% to 17 875 units, excluding
the run-off of the government contract fleet. We continue to expand our business into the rest of Africa,
with operations in Namibia, Botswana, Kenya, Tanzania, Angola and Nigeria.

The forklift leasing business in South Africa performed well, growing its fleet by 3% to 7 689 units. The
forklift business in the UK surrendered the Toyota forklift franchise during the year but continues to
operate as a general forklift leasing company and achieved good growth in earnings. The UK fleet is 3%
higher at 3 317 units.

In addition to the Terex and New Holland Construction distributorship, we established a batiery power
management business, supplying forklift batteries, charges and generators.

R1.0 billion was added to the divisions fleet value during the year as net capital expenditure grew by
60%. Inventories, mainly stocks of Terex and New Holland Construction equipment, increased by
RB40 million.

2006

The divisions revenue increased by 32% to R3 028 million and operating profit by 18% to R540 million,
Profit before-tax exceptional items grew by 19%. The first-time inclusion of MCC made a positive
contribution to results. Market conditions for this division remained challenging, with low inflation, low
interest rates and increased competition from vehicle manufacturers in certain of our core markets.
Demand for fleet management outsourcing was sluggish, bul the diversity of the division and its new
ventures ensured a very respectable performance. The full maintenance leasing market has declined
during the year, but we succeeded in increasing our fleet size, excluding the units added by the MCC
acquisition, by 8.5%. The forklift business in Southern Africa delivered a fine performance, but the
results from Impact Forklift in the UK were below expectation. In South Africa, pricing was under
pressure due to the strong Rand with price reductions limiting revenue growth to 13% whilst record unit
sales were achieved. We are still supplying vehicles in terms of the RTG contract to certain national
government departments under an extension of the contract that officially expired at the end of May
2005. We anticipate some further revenue in our 2006/2007 financial year in terms of this contract. The
unpaid debt of the National Prosecuting Authority remains unresolved. Legal action has been instituted
and a positive ocutcome is anticipated.

The acquisition of a controlling interest in the MCC Plant Hire and Mining Contracting group has proven
to be a good strategic fit with our business and has performed to expectation. We are pleased with the
opportunities created by this acquisition to expand our exposure to significant infrastructure spending
in both the public and private sectors in Sub-Saharan Africa in the foreseeable future.

2005

The market environment remained challenging during the year. Despite this, the division recorded a 12%
increase in fleet size. Revenue improved by 15% to R2.3 billion, driven both by volume growth and
increased motor retailing activity in Hypercar, the divisions newly established used car chain.

Profitability came under pressure with operating profits declining by 11% to R456 million. This was
caused by new business that was added during the period which did not make a profit contribution as
yet and lower interest rates which resulted in interest margin compression due to a portion of the
group’s capital market debt funding having been raised at fixed rates. A significant provision was raised
due to non-payment by the National Prosecuting Authority (“NPA”) of a substantial claim which the
division has against it, recovery of which is being pursued. Although the company and its legal advisors
are of the view that the claim will succeed, it is considered prudent to make a provision in view of the
NPA’s refusal to pay the amount claimed.

Our United Kingdom operation also disappointed, but we had an excellent result from ocur South African
forklift operations. Hypercar came close to breakeven with good volumes. The divisions contract with
certain South African Government departments expired at end of May 2005. This contract was extended
on a short term basis pending a tender process.

While used vehicle prices have come under pressure, we managed to realise profits on the transfer and
sale of vehicles, confirming our prudent depreciation policies.

41



Leasing and Capital Equipment division

Balanece sheet

At 25 June

Notes 2007 2006 2005

R’000 R'000 R'000

Assets
Non-current assets 5 542 260 4477 626 3 278 831
Intangible assets 4 60 547 57 184 3 965
Property, plant and equipment 5 240 722 193 497 113 785
Leasing assets 6 4 989 776 3 985 961 2 970 377
Deferred tax assets 7 65 218 48 735 20 727
Other investments and loans 8 35 152 14 955 7 695
Amounts owing by Imperial Holdings’ subsidiaries 28 150 845 177 294 162 302
Current assets 2151 032 1 025 870 69'7 863
Inventories 9 937 743 202 832 309 548
Trade and other receivables 10 946 613 631 441 338 861
Taxation in advance 098 071 64 043 35 616
Cash resources 11 168 605 37 554 13 938
Total assets 7 693 292 5 503 496 3 976 694
Eguity and liabilities
Capital and reserves
Group equity funding 12 390 945 254 808 45 044
Non-distributable reserves 13 4 197 2 937 1 628
Distiributable reserves 740 409 778 224 799 468
Ordinary shareholders’ interest 1 135 551 1 035 967 846 140
Minority interest 254 493 190 407 34 405
Total shareholders’. equity 1 390 044 1226 374 880 545
Non-current liabilities 4 497 307 3 188 687 2484 817
Interest bearing borrowings i4 281 930 158 496 29 000
Deferred tax liabilities 7 397 608 271 B77 93 755
Amounts owing Lo Imperial Holdings’ subsidiaries 28 3 817 769 2758 314 2 362 062
Current liabilities 1 805 941 1 088 435 611 332
Trade and other payables 16 1 595 920 844 704 499 407
Provisions for liabilities and other charges 15 118 280 60 522 40 634
Current tax liabilities 52 261 52 397 34 739
Current portion of interest-bearing borrowings 14 39 480 130 812 36 552
Total liabilities 6 303 248 4 277 122 3 096 149
Total equity and liabilities 7 693 292 5 503 496 3 976 694
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Leasing and Capital Equipment division

Income statement
For the years ended 25 June

Notes 2007 2006 2005
R'000 R'000 R'000

Revenue 17 5 227 725 3 027 592 2 301 026
Net operating expenses 18 (3 467 507) (1 804 890} (1 316 907)
Profil from operations before depreciation and
recoupments 1760 218 1 222 702 984 119
Depreciation, amortisation and recoupments i9 (902 203) {682 680} (527 899)
Operating profit B58 015 540 022 456 220
Foreign exchange losses (10 554) (34 381) (11 158)
Fair value gains to foreign exchange derivalives {2 165) 28 348 4 065
Profit before financing costs 845 206 533 989 449 129
Finance costs including fair value gains and losses 20 (305 137) (209 939) (186 754}
Finance income 20 25 217 14 316 21 712
Profit before taxation and exceptional items 565 376 338 366 284 087
Exceptional items 21 (9 685)
Profit before taxation 555 691 338 366 284 087
Income tax expense 22 178 B46 91 808 86 556
Profit after taxation 376 B45 246 558 197 531
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the division 30 269 689 220 684 189 140
Minority interest 107 156 25 874 8 391
Profit after taxation 376 B45 246 558 197 531
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Leasing and Capital Equipment division

Cash flow statement
For the years ended 25 June

Notes 2007 2006 2005
R'000 R'000 R’000
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash receipts from customers 5011 805 2 859 699 2573 592
Cash paid to suppliers and employees (3 325 056) (1 554 196) {1 530 370)
Cash generated by operations 23(a) 1 686 749 1 305 503 1 043 222
Net financing costs {279 920) {195 623) (165 042)
Income tax paid {75 9886) (39 252) {81 885)
1 330 863 1 070 628 796 295
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of businesses 23(b) {92 532) (252 009) 3 549
Costs on sale of business 23(c) (11 985)
Purchase of intangible assets (4 333) (3 363) (1 480)
Purchase of properiy, plant and equipment (123 747) (48 082) (36 559)
Purchase of leasing assets (2615698) (1 786768) (1 573 356)
Proceeds from sale of intangible assets 2 009
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 56 327 6 093 4 826
Proceeds from sale of leasing assets 747 929 621 087 445 255
Additional investments in and loans to
subsidiary and associated companies, net of disposals (1 342)
Purchase of equities and loans {advanced)/repaid (16 389) 25 684 8 778
(2 059 761) (1 437 358) (1 148 987)
Cash flows from financing activities
Helding company funding 136 139 344 419 2151
Dividends paid (350 574) {246 467) (74 771)
Net movement of amounts owing to Imperial Holdings
Limited’s subsidiaries 1 151 255 358 041 544 233
Increase in long-term borrowings (50 205) (65 761) (146 056)
886 615 400 232 325 557
Net decrease/(inerease) in cash and cash equivalents 137 717 33 502 (27 135)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 10 BBB (22 614) 4 521
Cash and eash equivalents at end of year 23(d) 168 605 10 888 (22 614)
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Leasing and Capital Equipment division

Statement of changes in equity
For the years ended 25 June

Group Non
equity distributable Distributable Minority
funding reserves reserves interest Total
R’'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000
Balance at 25 June 2004 42 893 (17 643) 679 824 31 264 736 338
Net gains arising on translation
of foreign companies 19 271 25 19 296
Net gains not recognised in the
income statement 19 271 25 19 296
Net attributable profit for the year 189 140 8 391 197 531
Net acquisitions funded by holding
company 2 151 2 151
Dividends (69 496) {5 275) (74 771)
Balance at 25 June 2005 45 044 1 628 799 468 34 405 880 545
Net gains arising on translation
of foreign companies 1 309 i0 1319
Net gains nol recognised in the
income statement 1 309 10 1 319
Net attributable profit for the year 220 684 25 874 246 558
Net acquisitions funded by
holding company _ 209 762 134 657 344 419
Dividends (241 928) (4 539) (246 4867)
Balance at 25 June 2006 254 806 2 937 778 224 190 407 1 226 374
Net gains arising on translation
of foreign companies 4432 4 432
Movement in hedge accounting
reserve (3172) (3 172)
Net pains not recognised in the
income statement 1 2860 1 2860
Net altributable profit for the year 269 689 107 156 376 845
Net acquisitions funded by holding
company 136 139 136 139
Dividends {307 504) {43 070) (350 574)
Balance at 25 June 2007 390 945 4 197 740 409 254 493 1 390 044
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Leasing and Capital Equipment division

Business and Geographical Segmentation

For the years ended 25 June

2007 2006 2005
R’'000 R'000 R'000
BUSINESS SEGMENTS
Segment revenues
Passenger and commercial vehicles 2 022 761 1 545 079 1 408 770
Industrial equipment 1 303 465 981 709 885 419
Construction and mining 1 894 556 492 960
5 220 782 3 019 748 2 294 189
Group and eliminations 6 943 7 844 6 837
Consolidated revenue 5 227 725 3 027 592 2 301 026
Segment result (profit before financing costs)
Passenger and commercial vehicles 318 286 307 079 308 210
Industrial equipment 176 938 167 582 149 705
Construction and mining 342 990 68 564
838 214 543 225 457 815
Group and eliminations 7 0B2 (9 2386) (8 786)
Consolidated profit before interest 845 296 533 989 449 129
Segment assets
Passenger and commercial vehicles 3 415 266 2 BB1 464 2 449 572
Industrial equipment 1 886 510 1 561 979 1 523 081
Construction and mining 2 584 198 968 844
7 685 974 5412 287 3 972 653
Group and eliminations 7 318 91 209 4 041
Ceonsolidated total assets 7 693 292 5 503 496 3 976 694
Sepment liabilities
Passenger and commercial vehicles 2 B18 537 2376 171 1 850 010
Industrial equipment 1 465 781 1 330 144 1 222 541
Construction and mining 2 009 094 664 466
6 293 412 4 370 781 3 072 551
Group and eliminations 9 836 (93 659) 23 598
Consolidated total liabilities 6 303 248 4 277 122 3 096 149
Segment capital expenditure
Passenger and commercial vehicles 1 204 022 993 101 1 069 628
Industrial equipment 599 527 535 898 540 543
Construction and mining 937 093 294 754
2 740 642 1 823 753 1610171
Group and eliminations 3136 14 460 1224
Gross capital expenditure 2743 778 1 838 213 1611 395
Less: Proceeds on disposal (806 285) (627 180) {450 081)
Net capital expenditure 1 937 513 1211033 1161 314
Segment depreciation and amortisation
Passenger and commercial vehicles 481 366 413 851 334 271
Industrial equipment 276 825 234 271 234 795
Construction and mining 181 311 68 154
939 502 716 276 589 068
Group and eliminations (1 861) 3 359 1113
Consolidated depreciation and amortisation 937 641 719 635 570 179
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Leasing and Capital Equipment division
Business and Geographical Segmentation (continued)

For the years ended 25 June

2007 2006 2005
R’000 R’000 R’000
GEOGRAPHIC SEGMENTS
Segment revenues
South Africa 4 649 163 2478 178 1 863 399
Africa 256 025 278 225 179 981
Rest of world 322 537 271 1B9 257 646
5 2287 725 3 027 592 2 301 026
Segment result (profit before financing costs)
South Africa 764 422 455 007 380 949
Africa 48 090 56 115 45 319
Rest of world 32 784 22 867 22 861
845 296 533 989 449 129
Segment assets
South Africa 6 770 527 4 556 566 3 172 590
Africa 404 427 399 878 293 114
Rest of world 518 338 547 052 510 990
7 693 292 5 503 496 3 976 694
Segment liabilities
South Africa 5 529 385 3 514 809 2 486 960
Africa 324 103 316 182 206 380
Rest of world 449 760 446 131 402 809
6 303 248 4 27T 122 3 096 149
Segment capital expenditure
South Africa 2 484 424 1 563 113 1 345 833
Africa 82 267 87 699 148 017
Rest of world 197 0BT 187 401 117 545
Gross capital expenditure 2743778 1 838 213 1 611 395
Less: Proceeds on disposal {806 265) (627 180) (450 081}
1 937 513 1211033 1 161 314
Segment depreciation and amortisation
South Africa 777 091 582 791 437 795
Africa 64 189 74 055 53 254
Rest of world 96 361 62 789 79 130
937 641 719 635 570 179
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Notes to the group annual financial statements

1. Accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are
set out below and are consistent in all material respects with those applied during the previous year:

1.1

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements are stated in rands and are prepared in accordance to and
comply with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS"), effective for the group’s
financial year. The consolidated financial statemenis are prepared on the historical cost basis,
modified by the restatement of certain financial instruments to fair value.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the company and all
its subsidiaries. Subsidiary undertakings, which are those companies in which the group, directly
or indirectly, has an interesi of more than one half of the voting rights or otherwise has the power
lo exercise control over the operations, have been consolidated, except when the subsidiaries are
held exclusively with a view to their disposal, which is highly probable, and are then accounted for
as non-current assets held for sale. Where the group’s interest in subsidiary undertakings is less
than 100 percent, the share attributable to outside shareholders is reflected as minority interests.
The accounts of subsidiary undertakings are generally drawn up at 25 June each year, Where
audited accounts are not drawn up at this date, the latest audiled accounts available are used.

On acquisition, the assets and liabilities and contingent liabilities of a subsidiary are measured at
their fair values at the date of acquisition. Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair values
of the identifiable net assets acquired is recognised as goodwill. Any deficiency in the cost of
acquisition below the fair values of the identifiable net assets acquired (i.e. discount on acquisition)
is crediled to profit and loss in the period of acquisition.

The interest of minority shareholders is stated at the minority’s proportion of the fair values of the
assets and liabilities recognised. Subsequent profits are credited to minorities and any losses
attributable to minorities in excess of the minority interest are allocated against the interests of the
parent.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
income statement from the effective date of acquisition, or up to the effective date of disposal, as
appropriate. ’

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring the
accounting policies used in line with those used by the group.

All intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised surpluses and deficils have been
eliminated.

Segment information

The principal segments of the group have been identified on a primary basis by business segment
and on a secondary basis by significant geographical region. The basis is representative of the
internal structure used for management reporting.

Segment revenue reflects both sales to exlernal parties and intergroup transactions across
segments. The segment result is presenled as segment profit before exceptional items including net
finance costs and income from associates. Taxation is excluded in arriving at segment results.

Segment operating assets and liabilities are only those ilems that can be specifically identified
within a particular segment.

Foreign currencies

The individual financial statements of each group entity are presented in the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (its functional currency). For the
purpose of the consolidated financial statements, the resulls and financial position of each entity
are expressed in rands, which is the functional currency of the company and the presentation
currency for the consolidated financial statements.



1.2

1.3

1.4

Income statements having a different functional currency are translated inte South African
currency at the weighted average exchange rates for the year and the balance sheets are translated
al the exchange rates ruling on the balance sheet date. All resulting exchange differences are
classified as a foreign currency translation reserve and reflected as part of shareholders’ equity.

On disposal of foreign entities, such translation differences are recognised in the income statement
as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Transactions in currencies other than rands are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary assets and liabilities that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet date.
Gains and losses arising on translation are included in net profit or loss for the period, except where
the item is a designated cash flow hedge, in which case the gain or loss will be deferred in equity.

In order to hedge its exposure to foreign exchange risks, the group enters into forward contracts
and options. See below for details of the group’s accounting policies in respect of such derivative
financial instruments.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of foreign operations are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

Investment in associates

Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting, except when
the investments are held exciusively with a view to their subsequent disposal, which is highly
probable, and are then accounted for as non-current assets held for sale. Associates are
undertakings over which the group has the power to exercise significant influence, but which it
does not control.

Equilty accounting involves recognising in the income statement the group’s share of the associates’
profit or loss for the year. The group’s interest in the associale is carried in the balance sheet at an
amount that reflects its share of the net assets of the associate, less any impairment in the value of
the investments.

Losses of the associates in excess of Lhe group’s interest in those associates are not recognised
unless the group has a commitment to provide funding to the associate. Any excess of the cost of
acquisilion over the group's share of the fair values of the identifiable net assets of the associate at
the date of acquisition is recognised as goodwill. Any deficiency of the cost of acquisition below the
group's share of the fair values of the identifiable net assets of the associate al the date of
acquisition (i.e. discount on acquisition) is credited to profit and loss in the period of acquisition.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the group, unrealised profits and losses are
eliminated to the extent of the group’s interest in the relevant associate. Losses may provide
evidence of a polential impairment of the investment, in which case appropriate provision is made
for impairment.

Joint ventures

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby the group and other parties undertake an
economic activity that is subject to joint control.

The group’s interest in jointly controlled entities is accounted for using the equity method of
accounting as described in note 1.2 above, except when the investments are held exclusively with a
view to their subsequent disposal, which is highly probable, and are then accounied for as non-
current assets held for sale,

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on consoclidation represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the group’s
interest in the fair value of the net identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of a
subsidiary, associate or joint venture at the date of acquisition. Geodwill is recognised as an asset
al cost and is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
reviewed for impairment annually. Any impairment is recognised immediately in profit or loss and
is not subsequently reversed. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of
impairment testing. Cash-generating units represent the business operations from which the
goodwtill was originally generated.

On disposal of a subsidiary, associate or joint venture, the altributable amount of goodwill is
included in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.
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1.5

1.6

1.7

Other intangible assets

Expenditure on acquired patents, trademarks, licences and computer software is capitalised and
amortised using the straight-line basis over their useful lives, generally between two and eight
years. Intangible assets are not revalued. The carrying amount of each intangible asset is reviewed
annually and adjusted for impairment, where it is considered necessary.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets excluding goodwill

At each balance sheet date, the group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss, or whether an impairment loss recognised in a previous period has reversed or decreased. IT
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

Where the asset does not generaie cash flows that are independent from other assets, the group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An intangible asset with an indefinite useful life is tested for impairment annually and whenever
there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing
vahie in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects the current market assessment of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the estimnates of fulure cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an assel (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the assel (cash-
generating unit) is increased to the revised eslimale of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (cash-generating unil) in prior years.
Impairment losses recognised on goodwill relating Lo a cash-generating unit are not reversed in a
subsequent period.

A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised only if there has been a change in the estimates used
{o determine the assets carrying amount. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in income
immediately.

Property, plant and equipment and leasing assets

Land is reflected al cost and is not depreciated. New properiy investments and developmentis are
reflected at cost, which includes holding and direct development costs incurred uniil the property
is available for occupation.

Cost also includes the estimated costs of dismantling and removing the assets and where
appropriaie cost is split into significant components. Major improvements to leasehold properties
are capitalised and written off over the period of the leases. Where land and buildings are held as
portfolio properties and benefits are shared with policyholders, such property is fair valued
through the income statement.

All other assets are recorded at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Depreciation is calculaied on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of each
component of an asset to 1ts residual value over its estimated useful life as follows:

Buildings and leasehold improvements 20 years
Equipment and furniture 3 to 10 years
Motor vehicles 3 lo 5 years
Leasing assets 3 Lo 10 years

The depreciation methods, estimated remaining useful lives and residual values are reviewed at
least annually.

Where significant components of an asset have different useful lives to the asset itself, these
components are depreciated over their estimated usefu! lives.

When the carrying amount of an asset is greater than its estimated recoverable amount, it is
wrilten down immediately to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an
expense immediately.



1.8

1.9

1.10

Where a reversal of a previously recognised impairment loss is recognised, the depreciation charge
for the asset is adjusted to allocate the assets revised carrying amount, less residual value, on a
systematic basis over its remaining useful life.

Gains and losses on disposal are determined by reference to their carrying amount and are taken
into account in determining operating profit.

Capitalised borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

Inventories

Inventories are stated atl the lower of cost or net realisable value, due recognition having been made
for obsolescence and redundancy. Net realisable value is the estimate of the selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the costs of completion and selling expenses. Cost is determined
as follows:

Vehicles Specific cost

Spares, accessories and finished goods Weighted average cost
Petrol and oil First-in, first-out
Merchandise First-in, first-out

Work in progress includes direcl costs and a proportion of overhead but excludes interest expense.

Financial instruments

Financial instruments are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs. where applicable,
when the group becomes a party to the contraciual provisions of the contract. Subsequent to initial
recognition, these instruments are measured as set oul below.

Equity and debt security instruments
Eguity and debt security instruments are initially recognised at cost on trade date.

At subsequent reporting dates, debt securities that the group has the intention and ability to hold to
maturity (held-to-maturity debt securities) are measured at amortised cost, excluding those held-to-
maturity debt securities designated as fair value through profit or loss at initial recognition, less any
mpairment losses recognised to reflect irrecoverable amounts. Premiums or discounts arising on
acquisition are amortised on the yield-to-maturity basis and are included in the income statement.

Equity and debt security instruments other than held-to-maturity debt securities are classified as
either fair value through profit and loss or available for sale, and are measured at subseguent
reporting dates at fair value.

Where equity and debt security instruments are held for trading purposes, gains and losses arising
from changes in fair value are included in the income statement for the period.

Available-for-sale invesiments and gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are
recognised directly in equity, until the security is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at
which time the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity is included in the income
statement for the period.

Loans receivable
Loans are recognised at the date that the amount is advanced.

At subsequent reporting dates they are measured at amortised cost, less any impairment losses
recognised {0 reflect irrecoverable amounts.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables originated by ihe group are stated at nominal value as reduced by
appropriate allowances for doubtful debts.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are measured at fair value, based on the relevant exchange rates at the
balance sheet date.
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Loans payable

Interest bearing loans are initially recorded on the day that the loans are advanced at the net
proceeds received.

At subsequent reporting dates, interest-bearing borrowings are measured at amortised cost.
Finance charges, including premiums payable on settlement or redemption and direct issue costs,
are accounted for on the accrual basis in the income statement using the effective interest rate
method, and are added to the carrying amount of the instrument to the extent that they are not
settled in the period in which they arise.

Where interest bearing loans have interest rate swaps changing the interest rate from fixed to
variable or vice versa, they are treated as hedged items and carried at fair value. Gains and losses
arising from changes in fair value are included in the income statement for the period.

Where the group has the intention to repurchase its own interest bearing loans in a recognised
marketplace, such loans are designated as held for trade and are carried at fair value. Gains and
losses arising from changes in fair value are included in the income statement for the period.

Trade payables

Trade payables are stated at their nominal value.

Derivative instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value, and subsequently measured
at fair value. The group uses derivative financial instruments primarily relating to foreign
currency protection and to alter interest rate profiles.

The group designates cerlain derivatives as hedging instruments. They are classified as:
* fair value hedge: a hedge of exposure to changes in fair vatue of recognised assets and liabilities;

* cash flow hedge: hedges a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability or a
highly probable forecast transaction;

¢ hedges of a net investment in a foreign operaticn.

Foreign currency forward contracts (“FECs”)} are used to hedge foreign currency fluctuations
relating to certain firm commitments and forecast transactions.

Interest rate swap agreements can swap interest rates from either ﬁxed to variable or from variable
to fixed and are used to alter interest rate profiles.

Any gains or losses on fair value hedges are included in the income statement for the period.

Changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments that are designated and effective as
hedges of future cash flows are recognised directly in equity and any ineffective portion is
recognised immediately in the income statement.

If the cash flow hedge of a firm commitment or forecast transaction resulis in the recognition of
an asset or a liability, then, at the time the asset or liability is recognised, the associated gains or
losses on the derivative that had previously been recognised in equity are included in the initial
measurement of the asset or liability. For hedges that do not result in the recognition of an asset
or a liability, amounts deferred in equity are recognised in the income statement in the same period
in which the hedged item affects the income statement.

Derivatives embedded in other financial instruments or non-derivative host contracts are treated as
separate derivatives when their risks and characteristics are not closely related to those of host
contracts and the host contracts are noil. carried at fair value with fair value gains or losses reported
in the income statement.

Fair value calculations

Investments are fair valued based on regulated exchange-quoted ruling bid prices at the close of
business on the last trading day on or before the balance sheet date, Fair values for unquoted equity
instruments are estimated using applicable fair value models. If a quoted bid price is not available
for dated instruments, the fair value is determined using pricing models or discounted cash flow
techniques. Any instrument that does not have a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured is stated at its cost, including transaction costs, less
any provisions for impairment.

All other financial assets and liabilities’ fair values are calculated by present valuing the best
estimate of the future cash flows using the risk-free rate of interest plus an appropriate risk
premium.



1.11

1.12

1.13

Derecognition

The group derecognises a financial asset when its contractual rights to the cash flow from the
financial asset expire, or if it transfers the asset together with its contractual rights to receive the
cash flows of the financial assets.

The group derecognises a financial liability when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operaling leases.

The group as lessor

Finance leases
Amounts due under finance leases are treated as instalment credit agreements.

Operating leases

Income is recognised in the income statement over Lthe period of the lease term on the straight-line
basis.

Assets leased under operating leases are included under the appropriate category of asset in the
balance sheet. They are depreciated over their expected useful lives on a basis consistent with
similar items of property, plant and equipment.

The group as lessee

Finance leases

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the group at their fair value at the date
of acquisition. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the balance sheel as a finance
lease obligation. Finance cosls, which represent the difference between the total lease commitments
and the fair value of the assets acquired, are charged to the income statement over the term of the
relevant lease.

Operating leases

Operating lease costs are recognised in the income stalement over the lease term on the straight-
line basis. When an operating lease is terminated before the lease period has expired, any payment
required to be made to the lessor by way of penalty is recognised as an expense in the period in
which termination takes place.

Share-based payments

The group operates equity-settled share-based compensation plans for senior employees and
executives.

Equity-settled share-based payments are measured at fair value at the date of grani using the
Black-Scholes model. The fair value determined al the grant date of the equity-settled share-based
paymenl is expensed on the straight-line basis over the vesting period with a corresponding entry
to equity. The expense takes into account the best estimate of the number of shares that are expected
1o vest. Non-marketl conditions such as time-based vesling conditions and non-market performance
conditions are included in the assumptions for the number of options that are expected to vest. At
cach balance sheet date, the entity revises its estimates on the number of options that are expected
to vest. It recognises the impact of the revision of original estimates, if any, in the income
statement, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, or share awards vest, the proceeds received, net of any directly
attributable transaclion costs, are credited to share capital (nominal value) and share premium.

Retirement benefit obligations

The group operates a number of retirement schemes around the world. These schemes have been
desipgned and are administered in accordance with the local conditions and practices in the
countries concerned and are defined contribution schemes. The pension costs relating to these
schemes are assessed in accordance with the advice of qualified actuaries and are expensed as
incurred.
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1.14

1.16

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events, for which it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to setile the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can
be made.

Leave pay provision

This is determined based on the outstanding number of days leave due to employees applied to the
total cost of their employment.

Bonus provision

Within the group there are various formulas to calculate bonuses payable 1o employees. Based on
this, the different cperations make an estimate of the total amount due.

Warranty and after-sales services

Where the group sells vehicles on which it will incur warranty and after-sales costs, an estimate of
this is made based on past experience.

Other provisions

The group is involved in different industries and localions that require many different provisions.
These include onerous contracts, decommissioning and restructuring cosis, and long-service
payments.

Taxation

The charge for current tax is based on the results for the year as adjusted for items, thal are non-
assessable or disallowable. It is calculaled using tax rates that have been substantially enacted at
the halance sheel date.

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of temporary
differences arising from differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax basis used in the computation of taxable profit.

In principle, deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences arising from
depreciation on property, plant and equipment, revaluations of certain non-current assets and
provisions for pensions and other retirement benefits. Deferred tax assets are raised only to the
extent that their recoverability is probable. Deferred tax assetls relating to the carry-forward of
unused tax losses are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the unused tax losses can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the group is able to and intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities
on a net basis.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when significant risks and rewards of ownership of
the goods are transferred to the buyer.

Where there are guaranteed buy-back arrangements in terms of which significant risks and
rewards of ownership have not transferred to the purchaser, the transaction is accounted for as a
lease.

Revenue arising from the rendering of services is recognised on the accrual basis in accordance
with the substance of the agreement.

Revenue from vehicle maintenance plans is recognised only to the extent of the value of parts and
services provided, with the balance being recognised at the end of the vehicle maintenance plan.

Where the group acts as agent and is remunerated on a commission basis, the commission is
included in revenue. Where the group acts as principal, the total value of business handled is
included in revenue.



1.17 Headline earnings

The group is an integrated group thal, as part of its operations, sells vehicles through its own
outlels. As a result, profits and losses arising on the disposal of its leasing assets are items of a
trading nature, rather than capital items. For this reason, the above items are not adjusted in the
headline earnings calculations.

Sigmificant accounting judgements and estimates

The preparation of the financial statements requires the group’s management to make judgements,
estimates and assumplions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. The determination of estimales requires the exercise
of judgement based on various assumptions and other factors such as historical experience, current and
expected economic conditions, and in some cases actuarial techniques. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.

The following accounting policies have been identified as involving particularly complex or subjective
decisions or assessments.

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

Impairment of assets

As outlined in the accounting policies, an impairment loss is recognised when Lhe recoverable
amount of an assel is estimated to be less than its carrying amount. In assessing value in use,
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate. Management
applies its best estimate of the range of economic conditions that will exist over the remaining
useful life of an asset. Whilst external evidence is favoured, management applies judgement in
circumstances where external evidence is limited.

Residual values and useful lives

The group depreciates its assets over their estimated useful lives taking into account residual
values, which, following the adoption of IAS 16 (Property, Plant and Equipment), are re-assessed
on an annual basis,

The actual lives and residual values of these assets can vary depending on a variety of factors.

Technological innovation. product life cycles and maintenance programmes all impact the useful
lives and residual values of assets. Residual value assessments consider issues such as luture
market conditions, the remaining life of the assel and prgjected disposal values.

Income taxes

The group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required
in determining the world-wide provision for income taxes due to the complexity of legislation.
There are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The group recognises liabilities for anticipated taxes based
on estimates. Where the final tax outcome of these matlers is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such detiermination is made.

The group recognises the net future tax benefit related to deferred income tax assets to the extent
that it is probable that the deductible temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future.
Assessing the recoverability of deferred income tax assets requires the group to make significant
estimates related to expectations of future taxable income. Estimates of future taxable income are
based on forecast cash flows from operations and the application of existing tax laws in each
jurisdiction. To the extent that future cash flows and taxable income differ significantly from
estimates, the ability of the group to realise the net deferred tax assets recorded at the balance sheet
date could be impacted. Additionally, future changes in iax laws in the jurisdictions in which the
group operates could limit the abilily of the group to obtain tax deductions in future periods.

Contingent liabilities

Management applies its judgement to the probabilities and advice it receives from its atiorney,
advocates and other advisers in assessing if an obligation is probable, more likely than not, or
remote. This judgement application is used to determine if the obligation is recognised as a liability
or disclosed as a contingent liability.
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2.5

Revenue recognition

Revenue from vehicle maintenance plans is recognised only to the extent of the value of parts and
services provided, with the balance recognised at the end of the plan.

3. Impact of new issued standards and interpretations

58

3.1

Effect of newly issued standards

The following new or revised IFRS have been issued with effective dales applicable to future
financial statements of the group:

IAS 1 - amendment to International Accounting Standard 1 -~ Presentation of Financial Statements:
Capital Disclosures

The amendmenl requires the group to disclose information that will enable users of ils financial
statements to evaluate the entity’s objectives, policies and processes of managing capital. The
amendment first becomes applicable to the group for the financial year ending 30 June 2008.

IAS 23 - Borrowing Costs

This standard has been amended to remove the option to expense borrowing cosls incurred on
qualifying assets.

The amendment should have no significant impact on the group’s results, and first becomes
applicable for the financial year ending 30 June 2009.

IFRS 7 - Financial Instruments: Disclosures

The IFRS essentially combines IAS 30 - disclosure in the financial statements of banks and IAS 32 -
Financial Instruments; Disclosure and Presentation. The disclosure requirements under 1AS 32 have
been expanded o include sensitivity analyses as well as disclosure of classes of financial assets and
liabilities,

The standard first becomes applicable to the group for the financial year ending 30 June 2008, and
the impact on the group is expected to be limited to an extension of current disclosure.

IFRS 8 - Operating Segments

This IFRS introduces the concept of an operaling segment; it expands the identilication criteria for
segments of an entity and the measurement of segment result. This statement will allow an entity
to align its operatling segment reporting with the internal identification and reporting structure.

The standard first becomes applicable to the group for the financial year ending 30 June 2010, and
is not expected Lo have any significant impact on the group.

IFRIC 10 - Interim Financial Reporting

The interpretation addresses an apparent conflict between the requirements of IAS 34 - interim
financial reporting and those in other standards on the recognition and reversal in financial
statements of impairment losses on goodwill and certain financial assets. The inlerpretation
concludes that an entity shall not reverse an impairment loss recognised in a previous inierim
period in respect of goodwill, or an investment in either an equity instrument or a financial asset
carried at cost.

The interpretation will have no significant impact on the group’s results, and first becomes
applicable for the financial year ending 30 June 2008.

IFRIC 11 - Group and Treasury Share Transactions

This interpretation addresses two issues. The first is whether the transactions should be accounted
for as equily-settled or as cash-settled share-based payment arrangements, and the second where a
share-based payment transaction involves two or more entities within the same group.

The interpretation will have no significant impact on the group’s results, and first becomes
applicable for the financial year ending 30 June 2008.

IFRIC 12 - Service Concession Arrangements

This interpretation serves to clarify the treatment of arrangements whereby a government or cther
body grants contracts for the supply of public services — such as roads, energy distribution, prisons
or hospilals - to privale operators. The objective of this IFRIC is to clarify aspecls of accounting for
service concession arrangements.



The interpretation will have no impact on the group’s results, and first becomes applicable for the
financial year ending 30 June 2008.

IFRIC 13 - Customer Loyalty Programmes

This interpretation addresses accounting by entities that grant loyalty awards to customers who
buy other goods or services. The interpretation deals with the accounting treatment of the
obligations to provide free or discounted goods or services granted under such a programme,

The interpretation will have no impact on the group’s resulls, and first becomes applicable for the
financial year ending 30 June 2010.

IFRIC 14 — The Limit on a Defined Benefii Asset. Minimum Funding Requirements and Their
Interaction

When determining the limit on a defined benefit asset in accordance with 1AS 19 - employee
benefits, under IFRIC 14 entities are required to measure any economic benefits available to them
in the form of refunds or reductions in [uture contributions at the maximum amount that is
consistent with the terms and conditions of the plan and any statutory requirements in the
jurisdiction of the plan.

The interpretation should have no significant impact on the group’s results, and first becomes
applicable for the financial year ending 30 June 2009.

Circular 8/2007 — Headline Earnings

This circular provides rules for calculating headline earnings by accounting standard. In addition
this circular requires a detailed disclosure reconciling the headline earnings to the earnings
applied in the earnings per share calculation.

Specific departures from the old formula are as follows:

* Not all gains or losses on the closure. sale or termination of a business will automatically be
excluded from headline earnings.

* A new approach is required for the recogniticon of a deferred tax assel of Lthe acquiree, following
a business combination.

* Additional adjustments for any linked unit (where a share and debenture trade as a linked unit).
* A new specific banking industry rule for remeasurements relating to private equity activities
(associates or joint ventures) regarded as operating/trading activities, per the circular.

This circular will broaden the scope of disclosure for the entity and may have an impact on the
headline earnings reported by the group. because gains or losses on the sale of the group’s fleets,
which have been included in our headline earnings per share calculation, may now be specifically
excluded. This circular will be applicable for the year ending 30 June 2008.
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Intangible assets

Computer Goodwill
Trademarks software and other Total
R'000 R'000 R’000 R'000
Year ended 25 June 2007
- Cost 39 24 991 56 898 81 928
- Accumulated impairment and amortisation 19 21 135 227 21 381
20 3 856 56 671 60 547
Net book value at beginning of year 27 3 003 54 154 57 184
Net disposal of businesses {(74) 1933 1 859
Additions 4 333 4 333
Disposals (2 009) (2 009)
Amortisation (7) (1 397} (1 404)
Currency adjustments 584 584
Net book value at end of year 20 3 856 56 671 60 547
Year ended 25 June 2006
- Cost 39 11 005 54 381 65 425
- Accumulated impairment and amortisation 12 8 002 227 8 241
27 3 003 54 154 5'7 184
Net book value at beginning of year 9 944 3012 3 965
Additions 20 3 343 50 328 53 691
Amortisation (2) (1 284) (11) {1 297)
Currency adjustments 825 825
Net book value at end of year 27 3 003 54 154 57 184
Year ended 25 June 2005
- Cost 19 7 658 3 250 10 927
~ Accumulated impairment and amortisation 10 6 714 238 6 962
9 944 3012 3 965
Net book value at beginning of year 11 1 027 3032 4 070
Additions 546 934 1 480
Amortisation (548) (1017) (20) (1 585)
Net book value at end of year 9 944 3012 3 965

A CGU represents the business operation from which goodwill was originally generated. The recoverable
amount of a CGU is determined on the value in use.

Value in use

Value in use is calculated using discounted cash flows. Cash flow projections are based on three to five-
year budgeted information approved by senior management. Cash flows beyond the initial period are
extrapolated using average growth rates. Discount and growth rates are used that are relevant to the
particular industry and geographic location in which a CGU operates.

CGU’s were tested for impairment and no impairment was required.



Property, plant and equipment

Land,
buildings  Equipment
and leasehold and Motor
improvements furniture vehicles Total
R’000 R'000 R’000 R'000
Year ended 25 June 2007
- Cost 141 199 986 478 96 566 334 243
- Accumulated depreciation and impairmeni. T 596 50 545 35 380 93 521
133 603 45 933 61 186 240 722
Net book value at beginning of year 125 369 21 845 46 283 193 497
Nel acquisition of businesses (4 201) 1919 708 (1 574)
Additions 47 317 34 628 41 802 123 747
Disposals (40 143) {1 054) (15 130) (56 327)
Depreciation . (1 483) (11 388) {13 785) (26 636)
Profit/(Loss) on disposal 5 456 (181) 1 063 6 338
Currency adjustments 1 288 i64 225 1877
Net bock value at end of year 133 603 45 933 61 186 240 722
Year ended 25 June 2006
- Cost 134 562 87 445 76 579 298 586
- Accumulated depreciation and impairment 9193 65 600 30 296 105 089
125 389 21 845 46 283 193 497
Net book value at beginning of year 76 824 15 928 21 013 113 765
Net acquisition of businesses 30 671 7 316 12 760 50 747
Additions 18 015 5949 24 118 48 082
Disposals (5) (293) (5 795) (6 093)
Depreciation {1 492) (6 952) (7 787) (16 231)
(Loss)/Profit on disposal (624) {(322) 1 580 634
Currency adjustments 1 980 219 394 2 593
Net book value at end of year 125 369 21 845 46 283 193 497
Year ended 25 June 2005
- Cost 85 664 66 734 41 305 193 703
- Accumulalted depreciation and impairment 8 8B40 50 806 20 292 79 938
76 B24 15 928 21 013 113 765
Net book value ai beginning of year 60 890 12 843 18 910 92 643
Net acquisition of businesses 1133 209 1 342
Additions 16 548 8 538 11 473 36 559
Disposals (34) (127) {4 665) {4 B2B)
Depreciation (1 743) (6 650) (6 613) (15 008)
(Loss)Profit on disposal (40) 4 1 740 1 704
Currency adjustments 1 203 187 (41) 1 349
Net book value at end of year 76 824 15 928 21 013 113 765
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2007 2006 2005
R'000 R000 R'000
Leasing assets
Cost 6 803 414 5 422 636 4 222 442
Accumulated depreciation 1 813 638 1 436 675 1 252 065
4 989 776 3 985 961 2 8970 377
Net book value at beginning of year 3 985 961 2 970 377 2 319 357
Net acquisition of businesses 487 829 18 807
Additions and reclassifications 2 615 698 1 '786 768 1 573 356
Disposals (747 929) (621 087) (445 255)
Depreciation {909 601) (702 107) {553 588)
Impairment cosis (2 400)
Profit on disposal 29 100 36 321 40 576
Currency adjustments 18 947 27 860 17 124
Net book value at end of year 4 989 776 3 985 961 2 970 377
Deferred taxation
Movement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
Balance at beginning of year 223 142 73 028 45 775
Transferred this year 94 B26 105 379 61 267
Over provisions in prior years 35 636 2439 (2 389)
Assessed loss carried forward (68) (44 971) (20 630)
Currency movements (1 949) 2 169 (9 716)
Arising on acquisitions and disposals (18 997) 85 098 (1279)
332 390 223 142 73 028
Analysis of deferred tax assets and liabilities
— Provisions (44 B83) (19 205) (13 045)
— Property, plant and equipment 6511 5276 1133
- Leasing assels 442 511 342 977 158 425
- Inventories 3276 (3 788) (6 B558)
— Assessed Lax loss {40 752) (22 081) (32 024)
- Other (34 273) (80 040) (34 903)
332 390 223 142 73 028
Deferred tax comprises
— Assets 65 218 48 735 20 727
— Liabilities 397 608 271 877 93 755
332 380 223 142 73 028
Other investments and loans
Listed Investments at market value 24 215 11 556
Finance lease receivables and other loans 10 937 3 399 7 695
35 152 14 955 7 695
Maturity analysis of finance lease receivables
and loans
Maturing after one year but within five years 10 937 3 399 7 695
10 937 3 399 7 695
Effective interest rates
Finance lease receivables and other loans 50% - 14.0% 55%-16.5% 3.3% -~ 13.5%




10.

11.

12.

13.

2007 _2006 2005
R’000 R'000 R'000
Inventories
New vehicles 525 638 98 251 93 117
Used vehicles 175 327 131 788 167 611
Spares, accessories and finished goods 199 540 54 392 38 009
Petrol and oil 731 50 49
Work in progress 36 507 8 351 10 762
937 743 292 832 309 548
inventories carried at net realisable value included above 118 390 107 590 152 334
Trade and other receivables
Trade 848 895 633 129 359 453
Pre-payments and other 97 718 (1 688) (20 592)
946 613 631 441 338 861
Cash resources
Cash on hand and at bank 168 605 37 554 13 938
Effective interest rates 3.25% -85% 3.0%-6.75% 2.0% - 6.3%
Group equity funding
- MCC Contracts 96 890 96 890
~ Mutual Construction Company (Tvl) 48 133 48 133
- Five Six Seven Glen Austin 10 000 10 000
- Civil Finance Company 5 957 5 957
- Explotech Marketing Services 12 135 12 135
- Saficon Industrial Equipment 29 788 28 338 28 338
- Impact Handling 38 583 36 647
- Imperial Fleet Services (PVPS) 16 001 16 001 16 001
— Fleet Support Services 700 700 700
— Imperial Fleet Services AA Botlswana 5 5 5
~ Terex Africa 63 829
- Orenstein & Koppel 67 993
— Imperial Specialised Freight Nigeria 931
390 945 254 BO6 45 044
Group equity funding represents the investinent in
subsidiaries held by Imperial Holdings Limiled.
Non-distributable reserves
Foreign currency translation reserve T 369 2937 1 628
Hedging reserve (3 172)
4 197 2 937 1628
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2007 2006 2005
R’000 R’000 R’000
14. Interest bearing borrowings
Long term
- Instalment sale creditors 282 410 233 642
— Unsecured loans 29 000 29 000 28 000
321 410 262 642 29 000
Short term
- Call borrowings and bank overdrafts 26 666 36 552
Total borrowings 321 410 289 308 65 552
Less: Current portion of interest bearing borrowings 39 480 130 812 36 552
281 930 158 496 29 000
Details of long-term borrowers are as follows:
Interest rate
analysis
- Nedbank Prime less 2.8% 85 726 59 789
— Stannic Prime less 2.65% 120 723 22 026
— Wesbank Prime less 2.65% 85 380 51 319
- Zimplats Prime 581 3474
- Imperial Bank Prime less 2% 97 034
~ Imperial Holdings Limited 10.0% to 13.0% 29 000 29 000 29 000
321 410 262 642 29 000
Call borrowings 9.6% 26 666 36 552
321 410 289 308 85 5562
Details of security held by borrowers are as follows:
Book value
of security
Type of Security Terms of 2007
finance held repayment R’000
— Nedbank Instalment sale Earthmoving Monthly 79 562
equipment,
— Stannic Instalment sale Earthmoving Monthly 103 874
equipment
— WesBank Instalment sale Earthmoving Monthly 99 685
equipment
— Zimplats Instalment sale Earthmoving Monthly 581
equipment
- Imperial Holdings Limited Loan Unsecured N/a -
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15. Provisions for liabilities and other charges

16.

Warranty
and after
Leave pay Bonuses sales Other Total
R™000 R’000 R'000 R'000 R'000
Year ended 25 June 2007
Balance at beginning of year 13 426 15 950 1422 29 724 60 522
Amounts added 13 348 39 357 5 456 8 B34 66 993
Unused amounts reversed (734) (757) (97) (2 638) (4 226)
Charged {o income 12 612 38 600 5 359 6196 62 767
Amounts utilised (4 895) (21 494) {1 996) (28 385)
Acquisition of business 1 845 510 20 696 23 051
Other 264 8 i56 (103) 325
Balance at end of year - payable in
less than one year 23 252 33 574 27 633 33 821 118 280
Year ended 25 June 2006
Balance at beginning of year 9 872 10 966 1122 18 674 40 634
Amounts added 6 613 14 775 343 8 185 29 916
Unused amounts reversed (450) (43) (181) (674)
Charged to income 6 163 14 775 300 8 004 29 242
Amounts utilised {4 441) (13 881} 879 (17 443)
Acquisition of business 1 855 4 196 3103 9 154
Other (23) {1086} (936) (1 065)
Balance at end of year - payable in
less than one year 13 426 15 950 1422 20 724 60 522
Year ended 25 June 2005
Balance at beginning of year 8185 12 326 391 15 348 36 250
Amounts added 2 934 12 165 767 4 069 19 935
Unused amounlts reversed £213) (2 163) (36) (834) (3 246)
Charged to income 2 721 10 002 731 3 235 16 689
Amounts utilised (1 828) (12 205) (1 987) (16 020)
Acquisilion of business 800 859 523 2182
Other (8) (186) 1 555 1533
Balance at end of year payable in
less than one year 9 872 10 966 1122 18 674 40 634
2007 2006 2005
R’000 R'000 R'000
Trade and other payables
Trade 690 927 331 459 244 542
Other payables and accruals 885 535 502 612 248 297
PFair value of derivatives 19 458 10 633 6 568
1 595 920 844 704 499 407
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18.

‘s

19.
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2007 2006 2005
R'000 R'000 R’000
Revenue
An analysis of the company’s revenue is as follows:
Sales of goods 1 642 538 700 930 582 506
Rendering of services 3 585 187 2 326 662 1718 120
D 227 725 3 027 592 2 301 026
Revenue includes revenue with subsidiaries of
Imperial Holdings Limited
Sales of goods 4 059 16 220 40 004
Rendering of services 20191 5373 36 161
24 250 21 593 76 165
Net operating expenses
Purchase of goods 1 702 825 731 175 683 048
Changes in inventories before net acquisitions
of businesses (280 074) 54 410 (14 860}
Cost of outside services 918 946 324 081 200 761
Staff costs 595 626 362 976 270 869
Impairment costs 2 400
Other operating income (87 211) {84 258) {100 964)
Other operating costs 614 995 416 506 278 053
3 467 507 1 804 890 1 316 907
The above costs are arrived at after including:
Aunditors’ remuneration
Audil fees 4 447 3930 2114
Other services 303 244 973
4 750 4 174 3087
Rental and operating lease charges
Plant and equipment 557 764 262
Properties 7170 11 345 10 493
Motor vehicles 1373 140 3 2095
9 100 12 249 14 050
Consultancy and other technical fees 3797 1 055 922
Defined contribution retirement plan costs in staff costs 29 457 18 370 15 589
Depreciation, amortisation and recoupments
Intangible assets 1 404 1 297 1 585
Property, plant and equipment, 26 636 16 231 15 006
Leasing assets 909 801 702 107 553 588
937 641 719 635 570 179
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment (6 338) (834) (1 704)
Profit on disposal of leasing assets (29 100) (36 321) (40 576)
202 203 6882 680 527 899




20.

21.

22,

2007 2006 2005
R’000 R'000 RO00
Financing
Interest paid 304 920 209 939 186 754
Fair value gains arising from interest - bearing
borrowings and interest — swap instruments 217
305 137 209 939 186 754
Finance income (25 217) (14 316) (21 712)
Net finance cost 279 920 195 623 165 042
No finance cost were capitalised during the year.
Exceptional items
Loss on sale of businesses (9 685)
Income tax expense
Taxation charge
South African normal taxation
-~ Current 53 921 20134 40 190
- Prior year over provisions {24 420) (1 969) (50)
29 501 18 165 40 140
- Foreign taxes
- Current 13 580 10 796 S5 757
- Prior year over provisions (1 445}
12 135 10 796 5 757
- Deferred taxation
- Current year 04 626 105 379 61 267
~ Prior year over provisions 35 636 2439 (2 389)
- Assessed loss current year (68) (45 691) (21 455)
- Assessed loss from prior year 720 825
130 194 62 847 38 248
Secondary Taxation on Companies 7 016 2411
178 846 91 808 86 556
Reconciliation of tax rates: % % %
Profit before taxation -~ effective rate 32.2 271 30.5
Taxation effect of:
— Disallowable charges (6.5) 1.8 (1.4)
- Secondary Tax on Companies 1.3 0.8
- Prior year under provision 2.0 0.1 (0.9)
29.0 29.0 29.0
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2007 2006 2005
R'000 R'000 R'000
23. Notes to the cash flow statement
{a) Cash generated by operations
Profit before net financing costs 845 296 533 989 449 129
Adjustments for non-cash movements
- Amortisation of intangible assets, net of recoupments 1404 1297 1 585
— Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 26 636 16 231 15 0086
- Depreciation of leasing assets, net of recoupments 880 501 665 786 513 012
- Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment (6 338) (634) (1 704}
- Impairment of assets 2 400
- Fair value adjustments 2165 (28 348) (4 065)
Cash generated by operations before changes in
working capital 1 752 064 1188 321 972 963
Working capital movements
- Increase in inventories (280 074) 54 410 {14 860)
- Increase in accounts receivable (215 368) (133 311) 7 637
- Increase in accounts payable 430 127 196 083 77 482
1 686 749 1 305 503 1 043 222
(b) Acquisition of subsidiaries and businesses
Property, plant and equipment 3141 50 747 1 342
Leasing assels 487 829 18 807
Other investments and loans 10 282
Inventories 373 529 33 955
Accounts receivable 133 570 93 687 2 327
Long-term loans receivable 22 662
Accounts payable (393 302) {125 096) (5 520)
Provisions (23 350) (9 154) (2 182)
Taxation {owing)/pre-paid 9 949 (582) (646)
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) i8 997 (85 098) 1 279
Interest bearing borrowings (31 935) (277 551) (18 956)
Cash and cash equivalents 41 169 62 124 4 177
Goodwill 1933 50 328
133 701 314 133 628
Less: Cash resources acquired (41 169) (62 124) (4177)
Cash flow on acquisition 92 532 252 009 (3 549)
{(c)} Proceeds on sale of business
Property, plant and equipment 4715
Other intangibles 74
Other investments and loans 168
Inventories 9 749
Accounts receivable 3 318
Accounts payable (15 944)
Provisions for liabilities and other charges (299)
Interest bearing borrowings {4 081)
Cash and cash equivalents 786
Nel asset value (1 514)
Less: Cash resources disposed (786)
Loss on disposal (9 685)
Proceeds on disposal (11 985)
{d) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash resources 168 605 37 554 13 938
Short-term loans and overdrafts (26 666) (36 552)
168 605 10 888 (22 614)
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24.

25.

26.

27.

2007 2006 2005

R'000 R’000 R’000
Commitments
Capital expenditure commitments to be incurred
Centracted 851 857 1 166 838 979 855
Authorised by directors but not contracted 472 808 37 565 -
1 324 665 1 204 403 979 855

The expenditure is substantially for the replacement of leasing assets to be used by the company.
Expenditure will be financed from proceeds on disposals and existing facilities.

Contingent liabilities
A counterclaim from a customer in an amount of R27 million is being defended by the group.

The group has issued guarantees to suppliers amounting to R295 million.

Operating lease receivable

The minimum future lease payments receivable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

One to  Less than 2007 2006 2005

five years one year R'm R'm R'm

- Forklifts 744 383 1127 1 049 1 025
- Vehicles 3 088 955 4 043 3 005 26985
3 832 1338 5170 4 054 3 720

Finaneial instruments
Financial risk factors

The group’s activities expose it to a variely of financial risks, market risk, including interest rate risk,
currency risk and price risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

Derivaltive instruments are used by the company for hedging purposes. Such instruments used by the
company are forward exchange contracts and fixed interest rate agreements. The company does not
speculate in the trading of derivative instruments.

Currency risk

This is the risk of losses arising from the effects of adverse movements in exchange rates on nel foreign
currency asset or liability positions.

The group undertakes certain transactions denominated in foreign currencies, hence exposures to
exchange rate fluctuations arise.

Exchange rate exposures are managed utilising forward exchange contracts and currency options.

The group maintains a fully covered exchange rate position in respect of foreign currency borrowings.
Each division manages ils own trade exposure. Trade-related import exposures are managed through the
use of natural hedges arising from foreign assets as well as forward exchange contracts.

Al the year end the settlement dates on cpen forward contracts ranged up to 12 months. The average
exchange rates shown include the cost of forward cover. The amounts represent the nel rand equivalents
of commitments to purchase and sell foreign currencies, and have all been recorded at fair value.
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Financial instruments (continued)

The group has entered into certain forward exchange contracts that relate to specific balance sheet items
at 25 June 2007 and specific foreign commitments not yet due. The details of these contracls are as
follows:

Foreign Average Contract
amount rate value Fair value
{million) R'million R'million
Foreign eurrency - 2007
Imports
US Dollars 3 7.22 22 22
Euro 2 9.68 17 17
Pound sterling 1 13.94 2 3
Japanese yen 3 483 16.26 214 205
255 247
Foreign currency - 2006
Imports
US Dollars 3 6.36 21 25
Euro 1 8.34 11 13
Japanese yen 2 562 17.66 145 168
177 206
Foreign currency - 2005
Imports
US Dollars . 3 6.65 18 18
Euro 1 8.40 7 7
Japanese yen 1 838 16.54 111 115
136 140

Interest rate risk

This is the risk that fluctuations in interest rates may adversely impact on the group’s earnings, assets,
liabilities and capital.

The group is exposed {o interest rate risk as it places funds at both fixed and floating rates. The risk is
managed by mainiaining an appropriate mix between fixed and floating rate borrowings.

The group’s treasury, having access {0 local money markets, provides the group with the benefits of bulk
financing and depositing. The interest rate profile of total borrowings is reflected in Note 14.
Market risk

This is the risk that changes in the general markel conditions may adversely impact the group’s
earnings, assets, liabilities and capital.

The group is exposed to market risk as it holds equity securities, which are classified as either available
for sale or designated as fair value through profit or loss.

Credit risk

This is the risk that an asset in the form of a claim against another party may not result in the other
party meeting its commitments in terms of the agreement.

Trade accounts receivable

Trade accounts receivable consist mainly of a large widespread customer base. Divisions monitor the
financial position of their customers on an cngoing basis. Where considered appropriate, use is made of
credit guarantee insurance. The granting of credit is controlled by application and account limits.
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28.

Finaneial instruments (continued)
Provision for doubtful debts

Provision is made for both specific and general bad debts on trade accounts receivable. Management does
not consider thal there is any material credil risk exposure not already covered by credit guarantee or a
bad debt provision.

Cash and cash equivalents.
It is company policy to deposit short-term cash with reputable financial instlitutions.
Liquidity risk

This is the risk of not being able to generate sufficient cash to meel commitments to borrowers,
depositors and other creditors at any point in time.

The company manages liguidity risk by monitoring forecast cash flows and ensuring that adequate
unutilised borrowing facilities are maintained.

One to Less than

five years one year 2007 2006 2005
R'000 R'000 R’000 R'000 R'000

Financial assets
Other investments and loans 35 152 35 152 14 955 7 695
Trade and other receivables 946 613 946 613 631 441 338 861
Cash and cash equivalents 168 605 168 605 37 554 13 938

Financial liabilities

Interest hearing liabilities 281 930 39 480 321 410 289 308 65 552
Trade and other payables,

provisions for liabilities and other

charges 1 714 200 1714 200 905 226 540 041

Fair value of finaneial
instraments (R'000)

Financial assets

Other investments and loans 35 152 i4 955 7 695
Trade and other receivables 946 613 631 441 338 861
Cash and cash equivalents 168 605 37 554 13 938
Financial liabilities

Interest bearing liabilities 321 410 289 308 685 552
Trade and other payables, provisions

for liabilities and other charges 1 714 200 905 226 540 041

Related party transactions

The Leasing and Capital Equipment division is a division of Imperial Holdings Limited. Subsidiaries,
associates, joint ventures, and the group Pension and Provident Funds, of Imperial Holdings are
considered to be related parties. During the year the company and subsidiaries of Imperial Holdings
Limited, in the ordinary course of business, entered into various sale and purchase transactions with
associates and joint ventures. These transactions occurred under terms that are no less favourable than
those arranged with third parties.

{a) Interest of directors in contracts

The directors have confirmed that they were not materially interested in any transaction of any
significance with the company or any of Imperial Holdings Limiled subsidiaries. Accordingly, a
conflict of interest with regard to directors’ interest in contracts does not exist.

(b) Shareholders

The group is 100% held by Imperial Holdings Limited.
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28. Related party transactions (continued)
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{c)

(d)

(e)

Balances between related parties

Outstanding balances with related parties:

Interest 2007 2006 2005
rates R'000 R’000 R'000
Imperial Capital Limited 11.18% 1416 397 101 968
Imperial Group (Proprietary) Limited 9.65% 1836747 1993157 1943 608
Imperial Holdings Limited 66 033
Imperial Mobility Finance BV 4.6% 309 598 288 361
Imperial Logistics International GmbH 4.6% 73273 96 072
Assocciated Motor Holdings (Proprietary)
Limited 26 408
Anvil International Finance Limited 60 458 188 712
Ukhamba Investmenis Group (Proprietary)
Limited 9.65% 30 809 14 596 1 407
3 666 924 2 581 020 2 199 760
Inter-group borrowings comprises:
Assets 150 845 177 294 162 302
Liabilities 3817 769 2 758 314 2 362 062
3 666 924 2 581 020 2 199 760

Inter-group borrowings are unsecured with no fixed dates of repayment. These borrowings arise out
of daily funding requirements. Interest is capitalised monthly.

Key management personnel

Key management personnel are directors and those executives having authority and responsibility
for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the company.

The group has many different operations, retail outlets and service centres where the company staff
may be transacting. Often these transactions are minor and are difficult to monitor. Key
management have to report any transactions with the company in excess of R100 000. The total
value of goods and services supplied to key management on an arms length basis amounted to
R2 609 000 (2006: R23 019 000) (2005: R818 000).

Directors’ remuneration

Retirement
and
Director Salary Bonus medical Other  Total 2007
R’000 R'000 contributions benefits R'000
Executive
W S Hill 2 323 1 500 392 T2 4 287
E Clarke 1103 1 667 217 175 3162
3 426 3167 609 247 7 449
Directors’
fees Total 2007
R’000 R'000
Non-executive
V J Mokoena 112 112
M J Croucamp 54 54
166 166
Total remuneration 7 615




28. Related party transactions (continued)

ity

(g)

(h)

1

Share incentive schemes

Options
Options at exercised Options
beginning  during the at end Options Date Expiry
Director of year year of year price granted date
W S Hili 25 000 25 000 53.20 30 Jun 2003 29 Jun 2013
40 000 40 000 62.50 9 Dec 2003 8 Dec 2013
40 000 40 000 66.50 15 Jan 2004 14 Jun 2014

Options over Imperial shares are granted to executive directors and other senior executives based on
criteria considered by the Imperial Remuneration committee to be similar to those used for the
annual bonus. The options are allocated in accordance with the rules of the scheme and vest after
stipulated periods.

Share appreciation schemes

Price on

Commencement Number of commencement Expiry
date shares date date

Directors
W S Hill 26 Jun 2005 15 0006 100,78 Jun 2009
26 Jun 2007 15 000 150.08 Jun 2011
E Clarke 26 Jun 2005 6 800 100,78 Jun 2009
V J Mokoena 26 Jun 2005 5 000 100.78 Jun 2009
26 Jun 2007 15 000 150.08 Jun 2011
Managers 26 Jun 2005 59 800 100,78 Jun 2009

Participants in the share appreciation scheme are granted rights to payment in shares of Imperial
by a subsidiary of the group. The rights vest after four years, which period may be extended by up
{o two years if the market value is below the strike price.

The amount of the bonus will be equivalent to the appreciation in the fair market value of an Imperial
and Egstra share on the JSE during the period from the commencement date to the expiry date
multiplied by the number of shares. The quantum of the bonus will further be dependant on the
performance criteria being met and the bonus must be utilised to acquire Egstra shares.

Key management personnel remuneration comprises:

2007 2006 2005
R'000 R'000 R000
Short-term employee henefits 37 895 31 385 21 963
Long-term employee benefits 1849 2 189 2 378
Termination benefits 38 26 19
39 782 33 600 24 380
Number of key management personnel 26 24 17
Directors’ interests in securities
Beneficial Total
Director Direct Indirect 2007
Executive
W S Hill 150 000 150 000
E Clarke 34 000 34 000
Non-executive
V J Mokoena 35 000 35 000
219 000 219 000
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28. Related party transactions (continued)
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(i) Loans advanced to directors and managers in terms of the share purchase schemes

Inception Interest Loan Nature of Number Value of Loan
date rate term security of shares security Balance
R'000 R'000
2007 2007
Directors
W S Hill 15 Dec 2005 11% 10 years Imperial 75 GO0 10 613 10 745
Holdings
shares
19 Jun 2007 11% 10 years Imperial 75 000 10 613 11 217
Holdings
shares
E Clarke 15 Dec 2005 11% 10 years Imperial 34 000 4 811 4 874
Holdings
shares
V J Mokoena 15 Dec 2005 11% 10 years Imperial 25 000 3 538 3 585
Holdings
shares
19 Jun 2007 11% 10 years Imperial 10 000 1415 1496
Holdings
shares
Managers 15 Dec 2005 11% 10 years Imperial 299 000 42 309 42 B18
Holdings
shares
518 GO0 73 299 74 733

The interest bearing share purchase scheme allows participants to purchase shares, at market value,
on interest bearing loan accounts. There are no restrictions attached to the vesting or sale of the
shares. Interest is payable by participants to the company at a market relaled, variable rate. Interest
is capitalised on the loan and the loan is repayable when a participant disposes of the shares or
earlier, at the election of the participant. The rate of interest is determined according to a sliding
scale that penalises participants if the shares are sold in the first five years after allocation or in the
last three years before the termination of the scheme in year 10.

Interest in principal subsidiaries

Book value of interest

Ordlna.ry Shares at cost Indebtedness
Interest shares in

Company owmed issue 2007 2006 2007 2006

R'000 R'000 R’000 R'000 R'000
MCC Contracts 50.1% 1 96 890 96 890 264 509 154 618
Mutual Construction Company (Tvl) 50.1% 1 48 133 48 133 126 556 26 789
Saficon Industrial Equipment 100.0% 2 394 29 788 28 338 676 229 593 696
Five Six Seven Glen Austin 50.1% 1 10 000 10 000 10 194 9 289
Imperial Fleet Services (PVPS) 100.0% 10 16 001 16 001 37111 18 915
Amasondo Fleel Services
(Management contrclled) 49.0% 272 223 238 302
Explotech Marketing Services 50.1% 1 12 135 12 135 (11 2286) 135
Impact Handling 100.0% £1 601 38 583 36 647 402 835 389 671
Terex Africa 100.0% 277 863 829 190 657
Orenstein & Koppel 100.0% 63 570 67 993 (82 009)




30. Share of attributable profits/(losses) of subsidiaries 2007
R’000
Clarklift (Piy) Ltd 2 681
Saficon Industrial Equipment (Pty) Ltd 47 740
Impact Handling ple 5 340
Amasondo Fleet Services (Pty) Litd 293
Fleet Support Services (Pty) Ltd 1
Imperial Fleet Services Botswana (Pty) Ltd (15 670)
Imperial Fleet Services Swaziland (Pty) Lid 3118
Imperial Fleet Services Lesotho (Piy) Litd 454
Imperial Fleet Services (PVPS) (Pty) Litd 21 513
Imperial Flexifleet (Pty) Ltd 16 639
Omathemba (Pty) Lid {662)
Pemberley Fleet Services (Pty) Lid 2095
R.T.G Fieet Services (Pty) Ltd 9 165
Imperial Specialised Freight (Nigeria} (Pty) L.td (482)
Imperial Fleet Services (East Africa) (Pty) Ltd (884)
Imperial Fleetl Services (Tanzanzia) (Pty) Lid (220)
Five Six Seven Glen Austin (Pty) Ltd 512
MCC Contracts (PLy) Ltd 84 045
Mutual Construction Company (Tvl} (Pty) Ltd 7102
Civil Finance Company (Pty) Ltd 2 490
Explotech Marketing Services (Pty) Lid 4 949
MCC Mining (Pty) Lid (3
Dorstland Earthmoving (Pty) Lid 2 429
Terex Africa (Pty) Ltd 1189
Terex Botswana (Pty) Ltd 2 641
Imperial New Holland Equipment (Pty) Lid (7 327)
Leasing and capital equipment divisions of Imperial Group (Pty) Ltd 80 541
269 689
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Annexure 4

Independent reporting accountants’ report on the historical finanecial
information of the Imperial Leasing and Capital Equipment Division

The Directors

Imperial Investment Holdings (Proprietary) Limited
Imperial Place

Jeppe Quondam

79 Boeing Road East

Bedfordview, 2007

Scouth Africa

Dear Sirs

REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANTS ON THE AUDITED HISTORICAL,
BALANCE SHEET, INCOME STATEMENT AND CASH FLOW STATEMENT (COLLECTIVELY REFERRED
TO AS “THE HISTORICAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION") OF THE IMPERIAL LEASING AND CAPITAL
EQUIPMENT DIVISION

Introduction

At your requesi and for the purposes of the pre-listing statement to Imperial Holdings Limited shareholders,
1o be dated on or about 20 March 2008, we present our report on the historical financial informaltion in
respect of the unbundling of the Imperial Leasing and Capital Equipment division as set out in Annexure 3
to the pre-listing statement, in compliance with the Listings Requirements of the JSE Limited (“JSE”).

Responsibility

The compilalion, contents and presentation of the pre-listing statement are the responsibility of the
Company’s directors. Our responsibility is Lo express an opinion on the historical financial information
included as Annexure 3 to the pre-listing statement.

Scope

We have audited the financial information of the Imperial Leasing and Capital Equipment division for the
year ended 25 June 2007 and reviewed the historical financial information for the years ended 25 June 2006
and 25 June 2005.

Basis of opinion

Audit opinion

We conductied our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obialn reasonable assurance that the historical financial information
relating to the year ended 25 June 2007 is free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures o obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal contrel relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial stalements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting principles used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.
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Review opinion

We conducted our review in accordance with the International Standard on Review Engagements 2410
applicable to the review of Financial Information. This standard requires that we plan and perform the
review to obtain moderale assurance that the historical financial information for the years ended 25 June
2006 and 25 June 2005, presented in terms of International Financial Reporting Standards and IAS 34, is
free of malerial misstatement. A review is limited primarily to enquiries of company perscnnel and analytical
procedures applied to financial data and this provides less assurance than an audit. We have nol performed
an audit of the abovementioned historical financial information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit
opinien thereon.

Audit opinion

In our opinion, the historical financial information of the Imperial Leasing and Capital Equipment division
for the year ended 25 June 2007 fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial position at that date,
and the results of the operations and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards and the JSE Listings Requirements.

Review opinion

Based on cur review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the historical financial
information of the Imperial Leasing and Capital Equipment division for the years ended 25 June 2006 and
25 June 2005, are not fairly presented, in all material respects, in accordance with Iniernational Financial
Reporting Standards, IAS 34 and the JSE Listings Requirements.

CONSENT

We consent to the inclusion of this report, which will form part of the pre-listing statement to shareholders
of Imperial Holdings Limited, to be issued on or about 20 March 2008, in the form and context in which it
appears.

Yours faithfully

Deloitte & Touche

Per B W Smith
Partner

11 March 2008

Buildings 1 and 2, Deloitte Place

The Woodlands Office Park, 20 Woodlands Drive
Woodmead

Sandton

2196

National Executive: G G Gelink, Chiefl Executive; A E Swiegers, Chief Operating Officer; G M Pinnock, Audit:
D L Kennedy, Financial Advisory Services and Tax; L. Geeringh, Consuliting; L Bam, Corporate Finance and
Strategy; C R Beukman, Finance: T J Brown, Clients and Markets; N T Mtoba, Chairman of the Board.

A full list of partners and directors is available on request.
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Annexure 5

Unaudited December 2007 interim financial statements of the
Imperial Leasing and Capital Equipment division

Leasing and Capital Equipment division

Balance sheet
at 31 December

2007 2008

R'000 R'000
ASSETS
Non-current assets 6 367 990 4 843 930
Intangible assets 60 006 57 231
Property, plant and equipment 277 596 182 812
Leasing assets 5 351 132 4 397 628
Deferred tax assels 70 872 44 469
Other investments and loans 40 411 40 853
Amounts owing by Imperial Holdings’ subsidiaries 567 973 120 937
Current assets 2 837 106 1216 455
Inventories 1 478 061 356 377
Trade and other receivables 1 085 801 696 370
Taxation in advance 118 261 66 442
Cash resources 154 983 97 266
Total assets 9 205 096 6 060 385
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and reserves
Group equity funding 390 945 254 806
Non-distributable reserves 4 476 3 034
Distribulable reserves 872 206 795 B71
Ordinary shareholders’ interest 1 267 627 1053 711
Minority interest 303 008 214 219
Total shareholders’ equity 1 570 635 1 267 930
Non-current liabilities 6 073 334 3 641 954
Interest-bearing borrowings 198 364 144 046
Deferred tax liabililies 427 899 305 505
Amounts owing to Imperial Holdings’ subsidiaries 5447 071 3 192 403
Current liabilities 1561 127 1 150 501
Trade and other payables 1204 512 836 533
Provisions for liabilities and other charges 142 622 63 908
Current tax liabilities 127 473 53 048
Current portion of interest bearing borrowings 86 520 197 012
Total liabililies 7 634 1461 4 792 455
Total equity and liabilities 9 205 096 6 080 385
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Leasing and Capital Equipment division

Income statement
For the six months ended 31 December

2007 2006
R'000 R'000
Revenue 3314 072 2 134 837
Net operating expenses (2 168 323) (1 303 708)
Profit from operations before depreciation and recoupments 1145 749 831 129
Depreciation, amortisation and recoupments (510 515) (416 479)
Operating profit 635 234 414 650
Foreign exchange (losses)/gains (13 995) 3 241
Fair value gainsf(losses) to foreign exchange derivatives 7 356 (10 962)
Profit before financing costs B28 595 406 929
Finance costs including fair value gains and losses (224 562) (142 099)
Profit before taxation 404 033 264 830
Income tax expense 119 585 84 044
Profit after taxation 284 468 180 786
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the division 202 492 138 935
Minority interest 81 976 41 851
Profit after taxalion 284 468 180 786
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Leasing and Capital Equipment division

Cash flow statement
For the six months ended 31 December

2007 2008
R'000 R'000
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash receipts from customers 3 174 883 2 038 905
Cash paid to suppliers and employees (3 090 007) (1 352 T01)
Cash generated by operations 84 876 686 204
Net financing costs (224 562) {142 089)
Income tax paid (39 014) (48 124)
(178 700) 495 981
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of intangible assets (431) (277)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (59 012) (27 893)
Purchase of leasing assets {1 376 376) (1 148 394)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equiprneni 4 450 32 374
Proceeds from sale of leasing assets 499 285 334 173
Additional investments in and leans to
subsidiary and associated companies, net of disposals (2 470) -
Purchase of equities and loans advanced (4 414) (25 899)
(938 968) {835 9186)
Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid (104 1586) (139 327)
Net movement of amounts owing to Imperial Holdings Limited’s subsidiaries 1 184 239 508 803
Increase in long-term borrowings 23 963 56 B37
1 104 046 426 313
Net (decrease)increase in cash and cash equivalents {13 622) 86 378
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 168 605 10 888
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 154 983 97 266
Leasing and Capital Equipment division
Statement of changes in equity
For the six months ended 31 December 2007
Group Non
equity distribntable Distributable Minority
funding reserves reserves interest Total
R'000 R’000 R'000 R’'000 R'000
Balance at 25 June 2007 390 945 4 197 740 409 254 493 1 390 044
Net gains arising on translation
of foreign companies (1 579) (1 579)
Movement in hedge accounting
reserve 1 858 1 858
Net gains not recognised in the
income statement 279 279
Net atiributable profit for the year 202 492 81 978 284 468
Dividends (70 695) (33 461) (104 156)
Balance at 31 December 2007 390 945 4 476 872 2086 303 008 1 570 635
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Leasing and Capital Equipment division

Business and Geographical Segmentation
For the six months ended 31 December

2007 2006
R'000 R'000
BUSINESS SEGMENTS
Serment revenues
Passenger and commercial vehicles 998 430 988 634
Industrial equipment 654 966 545 323
Construction and mining 1 657 611 597 436
3 311 007 2131 393
Group and eliminations 3 065 3 444
Consolidated revenue 3314 072 2 134 837
Segment result
Passenger and commercial vehicles 224 161 194 306
Industrial equipment 102 188 90 908
Construction and mining 315 376 130 234
641 725 413 448
Group and eliminations (6 491) (798)
Consolidated profit before interest 635 234 414 650
Segment assets
Passenger and commercial vehicles 3418 144 3235 727
Industrial equipment 1 680 020 1 504 762
Construction and mining 3 521 419 1 210481
8 619 583 5 950 970
Group and eliminations 585 513 109 415
Consolidated total assets 9 205 096 6 060 385
Sepment liabilities
Passenger and commercial vehicles 2 784 255 2 641 835
Industrial equipment 1 428 050 1313132
Construction and mining 2 B32 787 860 493
7 045 092 4 815 460
Group and eliminations 589 369 (23 005)
Consolidated total liabilities 7 634 461 4 792 455
Segment capital expenditure
Passenger and commercial vehicles 675 427 599 417
Industrial equipment 270 804 264 479
Construction and mining 481 407 299 303
1 427 638 1163 199
Group and eliminations 8 181 13 365
Gross capital expenditure 1 435 819 1176 564
Less: proceeds on disposal (503 735) {366 547)
Net capital expenditure 932 084 810 017
Segment depreeciation and amortisation
Passenger and commercial vehicles 178 503 218 389
Industrial equipment 139 021 128 049
Consiruction and mining 192 856 72 163
510 380 418 601
Group and eliminations 135 (2 122)
Censolidated depreciation and amortisation 510 515 416 479
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2007 2006
R'000 R'000
GEOGRAPHIC SEGMENTS
Segment revennes
South Africa 2 938 232 1 868 439
Africa 209 723 111 778
Rest of world 166 117 154 620
3 314 072 2 134 837
Segment result
South Africa 580 043 366 933
Africa 38 994 28 740
Rest of world 16 197 18 977
635 234 414 650
Segment assets
South Africa 8 306 330 5 164 786
Africa 409 89O 403 776
Rest of world 488 B76 491 823
9 205 096 6 060 385
Segment liabilities
South Africa 6 865 036 4 027 383
Africa 357 588 328 741
Rest of world 411 837 436 331
7 634 461 4 792 455
Segment capital expenditure
South Africa 1 320 647 1 038 024
Africa 32 561 31 560
Rest of world 82 611 105 980
Gross capital expenditure 1 435 819 1 176 564
Less: proceeds on disposal (503 735) (366 547)
932 084 810 017
Segment depreciation/{recoupments) and amortisation
South Africa 475 736 345 936
Africa (6 431} 30 026
Rest of world 41 210 40 517
510 515 416 479

Basis of preparation

This information is an extract from the Imperial interim report for the six months ended 31 December 2007
as relates to the Leasing and Capital Equipment division. The information presented is compliant with the
requirements of IAS34 other than in respect of the non-disclosure of per share data (such as earnings per
share, headline earnings per share, dividends per share, etc) which cannot be computed due to the

information pertaining to a division and not an incorporated entity with issued share capital.

The division had no issued share capital and it is therefore not possible to calculate the earnings and headline
earnings per share amounts. To the extent that it is possible to complete the information this has been

included in the extract.

This extract should be read in conjunction with the audited annual financial statements of Imperial for the

year ended 25 June 2007.
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Accounting policies

The accounting policies adopted in preparation of this extracted information are consistent with those of the
annual financial statements for the year ended 25 June 2007 as relates to the Leasing and Capital Equipment

division reflected in Annexure 3.

New acquisitions

No material new acquisitions were made during the reporting period.

Capital commitments and contingent liabilities

2007 2006
R'm R'm
Capital commitments ass 811
Contingent liabilities 322 177

81



"pg 0Fed uo PENUTIIUCS a4l $1 (7 [T SUWO[OY)

BEO LvE B (06t £€) o4P veg 8 (661 PEY) 192 L1 081 g4 - (8us £81) 960 Y0Z & [s73 10590 (V0L
11Z ¥51 T1Z St (aed) LG PGIL SOOLNLYAT ((RI)
£GT 811 U7 811 {8} tuT Bl GOUBAPY LIE UOLJRXE],
ZEH 000 2ER 096 (oG v21) FO% 9HO 1 SB[BATEOOT LOQIL PUE OpYL]
190 84b 1 190 ¥Lb 1 [RUGR - PR UL AL
LEE 11L T LSE 1L 2 Bre vel) 901 LEB 2 SloSEY JULI)
(64) (66T 9EG) {(es8 18) ELG L9G GL SOIIMPISYNS
Blummed reuedwp Ag Juimo spunowry
ZaB 628 2cB 68ge 198 411 Ul @i 11¢ OF SUNO] PUR STUASHAUT Y0
259 bt 80 ¥b {0zez 93) ZL8 0L SJ068R X PALIBJN]
ZET 1GE S 2ET 18E € ZET ISE S sassv Sutseo]
098 LLe 09% LLi2 (9t} 9GS LL2 wswdimbe puw puypd 'Aedosy
sainios juiel pUe Sa1Co0sse Ul SJUOWISEAT]
a1s a2 (DBY T8 900 0B 00 o9 siasse apguiivmg
289 626 ¢ (06F £ER) ceoeos s (661 DUS) tus L1t ust L (GO1 HE) 0BG L8Y 9 6L SIOEST JUBLINUUN
SLASSY
e+8+I 8 8 4 ] < | 4 14 T T SON
=0t
1
000 d 000 000,49 000, H 000, 9 000. 4 0004 000.9 000. " o000 d
payjury s[euanof 1e10) qep uopide AT UBDUL Aapung paainbhav woISIALp parmy
sAuipio Burnpunqgitf] -qng dnoad-xajuy w0 areys 1euonppy jou jupudinba sHuploy
erysbhy jo LEEEEY saraappisqig (eydes pue juaimysaaug
mauwmdeday Fmisean repzadurg

‘L00Z Jaquiaoec] T¢ U0 pajusuaidun ueaq pey pauijap se £j1anoe ajesodioo ey teryy uondwmsse o) uo pasedald usaq sey 199ys aoure[eq FULIOS oId oy,

4003 13quIada( IE e
LAFAHS ADNVIVH VIWHOJ OHd

‘MOTaQ 110 188 §1 LO0T J8qUIasdd 1€ Popus

SUIUOU X18 8Y] 10§ UCHBULIOJUI [RIOURULY BLUIOf otd poppneun o], "wniwsed orels o) Sunsi| Jo s1500 a4 Jo JJO 81um 0] pue saijitoutun DD ays jo do-drg,, auy
‘uondo (e 0xqadar] 3y O 1oedut oyt 'owoyds aseyound adeys JusLano ayy fended BRyy 01Ul $URO] JO UCISIaAU0D oy ‘Buipuny pastasd ayj Julsq 'pajiuitr] (wlaodur]
woay Juypungun juanbesqns pue Junsy eanshd o) juensand £panoe apedodion oY) joaad o) pejuesead ST UOTIBWLIOJUT [RIOUBUT} BULIO) o4d pajpneun sty

suoeiado Jo symsos 1o uorpsod erouruy snsby juosoader Ajare] jou Avl 810010 [RlouBuy wuniof odd pojipaeun sy
alnjeu J10y] 03 ong| ‘ATuo sosodind oarteaisn|(t 40f pecedoad st pue eysby Jo s4010041p 247 Jo A(iqisuodsal 9l SI U BWIOJUL [RIDUBL] FULIOS odd polipaeun ayL

uorjeULIOjUI [eloueulj vuLioj oxd pajipneury

9 sanxeuuy

82



by adEd UO PIMUIIULS BAT 141 0] |1 sLWNO)

C'RTGL ¥2LG ($)an) aatnge Jad josgw opquau o
&' ovL 2649 (FIUOD) oYy Jod angea |oEs1? JopN]
9¥0 0zTe 9b0 92z (000,) svivys Advutp.io
PaLLapal g, PUE Soseys £IVUp0 pansy]
GEO T+0 8 (061 £2) 0%V FLD B (GGT 8EY) 9¢ 11 0ST TL - (848 £81) 960 508 6 373 gapjqus) pue £ymnbe [vioL
200 L9 9 TOO GLD 9 (GG 1 8EY) 0G1 %L (000 0OY) (O5E G8) 19% +E9 L HOLLIGUI] [P,
880020 1 gE0 080 1 81G CRG 08¢ 9¢ sduLmoltoq Furreaq jsarouy Jo uotiiod jualny
sLL ET1 ZLL ET1 {10L£) ELY L1 SOUIIGQRI] X&) JUdLany)
408 EF1 L0Z EV1 <8 Qe BT SAAIUYS 10430 PUR Sa01IGE]] 0] SUOISIACL]
SLLGIT L GiL 891 1 (LEL B8 GIG POB T sarquied Loyjo pus apely
6L 9SGk 2 o6l UG 2 H1G ELG IR FR S L2T 19S 1 SN IHQUIT JUBLIND
{BSE 1Lt 4 041 BL (898 Lb) [L0 APV G ol PIEGHS
SAup(oH esdw o) Bumo Bunowy
QLT 8y 0LZ Bt (62g 6} GEB LY BACILOHT] X1 padajog]
000 008 & 000 008 £ LY 100 ¥ (QU0 00Y) ¥oe 86t sAutmodtoq Butivoq 1Hadnu]
QLZ 8Ig ¥ 0LE BL2 T+ f2la Gut t) 061 &2 {000 0OV) (LGF LG) FEE L0 9 SAINIIQUIT JURLID-tan
LLG GBEG 1 (06 ve) BEE GGG 1 193 L11 [s3leX¢IP1Y LHUOS uE) GHY 0LG 1 6L ANnbo S19progRIRYSY (oL
80¢ 982 80L 982 woL +1) 200 2oL IS L ALY
BO9 LLD 1 (oGt g8 UL LIL 19z 411 QUY QU (808 £4) LY 293 1 373 IWAIUL Boploysarys Saeutpaly
Y69 bib (bPO TLE) B8GY 416 10 B (808 £L) QO TLY BL SOALISDS HQUINQLUISIC)
LY b oLy v QLY ¥ SHAJOSDL DIHEINQLIISTP-UON
(S¥a ngg} 5v6 068 S¥G OGE Fuipuny £1mbo dnorg
66% 823 1 66Y BaB 000 00v 000 OOt wntwaad pue [uidw saeyg
ssalasal pun (eyden
SHILITIEVIT ANV ALINGBI
6+B8+1 1] 8 L ] ') 14 € z T SRON
= cﬂ
000,49 0004 000. 4 000.M 0004 000.H 000" 000.H o000y Q004
potuty speuanof %103 qep uoyjdo 2A1UBU ]| Buypuny poammbore worsialp pyug]
sBuarpioy Fuppunqun -qng dnoi¥-1oqur  [peo [-X1:1:T) [RUOIIPPY jou qustudinba sAurpjoy
wrysby Jo oyatey salamipiiqng [ejides pue  jJueunyseau]
jupmieday Aupsuag reredu)

4002 Jaqua23(] 1€ ¥

(panurjuo)) LAFHS HONVIVE VIWHOL ONd

83



L6864 UHEL (81uB0) DJeys Jod fosse opqriu JoN
GO aUbL (Eua0) ety Jod unpira qesst Jan
Q06 TLeg 098 9y 9v9 gae (000,) so1eys Azeuipdo

polivjap | g, PUY ey LEUIpIO pUREs]
GHO 199 B - - - UED 198 8 SopItIIqetL pue Lyubs myog

682 vou Y L33 Yt TUGGLL O SULHIIGEL] [EI0L
8t0 0T0 1 BEO 050 1 sAumoadoq Butareaq 1ssraiul Jo uoltaod Juating
gLi ERL eLL g2t a1l IqEI] XU] JUALIND
tud 191 LTS W1 LOT EVL 29D JBI0 PUB BBOL G J0) BUOIHIAGL]
GLL BHE T GLL QT 1 sajqurAnd a0 puw opuLy
GI10 Qib 2 LET W1 6L DUV B SRTHITQUIT HIBRLINY
seLimipisqns sdutpo}] [eradw] oy Juwmo ;yunowy
0LE 81V QLS 81V HOTI[IQR]] XU POLISJa(]
Qoo 0oy © 000 008 © sduimodstoq Juieay jse1eiu]
0OLS 411G QLG BIC b BOUIQUI TEALILID-UON
08 L6 1 Lz 81 LLEG YOG ¢ Aunbo sasployareyy (g,
FAVARD Gy v BOL HET psodane Loy
EE0 BEG 1 {LeT HU) 165 9AT OUY LLS T JRALIILU BIAP[OUDIHYS AIVUIRLIO
¥Go v bPud 11 BUALUSHE GfquINgLEiEi]
9Lt 1 Qv v EDAIUROL DEOR IYLIE T PION]
Aurpunj Auwduiod Jurpoy
£98 98b 1 (u2% §1) 166 0LE G6¥ 822 1 umtuwond pue jedes sieyg
5310894 pue [oiden)
SIMINqu] put Lypoby
GEO 1+9 8 - - - GEG TV0 8 810857 [910L
112 ¥4l L2yt SH0INOVII S}
eyz vl vUT BIL VOUHATE U] UOLURY],
oes 0BG auy 084G BO O UATDDGL OG0 PUY SPRLL
190 8L 1 IBOBLP 1 BHLAOTUDALY
LOE 1IL B LYB 11L 2 HBSH JUOANY
SORIPIEYNy sEplop] (erodur) AQ Sursmo spunowry
wel Lok ool 42e | PUE SUaRNSLPALL Jagi0
oyl a5y ¥ir SIOSSYE X"} 1RA33)a(]
THL 1Y O 4 R R SR Y] ylanse Juisvar]
Q9% LLe 099 LLT tuswdimbo pue qued AL Iodg
SO0 UAA JUIOf PUl SRIUIDOSEE UL SiUousoau]
915 D2 915 98 sj0sse BRLUALEIU]
e8n G2eh 4 THO 626 9 SIOSF JUDLIND-UOA]
851058y
£1 03 O1 £1 13 1t g+rg+1 S0N
=¥1 =01
000, 4 0004 000.H 000, " 000"
YIHOA £3800 £y1rouru qep Py
odd Funsry D0 Buppidoy  sBuploy
paysnfpy wyshy

4003 Jequadag 1¢ e

{panurnwod) LAAHS AINVIVE VIWHOJS OUd

84



'0g oded U0 PLUIUOD D48 B[ U} | ] BUWLNO)

©6L 108 (s7ue0) aJuys Jad 8FuIULLY aut|pual]
106 [ (muan) asvye Jod sdutuaes ey
QgL gia oEl 212 (Q00,) ssJBys AIVUIPIO panys]
PLL THE - il THT - fuos 91} - Q06 1 - g9+ vBg
9.6 18 9.6 18 9.6 18 sraployaseys L£jtaoup
BG4 00T g4 003G (ouy 91 Qo6 i cBt 80T slaploysvyy vaisby
TOT HQUIIGLIY
vLL Z8e YLL EHE oy 91) 406G L 231 ol 421 UUITHXE) D1 M0l
¥Lo egl peY Cot GHO U o5 el agusdxg xwy atuoou]
gt BOb Hay KOV Uy 91) GG 0T LE0 POF LUNRK &) RIOJaq ol
(L84 ©03) (L9% von) LG 0n (29y vaz) HONNOL pUY
BURE an[ea Lit) Juipnou $I500 sousuLg
GGG 119 $G6 LY (0uo 91 ©GY B30 B1800 Butou ey aojoq ol d
{009 91} (009 91) oug 91) FIUAUNLLISUT [RIDUUUT) {0 L0 S80{ ONRa 10v 4
ugE L o4e L Qe L soAtIUALIOP oS UNYoXD Udiin) o) suted ontea 2y
{g66 1) (568 61} (468 £1} savso[ aduvyoxn wdiong
FEE 4Ly VYES SuG tEE YEY 1goud BunesddQ
(15 014) . (15 01%) 1S1G 016} sjuswidnosar puv ueresrIome Tuoptiovadagg
G6PL SP1 1 GrL sri o 6L SPL 1 wjusudnonel pue
ugneioatdap saujay suoneiodo woay ol g
{vee 8991 2) (EaE 891 ) {£2L 831 ) susuodxe Juitrasdo 1oN
cL0PIE E sLovic e AR JS A JOLLDAI]
B+rir1 1] 8 L 9 '] 1 4 4 2 1 FajON
=01
0004 000, Y 000, H 000. 4 000. " 0004 000" 0002 Q00 H 000. M
pajyuryy nmghﬂﬁ—. 12109 qap nuO.—.-nwO JATIUIINY H_—-._ﬁ-,:-.u 30.—%-.—.#0& UCGISTAIP pajpucy]
s3uipjoH Buppunqupy -qug dnoal-toqu;  11e0 areysg {euo PPy jou juawdynba sHuajpjoH
wnsha jo oLl sapreipisqug rejjdes pue  juaunyssan]
yuaurindoy Bursea] rer3aduy

L0003 sunyp 9g uo peuswiaidWl Usay peY paullsp st L11aToe ajwiodion e 1ey) uondumsse ay) uo patedsad uasq sel JUawIale)S SUICOUT BULIOF OJd I,

LOOZ I0quuada( 1L PIpUd SIUOUL XIS a1y 100

INIANWALVLS HINODNI VIHOI OHd

85



‘BIIEhH O SJUMILIES [HIOUTL] PEJRPIIUSUGD JO UCLIRAID aU] O} 108)J2 SA1d 1] SaLIUD [TuJnol LONRRPLOSUSY [BWIOU #PROUL Yoiym passaootd uasq eavy speuanol Jurjpunqun muotippy

‘uoneSURL DO O pUR 1gsp Jo Sumridar syt o9 roud wiisby poeprosuog 01

o

sershy £q poanboy vy vy LI eI BLPILGEI] PUT Fassy v UuolstATp Juswdinby wides pue Juisee] oy Jo [RI0)-qN8 ¥ '8

qep dnoad-reiut eaeduf syl Ledas o pasn eq [im Jutpuny styf, uaweles Junsi-oad
STy Jo 1% yderdured ut 0] pasigjas saduyoud Aupun] yueq 811 Ge UMOp meIp [{m edisby Junpungun ug "1gap s11 parmonases sty dnoad oy ‘Auedwion) aty Jo Junsi 3yt 91T1[Te) AISATI0AJJ8 O JopIo U] L

esearoutr Ajtnbu ue s¥ papesd) st [RLIadW] woty Jupungun sy jo jaed su poanboe sem ST SY 000 [0 L1 TH J0 AN[RA 8 [JM SAIRUS PALI8AUOD 3Y) uo uondo [[eo v gey eisby wanisa uf ‘eleys

Jad Juae 170 Ju anfea dud B 18 UOLOEST L) JUDLIBMOWIY oTWoUoDs Youd SUrsio uw jo sllduy bl peglur] (Aduslicharg) Lo oxaor] o) saruys Liruipio poiaojop d, 419 954 b1 Jumsst og tm wishy o

‘satyy Jo sweyornd 94l L0 BUALIINSXE O) URO] FUUSIXS oyl sussacdel SIQE unoone oy EnoLg uesig e sna, oseyoand aaeys eikedurg oyl o) ueo| oyt jo uonaod sensbs g

s aouvieq seshy woniiuas o £anbo v wonw QOFY JAUTIN] © pannponu sl (enadu] pus ([imodd aanng sinedonue visby b

TPAPNRXE BIVJaIIY] ST pur uoppesuRny Jurpungun oyl jo jded W) 10U [[la UOISIALR U] Tt popnout st goiym
pajrry (Lrejanidord) SoMAISS 19514 DIH UWN[UY SIY} U POSISAIL PUY DAIIafSUL.) Uk JOU $a0y A3Y) S8 pOpn[oxe dle suopousuer) dmads dug (dowsap juawdinby] (eden pue Jusnor] syl papnjoun
peTEaL) atem Jely setuedus puwr soeduw uewiiop ureae] duotd [elasdun agp s pouso setuedwuos spealid U spaegs pue sessousng Jo oes ey Ay pejeedo Suisy st pepnur] sduiplog) ensha oy

G AINXBUUY OF J9JeY "uosialp juswdinby jepde) pue Juises| syt o Jupejel st 2002 A0QUISSCT |5 PYPUY S1IUOUL XI8 1) J0) BjULWEIETY [UIOUTUL) Wa Ul pEiunr] SSUpiod |Edediu] papnuan 8y, 2

‘pUE Jead [OURUIL el wiod] paduvyd Tou sey Uotsm L0088 dequionac] tg e { ensbag ) papanr (Arelatadord) sSupo juaunsaauy ek Jo s1ueuoies [uisuedl] enuuy 1

TN
£ee £'6L (530300) daeys dad sFaiules s peal]
S ¥ L°vE (s1uen) vavys tod sFuiudes oveg
06E BS2 get 21 (ROD, ) spregs Lovuipao ponss]
GL8 L8 = - {662 vE) YLL B87
8al {8PY It) 9L6 1Y SIGPIUYDIRYY £1LI0UTN
LbY LT BrE Iy {G6L vE) 86L (0% s1op[uioieyy vayshy

O QLI Y
CLG LTT - - (GGL tE) viL 282 uorexe] oy Jiyodd
orv Iit (trig w8} ¥ g3t osuadxe xT1 Yuvou)
Sy ouy (810 Gv) BEY HOt UUHEXEY 3i0)er(] 0L

(o8g gy} (810 Gt (Lus £0@) 895807 pur suied anfua are) pnout FIs02 souTlg
LG 11y ca6 119 51500 JUIOUTUL] 340530 1Ljuag

(009 o1} (009 o1 SIUSWNLIIEUL [BIOURBUL] J3Y)O 110 E50| a[ka JIE]
OGE 4 9ee L saalyRaLIap aduryoxs udiago] o) sumd gujea amg

(G666 1) (GG £1) SOSNO] oTuRYOXe U0
PLE GE9 rEE Y yoad Bunutado

GIg OIS (crgco1g) siucwdnoool pue uorjesplows uotiosxdac
6L ST GhL gpL L gjupudnosot

put uopsiidep alojoq suonetoada wody yyord

(e@e ot &) (eae 8ol 2) sasuadxo Junutode jaN
gL vie CLOTIE B SUUBADY
€T 91 0T = F1 E1 a1 I B8+ L+ 1=0I S990N
000.H 0002 0004 000. ¥ 000 "4
VIWNHOAd 531500 Lyuounn 1qap pajuIg
oMd Bunsry fate) s Buraiaday sBuipioH
paysalpy vayshy

L003T 1aquIa2a( 1€ PIpPUL S juow X1s ay) 104

(ponunuoe)) INTIWALVLS HWOINI VINHOAd OHd

86



1% JO SINSGL L) U0 4080 SUINUTUoS © SABY [|Im &1 PUE 1T '9 'S 'E '8 "1 Sol0N

PALINSSE UsAg SBL %eT JO 818 XB) ¥

ST JUAGLIDMOALES DITIOUONH 0B g PO r] STUTploy [wad ] olf) Jo sunio) ul pojnur | (Arestador ) sHuplo equres ) <) sareys LIWUIplo paLafap | v, 8§98 184 91 SnssT 0s[w [[1m vaysby

h

SA8 ALRUIPIO PoLIOgsp g, PUE SRS ATRUIRIO 0] 9(QEINQLITIE ON[HA Jo6NT U 910} S|asardid aJ0Joray) paemoun anfea a1y, ‘uonapmig uo YUl jou op |8Y) sereys
AJuUIpIo POLIDGP |V, BUIpn(oxo @Iss| U saeys jo oauni [wio) 01) A poplalp “Mootls asurieq oY) o palos[jad 8 sanIqel] [210] §5a] 510850 [B]0] U0 PIsSRY §7 UCHR[NDIED arells 1ad anfea 18888 10U 8y

L0007 IOQUIIRIT T POPUD STIUOUL XIS 8]} J0J 1USUF|RS SWOSUT PUR G8YS sou[eq BuLIo) odd v1shy o) sjuosalday

oy seuedwon sUl jo gL USTHUS JO SULIE} Ul pomo[e st Jusi] uocdn wnnuassd o Tegs o) JJo Usjidm ag [[Is uswale)s Sunst-oad sn) ut pajimep se ' JUnsi] ag) )M paleioosse s1s00 a1l

‘uotjorsunly £jaed pewled s U0 pesdossd ueaq 10U SeY [[Impood ‘pIepums

Aununcoss ', SUoNEUIGUIO S$0USNE,, "8 S Pesiasg sl Jo uondope Lavs s waishy Jo swide) U wnshy w saawys AIRWIpao 00 098 OF IO 80UTNSSE 5] 4q patl1as agq o 81 YMUM 000 00% 951 1Y 01 slunocws
padinboe 1selsjul A)LIOUTW 81]) JU 8NTEA [B10] DL "91Up Auys) a1 Jo su wrsby o satugs Jo ensst ol 1o) edisby £q ponmbae st soiuedwons jo dnoad Hpy e1p) ut jsareiul s1apoysleys LLOU WE 6k UL
suted siseg ggr Apeunxorddy snid Jeqip ST 9wl

{eraodui] o} Ag posolua Jegy UEY) 1R pE0IAUL 0SB B 1DV A duepung sugy cShapung surg g paserdod ag s qap sudwoos-aeut s rasbyl casoqe £ @joN U pauonluaun sy

Mmou afutaaw ay], dno

‘81
Ll

a1

a1
1
BT

el

87




Annexure 7

Independent reporting acecountants’ report on the unaudited pro forma
finanecial information

The Directors

Imperial Investment Holdings (Proprietary) Limited
Imperial Place

Jeppe QGuondam

79 Boeing Road East

Bedfordview, 2007

South Africa

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANTS' ASSURANCE REPORT ON THE FPRO FORMA
FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF EQSTRA HOLDINGS LIMITED (EQSTRA)

We have performed our limited assurance engagement in respect of the pro forma financial information set
out in Annexure 6 to the pre-listing statement {o be dated on or about 20 March 2008 issued in connection
with the unbundling of the Leasing and Capital Equipment Division of Imperial Holdings Limiled that is the
subject of the pre-listing statement. The pro forma financial information has been prepared in accordance
with the requirements of the JSE Limited (“JSE”) Listings Requirements, for illustrative purposes only, Lo
provide information about how the unbundling might have affected the reported historical financial
information presenied, had the corporate action been undertaken at the commencement of the period or at
the date of the pro forma balance sheetl being reported on.

Directors’ responsibility

The directors are responsible for the compilation, contents and presentalion of the pro forma financial
information contained in the pre-listing statement and for the financial information from which it has been
prepared. Their responsibility includes determining that: the pro forma financial information has been
properly compiled on the basis stated; the basis is consistent with the accounting policies of Imperial
Holdings Limited; and the pro forma adjustments are appropriate for the purposes of the pro forma financial
information disclosed in terms of the JSE Listings Requirements.

Reporting accountants’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express our limited assurance conclusion on the pro forma financial information
included in the prelisting statement to shareholders. We conducted our assurance engagemeni in
accordance with the International Standard on Assurance Engagements applicable Lo Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information and the Guide on Pro Forma
Finaneial Informalion issued by The South African Institute of Chariered Accountants.

This standard requires us to obtain sufficient appropriate evidence on which to base our conclusion. We do
not accept any responsibility for any reports previously given by us on any financial information used in the
compilation of the pro forma financial information, beyond that owed to those to whom those reports were
addressed by us al the dates of their issue.

Sources of information and work performed

Qur procedures consisted primarily of comparing the unadjusted financial information with the source
documenls, considering the pro forma adjustments in light the of the accounting policies of Imperial
Holdings Limited, the issuer, considering the evidence supporting the pro forma adjustments and discussing
the adjusted pro forma financial information with the directors of the company in respect of the corporate
actions that are the subject of the pre-listing statement.

In arriving at our conclusion, we have relied upon financial information prepared by the directors of Imperial
Investment Holdings (Proprietary) Limited and other information from various public, financial and
industry sources.

Whilst cur work performed has involved an analysis of the historical published audited financial information
and other information provided to us, our assurance engagement does not constitute an audit or review of
any of the underlying financial information conducted in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing or International Standards on Review Engagements and, accordingly, we do not express an audit
or review opinion.
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In a limited assurance engagement, the evidence-gathering procedures are more limited than for a
reasonable assurance engagement and therefore less assurance is obtained than in a reasonable assurance
engagement. We believe our evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
conclusion.

Conclusion

Based on our examination of the evidence cbtained, nothing has come to cur attention, which causes us to
believe that, in terms of Sections 8.17 and 8.30 of the JSE Listings Reguirements:

+ the pro forma financial information has not been properly compiled on the basis stated;

* such basis is inconsistent with the accounting policies of the issuer;

* the adjustmenis are not appropriate for the purposes of the pro forma financial information as disclosed.

Consent

We consent to the inclusion of this report, which will form part of the pre-listing statement to shareholders
of Imperial Holdings Limited, to be issued on or about 20 March 2008, in the form and context in which it
appears.

Deloitte & Touche

Per B W Smith
Partner

11 March 2008

Buildings 1 and 2, Delcitte Place

The Woodlands Office Park, 20 Woodlands Drive
Woodmead

Sandton

2196

National Executive: G G Gelink, Chief Executive, A E Swiegers, Chief Operating Officer; G M Pinnock,
Audit; D L Kennedy. Financial Advisory Services and Tax; L. Geeringh, Consulling; L Bam, Corporate Finance
and Strategv; C R Beukman, Finance; T J Brown, Clients and Markets; N T Mtoba, Chairman of the Board.

A full list of partners and directors is available on request.
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Annexure 8

Extracts from the memorandum and artieles of association

1.

90

Issue of shares

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

Subject to the provisions of the Act and of the memorandum and these Articles, and without
prejudice to any right previously conferred on the holder of an issued share, a general meeting, or
the directors with the prior approval of a general meeting, may by resolution:

1.1.1 issue any shares (whether with or without any preferred, deferred or other special right or
restriction, in regard to dividends, voling, return of capital or otherwise);

1.1.2 issue preference shares which are, or at the option of the Company are liable, to be redeemed,

on such terms and conditions and with such rights and privileges attached thereto as may be
determined by that resolution, and may by similar resolution, but subject to the provisions of these
Articles, amend or add to such terms and conditions.

Any original shares for the time being unissued and any new shares from time to time created,
shall before issue be offered to the shareholders in proportion, as nearly as the circumstances
admit, to the number of the existing shares held by them, unless issued for the acquisition of assets.
Subject to the provisions of the Act and the Listings Requirements of the JSE, the shareholders may
in general meeting, however, authorise the directors to issue unissued shares and give options to
subscribe for unissued shares as the directors in their discrelion may think fit.

Subject to the provisions of the Act, the Company may at any time pay a commission, not exceeding
10%, to any person for subscribing or agreeing to subscribe, whether absolutely or conditionally
for any shares or procuring or agreeing to procure subscriptions (whether absolute or conditional)
for any shares.

Subject to the provisions of the Act, the Company may pay interest on any shares issued for the
purpose of raising money Lo defray the expenses of works or buildings or for the provision of plant
and may charge the same to capital as part of the expenses of works or buildings or for the
provision of plant.

SBubject Lo the provisions of section 221 of the Act, the members of the Company in general meeting
may authorise the directors, subject to the approval of the JSE, to issue unissued shares and/or give
options to subscribe for unissued shares as the directors in their discretion may think fit.

The Company shall not except only as otherwise provided by these Articles or by the Act or by any
order of the court of competent jurisdiction, be bound by or compelled in any way to recognise any
equitable, contingent. future, partial or representative interest in any share or any right in or in
respect of any share, other than an ahsolute right to the entirety thereof in the registered holder
and such other rights, in case of transmission thereof, as contemplated in 99 below.

Conversion of shares in to stoek

2.1

2.2

2.3

The Company in general meeting may by special resolution convert any shares into stock and may
re-convert any stock into any number of paid-up shares.

When any shares have been converted into stock, the holders of such stock may transfer their
respective interests in such manner as the Company in general meeting shall direct, but in default
of any such direction then in the same manner, and subject to the same Articles as the shares from
which the stock arose might prior to conversion have been transferred, or as near thereto as
circumstances permit. Bul the directors may from time 1o time fix the minimum amount of stock
transferable, and restrict or forbid the transfer of fractions of such minimum, but the minimum,
shall not exceed the nominal amount, in the case of shares of par value, or the issue price in the
case of shares of no par value, of the shares from which the stock arose, and direct that fractions
of such minimum shall not be dealt with, but with power, nevertheless, at their discretion, to waive
such rules in any particular cases.

The stock shall confer on the holders respectively the same privileges and advaniages as regards
participation in profits and voting at meetings of the Company, and for other purposes, as would
have been conferred by shares of equal amount, but so that none of such privileges or advantages,
except the participation in the profits of the Company, shall be conferred by such proportionate part



2.4

of stock as would not, if existing in shares, have conferred such privileges and advantages and save
as aforesaid all the provisions herein contained shall, so far as circumstances permit, apply to stock
as well as to shares. No such conversion shall affect or prejudice any preference or other special
privilege.

Such of the Articles of the Company as are applicable to shares (other than those relating to share
warrants) shall apply to stock.

Certificates

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

A certificate contemplated in Section 94 of the Act specifying any shares or stock of the Company
held by a member shall be prima facie evidence of the title of the member to such shares or stock.

Subject to the provisions of the Act, certificates shall be issued under the authority of the directors
gratis in such manner and form as the directors may determine from time to time, provided that if
any certificate is defaced, lost or destroyed, it may be replaced on payment of such fee and stamp
duty payable thereon, if any, and on such terms as the directors may determine. In case of loss or
destruction, the member to whom the new certificale is given shall repay to the Company all
expenses incidental to the investigation by the Company of the evidence of such loss or destruction
and to such indemnity.

All signatures on share certificates shall be affixed to or placed on the share certificate by
auiographic, mechanical or electronic means unless the directors by resolution determine that
signatures generally or in any particular case or cases shall be affixed to such certificates by
mechanical means in such manner as the auditors of the Company have approved in writing.

Each member shall be entitled subject to 3.63.6 and 4.1.34.1.3 of these Articles Lo 1 (one) certificate
for all the shares registered in his name or to several certificates each for a part of such shares
provided that in the case of a share held jointly by several persons, the Company shall not be bound
to issue more than 1 {one) certificale therefore and delivery of a certificate for a share to 1 (one) of
several joint holders shall be sufficient delivery to all.

Every cerlificate of shares shall specify the number as well as the type and description of shares in
respect of which it is issued, and in the case of a share having a par value, the nominal value of
such share, and if the shares of the class concerned are numbered then also the distinctive numbers
of the shares in respect of which it is issued, but if the shares of any class are not numbered, the
relative share certificates shall be numbered in numerical progression and each be distinguished
by its appropriate number and by such endorsement as is required under section 95(2) of the Act.

Insofar as possible, certificates of shares shall be issued for numbers of shares which are in
multiples of 100 (one hundred) and for the grealest number of shares which is possible in each
instance,

Joint holders of shares

4.1

Where Ltwo or more persons are registered as the holders of any share they shall be deemed to hold
that share jointly; and

4.1.1 nolwithstanding anything to the contrary in these Articles, on the death, sequestration,
liquidation or legal disability of any one of such joint holders the remaining joint holders
may be recognised, at the discretion of the directors, as the only persons having title to such
share. Nothing contained herein shall release the estate of the deceased, insolvent, insane or
prodigal joint holder from any liability which may arise in respect of any share jointly held
by him;

4.1.2 any one of such joint holders may give effectual receipts for any dividends, bonuses or
returns of capital or other accruals payable Lo such joint holders;

4.1.3 only the joint holder whose name stands first in the register shall be entitled to delivery of
the certificate relating to that share, or to receive notices from the Company (any notice
given to such joint holder shall be deemed to be notice to all the joint holders);

4.1.4 any one of the joint holders of any share conferring a right to vote may vote either
personally or by proxy at any meeting in respect of such share as if he were solely entitled
thereto, and if more than one of such joint holders is present at any meeting, either
personally or by proxy, the joint holder who tenders a vote and whose name stands in the
register before the other joint holders who are present in person or by proxy shall be entitled
to vote in respect of that share.
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5.

92

Share warrants

5.1

52

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

Subject to the provisions of the Act and of any laws or statutory regulations or the legitimate
requirements of any siatutory body in force from time to time relating thereto, the Company and
accordingly the directors and, if so authorised a local committee, may in their discretion, with
respect to any share, on application in writing signed by the person registered as holder of the
share, and authenticated by such evidence as the directors or local committee may from time Lo time
require as to the identity of the persons signing the request, and on receiving the certificate
relating to such share and the stamp duty (if any) payable on the issue of the warrant and such
sum as the directors or the local commiiltee may from Lo time require, issue a warrant (hereinafter
called the “share warranty”) duly stamped, if stamp duly is payable, stating that the bearer of the
warrant is entitled Lo Lthe share therein specified and may provide by coupons or otherwise for the
payment of future dividends on the share included in such share warrant.

A share warrant shall entitle the bearer to the share therein specified, and such share shall be
transferable merely by the delivery of the share warrant. The provisions of Article 1010 in respect
of transfer of shares shall not apply thereto.

The bearer of the share warrant shall on surrender of the warrant to the Company for cancellation,
and on paymeni of such sums as the directors of the local commitiee may from Lime to time
prescribe, be entitled to have his name entered as a member in the register in respect of the share
included in the warrant. '

The bearer of a share warrant may at any lLime deposit the warrant at the office of the Company,
and so long as the warrant remains so deposited, the depositor shall have the same right of signing
a requisition for calling a meeting of the Company, and of attending and voting and exercising the
other privileges of a member at any meeting held after the expiration of 2 (two) clear days {from the
time of the deposil, as if his name were inserted in the register as the holder of the shares included
in the deposited warrant. Not more than 1 (one) person shall be recognised as depositor of the share
warranl, The Company shall, on 2 (two) days’ written notice, return the deposited share warrant to
the deposilor.

Save as herein otherwise expressly provided, no person shall as bearer of a share warrant sigh a
requisition for calling a meeting of the Company, or attend, or vole, or exercise any other privilege
of a member at a meeting of the Company, or be entitled Lo receive any noltices from the Company;
but the bearer of a share warrant shall be entilled in all respects to the same privileges and
advantages as if he were named in the regisier as the holder of the share included in the warrant,
and he shall be a member of the Company.

The directors may determine and from time to time vary the form, language and subject to the
conditions of 5.15.1 of these Articles, the conditions upen which share warrants shall be issued,
and upon which a new share warrant or coupon shall be issued in the place of one defaced or
destroyed. No new share warrani shall be issued in place of one lost unless its destruction is proved
to the satisfaction of the directors.

Uncertificated seecurities

6.1 Notwithstanding the provisions of Article 33 or any other provision of these Articles, the provisions
of Section 91A of the Act, the rules, regulations and requirements of the JSE and the provisions of
any other relevant legislation shall apply in respect of uncertificated securities.

Loan capital

7.1 The Company shall be entitled to raise loan capital subject to the provisions of Section 166 of the
Act and in the case of the issue of commercial paper, subject to the provisions of the commercial
paper regulations of the Banks Acl, 94 of 1990, by the creation and issue of debentures, both
secured and unsecured, but the exercise of such powers shall always be subject to the provisions of
Articles 88 and 26 of these Articles.

Debentures

8.1 Subject always to the provisions of Article 7.1 and of the Act and in particular and without

derogating from the generality of the aforegoing, subject to the provisions of sections 124, 125 and
222 of the Act, debentures may be issued to such persons and on such terms and conditions and
with such rights and privileges atiached thereto as the directors may delermine; provided that
where debentures are to be issued which are convertible into ordinary or preference shares, no such



8.2

debentures may be issued unless, prior to the issue thereof, the holders of shares of the class into
which such debentures are convertible, have been invited to take up such debentures on the same
terms and conditions as they were otherwise to be issued, or unless the Company in general
meeting (having first obtained the approval of the JSE) has sanctioned such issue.

Subject to any relevant provisions, if any, of the memorandum and these Articles and without
prejudice to any special rights previously conferred on the holders of any existing debentures or
class of debentures, any debentures may be issued at par or al a discount or at a premium, and with
such preferred, deferred or other special rights, or such restrictions, whether in regard to interest
voting, redemption, surrender and drawings, or otherwise, as the directors may from to time
determine; provided that no special privileges as to atiending and voting at a general meeling and
the appeintment of directors or otherwise, shall be given, save with the sanction of the Company in
general meeting.

9. Transmission of shares

9.1

9.2

9.3

A legal representative (not being one of several joint holders) shall be the only person recognised
by the Company as a member or having any title to a share registered in the name of the member
whom he represents.

A legal representative shall be entitled to be registered as a member nominee officii in respect of
any share registered in the name of any member whom he represents or to transfer any such share
to himself or any other person, provided that:

9.2.1 the directors shall in any of such cases have the same right if any, to decline or suspend
registration as they would have had in the case of a transfer of the share by the member in
whose name it is registered;

9.2.2 should any legal representative fail to elect either to be registered as a member nominee
officii or to transfer any such share to himself or any other person within ninety days afler
the directors have given him written notice requiring him to do so, the directors shall be
entitled to withhold any dividends. bonuses, return of capital or other accruals in respect of
such share until compliance with the notice.

Save as otherwise provided by or in accordance with these Articles, a person becoming entitled to a
share in consequence of the legal incapacity of a member or by any lawful means otherwise than
by transfer in accordance with these Articles shall (upon supplying to the Company such evidence
as the directors may reasonably require to show his title to the share) be entitled to the same
dividends and other advantages to which he would be entitled if he were the registered holder of
the share except that he shall not be entitled in respect thereof to exercise any right conferred by
membership in relation o meetings of the Company until he shall have been registered as a member
in respect of the share.

10. Transfer of shares

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

Every instrument of transfer of a share shall be left at the transfer office of the Company at which
il is presented for registration accompanied by the certificate of the shares to be transferred and/or
such other evidence as the Company may require to prove the title of the transferor or his right to
transfer the shares. Any authority to sign transfer deeds granted by members for the purpose of
transferring shares which may be lodged, produced or exhibited with or to the Company at the
transfer office shall be deemed to remain in full force, and the Company may allow the same to be
Acted upon until writien notice of the revocation thereof is lodged at the transfer office. Even after
the lodging of such notice, the Company may give effect to any instrument signed under the
authority to sign and certified by any officer of the Company as being in order before the giving
and lodging of such notice.

All instruments of transfer which shall be registered shall be retained by the Company, but any
instrument of transfer which the Company may decline to register shall (except in the case of fraud)
on demand, be returned to the person depositing same.

If the Company refuses to register a iransfer, it shall send notice of such refusal to the transferor
and the transferee in terms of the provisions of section 139 of the Act.

The directors may in their discretion record in the Company’s register that any share is held in
trust or by a nominee and for whom that share is to be held.

Subject to the provisions of the Act, the instrument of transfer of a share shall be in the usual form
or in such other form as the direclors may approve and shall be signed by the transferor and the
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transferee, and the transferor shall be deemed Lo remain the holder of such share until the name of
the transferee is entered in the register in respect thereof. The directors may, however, in their
discretion, dispense with the signature of the transferee in such cases as they deem fit.

10.6 The directors shall not be at liberty to charge any fee, on the registration of any transfer and/or
any letters of administration, probate, certificate of death or marriage, power of attorney or other
notice or instrument affecting the title to or the right to transfer any share.

11. Alterations to capital

11.1 The Company may exercise the powers conferred by the Act to:

11.1.1

11.1.2

11.1.3

11.1.4

11.1.5

11.1.8

11.1.7

11.1.8

11.1.9

11.1.10
11.1.11

11.1.12

11.1.13

increase its share capital by new shares of such amount, or increase the number of its
shares having no par value, as it thinks expedient;

increase ils share capital constituted by shares of no par value by transferring reserves or
profits to the stated capital account, with or without a distribution of shares;

consolidate and divide all or any part of its share capital into shares of larger amount than
its existing shares or consolidate and reduce the number of the issued no par value shares;

increase the number of its issued no par value shares without an increase of its stated
capital;

sub-divide its existing shares (or part thereof) into shares of smaller amount than is fixed
by its memorandum;

convert all of its ordinary or preference share capital consisting of shares having a par
value into stated capital constituted by shares of no par value, subject to the provisions of
the Act;

convert its stated capital constituted either by ordinary or preference shares of no par
value into share capital consisting of shares having a par value, subject to the provisions
of the Acl:

cancel shares which, at the time of the passing of the resolution on that behalf, have not
been taken or agreed to be taken by any person and diminish the amounl of its authorised
share capitlal by the amount of the shares so cancelled or may cancel shares of no par value
which have nol so been taken or agreed Lo be taken:

convert any of its shares, whether issued or not. into shares of another class including
redeemable preference shares;

reduce its capital, any capital redemption reserve fund, or any share premium account;
convert any of its issued preference shares into preference shares which are. or at the
option of the Company are liable, to be redeemed;

convert all or any of its paid up shares into stock and reconvert such stock into paid up
shares;

vary. modify or amend any rights attaching to any shares whether issued or not, subject
in the case of any shares which have been issued, to any consent or sanction required from
the holders of that class of share.

Except as otherwise provided by the conditions of issue or by these Articles, any new share capital
shall be considered as part of the original ordinary share capital of the Company and shall be
subject to the same provisions with reference to transfer, transmission and otherwise as shares in
the original share capital.

12. Acquisition of shares and reduction of share capital
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12.1 Acquisition of shares

.Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein contained and subject to:

12.1.1

12.1.2
12.1.3

the Act, as amended generally and specifically by the Companies Amendment Act, No. 37
of 1999:

the Rules and Requirements of the JSE;
any other relevant authority,

the Company may. by special resolution, approve the acquisiticn by the Company of shares issued
by the Company. Such approval may be a general approval or a specific approval for a particular
transaction. If such approval is given in the form of a general authority to the directors, it shall



12.2

12.3

only be valid until the next annual general meeting of the Company, but it may be varied or revoked
by special resolution by any general meeting of the Company at any time prior to such annual
general meeting.

Reduction of share capital, share premium, stated capital and capital redemption reserve fund

12.2.1 Subject to the Act, and subject to such authorities, consents and requirements as may from
time to time be stipulated by law and the Listings Reguirements of the JSE, the Company
may from time to time reduce its issued share capital, share premium account, stated
capital and/or capilal redemption reserve fund by the passing of an ordinary resolution.

Unclaimed amounts

12.3.1 Al unclaimed amounts due as a resull of a reduction of capital may be invested or
otherwise made use of by the directors for the benefit of the Company until claimed,
provided that such amounts unclaimed for a period longer than 3 (three) years from the
date on which such amounts became payable may be forfeited for the benefit of the
Company. In the event of a resolution heing passed providing for the Company to be wound
up voluntiarily, such resolution may provide that any such amounts unclaimed for a period
longer than three (3) years from the date on which such amounts become payable may be
forfeited for the benefit of the Company.

13. Fractions of shares

13.1

If, on any capitalisation issue or consolidation of shares, members would become entitled to
fractions of shares, the members will forfeil the right to receive the fractions of such shares and
the Company shall pay an amount equivalent Lo the aggregation of such fractions to a charitable
organisation of ils choice.

14. Variation of rights

14.1

14.2

14.3

Subject to any right or restriction under which shares are held, the rights or restrictions attached
to all or any shares of any class may be amended, modified, varied or cancelled by a general
meeting, provided thal no such amendment, modification, variation or cancellation which directly
or indirectly adversely affects those special rights or restrictions shall be effected without:

14.1.1 the written consent or ratificalion of the holders of at least three-quarters of the shares in
question; or

14.1.2 the approval of or ratification by a resolution passed at a separale general meeting of the
holders of the shares in question in the same manner, mutatis mutandis, as a special
resolution, and the provisions of Lthese Articles relating to general meetings shall apply to
any such separate general meeting, except that a quorum at any such general meeting
shall be 3 (three) persons holding or representing by proxy at least 25% (twenty-five
percent) of the issued shares of the class in question, provided that if a quorum is not so
present, the meeling shall be adjourned to the fifth business day thereafter and the
members present or represented at the meeting to which the adjournment takes place shall
constitute a quorum.

Unless otherwise provided by the terms of issue or by these Articles any right or restriction
attached to all or any class of shares shall be deemed not to be directly or indirectly adversely
affected by:

14.2.1 the creation or issue of any other shares ranking pari passu with (but not in priority to)
any such shares already issued by the Company;

14.2.2 the cancellation in terms of the Acl of any shares of any class in the capital.

Nothing in this Article shall be construed as derogalting from any power of modification which the
Company would have if this Article were omitted.

15. Register of members

15.1

The directors shall cause to be kept and maintained a register at the place and in the manner
specified respectively in terms of sections 110 and 105 of the Act, and shall be entitled o cause to
be kept a branch register or registers in any foreign country or countries in accordance with the
provisions of sections 107 and 108 of the Act, and may, subject to the provisions of the Act, make
and vary such regulations as they may think fit with respect to the keeping of any such registers.
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15.2

The iransfer boocks and register may, upon notice being given by advertisement in the Gazetle in
the Republic of South Africa and a newspaper circulating in the district, in which the office of the
Company is situate, and in the case of any branch register in the manner required by the Act, be
closed during such time as the directors think fit, not exceeding in the whole 60 (sixty) days in each
calendar year.

16. Register of debenture holders

16.1

The Company shall keep a proper register of debenture holders at the office in accordance with the
provisions of section 128 of the Act and such register shall show the number of debentures which
are issued and outstanding and shall specify the names and addresses of the holders of such
debentures.

17. Register of pledges, bonds and notarial debentures

171

The Company shall further keep a proper register of pledges, cessions, notarial bonds, morigage
bonds and notarial debentures at the office in accordance with the provisions of section 127 of the
Act and shall cause to be entered therein all pledges, cessions, notarial bonds, morigage bonds and
notarial debentures affecting any property of the Company in accordance with the provisions of the
said section,

18. General meetings

i81

18.2

18.3

18.4

18.5

The Company shall hold its first annual general meeting within 18 (eighteen) months afier the date
of its incorporation and shall thereafter in each year hold an annual general meeting; provided that
not more than 15 (fifteen) months shall elapse between the date of 1 (one) annual general meeting
and that of the next and that an annual general meeting shall be held within 8 (six) months after
the expiration of the financial year of the Company. The directors may. whenever they think fit,
convene a general meeting which is not an annual general meeling and a general meeting shall be
convened on requisition of members as provided in section 181 of the Act.

If, at any time, there shall not be within the Republic of South Africa sufficient directors capable of
Acting to form a guorum, any directors or any 2 (iwo) members of the Company may convene a
general meeting in the same manner, as nearly as possible as that in which meetings may be
convened by the directors.

All general meetings (whether annual or otherwise) and all adjourned general meetings and all
separate meetings of the holders of any class of shares shall be held at such time and places as is
determined if the meetings are convened under sections 179(4), 181, 182 or 183 of the Act.

An annual general meeting and a meeting called for the passing of a special resolution, shall be
called by not less than 21 (twenty-one) clear days notice in writing and any other general meetings
shall be called by not less than 14 (fourteen) clear days notice in writing. The notice shall be
exclusive of the day for which it is given, and shall specify the place, the day and the hour of the
meeting, and shall be given in the manner hereinafter mentioned or in such other manner, if any,
as may be prescribed by the Company in general meeling, to such persons as are, under these
Articles, entitled to receive such notices from the Company: Provided that a meeting of the
Company shall, notwithstanding the fact that it is called by shorter notice than that specified in
this Article, be deemed to have been duly called if it is so agreed by a majority in number of the
members having a right to attend and vote at the meeting, being a majority holding not less than
95% (ninety-five percent) of the total voting rights of all the members.

A member shall be entitled to appoint a proxy to atlend, speak and volte (whether on a show of hands
or on a poll) in his stead at any general meeting in accordance with the Act.

19, Proceedings at general meetings
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19.1

19.2

The annual general meeting shall deal with and dispose of all matters prescribed by the Act, and
may deal with and dispose of such further matters as may be provided for in the Articles, and
subject to the provisions of the Act, any matters capable of being dealt with by any other general
meeting which is not an annual general meeting.

Unless a general meeting determines that there shall be a greater quorum, a quorum for a general
meeting shall be three members preseni in person or if the member is a body corporate, represented
in person.



18.3

i9.4

19.5

19.6

19.7

19.8

19.9

Should a quorum not be present within thirty minutes after the appointed time for a general
meeting, the general meeting, if convened by or on the requisition of members, shall be dissolved
and in any other case shall stand adjourned to the same day (or if that day be a public holiday, the
next business day) in the next week al the same time and place, and a quorum at the resumption
of the general meeting shall be the minimum number required by the Act. If at such adjourned
meeting a quorum is not present within 30 (thirty) minutes from the time appointed for the
meeting, the members present in person or if the member is a body corporate, represented in
person, shall be a quorum.

The chairman or, failing him, a deputy chairman of the directors (or if more than one of them is
present and willing to Act, the most senior of them) shall be the chairman of each general meeting
provided that if no chairman or deputy chairman is present and willing to Act, the members
present shall elect one of the directors, or if no direclor is present and willing to Act, a member to
be chairman of thal general meeting.

The chairman of a general meeting shall, if cbliged to do so in terms of the Aet, and may, in his
discretion in any other circumstances, adjourn that general meeting from time to time.

When a meeting has been adjourned as aforesaid, the Company shall, upon a date not later than
three days after the adjournment publish in a newspaper circulating in the province where the
registered office of the Company is situate, a notice stating:

19.6.1 the date, thme and place to which the meeting has been adjourned;
19.6.2 the matter before the meeting at the time when it was adjourned; and
19.6.3 the ground for the adjournment.

No business shall be transacted at the resumption of any adjourned general meeting other than the
business left unfinished at the general meeting from which the adjournment took place.

Subject to any restriction as to voting to which any member or share may be subject, a member who
is present in person, by authorised representative or by proxy shall have:

19.8.1 on a show of hands one vote irrespective of the number of shares he holds; and

19.8.2 on a poll one vote for each share of which that member is the registered holder.

At any general meeting a resolution put to the vote shall be decided by a show of hands unless a
poll is demanded (on or before the declaration of the result of a show of hands);

19.9.1 by the chairman of the meeting; or

19.9.2 in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

19.10 On a show of hands at a general meeting a declaration by the chairman as to the end result of the

voting on any particular resolution and an entry to that effect in the minutes shall be conclusive
proof of that resull, without proof of the number or proportions of voles recorded in favour of,
against and as abstaining from such resolution.

19.11 If a poll is demanded al a general meeting:

18.11.1 on the election of a chairman or on an adjournment, the poll shall be taken immediately
and in such manner as the general meeting determines, and a poll on any other question
shall be taken at such time and in such manner as the chairman of the general meeting
directs;

19.11.2 the result of the poll shall be deemed to be the resolution of the general meeting at which
the poll was demanded;

19.11.83 the demand shall not preclude the general meeting from considering any question other
than that on which the poll has been demanded unless the general meeting decides
otherwise;

19.11.4 the demand may be withdrawn at any time.

19.12 In the case of equality of votes, whether on a show of hands or on a pcll, the chairman of the

meeting at which the show of hands takes place, or at which the poll is demanded, shall not be
entitled to a second or casting vote.

19.13 No objection shall be taken to the admission or rejection of any vote except at the general meeting

at which the vote in dispute is cast, or, if it is adjourned, at the resumption thereof. The chairman
of that general meeting or resumed general meeting shall determine any issue raised by such
objection and his determination shall be final and binding.
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19.14 A resolution in writing signed by all members entitled to receive notice of and to attend and vote

at a general meeting shall be as valid and effective as if it had been passed at a general meeting
properly called and held. Any such resolution may consist of several documents, each of which
may be signed by one or more members and shall be deemed to have been passed on the date on
which it was signed by the last member who signed it, unless a statement to the contrary is made
in that resclution.

20. Votes of members

20.1

20.2

20.3

204

20.5

On a poll taken at a general meetling, a person entitled to more than 1 {one) vote need not, if he
votes, use all his voles, or cast all the votes he uses in the same way.

The persons entitled to attend and vote al general meetings shall be:

20.2.1 the members, subject however to the provisions of these Articles as regards joint helders of
shares;

20.2.2 bearers of share warrants to the extent and in the manner and subject to the provisions
of 5.45.4 of these Articles;

20.2.3 a person entitled under Article 99 of these Articles to have his name entered in the register;

20.2.4 representatives of the persons referred to in 20.2.120.2.1 and 20.2.320.2.3 above duly
appointed in the manner prescribed in Article 20.420.4 of these Artlicles;

20.2.5 proxies of ilhe persons referred to in 20.2.120.2.1, 20.2.220.2.2, 20.2.320.2.3
and 20.2.420.2.4 above duly appointed in the manner prescribed in Article 20.520.5 of
these Articles except that such proxy shall not be entitled to vote on show of hands.

Every such person referred to in Article 20.220.2 shall also be entitled to speak at such meetings
and lo demand a poll.

Any Company or other bedy corporate helding shares conferring the right to vote may, by
resolution of its directors or other governing body, authorise such person as it thinks fit to Act as
its representative at any general meeting of the Company or at any meeting of holders of any class
of shares of the Company, as provided by Secticn 188 of the Act and such representative shall be
entitled to exercise the same powers on behalf of the Company or other body corporate which he
represents as that Company or bedy corporate could exercise if it were an individual member of that
Company. The direclors may, but shall not be obliged to, require proof to their satisfaction of the
appointment or authority of such representative to Act.

Any person referred Lo in Articles 20.2.120.2.1, 20.2.220.2.2 and 20.2.320.2.3 of these Articles and
not being a Company or body corporale as referred to in the preceding Article 20.420.4, may
appoint 1 {(one} person, whether a member or not, to Act as his proxy at any meeting of the
Company or any adjournment thereof. The appointment of a proxy shall be made by means of a
proxy form or by a power of atlorney.

21, Proxies and other authorities
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21.1

21.2

21.3

The instrument appeinting a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointer or of his
agent duly authorised in writing. A proxy need not be a member of the Company. The holder of a
general or special power of attorney, whether he is himself a member or not, given by a shareholder
shall be entitled to atlend meetings and to vote, if duly authorised under that power to attend and
take part in the meetings.

The instrument appointing a proxy and the power of attorney or other authority, if any, under
which it is sighed or a notarially certified copy of such power or authority shall be deposited at the
office not less than 48 (forty-eight) hours (or such lesser period as the directors may unanimously
determine in relation to any particular meeting) before the time for holding the meeling (including
an adjourned meeting) at which the person named in the instrument proposes o vote, or in the case
of a poll, not less than 48 (forty-eight) hours (or such lesser period determined as aforesaid in
relation to the particular poll) before the time appointed for the taking of the poll, and in default of
complying herewith the instrument of proxy shall not be treated as valid. No instrument
appointing a proxy shall be valid after the expiration of 6 (six) months from the date when it was
signed except at an adjourned meeting in cases where the meeting was originally held within 6 (six)
months from the said date, unless so specifically stated in the proxy itself.

Every instrument or proxy, whether for a specified meeting or otherwise. shall be in the form or to
the effect following (or as near therelo as circumstances permit) or in such other form as the
directors shall, subject to the provisions of section 189 of the Act, from time to time approve:



(Egstra Holdings Limited)

(hereinafter referred to as “the Company”)

) OF e e
being a member of the Company hereby appoint of or failing him

................................................................................... of et o fadling him
.................................................................................. OF o

as my proxy to vote for me and cn my behalf at the annual general meeting or general meeting (as the case
may be) of the Company tobe held on day of and at any adjournment thereof as follows:

In favour of Against Abstain

Resolution to

Resolution to

Resolution to

(Indicale instruction to proxy by way of a cross in space provided above.)

Unless otherwise instructed, my proxy may vote as he thinks fit.

SIGNED this ..o BaY OF e e

SIGNATURE

(Note: A member entitled to attend and vote is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend, speak and on a poll vote
in his siead, and such proxy need not also be a member of the Company.)

21.4 A vole given by proxy in accordance with the terms of the instrument appointing him shall be valid,
notwithstanding the previous death of the principal, or revocation of the authority, or transfer of
the share in respect of which the vote is given, unless an intimation in writing of the death,
revocation or transfer shall have been received at the office before the meeting.

22. Directors

22.1 Subject to the provisions of the Act unless otherwise determined by a general meeting, the number
of directors shall not be less than 4 (four).

22.2 A general meeting of the directors shall have the power, from time to time, to appoint anyone as a
director, either to fill a vacancy in the directors or as an additional directior, and the appointment
of any director so appointed shall cease at the conclusion of the next annual general meeting unless
it is confirmed at that annual general meeting.

22.3 The continuing directors may Act notwithstanding any vacancy in their number, but if and for so
long as their number is reduced below the minimum number of directors required to Act as such
for the time being, the continuing directors may Act only to:

22.8.1 increase the number of directors to the required minimum; or
22.3.2 summon a general meeting for that purpose, provided that if there is no director able or
willing to Act then any member may convene a general meeting for that purpose.

22.4 Neither a director nor an alternate director shall be obliged to hold any qualification shares.

22.5 The remuneration of the directors of the Company shall, from time to time, be determined by the
remuneration committee of the Company, established by the board of directors of the Company in
accordance with corporate governance principles.
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22.6

The directors shall be paid travelling and other expenses properly and necessarily incurred by them
in and about the business of the Company, and in attending meetings of the directors or of
committees. Should any directorate required to perform extra services or to go to reside abroad or
otherwise shall be specifically occupied about the companies business, then they shall be entitled to
receive such remuneralion as is determined by a disinterestied quorum of directors which may
either in addition to or in substitution for any other remuneration.

23. Alternate directors

23.1

23.2

23.3

23.4

Each director may by written notice to the Company:

23.1.1 nominate any one person in the alternative (including any of his co-directors) to be his
aliernate subject to the approval of the other direclors of thal alternate, which approval
shall not be unreascnably withheld;

23.1.2 at any time terminate such appointment.

An alternate director shall (except as regards the power to appeint an alternate and remuneration)
in all respects be subject 1o the terms and conditions existing with reference to the other directors
of the Company and each alternate director shall:

23.2.1 beentitled to receive notice of all meetings of the directors or any committee of the directors
of which his appointer is a member; and

23.2.2 be entitled to attend or Act or vote at any such meeting only if the director to whom he is
an alternate is not present, provided that:

« he may attend a meeting of directors at which the director to whom he is an alternative
is present if the other directors agree thereto;

+ any person altending any meeting of directors as a director in his own right and/or as
an alternate for 1 (one) or more directors shall have one vote in respect of each director
whom he represents, including himself if he is a director;

23.2.3 be entitled to sign a resolution passed otherwise than at a meeting of directors in terms of
these Articles only if the director to whom he is an alternate is then absent from the town
in which the office is situale, or is incapacitaled;

23.2.4 subject to the aforegoing, generally exercise all the rights and discharge all the functions,
powers and duties of the director to whom he is an alternate in the absence or incapacity
of that director;

23.2.6 in all respects be subject to the terms and conditions existing with reference to the
appoeintment, rights and duties and the holding of office of the director to whom he is an
alternate, but shall not have any claim of any nature whatsoever against the Company for
any remuneralion of any nature whaisoever.

The appointment of an alternate director shall terminate:

23.3.1 when the director to whom he is an alternate director:

* ceases tc be a director; or
¢ terminates his appointment;

23.3.2 if the directors reasonably withdraw their approval to his appointment.

In the event of the disqualification or resignation of any alternate direclor during the absence or

inability to Act of the director whom he represents, the vacancy so arising shall be filled by the

chairman of the directors, who shall appoint a person to fill such vacancy subject to the approval
of the board of directors.

24. Powers and duties of the directors
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24.1

Subject to the limitation imposed by these Articles, the management of the business and the control
of the Company shall be vested in the directors who, in addition to and without limitation of the
powers expressly conferred upoen them by the Act or these Articles, may exercise or delegate to any
one or more persons the doing of all such Acts (including the right to subdelegate) as may be
exercised or done by the Company and are not in terms of the Act or by these Articles expressly
directed or required to be exercised or done by a general meeting, subject, nevertheless, to that
management and control:

24.1.1 not being inconsistenti with; and
24.1.2 being in compliance with

any resolution passed by a general meeting. No such resolution passed by a general meeting shall
invalidate any prior Act of the directors or any delegaiee.



24.2

24.3

24.4

A director may be employed by or hold any office of profit under the Company or under any
subsidiary or holding Company in conjunction with the office of director, other than that of auditor
of the Company or of any subsidiary Company, and upon such terms as to appointment,
remuneration and otherwise as a disinterested quorum of the directors may determine, and any
remuneration so paid may be in addition to the remuneration payable in terms of Arlicle

It is hereby declared pursuant to the provisions of section 228 of the Act that although the directors
shall have power to enter into a provisional contract for the sale or alienation of the whole or
substantially the whole of the undertaking of the Company. or the whole or the greater part of the
assets of the Company, such contracts shall only become binding on the Company in the event of
the specific transaction proposed by the directors being authorised or ratified in terms of a
resolution passed by a majority of the votes cast at a general meeling convened for thal purpose.
All the provisions of these Articles as to general meelings shall apply mutatis mutandis to meetings
convened under this Article for such purpose.

The directors may give pensions, gratuities and allowances to and make payments for or towards
the insurance of any persons who are employees or ex-employees including direclors or ex-directors
of the Company and the wives, widows, families and dependents of such persons as may establish
and maintain any non-contributory pension, provident and benefit funds for the benefit of any such
persons and may make contributions to any such funds and pay premiums for the purchase of any
such gratuity, pension or allowance or life assurance or other benefit.

25. Managing director

25.1

25.2

The directors may from time to time appoint one or more of their body to the office of managing
director/chief executive officer of the Company for such term, not exceeding five years al any one
time, and subject to the provisions of section 225 of the Act at such remuneration (whether by way
of salary or commission or participation in profits or partly in one way and parily in another) as a
disinterested quorum of directors may think fit and may revoke such appointment, subject to the
terms of any agreement entered into in any particular case. A director so appointed shall not, while
holding such office during the period of any such agreement, be subject to retirement by rotation,
or be taken into account in determining the rotalion of retirement of directors; but his appointment
shall terminate if he ceases for any reason to be a director.

A disinterested quorum of directors may from time to time entrust to and confer upon a managing
director or manager, for the time being, such of the powers and authorities vested in them as they
may think fit, and may confer such powers and authorities for such time and to be exercised for
such objects and purposes and upon such terms and conditions and with such restrictions, as they
deem expedient, and they may confer such powers and authorities either collaterally or to the
exclusion of, or in substitution for, all or any of the powers and authorities of the directors and may
from time to time revoke or vary all or any of such powers and authorities.

26. Borrowing powers

26.1

26.2

The directors may exercise all the powers of the Company to borrow money and to mortgage or
encumber its undertaking, property or any part thereof and to issue debentures or debenture stock
(whether secured or unsecured) and cother securities (with such special privileges, if any, as to
allotment of shares or stock, attending and voting al general meetings, appcintment of directors or
otherwise as may be sanctioned by a general meetling), whether cutright or as security for any debt,
liability or obligation of the Company or of any third party but subject to any statutory
requirements and the rules and regulations of the JSE as amended from time to time.

No special privileges as to:
26.2.1 allotment of the shares in the Company: or
26.2.2 the attending and voting at general meetings; or

26.2.3 the appointment of directors

or otherwise, shall be given to the holders of loan stock or debentures of the Company save with the
sanction of the Company in general meeting.
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27. Disclosure of directors interests

27.1

27.2

27.3

No director or intending director shall be disqualified by his office from contracting with the
Company either as vendor, purchaser, lender, underwriter, guarantor for commission or profit on
any shares or securities or liability of the Company or of any Company in which the Company may
be interested or in any other manner whatsoever, nor shall any such contract or arrangement
entered into by or on behalf of the Company in which any director shall in any way be interested,
nor any contract or agreement entered into with any Company or partnership of or in which any
directors shall be a member, director or partner or otherwise interested, be or be liable to be
invalidated or void by any such reason or by reason of the board of directors of the Company not
constituting an independent executive, nor shall any director so contracting or being so interested
or acquiring any benefit under any contract or arrangement made or entered intc by or on behalf
of any person, Company or partnership in relation to the affairs of the Company be liable Lo account
to the Company for any profits or benefits realised by or under such contract or arrangement by
reason of such director holding that office or by reason of the fiduciary relationship thereby
established and any director or directors so interested or acquiring any such benefits shall be
entitled to vote at the meeting of the board of directors or otherwise in relation to such contract as
freely as if he or they were not interested and he shall be reckoned for the purpose of constituting
a quorum of directors. Nevertheless, any director or directors so interested or acquiring any benefit
shall disclose the fact of his possessing any interest, whether as director or member or otherwise,
whether or not it appears on the face of the contract or arrangement, in accordance with the
provisions of sections 234 and 240 (both inclusive) of the Act. SBubject to the provision of section
234(3) of the Act, a general notice in writing given to the directors by a director to the effect that
he is a member of a specified Company or firm and is to be regarded as interested in any contract
which may, after the date of the notice, be made with that Company or firm, shall be deemed to be
a sufficient disclosure in relation to any contract or proposed contract so made or to be made.

Subject to compliance with the provisions of the Act, a director shall not be liable (in the absence of
any agreement to the contrary) to account to the Company for any profil or other benefit arising
out of any contract entered into by the Company in which he is directly or indirectly interested.

A director shall, if he has, in accordance with the Act, disclosed his inlerest (if it is material) in the
relevant contract or arrangement:

27.3.1 be counted in a quorum for the purpose of a meeting of directors at which he is present to
consider any matter; and

27.3.2 be entitled to vote in regard to any matter,
relating to any existing or proposed conlract or arrangement in which he is interested, other than

a contract or arrangement regulating his holding of any office or place of profit under the
Company or a subsidiary of the Company.

28. Disqualification of directors

102

28.1

A director shall cease to hold office as such if he:

28.1.1 is prohibited from being or is removed as or is disqualified from Acting as a director of the
Company in terms of the Act;

28.1.2 gives notice to the Company of his resignation as a director with effect from the date of, or
such later date as is provided for in, such notice; :

28.1.3 absents himself from meetings of directors for 8 (six) consecutive months without the leave
of the other direciors, and they resolve that his office shall be vacated, provided that this
provision shall not apply to a director who is represented by an alternate who does not so
absent himself;

28.1.4 is or becomes of unsound ming;

28.1.5 is removed before the expiration of his period of office by a resclution of all his co-directors
with effect from the date of, or such later date as is provided for in such resolution;

28.1.6 becomes retired in terms of the provisions contained in Article 3131;
28.1.7 files a petition for the surrender of his estate, or an application for an administration order,
or if his estate is sequestrated, or if he commits an Act of insolvency as defined in the

insolvency law for the time being in force or if he makes any arrangements or composition
with his creditors generally.



29. Proceedings of directors

29.1

29.2

29.3

29.4

29.5

29.6

29.7

29.8

29.9

29.10

The directors may:

29.1.1 meet, adjourn, and otherwise regulate their meetings as they think fit and any director
shall be entitled to convene or direct Lthe secretary to convene a meeting of the directors;

28.1.2 determine whal notice shall be given of their meeting and the means of giving that notice,
provided that any such prior determination may be varied, depending on the
circumstances and reasons for the directors’ meeting in question.

Unless otherwise determined by the Company in general meeting, or by a meeting of the directors
(at which all the directors are present), the quorum necessary for the transaction of the business
of the directors shall be a majority of directors.

The continuing directors may Act notwithstanding any casual vacancy in their body, so long as
there remain 3 (three) directors duly qualified to Act, but if the number falls below 3 {three), the
remaining director or directors shall fill up such casual vacancy and except for the purpose of
filling such vacancy, the director or directors shall not Act so long as the number is below.

If there is/are no director or directors able and willing to Act at a meeting of the directors, then
any 2 (two) members may summon a general meeting for the purpose of appointing director. A
director who is not within the Republic of South Africa shall not be entitled to notice of any such
meeting, but notice shall be given to all duly appointed alternate directors who may at the time be
within the Republic of South Africa.

A director unable Lo attend a director’s meeting may authorise any other director to vote for him
at that meeting, and in that event the director so authorised shall have a vote for each director by
whom he is so authorised in addition to his own vote. If both the directors so authorised and an
alternate of the director who granted the authority are present at the meeting, the alternate shall
not be entitled to vote on behalf of the absent director. Authority in terms of this Article must be
in writing and must be handed to the person presiding at the meeting at which it is to be used.

Questions arising al any meeting shall be decided by a majority of voles and in the case of an
equality of votes or a deadlock at any meeting of directors, the chairman shall not have a second
or casting vote. ’

The directors may elect a chairman and a depuly chairman of the direclors and determine the
period not exceeding 1 (one) year for which each is to hold office. If more than one deputy
chairman is elected, the directors shall, upon their election, determine the order of their seniority.
At any meeting of directors, the chairman of the directors, or if he is not present or willing Lo Act
as such, the most senior deputy chairman present and willing to Act as such, shall Act as
chairman. If no chairman or deputy chairman has been elected, or is present within 15 (fifteen)
minutes after the time appointed for holding the meeling, the directors present at any directors’
meeting shall choose one of their number to be chairman of the meeting.

A meeting of the directors at which a quorum is present shall be competent to exercise all or any
of the authorities, powers and discretions by or under these Articles or the regulations of the
Company for the time being vested in or exercisable by the directors generally.

Subject to the provisions of the Act, a resolution in writing, including through the medium of
telefax, signed by all the directors (or their alternates, if applicable) for the time being who are
present at the time when the resolution in question is signed by the first of such directors in the
Republic of South Africa and whose number is a majority of the directors for the time being in
office and not less than that of a quorum for a meeting of directors, and inserted in the minute
book, shall be as valid and effective as if it has been passed at a meeting of directors duly called
and constituted. Any such resolution may consist of several deccuments, each of which may be
signed by one or more directors or their alternates, if applicable, including faxed copies. The
resolutions shall be deemed to have been passed on the date on which it was signed by the last
director who signed it unless a statement Lo the contrary is made in that resolution.

Subject to the provisions of the Act, proceedings may be conducted by utilising conference
telephone facilities and/or conference video facilities, provided that the quorum is met. A
resoluticn agreed to during the course of such proceedings shall be as valid and effectual as if it
had been passed at a meeting of the directors duly called and constituted. The secretary of the
Company shall, as soon as is reasonably possible after such meeting by telephone or video
conference, as the case may be, has been held, be notified thereof by the relevant parties Lo the
meeting, and the secretary shall prepare a written minute thereof.
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30. Executive directors

30.1 The directors may from time to time appeint one or more of the directors as executive directors of
the Company, on such terms and conditions, as to remuneration and otherwise as may be
determined from time to time by a disinterested quorum of directors, provided that the appointment
of any executive director shall, without prejudice to any claim of any nature whatever which any
such director may have against the company, cease if for any reason he ceases to be a director.

31. Rotation of directors

31.1 The directors shall retire from office in the following manner:

31.1.1

31.1.2

31.1.3

31.1.4

31.1.5

31.1.6

31.1.7

At each annual general meeting of the Company one-third of the directors (excluding any
director(s) referred to in 25 and 30.1) or, if their number is not three or a multiple thereof,
then the number nearest to but not less than one-third of the direciors shall retire from
office;

the directors to retire in terms of 31.1.131.1.1 shall be those who have been longest in office
since their last election provided that if more than one of them were elected directors on the
same day, those to retire shall be determined by lot unless those directors agree otherwise

between themselves; ‘

a retiring director shall be eligible for re-election, and, if re-elected, shall be deemed not to
have vacated his office;

the annual general meeting at which a director retires may elect another person to fill the
vacaled office, and if it is not so filled the retiring director shall, if he has offered himself
for re-election, be deemed to have been re-elected unless the annual general meeting
expressly resolves not Lo fill such vacated office or not to re-elect such retiring director;

no person other than a retiring director shall be eligible for re-election as a director at any
annual general meeting unless the directors recommend otherwise, or unless not less than
7 (seven) clear days before the date appointed for the annual general meeting the retiring
direcltor or a member who is entitled to attend and vote at such annual general meeting
shall have lodged written notice signifying his candidature for the office or the intention
of such member to propose him as a director;

the power to elect directors at general meetings other than annual general meetings shall
be exercisable only when special notice has been given of the intended resolution exercising
such power;

the Company may by ordinary resolution in general meeting from time to time increase or
reduce the number of directors and may also determine in what manner or location such
increased or reduced number is to go out of office. Whenever such increase is made, the
members of the said meeting, or failing them, the directors, may fill the new seats so
crealted.

32. Validity of acts of directors and committees
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32.1 As regards all persons dealing in good faith with the Company, all acts done by any meeting of the
directors or of a committee of directors, or by any person acting as a director in terms of these
Articles, shall notwithsianding that it be afterwards discovered that there was some defect in the
appointment or continuance in office of such directors or persons acting as aforesaid, or that they
or any of them were disqualified or had ceased to hold office or were not entitled to vote, be as valid
as if every such person had been duly appointed or was qualified or had continued to be a director
or was entitled Lo vote, as the case may be.



Annexure 9

Information on directors and past directorships

Directors of Egstra
Executive directors

Walter Hill
Chief Executive Officer

Years with Imperial 10 years
Age 48
HN Dip (Ind Eng), AEP

12 Corobrik Road, Meadowdale

Qualifications
Business address

Nalionality South African

Walter joined the group in 1998 as Managing Director of Imperial Fleet Services and was appointed to the
executive committee of Imperial in November 2002 and the board of Imperial in August 2006. Walter was
subsequenlly appointed as CEO of the division. Walter began his career as a diesel mechanic when he joined
Eskom as a pupil engineer. After graduating, he staried a diverse management career which included
positions such as: Procurement Manager, District Manager, Project Manager, Market Development Manager
responsible for Regional electrification (a drive to support the Eskom "Electrification for All" Vision),
Engineering Services Manager responsible for general management of the regicnal Distributor Engineering
Services Group consisting of the Procurement, Materials Management, Fleet Management, Properties and
Capital Project Management Divisions, Commercial Portfolio Manager responsible for leading the successful
initiatives to reduce Working Capital for the ESKOM Group.

In addition to his directorship of the Company, Walter holds or has held the following directorships or has
been a pariner in the following partnerships within the five years prior to the last praciicable date:

Registration Resignation

Name of company number Appointment Designation date Nature of business

Fleel Support Services 1988/002580/07 1998 Director Leasing administration

{Proprietary) Limited

Imperial Holdings Limited 1946/021048/06 2006 Director Investment holding company listed
on the JSE

Imperial NH Equipment 1959/001593/07 2006 Director Distributorship for New Holland

(Proprietary) Limited construction equipment

Imperial Investment Holdings  1988/011872/07 2007 Director Investment holding company

(Proprietary) Limited

Imperial Capital Limited 2003/008195/06 2007 Director Asset management

Mutual Construction 1988/002721/07 2008 Director Mining and Plant Hire

Company (Transvaal)

(Proprietary) Limited

Imperial Group 1983/009088/07 2003 Director Mobility trading company with

(Proprietary} Limited interests in motor vehicle
dealerships, car rental, ete.

Imperial Fleet Services 1984/007045/07 2003 Director Leasing and fleet management

(Proprietary) Limited trading company

RTG Fleet Services 1999/028163/07 1999 Director Leasing and fleet management

(Proprietary) Limited company

Pemberley Fleet Service 2000/026001/07 2001 Diirector 2008 Leasing and fleet management

(Proprietary) Limited company

Amasondo Fleet Services 2000/015762/07 2000 Director 2007 Leasing and fleet management

{Proprietary) Limited company

Imperial Fleet Services 99/779 1999 Director lLeasing and fleet management

Lesotho (Proprietary) Limited company

Imperial Fleet Services 2000/21 2000 Director Leasing and fleet management

FPVPS (Proprietary) Limited company

Omatemba Fleet Services 2003/331 2003 Director Leasing and fleet management

(Proprietary) Limited company

Imperial Fleet Services 2001/13560 2001 Director Leasing and fleet tTnanagement

Botswana (Proprietary) Limited

company
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Registration Resignation

Name of company number Appointment Designation date Nature of business

Imperial Fleet Services AA 2000/1526 2001 Director Leasing and fleet management

Botswana (Proprietary) Limited company

Imperial Specialised Freight RC476968 2006 Director Leasing and fleet management

Nigeria Ltd company

Imperial Fleet East Africa Ltd  C.126766 2006 Director Leasing and fleet management
company

Imperial Fleet Services 58253 2007 Director Leasing and fleet management

Tanzania Ltd company

Imperial FlexiFleet 2003/012069/07 2003 Director Leasing and fleet management

{Proprietary) Limited company

Salicon Industrial Equipment  1970/020074/07 2004 Director Forklift leasing and distributorship

(Proprietary) Limited

Impact Handling plc 2550150 2005 Director Forklift leasing and distributorship

Safe Drive Holdings 2004/018454/07 2006 Director 2007 Roadworthy and vehicle testing

(Proprietary) Limited company

Terex Africa (Proprielary} 1974/002797/07 2007 Director Distributorship for Terex mining

Limited and construction equipment

Explotech Marketing Services 1975/003533/07 2007 Director Blasting services to cpencast mining

{Proprietary) Limited

Erich Clarke

Chiefl Financial Officer

Years with Imperial 12 years

Age 43

B Com, CA(SA), CIA
12 Corobrik Road, Meadowdale
South African

Qualifications
Business address
Nationality

Erich joined Imperial in 1996 as Financial Director of Cargo Motors, a {ranchise dealership group. In 2000,
he moved to Imperials corporate office as Group financial controller responsible for group financial
reporting, corporate office accounting and group treasury. In 2004, he was appointed Group Audit and Risk
Execulive to establish the internal audit and risk management functions. In 2006 with the acquisition of the
MCC Group he was appointed as Director: Group Services responsible for finance, procurement, human
resources and inlegration. At the same time he was appointed to the Leasing and Capital Equipment
Division's Board and Executive committee. Before Imperial, Erich held financial positions in the Barloworld
group. Erich was appointed CFO in 2007.

In addition to his directorship of the Company, Erich helds or has held the following directorships or has
been a partner in the following partnerships within the five years prior to the last practicable date:

Registration Resignation
Name of company number Appointment Designation date Nature of business
Cargo Motors Management 1997/013320/07 1997 Director Management company
Services (Proprietary) Limited
Kagiso Motors Auckland 1975/004395/07 1999 Director Motor dealership
Park (Proprietary) Limited
Mooibult Beleggings 1960/001763/07 2007 Director Property holding company
(Proprietary) Limited
MCC Contracts {Proprietary) 1983/008084/07 2005 Director Opencast Mining contractor
Limited
Mutual Construction 1988/002721/07 2005 Director Plant hire
Company (Tvl) (Proprietary)
Limited
Civil Finance (Proprietary) 1998/022854/07 2006 Director Investment holdings
Limited
Explotech Marketing Services  1975/003533/07 2007 Director Blasting services to opencast
(Proprietary} Limited mining
Five Six Seven Glen Austin 1980/010687/07 2006 Director Property holding company
(Proprietary) Limited
Imperial lInvestment Holdings 1998/011672/07 2007 Director Investment holding company
(Proprietary) Limited
Imperial Fleet Services 1984/007045/07 2007 Director Leasing and fleet management
(Proprietary) Limited irading company
Terex Africa (Proprietary) 1974/002797/07 2007 Dircctor Distributorship for Terex mining

Limited

and construction equipment
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Executive management

Niall Lynch
Executive director: Sirategy and Business Development

Years with Imperial 2 years

Age 32

Qualifications B Com, MBS

Business address 12 Corobrik Road, Meadowdale
Nationality South African

Niall joined Imperial in 2006 as the Director of the Fleet Trading division. This business disposes of all
passenger and light commercial vehicles at the end of leasing contracts and consists of 12 retail outlets, two
wholesale departments and an auction facility. At the same time he was appointed to the Leasing and Capital
Equipment Division’s Board and Executive commitiee.

Prior to joining the Leasing and Capital Equipment division of Imperial, Niall was the General Manager of
Renault Retail Operations in South Africa, a member of the Executive Committee and was responsible for the
management of 15 dealerships nationwide, accounting for 60% of overall retail sales. Niall has prior
international experience as a Merger and Acquisitions Analyst at ING Barings, London, UK, and as a
Treasury Management Associate at AIB Capital Markets, Dublin, Ireland.

Niall was appointed to his current position in 2007.

Gary Neubert
Managing Director: Imperial Industrial Equipment

Years with Imperial 7 years

Ape 42

Qualifications N.Dip Eng (Mech), MBA
Business address 11 Gross Street, Elandsfontein
Nationality South African

Gary began his career at Volkswagen S A. in Uitenhage where he held numerous positions in the
Engineering and Marketing Divisions. After eight years with VWSA he joined Barloworld VW/Audi in Cape
Town where he was responsible for the Audi Sales and Service Departments before becoming the Branch
Assistant General Manager.

In December 2000, he joined Saficon Industrial Equipment as the General Manager — Westlern Cape with the
National responsibility for after sales. In 2003 he was appointed to the SIE Board and in July 2006 he was
appointed as CEO. At the same time he was appointed to the Leasing and Capital Equipment Division’s Board
and Executive committee.

Jaequi Carr

Chief Executive Officer: Passenger and Commercial Vehicles — South Africa

Years with Imperial 19 years

Age 39

Qualifications Matric

Business address 12 Corobrik Road, Meadowdale
Nationality South African

Jacqui joined the Imperial Group 19 years ago. She was appointed to the Board of Imperial Fleet Services in
1996 and currently holds the position of CEQ - Passenger and Commercial Vehicle Leasing SA. In this
position she is accountable for the strategic and operational performance of the South African leasing and
fleet management operations of the division consisting of Imperial Fleet Services, Imperial FlexiFleet,
Amasondo Fleet Services and Collision Management Services.
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Shumani Tshifularo
Managing Director: Passenger and Commercial Vehicles — Rest of Africa

Years with Imperial 2 years

Age 34

Quualifications B Compt (Hons), CA{SA)
Business address 9 Brewery Road, Isando
Nationality South African

Shumani is currently the Managing Director of Passenger and Commercial Vehicle Leasing (Rest of Africa).
Prior to joining Imperial Leasing and Capital Equipment Division as the Divisional Chief Financial Officer
in Apri! 2006, Shumani was Chief Financial Officer of South African Express Airways, with his key
responsibility being managing the finance for the company and relationship management with external
financiers, with particular focus on oplimising structured financing of aircrafts. Earlier in his career,
Shumani was employed a Senior Treasury Financial Manager at South African Airways where he was
responsible for the reconciliation, preparation and monitoring of all corporate finance budget and
accounting and treasury transactions, in compliance with relevant legislation. Shumani held his first
graduate position as Audit Manager of Nedcor Group Internal Audit after he has completed his articles at
Ernst & Young.

Henk Maree

Chief Operating Officer: Mining and Construction Equipment Distribution
Years with Imperial 2 years

Ape 60

Qualifications Matric

Business address 9 Brewery Road, Isando
Nationality South African

Upon leaving school Henk joined Shell South Africa as an administrative assistant and over 10 years
progressed to Manager; Network Development, where he was responsible for the identification and
development of future new service stations, and the redevelopment of existing high potential sites. He then
joined Toyota South Africa where he was Vice President; Vehicle Sales and Dealer Network, responsible for
the maximisation of passenger and light commercial vehicles, as well as medium and heavy-duty truck sales.
After an association of 23 years with Toyota Henk then joined Imperial as CEQO for Commercial Vehicle
Holdings in 20086, responsible for the planning, importing, distribution, marketing, sales and after sales of
a number of American and European heavy duty truck ranges. In September 2007 he transferred to the
Leasing and Capital Equipment Division as Chief Operating Officer of Mining and Construction Equipment
Distribution.

Michael Barnes
Chief Executive Officer: MCC Group of Companies

Years with Imperial 2 years since acquisition
Age 57

Qualificatlions Matric

Business address 60 Rodio Place, Midrand
Nationality South African

Mike started MCC Plant Hire in 1972 by borrowing R28 000 from his father to buy a grader and front-end
loader. MCC Plani Hire has now grown to be Lthe biggest privately owned fleet of graders in the world. In
1986 Mike started a mining contracting company, now the biggest open cast mining contractor in South
Africa. Subsequently, MCC bought out the company that supplied the blasting and explosives to MCC.
Explotech (MCC’s explosive company) is the only privately owned company supplying blasting and
explosives. In order to diversify income currencies for the group, MCC tendered for an open cast mining
contract in Zimbabwe, contracting to Impala Platinum, and the open cast operations were later expanded in
other African countries.

Omne of the highlights in Mike’s career was being nominated as one of the top three “Entrepreneur of the Year
in South Africa” in 2003.
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Non-Executive directors

Dr Daniel Christiaan Cronje

Chairperson

Date of joining Egstra 17 March 2008

Age 61

Qualifications Dr Cronje obtained his BCom, BCom (Hons) and MCom
degrees also at Potchefstroom University. He obtained
his DCom in 1975

Business address 12 Corobrik Road, Meadowdale

Naticonality South African

Danie began his career in 1969 in the Sanlam investment department and then moved to Trust Merchant
Bank investment department. He lectured Money and Banking al Potchefstroom University for several years.
Between 1975 and 2007, Dr Cronje held various positions at Volkskas Merchant Bank, the Volkskas Group,
including Group Chief Executive of the Volkskas Group. He joined the ABSA group in 1975 and held various
executive positions including Group Chief Executive for 4 years pricr to his tenure as chairman. He was
chairman of ABSA Group Limited for 10 years until his retirement. Dr Danie Cronje was appointed
independent, non-executive chairman of Sappi Limited during 2008 and is also a director of Barclays plc,
Barclays Bank plc and TSB Sugar.

In addition to his directorship of the Company, Danie holds or has held the following directorships or has
been a partner in the following partnerships within the five years prior to the last practicable date:

Registration Resignation
Name of company number Appointment Designation date Nature of business
ABSA Group 1986/003934/06 1987 Director, CEQ 2007 Banking
and Chairman
Volkskas Group 1986/003934/06 1988 Director and 1991 Banking
CEC
Barclays plc 1026167 2005 Director Banking
TSB Sugar 1947/026583/06 2007 Director Agricultural
Sappi Limited 1936/008963/06 2008 Chairman Paper manufacturing
Sage Group Limited 1970/010541/06 1991 Chairman 2005 Financial services
KWV Holdings 1979/007263/06 1997 Director 2004 Wine making

Marthinus Johannes Croucamp
Independent Non Excecutive Dircetor

Date of joining Eqstra 17 March 2008

Age 62

Qualifications IAC, AEF, AMP

Business address 12 Corobrik Road, Meadowdale
Nationality South African

Martin has spent his entire working career in the Banking sector starting with when he joined Citibank of
SA in 1966 progressing to Managing Director of MLS Bank Limited and as such being a member of ABSAs
Executive staff as well as the ABSA ERM committiee. Martin served as an Exco member for the last 24 years
of his career and attended Divisional Board meelings for the last 15 years of which the last seven years were
in the capacity of a full executive direcior. He presently chairs the Imperial Bank Board Risk and Board
Remuneration Commitiees.

He has extensive general business management experience al execulive level with particular emphasis on
strategy formulation, marketing and administration in the financial services sector.

In addition to his directorship of the Company, Martin holds or has held the following directorships or has
been a partner in the following partnerships within the five years prior to the last practicable date:

Registration Resignation
Name of company number Appointment Designation date Nature of business
MLS Bank Limited 1963/003934/08 1995 Director 2002 Banking
Imperial Bank 1995/012641/086 2003 Direcior Banking
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Salukazi Dakile-Hlongwane
Independent Non Executive Director

Date of joining Eqgstra
Age

Qualifications

Business address

Nationality

17 March 2008
57

Bachelor Degree - Economics and Stalistics (National
University of Lesotho)

Masters Degree - Development Eccnomics (Williams
College, Massachusetts, USA)

Wedgefield Office Park (Phase I1T)
17 Muswell Road South
Bryanston 2021

Johannesburg

South Africa

South African

Salukazi is the Executive chairman of Nozala Investments, a company she co-founded in 1896. She slarted
her career at the Lesolho National Development Corp in 1977. She then lectured part-time in business
economics at the University of Lesotho and worked as senior loans officer at the African Development Bank
as principal co-operation officer. She then ventured into the private sector as a senior manager in the
structured finance division of FirstCorp Merchani Bank and was assistant GM of the specialised finance
division of BoE Merchant Bank. She holds a degree in economics and statistics from the University of Lesotho
and a master’s degree in development economics {from Williams College (US).

In addition to her directorship of the Company, Salukazi holds or has held the following directorships or has
been a paritner in the following partnerships within the five years prior to the last practicable date:

Name of company

Registration
nuomber

Appointment Designation date

Resignation
Nature of business

Nozala Investments
(Proprietary) Limited

Nozala Holdings
(Proprietary) Limited

Nozala Capital Management
(Proprietary) Limited

Nozala Coal (Proprietary)
Limited

Nozala Diamonds {Proprietary)
Limited

FPT (Fresh Produce Terminal}
(Proprietary) Limited

Mutual Construction Company
(Proprietary) Limited

Afripack (Proprietary) Limited
Woodlands Dairy (Proprietary)
Limited

Tsebo Outsourcing Group
(Proprietary) Limited

Gidani {Proprietary) Limited
Medi Clinic Corporation
(Proprietary) Limited

MIH Holdings Limited
(Proprietary) Limited
Worldwide Capital (Proprietary)
Limited

ABSA Provincial Advisory
Board

The Don Group Limited
Mnet SuperSport

Educor

Precrete Nozala

Eskom Enterprises
Nozala Trust

Izandla (partnership between
Nozala Trust and Cape
Women's Forum)

1996/004733/07

1996/004733/07

1996/004733/07

2004/0129683/07

2004/024645/07

1999/013086/07

£988/002721/07

1933/004294/077
1988/002088/07

1999/028018/07

2005/007741/07
1983/010725/06

1994/009083/07

98011666/06

1986/004 794/06

1994/005155/07
19494/009083/07
1999/020356/06
2004/016915/07
1999/00276 1077
1T1418/98

2001/028759/08

1996

1996

1996

2004

2004

2005

2005

2004
2006

2008

2005
2000

2008

2006

2006

2007
2005
2001
2004
2003
1998
2001

Director Investment holdings
Director Investment holdings
Director Director
Director Mining services
Director Director
Director Logistics
Director Mining services
Director Packaging
Director Food services
Director Feod services
Director Gaming
Director Health

Director Communication
Director Finance
Director Finance
Director Hotels

Director Communication
Director 2005 Education
Director 2006 Mining services
Director 2004 Energy

Trustee Development
Trustee Development
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Sankie Dolly Mthembi-Mahanyele

Independent Non Executive Director

Date of joining Egstra
Age

Qualifications

Business address

Nationality

17 March 2008

56

Dip Ed University of the North

BA degree from the University of the North

Radio and Press Journalism Certificate, School of
Solidarity

Diplomacy Certificate British, Belgian and Danish
Governments

Post-Graduate Diploma in Economic Principles
{London School of Economics)

Post-Graduate Diploma in Financial Economics
(London School of Economics)

Suite 1; 3 Melrose Blvd; Melrose Arch; Melrose
South African

Sankie has been a deputy Secretary General of the African National Congress (*ANC”) since 2002. Prior to
her deployment to the organisation’s headquarters, Sankie served in government as Housing Minister for
eight years. Prior to that Sankie served briefly as Deputy Population Development and Welfare Minister.
During her years in exile, Sankie was a Chief ANC representative in Germany, Australia, and Switzerland.
This was after she had served as Administrative Secretary for the organisation’s mission in Nigeria from
1986 to 1989. Sankie was the first Female Cabinet Minister to act as State President for South Africa. Sankie
is the recipient of the Black Business Quarterly (BBQ) award awarded for State Women of the year in 2003.

In addition {o her directorship of the Company, $Sankie holds or has held the following directorships or has
been a partner in the following partnerships within the five years prior to the last practicable date:

Registration Resignation

Name of company number Appointment Designation date Nature of business

African National Congress Current Deputy Secretary Political organisation
General

Government 1995 Minister for Housing 2003 Government

Naticnal Assembly 1995 Member of Parliament 1995 Government

African National Congress 1979 Member of the National 1992 Political organisation
Executive Committee

African National Congress 1989 Chief Representative 1993 Folitical organisation
of the African National
Congress

Voice of Woman 1879 Editor 1981 Political literature

Radio Freedom (ANC) 1977 Radio Journalist Radio

Anthony John Phillips
Independent Non Executive Director

Date of joining Eqgstra
Age

Qualifications
Business address

Nationality

17 March 2008

61

BSc (Eng), University of Natal

15 Crescent Drive, Westcliff, 2193
South African

Tony joined Thos Barlow & Sons Limited 1568. Hz was a trainee manager and general manager of the Tractor
division husinesses (Calerpillar) until 1998. Tony was appointed managing director: Barlows Equipment Co
1988, and managing director of Finanzauto SA, Madrid, Spain 1992, He was appointed director of Barlow
Limited in 1996, and CEO in 1998. In 2005 Tony was appointed chairman of PPC Limited and retired as CEQ,

Barlow Limited in 2006.



In addition to his directorship of the Company, Tony holds or has held the following directorships or has been
a partner in the following partnerships within the five years prior to the last practicable date:

Registration Resignation
Name of company number Appointment Designation date Nature of bnsiness
Pretoria Portland Cement 1892/000667/06 2004 Chairman 2007 Manufacturing
Finanzauto 7/11/1930H6238F122T2175 1992 Chairman 2007 Distribution
Pretoria Portland Cement 1892/000667/06 1998 Director 2007 Manufacturing
Barloworld Limited 1918/000095/08 1998 Director 2007 Industrial
Barloworld International plc 137393UK 1992 Director 2007 Industrial
World Wide Fund for Nature 003-226 NPO Director NGO
Business Leadership 2004 Director 2007 NGO
South Africa
NOAH 2002/021668/08 2002 Chairman NGO
Kwikspace Modular Buildings  1997/008959/06 2007 Director Building materials

Limited

and fixtures

Dr Popo Simon Molefe
Non-Executive Director

Date of joining Eqstra
Age

Qualifications
Business address

Nationality

17 March 2008
55
Phd (Hon)

Metier Office Park
1st Floor

5 Commerce Square
39 Rivonia Road
Sandhurst, 2196

South African

Popo is head of investment house Lereko, with former environmental affairs and tourism Minister Valli Moosa.
Lereko has invested in the Imperial Group and Tedcor, and operates a joint private equity fund with Metier.
Molefe started Lereko after a long career as an activist and politician, beginning in black consciousness
circles. He was, until the 2004 elections, premier of North West Province. He is also chairman of technology
company Xantium, Toronto-listed mining company Anooraq, PetroSA and president of Tedcor. He is chancellor
of the University of the North West and a member of ANC's national executive committee.

In addition to his directorship of the Company, Popo holds or has held the following directorships or has been
a partner in the following partnerships within the five years prior to the last practicable date:

Registration Resignation
Name of company number Appointment Designation date Nature of business
Anocraq Resources Corporation 10022-2033 2004 Co-Chairman Platinum mining
Imperial Holdings Limited 1946/021048/06 2005 Director Investment holding company
Armscor 1968/008611/06 2004 Chairman Armament procurement
Tedcor (Pty) Ltd 1997/003845/07 2004 Director Waste Management Services
CEF (Piy} Ltd 1976/01441/07) 2004 Director Manufacturing
Mbane Power (Pty) Ltd 2005/014192/07) 2005 Director Power plants
Motor Industry Gmbudsman of 2002/013128 2006 Director Ombudsman
South Africa
Protea Technologies 1981/009419/07 2007 Chairman Information technology
Imperial Holdings 1946/021048/06 2005 Director Investment helding company listed
on JSE
Simeka Business Solutions 1id  2003/012583068 2004 Chairman Information technology
Infrasors Holdings Ltd 2007/022405/04 2007 Chairman Construction and industrial products
manufacturer
PetroSA 1970/008130/07 2004 Chairman Petroleum
Lereko Metier Capital Growth  2004/033161/07 2004 Director Investment company
Fund Managers (Pty) Ltd
ANC 1994 Chairman Political organisation
Azapo 1980 Chairman Political organisation
Lereko Investments (Piy) Ltd 2004/013452/07 2005 Irrector/ Investment holding company
Shareholder
Lereko Mobility (Pty) Ltd 2004/034154/07 2005 Director Investment holding company

Veli Joseph Mokoena
Non-Executive Director

Date of joining Eqgstra
Age
Qualifications

Business address

Naticonality

17 March 2008
48

BA, PDM, Finance and Accounting, Executive
Development Program (NY)

138 Boeing Road East
Bedfordview, 2008

South African



Veli is the CEC of Ukhamba Holdings which is an investment company with estimated assets of R4 billion.
Other duties include Chairman of the Ukhamba Trust, Administrator of the Thabang Education Trust and the
Imperial & Ukhamba Community Development Trust. Prior to his role as Execultive Director for Imperial Fleet
Services, Government Business division, Veli worked for Eskom, Stannic and NedPerm Bank Division.

In addition to his directorship of the Company, Veli holds or has held the following directorships or has been
a partner in the following partnerships within the five years prior to the last practicable date:

Registration Resignation
Name of company number Appointment Designation date Nature of business
Imperial Holdings Limited 1946/021048/06 2004 Director Mobility
DAWN Limited 1984/Q0265/06 2005 Director Building and construction
RTG (Proprietary) Limited 1997/028163/07 2000 Director Leasing
Amasondo Fleet Services 2000/015762/07 2001 Diirector Leasing

(Proprietary) Limited

Ikaheng Human Resources 1998/012481/07 2000 Director
{(Proprietary) Limited.

HR Services and training

Seekers Lesedi Travel 1998/012080/07 2003 Director Travel and tourism
(Proprietary) Limited

Imperial Car Rental 1939/013135/Q7 2005 Director Travel and Lourism
{Proprietary) Limited

Executive Carport 1998/021BB0/OY 2003 Director Motor support services
(Proprietary) Limited

Fuelogic (Proprietary) Limited 2000/024296/07 2002 Director Logistics

Accordian Investments 2003/027086/07 2005 Director Metor/Mobility
(Proprietary} Limited

trading as TATA Motors SA

Boundiess Trade (Proprietary) 2000/025968/07 2004 Director Motor/Mobility

Limited, trading as Citroen SA

Giuricich Brothers Construction 2001/026242/07 2005 Chairman Building and construction
(Proprietary) Limited

Ukhamba Auic BMW 2003/012105/07 2005 Chairman Motor/Mobility
(Proprietary) Limited

Proteam Panelbeaters 2004/024298/07 20086 Chairman Motor support services
{Proprietary) Limited

Ukhamba Green Services 2003/002338/07 2006 Chairman Building and construction
(Proprietary) Limited

Pandae Storage Systems 2004/024298/07 2006 Chairman Building and construction
{Proprietary) Limited

Mi-nett Data Systems 2003/020339/07 2007 Chairman Motor support services
(Proprietary) Limited

Cedar Employee Benefits

and Consultants (Proprietary} 2006/016158/07 2007 Director Financial services

Limited

Via Capital (Proprietary) 2004/022905/07 2007 Director Financial services

Limited

Probe Corporation 1986/002252/07 2008 Director Motor support services
(Proprietary) Limited

Imperial Reinsurance 1957/001130/06 2006 Director 2007 Insurance and financial services

Company Limited

Tran-Send Container Logistica 2005/025785/07 2007 Director Logistics
(Proprietary) Limited
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Directors’ emoluments

The remuneration and fees received by the direclors during the 2007 financial year are set out below together
with share oplions granted to, and gains made by, executiive directors during the 2007 financial year:

Retirement Share Share
- and medical Other Director's Total pti pti
i 2007 Salary Bonus* contributions benefits Fees 2007 ceded exercised
' . R"000 R 000 R 000 R'000 R’000 R'000 R'000 R'000
Executive directors
W S Hill 2 323 1 500 3g2 T2 4 287
' E Clarke 1103 1 687 217 175 3 162
| Non-executive directors**
I V J Mokoena 112 112
. M J Croucamp 54 54
Total directors’ remuneration 3 426 3167 609 247 166 7 615

* The bonus is an estimate for the year pending finalisation of the Imperial Limited Group audited accounts.

**Non-executive directors have only recently been appointed and therefore did not receive any remuneration.

Notes:

0 Directors’ fees due to shareholder nominees on the Eqgstra Board are paid io the employer organisation and not to the nominees.

Bonuses are reported to match the amount payable to the applicable financial year.

No management, consultant, technical, or other fees are paid for services rendered Lo either executive or non-executive directors, directly
or indirectly.

No sums are paid by way of an expense allowance to executive or non-executive directors.

No other material benefits were received by executive or non-executive directors from the Company, other than disclosed in this
annexure.

No commission. gain or profit sharing arrangements are paid to executive and non-executive directors, other than those disclosed in
this annexure,

No fees were paid or accrued as payable 1o a third party i livu of directors’ fees.

The directors’ emolumenis disclosed in this annexure are all emoluments paid by Egstra and no Eqstra executive or non-executive
directors’ emoluments were received from the following entities in respect of their duties as Egstra directors:

(i) Egsira’ subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries;
{ii} associates of {i) above;
{iii) joint ventures of Egstra or of (i} to {ii) above; and

(iv) entities that provide management or advisory services to Eqstra or ahy of (i) Lo (iif) above.



Annexure 10

Details of Egqstra share incentive schemes

Introduction

In line with global best practice and emerging South African practice, the Company has adopted three share
incentive plans, namely a Share Appreciation Right Scheme, a Conditional Share Plan and a Deferred Bonus
Plan. The share incentive plans are in line with practice in FTSE 100 and FTSE 250 companies in the UK and
with several recently adopted schemes for large JSE listed or dual listed companies.

The Share Appreciation Right Scheme, Conditional Share Plan and Deferred Bonus Plan includes
participation by execulive directors and selected employees of Egstra. The purpose of the share incentive
plans is to recognise contribulions made by selected Employees and Lo provide for an incentive for their
continuing relationship with Egstra. by providing them with the opportunity of receiving Shares in the
Company, thereby providing Participants with an incentive to advance Eqgstra's interests and to ensure that
Egstra atlracts and retains the core competencies required for formulating and implementing Egstra'’s
business strategies.

The primary intent of the Company is to purchase Shares in the market {o settle the benefits of the share
incentive plans and the plans will thus not be dilutive. The Company, as a {all back provision only, retains
the right to issue new Shares at its election in order to mitigate the risk of a spike in the share price, which
could expose the Company to hiquidity risk. In any case, the Company will be limited to issuing no more than
[10% (ten percent)] of the number of issued ordinary shares al any one time, which at the listing date equates
to 25.8 million shares in settlement of the share incentive plans. Notwithstanding the aforegoing, the
Employer Companies may, on instruction of the Directors and as a fallback provisicn only, pay any
Participant under the Share Appreciation Righl Scheme or Conditional Share Plan an equivalent amount in
cash in lieu of any Shares. The Deferred Bonus Plan will always be settled in Shares.

The share incentive plans also support the principle of alignment of management and shareholder interests
with Performance Conditions governing the vesting of instruments.

GLOSSARY OF TERMS

The definitions commencing on page 4 of this pre-listing silalement are nol applicable to Annexure 10,
Annexure 10 has its own glossary of terms.

“Allocated” for purposes of setting the scheme limits, one Share allocated per any one
Share Appreciation Right, Conditional Award or Maiching Award granted;

*Annual Bonus” the annual! bonus earned in any 1 (one) year in terms of the Company's
short-term incentive scheme;

“Board” the Board of directors for the time being of the Company, or any committes
thereof (including the RemCom) to or upon whom the powers of the Board
in respect of the SAR, CSP and DBP are delegated or are conferred in terms
of the Company’s articles of association;

“Bonus Shares” a number of Shares acquired by a Participant with a portion of the after-tax
component of the Participant’s Annual Bonus in terms of the DBP;

“Business Day” any day on which the JSE is open for the transaction of business;

“Company” Eqstra Holdingzs Limited (Registration number 1998/011672/08);

“CspP” Eqgstra Conditional Share Plan;

“Date of Grant” the date with effect from which the RemCom resolves to grant a Share

Appreciation Right or Conditional Award to an Employee as is specified in
the Letter of Grant;

“Date of Offer” . the date with effect from which the RemCom resolves to grant a Matching
Award to an Employee as specified in the Offer to Participate;

“DBP” the Egstra Holdings Limited Deferred Bonus Plan;

“DBP Period” the period siarting on the Date of Offer and ending on the Vesting Date as

specified in the Offer;
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“Employee”

“Employer Company”

“Escrow Agent”

“Exercise Date”

“Exercise Price”

“Grant” or “Granted”

“Grant Price”

“Group”

“JSE”

“Letier of Grant”

“Market Value”

“Matching Award”

“Matching Shares”

“Offer”

“Participant”

“Performance Condition”

“Performance Period”

“RemCom”

“GAR”
“SAR Period”

“Settlement”

“Setilement Date”

a person eligible for participation in the SAR, CSP or the DBP, namely any
senior employee with significant managerial or other responsibility,
including any director holding salaried employment or office, of any
Employer Company in the Group, as determined from time to time by the
Board in its absolute discretion but excluding any non-executive directors;

a company in Egstra which employs an Employee;

the person or entity appointed by the Board from time to time to hold Benus
Shares in escrow on behalf of Participants;

the date on which a Share Appreciation Right is exercised by a Participant;

the Market Value of a Share on the Business Day immediately preceding the
Exercise Date;

the grant to an Employee of a Share Appreciation Righi or Conditional
Award in terms of the SAR or CSP;

the Market Value of the Share on the Business Day immediately preceding
the Date of Grant of the Share Appreciation Rights;

the Company and its direct and indirect subsidiaries and associated
companies from time to time;

the JSE Limiled (Registration number 2005/022939/08), a public company
duly registered and incorporated with limited liability in accordance with
the company laws of South Africa, licensed as an exchange under the
Securities Services Act, 36 of 2004;

a document delivered to an employee in terms of the Rules of the SAR
and CSP;

the Volume Weighled Average price of a Share as quoted on the JSE for the
Business Day immediately preceding the date on which a determination of
the Market Value of the Shares is to be made and the preceding two trading
days for the purposes of the Rules of the SAR, CSP and DBP;

an award of Matching Shares made to a Participant under the DBF, which
award is conditional;

shares forming the subject matter of a Matching Award, being equal in
value to the Market Value (or number) of the Bonus Shares held on the
Vesting Date;

a document prepared by the Board inviting an Employee to participate in the
DBP which details the name of the Participant, the number of Bonus Shares
and Matching Shares relating to each Bonus Share, the DBP Period and any
applicable conditions pertaining thereto;

an Employee to whom a Grant/Offer has been made and who has accepted
such Grant/Offer and includes the executor of his deceased estate, where
applicable;

the condition specified in the Letter of Grant, to which a Share Appreciation
Right and Conditional Award is subject, which Performance Conditions are
determined by the Board;

the period in respect of which a Performance Condition is to be satisfied as
specified in the Letter of Grant;

the Remuneralion Commitiee of the Board comprising of non-executive
directors of the Company;

the Eqstra Holdings Limited Share Appreciation Right Scheme;

the period from the Date of Grant to 17:00 on the day staled in the Letter of
Grant as being the date on which the SAR will lapse;

delivery of the required number of Shares to which a Participant is entitled
pursuant to the exercise of a Share Appreciation Right or the vesting of a
Conditional Award or Matching Award;

the dale on which Settlement shall occur;



“Share Appreciation Right” a conditional right to receive Shares in terms of the SAR t{o the value of the
difference between the Exercise Price and the Grant Price of that number of
Share Appreciation Rights Granied based on the Market Value of the Shares
as at the date of exercise;

“Shares” the ordinary shares with a par value of four cenis each (or as adjusted) in
the capital of the Company; and

”

“Vesting Date the date on which a Share Appreciation Right becomes exercisable on
fulfilment of the Performance Conditions and all other conditions or the date
on which the Participant becomes entitled to a Share in terms of the CSP on
fulfilment of the Performance Conditions and all other condilions or a

Matching Share in terms of the DBP.

Salient features of the SAR, CSP and DBP:

The SAR

Employees will receive annual Grants of Share Appreciation Rights, which are conditional rights to receive
Shares equal to the value of the difference between the Exercise Price and the Grant Price. Vesting of the
Share Appreciation Rights is subject to Performance Conditions. The duration and specific nature of the
Performance Conditions and Performance Period will be slated in the Letter of Grant and will be determined
by the Board on an annual basis in respect of each new Grant of Share Appreciation Rights.

The intended Performance Conditions for the SAR are the measurement of the Company’s Return on Invested
Capital ("ROIC™) and the growth in Headline Earnings Per Share (“HEPS”) or such other similar conditions
as are appropriate. The targets and measuring terms of these conditions will be delailed in the Letter of
Grant. After Vesting, the Share Appreciation Rights will become exercisable. Upon exercise by a Participant
the relevant Employer Company will settle the value of the difference between the Exercise Price and the
Grant Price by delivering Shares, alternatively, as a fall back provision only, by settling the value in cash.
Share Appreciation Rights not exercised within the SAR Period will lapse.

The CSP

The CSP will be used in exceptional circumstances only. Employees will receive grants of Conditional Awards.
Vesting of the Conditional Awards is subject to Performance Conditions. The Performance Condition for the
CSP will be based on individual targets set by the Board and will be specified in the Letter of Grant If the
Performance Conditions are satisfied, the Conditional Awards will Vest. If the Performance Conditions are
not met, the Conditional Awards will lapse.

The DBP

Employees will be permitted to use a portion of the after-tax component of their Annual Benus to acquire
Bonus Shares. A simultanecus conditional Matching Award of Shares will be made to the Participant on the
condition that the Participant remains in the employ of an Employer Company and retains the Bonus Shares
over the DBP Pericd. The Participant remains the owner of the Bonus Shares for the duration of the DBP
period and will enjoy all shareholder rights in respect of the Bonus Shares. Bonus Shares can be withdrawn
from escrow at any stage, but the Matching Award is forfeited to the extent of the Bonus Shares withdrawn
from escrow during the DBP Period.

Eligibility

Any senior employee with significant managerial or other responsibility, including any director holding
salaried employment or office, of any Employer Company in the Group is eligible to participate in the SAR,
CSP and DBP. The Employer Companies will recommend participation in the SAR, CSP and DBP to the Board.

Performance conditions

The Vesting of Share Appreciation Rights and Conditional Awards will be subject to the achievement of
specified Performance Conditions. The Performance Conditions will be stated in a Letter of Grant, and will
be set by the RemCom on an annual basis.

The DEP is not subject to performance conditions.

117



Limits

Overall Company limit

The aggregate number of Shares which may be allocated under the SAR, CSP DBP and any existing share
scheme operated by the Company shall not exceed 10% (ten percent} of the number of issued ordinary shares
at any one time, which at the time of listing equates to 25.8 million shares. The limit referred to shall exclude
the following:

— Shares in respect of which Share Appreciation Rights under the SAR have been exercised or have lapsed
without being exercised;

— Shares allocaled to Participanis under the CSP which have vested ar have lapsed;
— Shares allocated to Participants under the DBP which have vested or have lapsed; and

— Shares under any other managerial share scheme which have been delivered or have lapsed.

The aggregate limit shall further include the actual number of new Shares issued by the Company in
Settlement of the SAR, CSP DBP and any other managerial share scheme operated by the Company.

Individual limit

The maximum number of Shares allocaled in respect of all unvested SAR granted in terms of the Scheme,
Conditional Awards granted in terms of the CSP and Matching Awards granted in terms of the DBP shall not
exceed the limil determined from time to time by the RemCom, which number of Shares shall not exceed
1% (one percent} of the issued ordinary share capital of the Company at any one time.

Cessation of employment and death

Resignation or dismissal

If a Participant’s employment with an Employer Company terminates by reason of his resignation or
dismissal on grounds of misconduct, poor performance or proven dishonest or fraudulent conduct (whether
such cessation occurs as a result of notice given by him or otherwise or where he resigns to avoid dismissal
on grounds ol misconduct, poor performance or proven dishonest or fraudulent conduct) before the Vesting
Date, all Share Appreciation Rights, Conditional Awards and all Matching Awards will lapse, except to the
extent that the Board shall determine otherwise in its discretion.

Retirement

If, while any portion of a Participant’s Share Appreciation Rights remain unexercised or a Conditional Award
or Matching Award remains unvested, a Participant retires, the Participant shall be entitled to the same
rights and be subject to Lhe same conditions under the SAR, CSP or the DBP as if he had continued to be a
Participant, unless the Board in its absolute discretion determines otherwise.

Retrenchiumnent, death, ill-health. disability or other reasons for cessation of employment

If a Participant ceases to be an employee of an Employer Company by reason of reirenchment, death, ill-
health, disability or other reasons for cessation of employment, other than resignation or dismissal or
retirement, the Board shall by written notice to the Participant or the executor of the deceased estate permit
a pro rata portion of the unvested Share Appreciation Rights and/or unvested Condilional Award and/or
Matching Awards to vest on the date of cessation of employment. The prorata portion of the Share
Appreciation Rights and Conditional Awards that vest will, unless the Board determines otherwise, reflect
the number of months served since the Date of Grant and the extent to which the Performance Conditions
have been satisfied and in the case of the Matching Awards, will be based on the number of Bonus Shares
held and the time of the DBP Period served at the time of cessation of employment, unless the Board in their
absolute discretion determine otherwise. The balance of the Unvested Share Appreciation Rights not
permitted to be exercised or Unvested Conditional Awards or Matching Awards that do nol Vest as aforesaid
will lapse.

Change of control and delisting

In the event that a change of control of the Company occurs before the Vesting Dale, the Board shall by
wrilten notice to the Participant deem a pro-rata portion of the unvested Share Appreciation Rights and/or
Conditional Awards and/or Matching Awards to vest on the date of the occurrence of the change of control
and permit the exercise or vesting of such pro-rata portion within a time period to be determined by Board.
The pro rata portion of the Share Appreciation Rights, Conditional Awards and Matching Awards that vest
will reflect the number of months served since the Date of Grant to the date of the change of control and the
extent to which the Performance Conditions have, in the opinion of the Board, been met or in the case of
Matching Awards, the number of Bonus Shares held at the time of the change of control or delisting. The
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portion of the Share Appreciation Rights, Conditional Awards and Matching Awards that do nol vest early
will continue Lo be subject to the terms of the Letter of Grant or Offer relating thereto unless, the Board, in
their absolute discretion, determines that the terms of the Letler of Grant or Offer relating thereto are no
longer appropriate, in which case the Board shall make such adjustment to the number of Share
Appreciation Righis, Conditional Awards and Matching Awards or take such other action as may be required
to place the Participants in no worse position than they were prior to the occurrence of the change of control.

In the event of an Employer Company {other than the Company), ceasing to be a member of Egstra, the Board
may take such action as they consider appropriate to protect the interests of Participants, including
converting Share Appreciation Rights and/or Conditional Awards and/or Matching Awards into Grants in
respect of shares in one or more other companies, reviewing the time that has lapsed since the Date of Grant
and calculating the number of Shares to vest in each Participant accordingly, provided that the Participants
are no worse off.

Variation in share capital

In the event of a rights issue, capitalisation issue, capital distribution, subdivision of Shares. consolidation
of Shares, the Company being put into liquidation for the purpose of reorganisation or any other event
affecting the share capital of the Company or in the event of the Company making distributions to
shareholders, inciuding a distribution in specie or a payment in terms of section 90 of the Companies
Act, 81 of 1973 {other than a dividend paid in the ordinary course of business out of the current years
retained earnings), Participanis shall continue Lo participate in the SAR and/or CSP and/or DBP, however the
Board may, where the Company’s value has been materially affected thereby, make such adjustment to the
number of Share Appreciation Rights, Conditional Awards and Matching Awards or take such other action
as may be required, to place Participants in no worse position than they were prior to the occurrence of the
relevant event.

The Board shall notify the Parlicipants of any adjustments, which are made under this paragraph. Where
necessary, in respect of any such adjustments, the Company's auditors, acting as experts and nol as
arbitrators and whose decision shall be final and binding on all persons affected thereby, shall confirm to the
Board in writing that these are calculated on a non-prejudicial basis.

If the Company is placed inio liquidation otherwise than for the purposes of recrganisation, the SAR, CSP
and DBP shall ipso facto lapse as from the date of liquidation and any unvested awards, which have not yet
vesled, shall ipso facto lapse from the date of liquidation. For the purposes hereof “date of liquidation” shall
mean the date upon which any application (whether provisional or final) for the liquidation of the Company
is granted by the relevant court.

Amendments to the provisions of the SAR, CSP and DBP

The Board may effect minor amendments to the rules of the SAR, CSP and DBP.

Amendments to the provisions of the SAR, CSP and DBP relating to:

+ eligibility to participate in the Scheme;

* the procedure to the followed on the vesting of awards in the event of termination of employment and/or
retirement;

* the basis for determining Grants;

+ the basis for determining the Market Value;

* the adjustment of Grants and price in the event of a variation of capital of the Company;

+ the limitations on benefils or maximum entitlements,

are subject Lo approval by ordinary resolution of the shareholders in general/annual general meeting 10 the
extent (if any) required in terms of the JSE Listings Requirements and/or compliance with any applicable

statute, regulation, rules or JSE Listings Requirements from time to time. Any further minor amendments
to the rules of the SAR, CSP and DBP may be effected by the Board.



Annexure 11

Schedule of immovable property owned or leased by Eqstra and its
subsidiaries

Details of the principal immovable property owned by Eqstra and/or its subsidiaries

Owner Situation Area/Extent Unit

Details of owned Properties

1. Imperial Group (Proprietary) 9 Brewery, Isando 657/1115 Sqm
Limited
2. Imperial Group (Proprietary) 27 Strand Street, Bellville 850 Sqmn
Limited
3. Imperial Group (Proprietary) 212 Hendrik Verwoerd Drive, Randburg 10983 Sqm
Limited
4. Imperial Group (Proprietary) Holding 13, Bredell Agricultural Holdings 1.6684 Ha
Limited
5. Imperial Group (Proprietary) 227 Hendrik Verwoerd Drive, Randburg 4 068 Sqm
Limited
6. Imperial Group (Proprietary) 106 Old Main Road, Pinetown 802 Sqm
Limited
7. Imperial Group (Proprietary) 22 Voortrekker Avenue, Edenvale 1374 Sqm
Limited
8. Imperial Group (Proprietary) 12 Corobrick Road, Meadowdale 2 B19 Sqm
Limited
9. Saficon Industrial Equipment 3 Fabriek Street, Isando 4 B66 Sgm
(Proprietary) Limited
10. Saficon Industrial Equipment 80 Otto Volek Road, New Germany, Pinetown 2.0251 Ha
(Proprietary) Limited
11. Saficon Industrial Equipment 25B Junction Street. Tygerberg Business Park
(Proprietary) Limited Parow 1.4995 Ha
12, Impact Handling ple Unit 1 Derbyshire Court 760 Sqm
West Moor Park, Doncaster
13. Impact Handling plc Land to Nerth side of Manby Road 585 Sqm
Immingham, Grimshby
14, Impact Handling plc Brunel Road, Earlstrees, Corby 2 833 Sqgm
15. Five Six Seven Glen Austin 60 Rodio Place, Midrand 6.817 Ha
(Proprietary) Limited
16. Terex Africa (Proprietary) 62 Maple Road, Pomona 20 500 Sqm
Limited
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Details of all leased properties leased by Eqgstra and its subsidiaries

Current
rental/ Unexpired Areal
Lesses Location Lessor month tarm Extent Unit
(Rand) (months}
1. Saficon Industrial 138 Paterson Road, North End The Hambly Parker Trust 69 740 46 4 400 Sqm
Equipment (Proprietary) Port Elizabeth
Limnited
2. Saficon Industrial 21 Stormberg Road, Gately WF Gsner Investments 18 80O 50 1400 Sqm
Equipment (Proprietary) East London (Proprietary) Limited
Limited
3. Saficon Industrial G Pioneer Street, Pacaltsdorp OFB Beleggings BK 12 861 24 458 Sqm
Equipment (Proprietary} Industria, George
Limited
4. BSaficon Industrial 26 Copper Corner, Alton Fieldhaven Investments CC 11 600 14 2 050 Sqm
Equipment (Proprietary} Richards Bay
Limited
5. Saficon Industrial 13 Bert Strauss Street DIXTA Property Holdings CC 3 655 34 119 Sgm
Equipment (Proprietary) Queenstown
Limited
6. Saficon Industrial 17 Paterson Street, Newcastle Lot 1273 Investment CC 8 050 8 230 Sqm
Equipment (Proprietary)
Limited
7. Impact Handling ple Units 13/15 Fields Farm Road Gainsborough Property 4 515 il 950 Sqm
Long Eaton, Nottingham
8. Impact Handling ple Unit 10 Fields Farm Road Gainsborough Property 1208 3 844 Sqm
Long Eaton, Nottingham
9. Impact Handling plc Unit 8, Priory Tech Park FPH Commercial 1 500 50 279 Sqm
Saxon Way. Hessle, Hull
19. Impact Handling pic Unit 105, Claydon Business Edward Le Bas Properties 31335 122 756 Sqm
Park, Gipping Read. Ipswich
11. Terex Africa 15 Lakeview Business Park Pangbourne Props Limited 79 280 8 1 982 Sqm
{Proprietary) Limited Yaldwin Park, Jet Park
12. Terex Africa 178 Fleming Road Investec Property Group 83 250 8 1343 Sqm
(Proprietary) Limited Meadowdale
13. Terex Africa 107 Terrace Avenue, Scbenza Cé&D (Proprietary) Limited 49 437 8 1 831 Sqm
{Proprietary) Limited
14, Terex Africa 7 Milan Street, Airport Richard Rieder & Alois Rieder 73 000 40 2 344 Sqm
(Proprietary) Limited Industria, Cape Town
15, Terex Africa 33/35 Mohogany Ridge Secrivest Twenty Eight 50 000 26 2 360 Sqm
(Proprietary) Limited Pinetown, Durban (Proprietary) Limited
16. Terex Africa 131, corner Flemming and BRI Properties 50 000 30 1 B0OO Sqm
(Proprietary) Limited van der Bijl Streets
Meadowdale
17. Terex Africa 8 C/O Jule and Newton Streets Johan van Tubbergh Trust 21 284 1 1426 Sqm
(Proprietary)} Limited Middelburg
18. Terex Africa 25 - 27 Hendrik van der Sonland Behuising 25 000 30 750 Sqm
(Proprietary) Limited Bijl Street, Kimberley {Proprietary) Limited
19. Terex Africa 108 Log Street, Hilton Viljoen Johannes T 7 560 B 450 Sgm
(Proprietary) Limited Bloemfontein Bezuidenhout
20. Terex Africa Witfield, Ext 24, vacant land Sapos Property Manager 28 000 4 7 500 Sgm
(Proprietary) Limited
21. Mutual Construction Cromdale 18, Nelspruit Chrispiepto 3 868 2 300 Sqm
Company (Tv]) Mpumalanga
(Proprietary) Limited
22. Mutual Construction 34 Chrome Street, Polokwane Bald prop 15 000 5 800 Sqm
Company (Tvl) Limpopo
(Proprietary) Limited
23. Mutual Construction 14 Mangaan Street Pyramid Foods 16 500 9 450 Sgm
Company (Tvl) Rustenburg, North Wesy
(Proprietary) Limited
24. Mutual Construction Durban, KwaZulu-Natal Heritage Unit 5 7 986 2 200 Sqm
Company (Tvl)
(Proprietary) Limited
25. Mutual Construction Unit 3.2, Vulindlela Heights EC Development Corporation 3 953 11 320 Sqm
Company (Tvl) Umtata, Eastern Cape
(Proprietary) Limited
28. Imperial Fleet Services PTN 26 ERF 2 Persequor Park, Momentum Property 6 594 - 135 Sqm

Division of the
Imperial Group
(Proprietary) Limited

Pretoria

Investments
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Current
rental/ Unexpired Aren/
Lessea Location Lessor month torm Extent Unit
{Rand} (months)

27. Imperial Fleet Services Suite 9, 1 Derby Downs Office Ambit Properties Limited 13 269 46 186 Sqm
(Proprietary) Limited Park, 1 Derby Place, Westville

28. Imperial Fleet Services Suite 204 Newton Business Bripat Property Management 4 290 2 100 S
(Proprietary) Limited Centre 311 - 313 Cape Road

Newton Park, Port Elizabeth .

29, Hypercar a Division of Cnr Heidelberg and Unitrans 129 600 15 8 223 Sqmn
Imperial Group Rand Airport Road
(Proprietary) Limited

30. Hyperear a Division of Corner Malan and Lindley Coenoe 058 CC 21 600 17 1 B88 Sqm
Imperial Group Streets, Bethlehem
(Proprietary) Limited

31. Hypercar a Division of 154 Church Street, Bloemfontein  Business Partners Limited 34 240 34 1 802 Sqm
Imperial Group
(Proprietary) Limited

32. Hyperear a Division of 157 North Rand Road. Boksburg Yellow Star 1076 CC 21 942 12 1 350 Sqm
Imperial Group
{Proprietary) Limited

33. Hypercar a Division of Corner Fred Nicolson and Huurkor 27714 21 1 166 Sqm
Imperial Group Hendrik Verwoerd Drive
{Proprietary) Limited Randburg

34. Hypercar a Division of 1A Anderson Street, Klerksdorp Hind Shalala 6 655 13 600 Sqm
Imperial Group
{Proprietary) Limited

35. Hypercar a Division of 1A Anderson Street, Klerksdorp Hind Shalala 5 500 i3 600 Sqm
Imperial Group
(Proprietary) Limited

35. Hypercar a Division of Corner Montague and Freedom Park Phasc One Trust 17 636 19 350 Sqm
Imperial Group Racecourse Drive
(Proprietary) Limited Montague Gardens

37. Hypercar a Division of 328 Cape Road. Newton Park 343 Cape Road Trust 24 115 8 851 Sqm
Imperial Group Port Elizabeth
(Proprietary} Limited

38. Hypercar a Division of Bullion Boutevard, Richards Bay  Kriezel Investments 27 000 17 2 400 Sqm
Imperial Group
(Proprietary) Limited

39. Hypercar a Division of 139 Ontdekkers Road, Westgate Johan van Rooyen Hipermart 11 000 36 258 Sqm
Imperial Group Centre
(Proprietary} Limited

40. Hypercar a Division of Corner Berg and Oliver Thambo PLR Investments 29 160 28 1 450 Sqm
Imperial Group Road, Rustenburg
(Proprietary) Limited

41. Hypercar a Division of 196 Jan Hofmeyer Road, Welkom  Raffaele Moretti Famity Trust 19 800 27 775 Sgm
Imperial Group
(Proprietary) Limited

42. Imperial Flexi Fleet Portion of Erf 26, Extension & Clover SA Limited 33 566 T2 2 624 Sgm
(Proprietary) Limited Boksburg

43. Imperial Flexi Fleet Portion of Erf 784, Heilbron Clover SA Limited 7 510 72 791 Sqm
(Proprietary) Limited

44. Imperial Flexi Fleet Portion of Erf 824, Redhouse Clover SA Limited 18 912 T2 1 080 Sqgm
(Proprietary) Limited

45. Imperial Flexi Fleet Portion of Erf 1791, Lichtenburg Clover SA Limited 7 008 72 599 Sqm
(Proprietary) Limited Extention 1

46. Imperial Flexi Fleet Portion of sub 19 of the farm Clover SA Limited 16 809 72 1 252 Sqm
(Proprietary) Limited Landsdowne, Ixopo

47. Imperial Flexi Fleet Erf 1266, Clayville, Clover SA Limited 4613 72 385 Sqm
(Proprietary) Limited Extention 11 Township

48. Imperial Flexi Fleet Portion of Erf 1192, Heilbron Clover SA Limited 31102 T2 3 672 Sgm
(Proprietary) Limited

49. Imperial Flexi Fleet Portion of Lot 2989 Clover SA Limited 36 793 T2 2048 Sgm
{(Proprieiary) Limited Queensburgh

50. Imperial Flexi Fleet Portion of Erf 581 Clover SA Limited 5 294 72 470 Sgm
(Proprietary) Limited Wesselsbron. Extention 2

51. Imperial Flexi Fleet
{Proprietary) Limited Portion of Erf 1366, Heilbron Clover SA Limited 10 832 72 1141 Sqm
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Current

rental/ Unexpired Area/
Lessee Location Lessor month term Extent Unit
(Rand) (months)

52. Imperial Flexi Fleet
{Proprietary) Limited Portion of lot 4539, Estcourt Clover SA Limited 8 842 72 877 Sgm

53. Imperial Group 103 Driehoek, Germiston, Simmerpan Properties 32 000 51 791 Sgm
(Proprietary) Limited Simmerfield

54. Imperial Group Consolidated stands 102 and Simmerpan Properties 35 200 41 1 249 Sgm
(Proprictary} Limited 103. Driehoek, Germiston

55. Imperial Flexi Fleet Portion of Erf 695 Crossing Estates 20790 40 945 Sqm
(Proprietary) Limited FE. 113 Grahamstown Read

58. lmperial Flexi Fleet Portion of Erf 695, FE Crossing Estates B 316 a7 270 Sgm
(Froprietary) Limited 113 Grahamstown Road

57. Imperial Flexi Fleet Kokstad Pumic Investments 15 000 52 872 Sgm
(Proprietary) Limited

58. Tmperial Flaxi Fleet Cape Town Razorblade Properties 26 000 52 556 Sqm
(Proprictary) Limited

59. Imperial Specialised No. 14, Plot 23/24, Oniru Estale  Messrs Afisu A. OMabimtan $2 208 7 192 Sqm
Freight {Nigeria) Victoria 1sland. Lagos, Nigeria
(Proprietary) Limited

60. Imperial Fleet No. 209/9745, Accacia Court Hexmead Investments KES 90 000 10 190 Sqm
Services (East Africa) Mwingi Road, Kileleshwa Limited
{Proprietary) Limited Nairobi, Kenya

61. Imperial Fleet Apartment AS, Flot 100 EDBF & GD Construction $2 300 8 188 Sgm
Services (Tanzania) Msansani Area, Uganda Avenue Limited
(Proprietary} Limited Dar es Salaam. Tanzania

82. Imperial Fleet Unit No. 7, ¢/o Luther and Ausas Business Enterprises 15 112 10 151 Sqm
Services {(Namibia) Liliencron Streets, Windhoek Fourteen {Proprietary} Limited
(Proprietary) Limited Namibia

63. Imperial Fleet Unit 27, Cooper Centre, Lot 383 Santos Properties 4 500 3 75 Sqm
Services {Swaziland) of Farm 2, Mbabane, Swaziland  (Proprietary) Limited
(Proprietary) Limited

84. Imperial Fleet Plot 14453, Kamushongu Road  Western Industrial Estate 19 731 8 1218 Sqm
Services (Bolswana} Corner Gaborone West, (Proprietary) Limited
(Proprietary) Limited Botswana

65. Imperial Fleet Corner Kingsway and Department of Postal Services 16 743 57 560 Sqm
Services {Lesotho) Moshoeshoe Roads,
(Proprietary) Limited Maseru, Lesotho

66. Imperial Fleet PloL 12274 -~ 5/6 and 9 Masery Industrial Property Holdings 24 293 34 1 429 Sqm
Services (Lesothe) Estates, Moshoeshoe Road (Proprietary) Limited
{Proprietary) Limited Maseru, Lesctho

67. Imperial Fleet 361 Ha-Thetsane, Maseru Coller & Yeats (Proprietary) 8 050 9 180 Sqm
Services (Lesotho) Lesotho Limited
{Proprictary) Limited

68. Imperial New Holland 29 Cabernet Road Just Letting Property 33 088 28 1 036 Sgm
Equipment {Proprietary)
Limited Saxenburg Park Rental Management

69. Imperial New Holland 18 Suzuka Road, Westmead Woad-Wood Praperty 43 320 27 750 5gm
Equipment (Proprietary)
Limited Pinetown Investmeni Company CC

70. lmperial New Holland 59 Kempston Road, Sidwell Franscesca and Pieter Bekker 59 B50 12 100 Sqm
Equipment {Proprictary)
Limited Family Trust

71. tmperial Incorporated 212 Hendrik Verwoerd Drive Imperial Properties - Auerbach 171 538 18 2.4231 Ha

a division of Imperial
Group (Proprietary)
Limited

Randburg
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Annexure 12

Corporate Governance and King Code

33. INTRODUCTION
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In addition to the main board, the company will have the following committees to ensure that proper
corporate governance and management of risks takes place.

33.1

33.2

Board

The company has a unitary board structure with the chairperson and the majorily of direciors
being non-executive. The role of the chairman and chief executive officer will be separated and
performed by different individuals.

Directors are appointed on the basis of skill, experience and their level of contribution to, and their
impact on, the activities of the group. The board decides on the appointment of directors based on
recommendations from the Remuneration and Nominations Committee, New directors are provided
with formal induction material to facilitate their understanding of the group.

At least one third of the non-executive direclors retire by rotation each year and stand for re-
election at the Annual General Meeting in accordance with the Articles of Association. In addition,
the re-appoiniment of directors appointed during the year is submitied to the Annual General
Meeting for confirmation

The board of directors is responsible for setting the direction of the group through the
establishment of strategic objectives and key policies. Board meetings are held at least quarterly
with additional meetings called as and when necessary. The quorum for meetings is the majority
of directors. In addition, other senior executives are invited o ailtend meetings as and when
required, Lo ensure comprehensive reporting to the board.

The responsibilities of the board include issues of strategic direction, business plans and annual
budgets, major acquisitions and disposals, changes to the board on recommendalion from the
remuneration and nominations committee and other matters having a material effect on the group
or required by statute.

Board members are required to regularly declare any interest that they might have in transactions
with the group.

All directors are given access to such information as is needed to carry out their duties and
responsibilities fully and effectively. Furthermore, all directors are entitled to seek independent
professional advice about the affairs of the group, at the company’s expense.

Executive committee

This committee is responsible for:

* Devising group strategy for recommendation to the main board of directors and to implement
the strategies and policies approved by the board; and

* Managing the business and affairs of the Group.

The committee consists of the Divisional Executive Directors and meets at least once a month, and
in future will be appointed by the board.

The role of the chairman and chief executive officer will be separated and be performed by different
individuals.

The Executive committee will comprise the folowing individuals:

* Walter Hill - Chief Executive Officer;

* Erich Clarke — Chief Financial Officer;

* Michael Barnes - Chief Executive Oificer Contract Mining and Plant Rental;

* Jacqui Carr — Chief Executive Officer of Passenger and Commercial;

* Niall Lynch - Strategy and Business Development,;

* Henk Maree - Chief Operating Officer Construction and Mining Equipment;

= Gary Neubert — Managing Direclor of Industrial Equipment; and

* Shumani Tshifularo — Managing Director of Passenger and Commercial (Rest of Africa).



33.3

33.4

Audit Committee

This committee will be responsible for overseeing the external and internal audit functions as well
as compliance with accounting standards.

The Group Audit Committee will consist of three independent non-execultive directors, one of whom
will be appointed as chairman. The quorum is the majority of members. Certain executive directors,
the group internal audit executive and the external auditors will be invited to attend meetings, In
addition, members of executive management, including those involved in risk management and
control and finance also will attend meetings when appropriale.

The external and internal auditors will have unrestricted access to all audit committees and attend
meetings to report on their findings and to discuss accounting, auditing, internal control and
financial reporting matters.

Risk Committee

The board is responsible for the risk management process in the Group. The risk committee sets
the risk siralegy and ensures that a risk management process is in place. Eqstra will aim to
implement a risk identificalion and assessment methodology aligned with best-practice
requirements to identify, assess and monitor risks at strategic, business and process levels.

The assessment process will identify both negatives and areas of opportunity, where effeciive risk
management can be turned into a compelitive advantage. Any risk taken is to be considered within
the company’s risk appelite. Material issues and circumstances that could adversely impact on the
company’s repulation and financial affairs will be considered to constitule unacceptable risk.

The decentralised structure of the Group consists of three major divisions and therefore the overal)
company risk is spread and minimised. The management of risk predeminantly takes place in the
divisions, and the responsibility and accountability largely remains in the divisional management
structures. The risk committee will formalise and standardise this process by guiding management
and assessing their effectiveness on risk management. The system of internal control that already
exists in all key operations is tailored to suit the specific circumstances of each business unit. The
risk committee will explicitly focus on the following risk areas — disaster recovery, credit risk, legal
risk and reputation risk.

The King 11 Report describes risk management as the identificalion and evaluation of actual and
potential areas of risk as they pertain to a company, followed by a procedure of termination,
transfer, acceptance (tolerance) or mitigation of each risk. The Group’s risk management process
therefore utilises internal control as a measure to mitigate and control risk.

In establishing the risk management process and internal controls, the commitiee will:

* consider whal the company’s risks are and how they have been identified, evaluated and
controlled;

* assess the effectiveness of the related process of risk management and, particularly, reports of
significant failings or weaknesses in the process;

* consider if the necessary action is being taken timeously to rectify any significant failings or
weaknesses; and

* consider whether the results obtained from the review process indicate that more extensive
monitoring is reqguired.

This committee also has the responsibility for overseeing the mandate for credit granting within
Egstra. This will include the following key functions:

¢ credit granting and delegated authorisation levels; and

* the review of concentration limits to customers and industries.

The Risk Commitiee is also responsible for ensuring that adequale insurance cover is maintained
for the various assets categories held within each of the divisions. When assets are leased to
customers, the customer is required to take comprehensive insurance on the assets and provide
Eqgstra with proof of this insurance cover. To the extent assets are owned by Egstra directly,

insurance will be oblained from the Regeni Insurance Company, which is part of the Imperial
Group.

125




126

33.5

33.6

Asset and Liability Committee

The Group Asset and Liability Committee (“ALCO™) will be appointed by the board and will consist
of two Executive Directors, one of whom is the CFO, one Non-Executive Director, and the Group
Treasurer. The AL.CO will be responsible for the funding strategy, liquidity management, inierest
rate strategy, foreign currency strategy.

Remuneration and Nomination Committee

The primary objective of the Remuneration Committee will be to develop the reward stirategy for the
company. The committee will consist solely of non-executives. It will be responsible for:

* evaluating the performance of Execultive Directors;

« recommending remuneration packages for Executive Directors and sentor management,
including, but not limited to, basic salary, benefits in kind, performance based incentives,
pension and other benefits;

* recommending policy relating to the company’s bonus and incentive schemes;
* recommending the basis for Non-Executive Directors' fees;

* reviewing annual salary increases,
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Imperial Holdings Limited

- L] - L]
Imperial Holdings Limited
{Incorporated in the Republic of South Africa)
(Registration number: 1946/021048/06)

Ordinary share code: IPL 1SIN: ZAEQQOO67211
Preference share cede: IPLP ISIN: ZAEQOOD88078

(“Imperial” or “the Company”)

A circular to Imperial shareholders relating to the proposed
distribution of all the shares held by Imperial in Eqstra to
Imperial ordinary shareholders, in the entitlement ratio of 1:1, in
terms of section 90 of the Companies Act and in accordance with
section 46 of the Income Tax Act;

including:

* a notice of combined general meeting (yellow); and

»

a form of proxy for the combined general meeting (blue) (for nse
by certificated shareholders and dematerialised shareholders
with “own name” registration only);

and also relating to:
¢ the amendment of the articles of association of Imperial;

¢ proposed amendments to the Imperial Executive Share Purchase
Scheme and the Imperial Bonus Right Scheme; and

¢ buy-out of MCC minority shareholders.

20 March 2008

This circular is being mailed together with the Egstra pre-listing statement
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Action required by Imperial shareholders

The definitions and interpretations set oul on pages 4 to 7 of this circular apply to this section on action
required by Imperial sharehoclders.

Please take careful note of the following provisions regarding the action required by Imperial
shareholders:

If you are in any doubt as to what action to take, please consult your CSDP, broker, attorney, banker or other
professional advisor immediately.

A combined general meeting of Imperial shareholders will be held at 10:00 on Friday, 18 April 2008, at
Imperial Place, Jeppe Quondam, 79 Boeing Road East, Bedfordview, Gauteng, to consider and, if deemed fit,
to pass, inter alia, the ordinary resolution required to implement the unbundling. A notice convening the
combined general meeting is attached to and forms part of Lhis circular.

Imperial preference shareholders and holders of Imperial deferred ordinary shares as well as Imperial
preferred ordinary shares will be entitled to attend and vote on the applicable special and ordinary
resolutions proposed at the combined general meeting. These shareholders will, however, nol be entitled to
participate in the unbundling and will accordingly, not receive any unbundled Egstra ordinary shares. These
shareholders must follow the procedures discussed in paragraph 1 below in order to exercise their vote at
the combined general meeting.

1. Action required by Imperial shareholders regarding the combined general meeting

1.1 If you have dematerialised your Imperial shares other than with “own name” registration:

1.1.1 Voting at the combined general meeting

1.1.1.1 Your CSDP or broker should contact you to ascertain how you wish Lo cast your vote
at the combined general meeting and thereafter to cast your vole in accordance with
your instructions.

1.1.1.2 If you have not been conlacted by your CSDP or broker, it is advisable for you to
contact your CSDP or broker and furnish it with your voting instructions.

1.1.1.3 If your CSDP or broker does not obtain voting instructions from you, it will be
obliged to vote in accordance with the instructions contained in the custody
agreement concluded between you and your CSDP or broker.

1.1.1.4 You must not complete the attached form of proxy (blue),

1.1.2 Attendance and representation at the combined general meeting

In accordance with the mandate between you and your CSDP or broker, you must advise your
CSDP or broker if you wish to attend the combined general meeting and your CSDF or broker
will issue the necessary letter of representation to you to attend the combined general
meeting.

1.2 Voting and attendance at the combined general meeting if you have not dematerialised your
Imperial shares or have dematerialised your Imperial shares with “own name” registration:

1.2.1 You may attend the combined general meeting in person and may vote at the combined
general meeting.

1.2.2 Alternatively, you may appoint a proxy to represent you at the combined general meeting by
completing the attached form of proxy (blue) in accordance with the instructions it contains
and return it to the transfer secretaries to be received by no later than 10:00 on Wednesday,
16 April 2008.

If you wish to dematerialise your Imperial shares, please contact your CSDP or broker.

If you have disposed of all of your Imperial shares, this circular should be handed to the purchaser of
such shares or the CSDP, broker, banker or other agent who disposed of your Imperial shares for you.

Additional copies of this circular, printed in English, will be made available at the Company’s registered
office.



Important dates and times

The definitions and interpretations set out on pages 4 to 7 of this circular apply to this section on important

dates and times.

2008

Post circular on

Last day for the receipt of forms of proxy for the combined general meeting
by 10:00 on

Combined general meeting to be held at Imperial Place Jeppe Quondam,
79 Boeing Road East, Bedfordview at 10:00 on

Results of the combined general meeting released on SENS on
Results of the combined general meeting published in the press on

Last day to trade in Imperial ordinary shares on the JSE fo participate
in the unbundling on

Imperial ordinary shares trade “ex” their entitlement to Egstira shares on

Imperial ordinary shareholders commence trading their unbundled Eqgstra shares
(the JSE code will be EQS and the ISIN will be ZAEC00117123) on

Announcement of specified ratio in respect of the apportionment of the
cost/base cost of Eqstra for taxation/CGT purposes on or about

Record date to participate in the unbundling on

Dematerialised Imperial ordinary shareholders will have their aceounts with their
CSDP or hroker updated with the unbundled Egstra shares on

Share certificates in respect of the unbundled Egstra shares will be posted, by
registered post, at the risk of the certificated Imperial ordinary shareholder
concerned, to certificated Imperial ordinary shareholders on or about

Thursday, 20 March

Wednesday, 16 April

Friday, 18 April

Friday, 18 April

Monday, 21 April

Friday. 9 May

Monday, 12 May

Monday, 12 May

Wednesday, 14 May

Friday, 16 May

Monday, 19 May

Monday, 19 May

Notes:

1. These dates and times are subject to change. Any material change will be released on SENS and published in the press.

Any reference to time is a reference to South African time.

2, No dematerialisation or rematerialisation of Imperial ordinary share certificales may take place between Monday,

12 May 2008 and Friday, 16 May 2008, both days inclusive.



Definitions and interpretations

In this circular, unless the context indicates otherwise:

- reference to the singular shall include the plural and vice versa;

- words and expressions denoting one gender include the other;

- words and expressions denoting natural persons include legal persons and associations of persons; and

-~ the words and expressicns in the first column have the meanings stated opposite them in the second

column.
“BEE”
“Bonus Scheme”
“business day”
“certificated shareholders”
“CGT”
“CIPRO”

“circular” or “this circular”

“combined general meeting”

“common monetary area”
“Companies Act”

“CSDP”

“debenture holders”

“debenture trust deed”

“dematerialisation” or
“demalerialised”

“demalerialised Imperial shares”

“demalerialised shareholders”

“directors”

Black Economic Empowerment;

the Imperial Bonus Right Scheme;

any day other than a Saturday, Sunday or public holiday in South Africa;
shareholders who hold certificated Imperial shares;

Capital Gains Tax in terms of the Income Tax Act;

Companies and Intellectual Property Registration Office;

this bound document, dated 20 March 2008, containing the circular to
Imperial shareholders regarding the unbundling, related party
agguisition in terms of the MCC minority transaction and providing
information on the ancillary transactions, including the annexures
hereto, the attached notice of combined general meeting and form of
proxy {blue),

the meeting of Imperial shareholders convened in terms of the notice of
combined general meeting attached to and forming part of this circular
to vote on the special and ordinary resolutions required to implement the
unbundling, which has been convened to take place at 10:00 on Friday,
18 April 2008 at Imperial Place Jeppe Quondam, 79 Boeing Road East,
Bedfordview;

South Africa, the Republic of Namibia and the Kingdoms of Lesotho and
Swaziland;

the Companies Act, 61 of 1973, as amended;

Central Securities Depository Participant appointed by an Imperial
shareholder for purposes of, and in regard to, dematerialisation in terms
of the Securities Services Act;

the holders of the debentures issued by Lereko Mobility;

the debenture trust deed concluded between Lereko Mobilily and the
trustee for the debenture holders, on 22 April 2005, as-amended, in terms
of the agreement conciuded between those parties on 25 February, 2008,
which amendment is subject to the approval of the debenture holders as
provided in paragraph 5.3 of this circular at a general meeting of
debenture holders which will be held prior to the combined general
meeting to consider the unbundling;

the process by which certificated shares are converted to or held in an
electronic form as uncertificated securities and recorded in the sub-
register of security holders maintained by a CSDP, after the physical
certificates have been validated and cancelled by the transfer secretaries
and captured onto the Strate system by the selected CSDP or broker and
the holding of securities is recorded electronically;

Imperial shares which have been dematerialised;
shareholders who hold dematerialised Imperial shares;

the directors of Imperial;



“documents of title”

“entitlement ratio”

“ENS”

“Eqstra”

“Egstra Group”

“Bgstra ordinary shares”

“excluded foreign Imperial
ordinary shareholders”

“Exchange Control Regulations”

“finalisation date”

*“foreign Imperial ordinary
shareholders”

“HEPS"
“IFRS”

“Imperial” or “the Company”

“Imperial board” or “the board”

“Imperial deferred ordinary
shares”

“Imperial Group” or “the group”
“Imperial ordinary shares”

“Imperial ordinary shareholders”

“Imperial preference shares”

“Imperial preference
shareholders”

“Imperial preferred ordinary
shares”

Imperial share certificates, certified transfer deeds, balance receipts or
any other documents of title to certificated Imperial shares acceptable to
Imperial;

one Egstra share for every one Imperial ordinary share held by an
Imperial ordinary shareholder at the close of business on the unbundling
record dale;

Edward Nathan Sonnenbergs Incorporated, (Registration number
2006/018200/21);

earnings per ordinary share;

Egstra Holdings Limited (Registration number 1998/011672/08), a public
company duly registered and incorporated in accordance with the laws of
South Africa, all of the issued ordinary shares of which will be listed on
the JSE based on the suspensive conditions of the unbundling being met;

Egstra and its subsidiaries and associates;

ordinary shares of par value 0.1 cent each in the ordinary share capital
of Egstra;

foreign Imperial ordinary sharehclders who, in terms of the laws and
regulations of their respective jurisdictions, may not receive unbundled
Egstra shares;

the Exchange Control Regulations, 1961, as amended, enforced in terms
of section 9 of the Currency and Exchanges Act, 9 of 1933, as amended;

the day by which the suspensive conditions in respect of the unbundling
are required to be fulfiled, including the last day by which the entitlement
ratio must be released on SENS, which is expected to be Friday,
2 May 2008;

Imperial ordinary shareholders who are resident in, or who are nationals
or citizens of, or who have a registered address in, countries other than
South Africa;

headline earnings per ordinary share;
International Financial Reporting Standards;

Imperial Holdings Limited (Registration number 1946/021048/08), a
public company duly registered and incorporalted in accordance with the
laws of South Africa, all of the issued Imperial ordinary shares and
Imperial preference shares of which are listed on the JSE;

the board of directors of Imperial;

issued deferred ordinary shares in Imperial of a par value of 4 cents each
held by Ukhamba, which convert to Imperial ordinary shares when
certain predetermined growth rates in headline earnings are achieved;

Imperial and any of its subsidiaries or associates from time {o time;

ordinary shares of par value 4 cents each in the issued share capital of
Imperial listed on the JSE;

holders of Imperial ordinary shares;

non-redeemable non-participating preference shares of a par value of
4 cenis each in the issued share capital of Imperial, listed on the JSE;

holders of Imperial preference shares;

issued preferred ordinary shares of a par value of 4 cenis each, issued to
Lereko Mobility, which rank pari passu in all respects with Imperial
ordinary shares in respect of voting and which will automatically convert
into Imperial ordinary shares on 30 September 2010 on a one-for-one
basis;



“Imperial shareholders”

“Income Tax Act”
“JIBAR"

“JSE”

“last practicable date”

“Lereko Mobility”

“listing date”

“Listings Requirements”
ﬂMCCM

“MCC minorities”
“MCC minority transaction”
“MCC minority consideration

shares”

“MLSA”

“NAC”

“NACM”
“NAV!)
“Nozala”

“Rand” or “R”
“Rand Merchant Bank” or “RMB”

“record date”

holders of Imperial ordinary shares, Imperial preference shares, Imperial
deferred ordinary shares and Imperial preferred ordinary shares;

the Income Tax Act, 58 of 1962, as amended;

the Johannesburg Interbank Agreed Rate, being the mid-market rate for
deposits in Rand displayed on the appropriate page of the Reuters screen,

the JSE Limited (Registration number 2005/022939/06), a company duly
registered and incorporated with limited liability under the laws of South
Africa and licensed to operate an exchange under the Securities Services
Act;

the laslt practicable date before the finalisation of this circular, being
11 March 2008;

Lereko Mobility (Proprietary) Limited (Registration number
2004/034154/07), whose ordinary shares are owned 498% by Imperial and
51% by Lereko Consortium, established for the purposes of acquiring and
holding the Imperial preferred ordinary shares and converted Imperial
ordinary shares, as the case may be;

the proposed date of the initial listing of Egstra on the JSE, which is
expected to be on Monday, 12 May 2008, when Imperial ordinary
shareholders commence trading their unbundled Egstra shares;

the Listings Requirements of the JSE, as amended from time to time;

the MCC group of companies consisting of Civil Finance Company
(Proprietary) Limited (Registration number 1980/001068/07), Explotech
Marketing Services (Proprietary) Limited (Registration number
1975/003533/07). Five Six Seven Glen Austin (Proprietary) Limited
{Registration number 1980/01068/07), MCC Coniracts (Proprietary)
Limited (Registration number 1983/008084/07), Mutual Construction
Company (Transvaal) (Proprietary) Limited (Registration number
1988/002721/07), Dorstland Earth Moving (Proprietary) Limited
(Registration number 1990/001/343/07) and MCC Mining (Proprietary)
Limited (Registration number 1868/012783/07);

collectively. the minorily shareholders in the issued share capital of the
relevant MCC company;

the proposed buy-out of the MCC minorities in exchange for shares in the
listed Egstra;

as part of the MCC minority transaction, issuing the MCC minorities
shareholders with new shares in the listed Eqgstra;

Merrill Lynch South Africa (Proprietary) Limited (Regisiration number
1995/001805/07), a private company duly registered and incorporated in
accordance with the laws of South Africa;

National Airways Corporation (Proprietary) Limited (Registration
number 1945/019919/07), a private company duly registered and
incorporated in accordance with the laws of South Africa;

nominal annual compounded monthly;
net asset value;

Nozala Investments (Proprietary) Limited (Registration number
1996/004733/07), a private company duly registered and incorporated in
accordance with the laws of South Africa;

South African Rand, the official currency of South Africa;

Rand Merchant Bank, a division of FirstRand Bank Limited (Registration
number 1929/001225/06), a public company duly registered and
incorporated with limited liability in accordance with the company laws
of South Africa;

the date on which Imperial ordinary shareholders are required tc be
registered as such in the Imperial registers in order to participate in the
unbundling. which is expected to be on Friday, 16 May 2008;



“registered office”

“Reporting accountants
and auditors”

“BAICA”

“Becurities Services Act”
“SENS”

“Share Purchase Scheme”
“South Africa”

“STC”

“Strate”

“subsidiary”

“guspensive conditions of
the unbundling”

“TINA ad

“Tourvest”

“transaclions”

“transfer secretaries”

“TWB”

“Ukhamba”

“unbundled Egstra shares”

*“unbundling”

“unbundling agreements”

“unbundling record date”

“US$”

“YAT”

the registered office of Imperial, Imperial Place Jeppe Quondam,
79 Boeing Road East, Bedfordview;

Deloitte & Touche, auditors of Imperial;

The South African Institute of Chartered Accountants;
the Securities Services Act, 36 of 2004, as amended,;
the Securities Exchange News Service of the JSE;

the Imperial Executive Share Purchase Scheme;

the Republic of South Africa;

Secondary Tax on Companies;

Strate Limited (Registration number 1998/022242/06), a company duly
registered and incorporated with limited liability under the laws of South
Africa and registered as a central securities depository in terms of the
Securities Services Act responsible for the electronic custody and
settlement system;

a subsidiary company as defined in section 1(3) of the Companies Act,

the suspensive conditions of the unbundling summarised in
paragraph 5.3 of this circular;

tangible net asset value;

Tourism Investment Corporation Limited (Registration number
1996/008144/06), a public company incorporated in accordance with the
laws of South Africa, all of the issued ordinary shares of which are listed
on the JSE;

proposed listing of Egstra on the JSE followed by the unbundling of 100%
of Imperial’s interest in Egstra, the replication of the Imperial BEE
structure in Egstra and the buy-out of the MCC minorities in exchange
for shares in the listed Eqstra;

Computershare Investor Services (Proprietary) Limited (Registration
number 2004/003647/07), a private company duly registered and
incorporated in South Africa;

Tugendhaft Wapnick Banchetti & Partners, legal advisers and attorneys
to Imperial;

Ukhamba Holdings (Proprietary)} Limited (Registration number
1998/017702/07), a private company incerporated in South Africa;

Egstra shares received by the Imperial ordinary shareholders pursuant to
the unbundling;

the distribution to Imperial ordinary shareholders of 212 129 870 Egstra
shares, equating to 100% of the entire issued share capital of Egstra,
prior to the share issue to MCC minorities referred to in paragraph 4 of
this circular, in compliance with section 90 of the Companies Act and in
lerms of section 46 of the Income Tax Act;

the sale of business agreements, sale of shares agreements and other
transaction documents in terms of which the Egsira Group acquired from
the Imperial Group the businesses and subsidiaries referred to in
paragraph 2 of this circular as a prelude to the unbundling, including the
amendment of the BEE transactions concluded by Imperial with
Ukhamba and Lereko Mobility, signed on 25 February, 2008;

the record date for the unbundling, expected to be Friday, 16 May 2008;

United States dollar, the official currency of the United States of America;
and

Value-Added Tax.
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Circular to Imperial shareholders

1. Imtroduction

In the detailed cautionary released on SENS on 27 February 2008 and published in the press on
28 February 2008, Imperial announced that it would seek shareholder approval to unbundle Egstra,

The purpose of this circular is to provide Imperial shareholders with pertineni information regarding
the terms and conditions of the unbundling, the amendment of the Imperial articles of association,
proposed amendments to the Share Purchase Scheme and the Bonus Scheme, buy-out of MCC minorities
and to convene a combined general meeting of Imperial shareholders in terms of the notice of general
meeting attached to and forming part of this circular to consider and, if deemed fit, pass, with or without
muodification, the special and ordinary resolutions required to implement the transaclions.

2. Rationale for the unbundling

Through its decentralised approach, Imperial has proven its ability to create businesses of considerable
scale and with the maturity to grow independently and attract their own debt and equity investor bases.
The Imperial board is of the opinion that Egstra, which comprises Imperial Fleet Services, Imperial Flexi
Fleet, Saficon Industrial Equipment, Impact Handling (UK), MCC and the distributorships for Terex and
New Holland earthmoving equipment (previously being the Leasing and Capital Equipment division of
Imperial), being a business of significant scale which lends itself to a high degree of financial leverage,
has reached thal point.

The capital structure of Imperial, which is maintained in accordance with the rating parameters of its
debt capital marketl funding programme, does not allow Imperial {o attract the requisite debt funding to
continue to fund the robust growth that is being experienced by Egstra — notably in the mining and
capital equipment business. The asset intensive nature of the Eqsira balance sheet and its stirong annuity
cash flow stream, allows this business to adopt and maintain substantially higher gearing parameters in
order 1o fund its growth on a sustainable basis.

Eqstra as a provider of earthmoving services and equipment is well-positicned as a supplier to the
mining and construction sectors. These sectors offer significant growth potential given global demand
for commodities and the South African infrastructural development curve. Furthermore, Egstra is an
established leasing company offering full lifecycle leasing services to the corporate sector, local and
national government. It had an asset base of approximately R8 billion at 25 June 2007, comprising
earthmoving and materials handling equipment, commercial and passenger vehicles.



The board believes that the unbundling will enhance shareholder value through:
« unlocking the growth potential of Eqgstra by structuring its balance sheet appropriately;

« unlocking more growth potential for Imperial by the elimination of the high capital demands of ihe
leasing business from ils portiolio of businesses;

« providing shareholders with direct exposure to a mining and infrastructure-related investment;
+ achieving sharper focus in the operations of the two listed entities; and

* an improved exposure of the intrinsic value of the two listed entities.

Future prospects of the Imperial Group

Subsequent to the unbundling, and the intended disposal of its aviation leasing businesses, Safair
(Proprietary) Limited, Air Contractors Limited and the 50% interest in Safair Lease Finance (Proprietary)
Limited and the disposal of its interest in Tourvest, which are referred to in paragraph 10 below, Imperial
will be simplified through the removal of its consolidated capital intensive quasi-banking activities.
It will, however, retain its exposure to vehicle related banking through its equily accounted share in
Imperial Bank, for which it has no funding vbligations. This will not only ensure management focus but
will also create a balance sheet with sufficient capital to pursue further new and related growth
opportunities.

The closure of the heavy truck assembly and distribution operations of Commercial Vehicle Holdings,
which was previously announced, eliminated another capital intensive business with the long working
capital cycle typical of that business. The group retains its truck dealerships, which are part of its vehicle
franchise operalions.

After the unbundling the group will operate in logistics in South Africa and Europe, car rental, and in
integrated motor vehicie importation. retailing and financial services. Its objective will be to capitalise on
the market leading positions and scale in these areas and enhance its exposure through organic and
acquisitive means. Enabled by the release of capital from the abovementiocned strategic initiatives,
expansion into new initiatives related to services and logistics will be explored. Diversification will be
aimed at service-related fields and areas of the economy where Imperial’s distribution, logistics and
financial services skills and platforms create an advantage.

Subsequent to the unbundling and disposals, Imperial will consist of three primary divisions, Logistics
and Transport, Car Rental and Related Tourism Services, and Retail Motor and Financial Services,
organised as follows:

Imperial
Logistics and Transport Car Rental and Related Retail Motor and
» Southern Africa Tourism Services Financial Services
+* Burope s Car Rental + Distribution
* Tourism Services * Motor Dealerships
* Insurance
s Imperial Bank JV

Acquisition of MCC minority interest

In anticipation of the unbundling, an agreement has been reached for Egstra to acquire, subject to the
suspensive conditions listed in paragraph 4.5 below, the interest of the MCC minorities in MCC by issuing
the minority shareholders with new shares in the listed Egstra. As a consequence, MCC minorities will
receive 46 260 000 shares in Eqsira, representing approximately 16% of the issued shares of Egstra as
consideration and MCC will be one of the largest business units in Egstra. The acquisition of the interest
of the MCC minorities in MCC will better position Egstra for growth as it simplifies and strengthens the
capital structure and aligns shareholder interests.
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4.2

4.3

Background on MCC

MCC specialises in opencast contracl mining of chrome, platinum, gold and base metals. MCC is an
indusiry leader in the opencast hard rock mining, environmental mining and planning, bulk
earthworks and ground rehabilitation. MCC will design and implement a mining plan and deliver
the final product at an economical cost per cubic meter or tonne. In-depth project planning,
rehabilitation, surface blasting, hard rock mining and ore recovery are all part of the complete
mining package, offered by MCC. MCC does not take any operational mining risk, which remains
with the mining company.

MCC offers one of the largest fleets of opencast mining equipment in South Africa. MCC's
commitment extends to provide drilling and blasting expertise by providing explosive technology
and products to support the mining and earthmoving industry. MCC's project management division
offers an all-in-one service, backed by the most sophisticated software and design expertise to assist
clients in assessing any job and recommending the right plant at the most economical cost per unit.
Project management is a service that is equipped with experienced qualified professionals. This
division has operated throughout Southern Africa with projects currenlly in South Africa,
Zimbabwe and Namibia.

Parties to the MCC minority transaction

MCC consists of Civil Finance Company (Proprietary) Limited, Explotech Marketing Services
(Proprietary) Limited, Five Six Seven Glen Austin (Proprietary) Limited, MCC Contracts
(Proprielary) Limited, Mutual Construction Company (Transvaal) (Proprietary) Limited, Dorstland
Earih Moving (Proprietary) Limited and MCC Mining (Proprietary) Limited.

The MCC minorities, collectively, refer to the minority shareholders in the issued share capital of
the relevant MCC company and consist of B M Coelzer, S D Coetzer, Topclass Ventures (Proprietary}
Limited (a company controlled by M R Barnes), Michael Reid Barnes Investments (Proprietary}
Limited (a company controlled by M R Barnes), T J Adams, R D Bethwaite, N M Claassen,
Newshelf 774 (Proprietary) Limited (a company controlled by Nozala) and J C Pretorius.

Related parties

Certain of the MCC minorilies are also directors of MCC companies and are, therefore, classified as
related parties as defined in the Listings Requirements. Consequently, a fairness opinion from an
independent professional expert acceptable to the JSE, required in terms of paragraph 10.4(f) of the
Listings Requirements, has been oblained.

Deloitte & Touche Corporate Finance has been appointed as independent professional expert to
opine on the fairness of the transaction to Imperial's shareholders and this opinion is contained in
Annexure 3 to this circular.

The relevant directors are as follows:

Effective interest in MCC minority

Director Directorship held in transaetion

M R Barnes MCC Contracts 68.5% of the MCC minority
(Proprietary) Limited consideration shares
Explotech Marketing Services 10.9% interest in Egstra with
(Proprietary) Limited 31 238 650 shares through Topclass
Mutual Construction Company Ventures {(Proprietary) Limited) and
(Transvaal) (Proprietary) 450 551 shares through Michael
Limited Reid Barnes Investmentis

ietary) Limited

Civil Finance Company (Proprictary) Limi
(Proprietary) Limited
Five Six Seven Glen Austin
{Proprietary) Limited
MCC Mining (Proprietary)
Limited

T J Adams MCC Contracts (Proprietary) 2.4% of the MCC minority

Limited

consideration shares

0.4% interest in Egstra with
1 118 400 shares




4.4

4.5

Effective interest in MCC minority

Director Directorship held in transaction
J C Pretorius MCC Contracls (Proprietary) 7.3% of the MCC minority
Limited consideration shares

1.29% interest in Eqstra with
3 355 200 shares

S Dakile-Hlongwane MCC Contracts (Proprietary) 17.9% of the MCC minority
(nominated by Nozala) Limited consideration shares
Mutual Construction Company 2.9% interest in Egstra with
{(Transvaal) (Proprietary) 8 272 000 shares held by Nozala
Limited through Newshelf 774 (Proprietary)
Limited
S D Coetzer Explotech Marketing Services 1.0% of the MCC minority
{Proprietary) Limited consideration shares
0.2% interest in Egstra with 442 200
shares
S Vos Mutual Construction Company 0.8% of the MCC minority

(Transvaal) (Proprietary) Limited consideration shares

0.1% interest in Eqgstra with 367 200
shares

N Claassen Mutual Construction Company 0.8% of the MCC minority
(Transvaal) (Proprietary) Limited consideration shares

0.1% interest in Egstra with 367 200
shares

R Bethwaite Mutual Construction Company 0.8% of the MCC minority
(Transvaal) (Proprietary) Limited consideration shares

0.1% interest in Egstra with 367 200
shares

The related parties will not be allowed to vote on the approval for the MCC minority transaction, in
accordance with the Listings Requirements.

Pricing

The original agreement between Imperial and the MCC minorities provided for a buy-out in 2010 al
a price based on a pre-determined formula. The parties have agreed, based on the terms of thal
agreement and also the anticipated performance of MCC, that a value of R1.157 billion would be
placed on the 49.9% interesi currently owned by the minority shareholders. In consideration for
their shares in MCC, MCC mincrities will be issued shares in the listed company, Eqstra. Based on
the agreed terms, MCC minorities will hold approximately 16% equity interest in Eqgstira.

The purchase price payable shall be discharged through the issuance of 46 260 000 Eqstra shares,
subject tc the fulfilment of the conditions precedent (contained in paragraph 4.5 below), by the
allotment and issue to each MCC minority of the relevant number of Eqstra shares which equates
to the value in Rand, of the relevant shareholders’ proportion at the listing date, which is expected
to be on or about Monday, 12 May 2008.

Conditions precedent

The MCC mincrity transaection is subject to and conditional upon the fulfilment of the following
conditions precedent:

* the approval of the unbundling by the board of directors of Imperial;

* the approval of the MCC minority transaction by the shareholders of Imperial, excluding the
related pariies, in general meeting;

» the final pre-listing statement does not differ in any material respect from the drafl pre-listing
statement, so as to impact adversely on the value of the minority specified shares;

» the approval of the Egstra unbundling by the shareholders of Imperial in general meeting; and
¢ the listing of the Egstra shares on the JSE.

13
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The unbundling

Imperial will, subject to the fulfiiment of the suspensive conditions of the unbundling, distribute,
in compliance with section 90 of the Companies Act and, in terms of section 46 of the Income Tax Act,
212 129 870 Egstra shares to the Imperial ordinary shareholders in proportion to such Imperial ordinary
shareholders’ ordinary shareholding in Imperial.

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

The entitlement ratio

At the last practicable date, the number of ordinary shares in the issued share capital of Imperial
was 212 129 870. At the record date, the number of Egstra shares which will be held by Imperial
will be the same number of ordinary shares as the issued share capital of Imperial at that date.
Following the fulfilment of the suspensive conditions of the unbundling (set out in paragraph 5.3
below), each Imperial ordinary shareholder will receive cne Egstra share for each Imperial ordinary
share held on the unbundling record date.

Tax relief available for the unbundling transactions

Imperial intends to rely on the provisions of section 46 of the Income Tax Act for the unbundling.
This section provides relief from CGT and STC which would ordinarily be payable in respect of a
transaction of this nature. This seclion is subject to the proviso that the tax relief is not available
for distributions to non-qualifying shareholders. It is not anticipated that Imperial will have non-
qualifying shareholders, but the effect is that if Imperial has non-qualifying shareholders on the
last date to trade, CG'T and STC will be payable in respect of the distribution of the Egstra shares to
those shareholders. Immperial ordinary shareholders are referred to Annexure 6 to this circular for
information on the taxation consequences relating to the unbundling.

Suspensive conditions of the unbundling

The unbundling is condilional upon the following suspensive conditions, which remain
outstanding as at the last practicable date, being fulfiled:

* approval by the Imperial shareholders in general meeting of ihe variocus special and ordinary
resolutions required to implement the unbundling and amend the articles of association of
Imperial to accommodate the unbundling as set cut in the notice of combined general meeting
annexed to this circular;

* approval by special resolution of the debenture holders in general meeting of the amendment of
the debenture trust deed to accommodate the unbundling;

* the registration by CIPRO of the special resolutions referred to above;
= the listing of Egstra shares on the JSE; and

¢ articles of associalion of Egsira and its subsidiaries are approved by the JSE at least six days
prior to the last day to trade.

Listing of the Eqstra shares

It is Egstra’s intention that, subject to the fulfilment of the conditions precedent, Eqstra shares will
be listed on the JSE on the listing date, subject to JSE approval.

Financial information relating to the unbundling

5.5.1 Pro forma financial effects of the unbundling on Imperial

The table below sets out the unaudiled pro forma financial effects of the unbundling on
Imperial’s unaudited basic EPS, fully diluted basic EPS, HEPS, fully diluted HEPS, NAV per
ordinary share and TNAV per ordinary share based on the unaudited results of Imperial for
the six months ended 31 December 2007.

The unaudited pro forma financial effects are the responsibility of the directors and have
been prepared for illustrative purposes only to provide information about how the Imperial
unbundling may have affected the financial position of Imperial on the relevant reporting
date. Due to the fact that the unaudited pro forma financial effects are based on the
unaudited interim results, this may not be a fair reflection of Imperial’s financial position
after the implementation of the unbundling.




5.6

8.5.2

Unaundited Unaudited

unadjusted adjusted

Imperial Imperial

before the after the
unbundling unbundling Change
{cents) (cents) (%)
EPS (289.6) (402.8) (39.0)
Fully diluted EPS (246.3) (349.9) (42.1)
HEPS 535.5 440.1 {(17.8)
Fully diluted HEPS 510.0 4225 (17.2)
NAV per share 5 569.0 4 799.3 (13.8)
TNAV per share 5077.4 4 337.3 (14.6)

Imperial ordinary shareholders are referred to Annexure 1 to this circular which contains
detailed notes relating to the pro forma financial effects set out in the table above.

Pro forma financial effects of the transactions on Egstra

The table below sets out the unaudiled pro formna financial effects on Egstra of the
unbundling and the accounting impact of the BEE and MCC minorily transactions, based on
the unaudited resultis of Egstra for the six months ended 31 December 2007.

The unaudited pro forma financial effects are the responsibility of the Egstra directors and
have been prepared for illustrative purposes only to provide information about how the listed
transactions may have affected the financial position of the Eqstra shareholders. Due to their
nature, the unaudited pro forma financial effects may nol be a fair reflection of Eqgstra’s
financial position after implementation of the unbundling and related transactions. For
additional information on the impact on Egstra. please refer to the Eqgstra pre-listing
statement, which was mailed together with this circular.

Unaudited
unadjusted
Eqgstra
before the
unbundling
{cents)

Unaudited
adjusted
Egsira
after the
unbundling
(cents)

Change
(%)

EPS
HEPS
NAV per share

935.5
80.1
559.3
532.8

95.9
83.3
709.4
699.7

0.5
4.1
26.8
31.3

5.5.3

5.5.4

TNAV per share

Imperial ordinary shareholders are referred to Annexure 1 to this circular which contains
detailed notes relating to the pro forma financial effects set out in the table above.

Pro forma income statement and balance sheet

The pro forina income statement and balance sheet of Imperial, following the unbundling, is
set out in Annexure 1 to this circular.

Independent reporting accountants’ report on the pro forma financial information regarding
the unbundling on Imperial

The independent reporting accountants’ report on the pro forma financial information
contemplated in paragraphs 5.5.1 and 5.5.2 above is set out in Annexure 2 to this circular.

Combined general meeting

The combined general meeting will be held at Imperial Place, Jeppe Quondam, 79 Boeing Road East,
Bedfordview, Gauteng at 10:00 on Friday, 18 April 2008 to consider, and if deemed fit, to pass the
special and cordinary resclutions required to implement the unbundling.

Imperial shareholders are referred to the notice of combined general meeting for detail on the
special and ordinary resolutions to be proposed at the combined general meeting and the action
required by Imperial shareholders section of this circular for information on the procedure to be
followed by Imperial shareholders in order to exercise their vote at the combined general meeting.

13
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5.7

5.8

5.9

5.10

Directors’ opinions and recommendations

The Imperial board has considered the terms of the unbundling and recommends that Imperial
shareholders vote in favour of the special and ordinary resolutions required to implement the
unbundling.

The members of the Imperial board, who hold shares in Imperial, have undertaken to vote in favour
of the special and ordinary resoclutions required to implement the unbundling in respect of all of
the Imperial shares held by them.

The Imperial board has also considered the terms of the MCC minority transaction including, inter
alia. the fairness opinion, the texi of which is set out in Annexure 3 to this circular and
recommends that shareholders vote in favour of the ordinary resolutions required to implement the
MCC minority transaction.

The members of the Imperial board have undertaken (o vole in favour of the ordinary resolutions
required to implement the MCC minority transaction in respect of all of the Imperial shares held by
them.

Foreign Imperial ordinary shareholders

The distribution of Eqstra shares to foreign Imperial ordinary shareholders in terms of the
unbundling, may be affected by the laws of such foreign Imperial ordinary shareholders’ relevant
jurisdiction. Those foreign Imperial ordinary shareholders should consull their professional
advisers as to whether they require any governmental or other consent or need {0 observe any other
formalities to enable them to take up their rights.

Foreign Imperial ordinary shareholders are referred to Annexure 5 to this circular for further
information on the restrictions applicable to foreign Imperial ordinary shareholders.

Exchange control

Imperial ordinary shareholders whose registered address is outside the common monetary area
will need to comply with the Exchange Control Regulations contained in Annexure 5 1o this circular.

If Imperial ordinary shareholders are in any doubt as tc what action to take they should consult
their professional advisers.

Impact of the unbundling on the existing Imperial share incentive schemes

Two of the share schemes that Imperial currently has in place, require to be amended in order to
accommodate the unbundling:

* the Share Purchase Scheme; and
+ the Bonus Scheme.

The Share Purchase Scheme enables selected employees of the Imperial Group to purchase Imperial
ordinary shares. The purchase price, together with interest thereon, is payable by the participant
over an extended period and the shares are pledged by the participant to the trustees of the scheme
as securily for the payment. The scheme was designed to focus management perfoermance on
creating shareholder value. The current rules of the Share Purchase Scheme do not make specific
provision for a transaction of the nature of the unbundling.

The Bonus Scheme is a typical “phantom share scheme” which enables Imperial to award selected
employees of the Imperial Group the right to receive a cash bonus based on the appreciation in the
number of notional Imperial shares awarded o the participant, from the time of the award to the
date of the bonus payment which is to occur after a period of several years. The scheme was,
likewise, designed to focus management performance on creating shareholder value. The current
rules of the Bonus Scheme do not make specific provision for a transaction of the nature of the
unbundling.

The Imperial board is of the view that participants in the schemes should not be advantaged or
prejudiced by the unbundling, and should be placed in a position after the unbundling that leaves
them as close as possible to the position that they would have been in, had it not been for the
unbundling. Specifically, as well, in respect of the Bonus Scheme, the bonus payment obligation to
the participant in terms of that scheme ought to be transferred from Imperial to Egstra, in respect
of participants who were granted bonus rights prior to the unbundling and who will be employed
by Egstra after the unbundling. Accordingly, the directors have proposed the following
amendments to the two schemes:



5.10.1 The Share Purchase Scheme

* The scheme is to be amended Lo provide that the Egstra shares which will be received by
a participant in terms of the unbundling will be subject to the pledge referred to in
paragraph 5.10 above; and

+ al the same time, in order to enlist the consent of the participants to the amendment
proposed above, certain provisions of the scheme which, it is considered, are pregjudicial
to participants and detract from the purpose and objective of the scheme, will be
amended, essentially to permit an extension of the time period for payment of the
purchase price in circumstances where the aggregate of the market value of the Imperial
shares and Egstra shares, which are the subject of the pledge, is less than the
cutstanding debt.

5.10.2 The Bonus Scheme

e In respect of offers granted and accepted by participants prior to the unbundling, the
bonus is to be calculated with reference to the market value at the bonus payment date
of the Imperial notional shares linked to the bonus and an equivalent number of Egstra
notional shares, less the market value of the Imperial notional shares at the date of the
grant of the bonus right, so that the participants are not disadvantaged by the
unbundling; and

+ all participants who were granted bonus rights prior to the unbundling, and who,
consequent upon the unbundling, are employed by Egstra, will be paid their bonus
entitlement by Egstra instead of by Imperial.

In order to give effect to these proposals, the Share Purchase Scheme and the Bonus Scheme require
to be amended in the respects set out in Ordinary Resolution Number 3 and Ordinary Resolution
Number 4 contained in the notice of combined general meeling attached to and forming part of this
circular, to which amendments the participants under the schemes have consented, their consent
being a requirement in terms of the schemes. The directors will not vote their respective shares in
Imperial on the special and ordinary resolutions relating to the amendments to the above schemes
in which they have an interest.

Impact of the unbundling on the Imperial BEE arrangements

Imperial has implemented two BEE equity ownership transactions to date, one with Ukhamba and
the other with Lereko Mobility. It is the intention for both Ukhamba and Lereko Mobility to be
placed in the same economic position post the unbundling as they were in before the unbundling.
The effect on the Ukhamba and Lereko Mobility BEE transactions is deall with below. In order to
accommodate the unbundling, the terms and conditions of Imperial’s deferred ordinary shares and
preferred ordinary shares will be amended in terms of the special resolutions amending Articles 55
and 56 of the articles of association of Imperial, which form part of the notice of combined general
meeting attached to this circular.

5.11.1 Ukhamba

At the last practicable date, Ukhamba held 5 973 421 ordinary shares and 16 781 968
deferred ordinary shares in Imperial. In terms of the unbundling, Ukhamba will receive
5 973 421 ordinary shares in Eqstra,

In order to ensure that Ukhamba is not disadvantaged by the unbundling, Ukhamba will
be offered to subscribe for 16 781 968 “A” deferred ordinary shares in Egstra at their par
value of 0.1 cent each. As a consequence, the hurdle rate which regulates the conversion
of the deferred ordinary shares to Imperial ordinary shares will be amended to exclude
Eqgstra while an equivalent hurdle rate, based on Eqgstra’s performance, will apply to the
Fqgstra “A” deferred ordinary shares.

Save as set out above, the salient terms and conditions of the Egstra “A” deferred ordinary
shares will be substantially the same as the current Imperial deferred ordinary shares,
except for the hurdle rates that govern their conversion into ordinary shares.

5.11.2 Lereko Mobility

Al the last practicable date, Lereko Mobility held 14 516 617 preferred ordinary shares in
Imperial. These Imperial preferred ordinary shares pay fixed coupons, which, in aggregate,
amount to 535 cents per annum per preferred ordinary share.

In order to implement the unbundling in the most efficient manner, Imperial has decided
not to change the preferred dividend of the preferred ordinary shares mm Imperial.
Therefore, Imperial will continue to pay the same fixed dividend coupons to the preferred
ordinary shareholders.
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5.12

5.11.3

However, in order to ensure that Lereko Mobility is not disadvantaged by the unbundling,
Lereko Mobility will, as part of the unbundling, be offered to subscribe for 14 516 617
“B” deferred ordinary shares in Egstira at their par value of 0.1 cent each.

The salient terms and conditions of the Eqstra “B” deferred ordinary shares in Egstra,
which will otherwise be substantially the same as the Imperial preferred ordinary shares,
will not entitle holders to a dividend in the normal course of events in the period up to, and
including, 30 September 2010. Accordingly, the Egstra “B” deferred ordinary shares to be
issued by Eqgstra to Lereko Mobility will have the following key features:

* they will not pay a regular dividend in the pericd up to, and including, 30 September 2010;
« they will convert on a one-for-one basis into Egstra ordinary shares on 30 September 2010;
¢ they will rank pari passu with Egstra ordinary shares in terms of voting; and

¢ they will be subject Lo a call option in favour of E¢stra, exercisable on 15 June 2015, over
a formula-determined number of converted shares, at their par value of 0.1 cent each.

Issue of unlisted voting instruments

Confirmation from an independent professional expert acceptable to the JSE is required in
terms of the Listings Requirements to indicate whether or not the issue of unlisted voling
instruments (“A” and “B” deferred ordinary shares) by Egstra to hoth Ukhamba and Lereko
Mobility is fair to Imperial shareholders.

Deloitte & Touche Corporate Finance has been appointed as the independent professional
expert {o opine on the fairness to Imperial’s shareholders of the issuance of unlisted voling

instruments and this opinion is contained in Annexure 4 to this circular.

Treasury shares

As a result of Imperial owning - through its subsidiary company Imperial Corporate Services (Piy}
Limited - a total of 23 864 456 Imperial ordinary shares, the company will receive 23 864 456
ordinary shares in Egstra, representing a stake of 8.2% of the issued share capital of Eqstra, upon the
unbundling of Eqgstra after taking into account the MCC minority transaction. Imperial is currently
evaluating a number of options {0 monetise this stake in the shori- to medium term, which options
include a disposal to a strategic buyer, a possible sale to a BEE buyer, or a capital market transaction.

Costs

The costs of the unbundling (excluding VAT) being borne by Imperial include the following:

Service Service
provider Amount
(R’'000)
Advisory RMB 4 900
Sponsor MLSA 138
Legal fees (including structuring and preparation of all T™WB . 2 000
unbundling agreements and resolutions and tax advisory
fees on the BEE transactions)
Tax advisory fees ENS 400
Independent reporting accountants’ report and fairness opinions Deloitte & Touche 800
JSE documentation inspection JSE 13
Publishing and printing INCE 130
8 381

6. Information relating to Imperial
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6.1

History and nature of the business

Imperial was incorporated in South Africa on 15 March 1946 and is listed on the JSE, under
‘Diversified Industrials sub-sector of the General Industrial sector’, JSE code IFL. Imperial is a
holding company engaged, through its subsidiaries and associaies, in logistics and transport,
leasing and capital equipment, aviation, car renial and tourism, distributorships, motor vehicle

dealerships, banking, life assurance and short-term insurance.



7.

6.2

6.3

6.4

Imperial has become a powerful foree in the wider transportation and mobility markets in Southern
Africa and Europe with less significant operations in Australia and the Uniled Kingdom.

The group’s activities in these markets enconipass a wide range of related sales and services:

* integrated logistics solutions, combining assel ownership and intellectual capital;

s fleet management and capital equipment distribution and rental;

= vehicle and forklift leasing;

+* car rental and tourism;

+ motor vehicle and aviation import, distribution and sales;

* motor vehicle dealerships; and

* related financial services businesses aimed at extracting further value {rom vehicle finance and

mmsurance.

The Company has expanded since the late 1970s into the full spectrum of mobility products and
services which combines to facilitate maximum synergies between business entities,

Share trading history

The trading history of Imperial ordinary shares is set out in Annexure 8 to this circular.

Authorised share capital of Imperial -

The authorised share capital of Imperial at the last practicable date is set out below:

Authorised R’ million
394 999 000 ordinary shares of 4 cents each 15
50 000 000 deferred ordinary shares of 4 cents each 2
15 000 000 preferred ordinary shares of 4 cents each 1
40 000 00C non-redeemable, non-participating preference shares of 4 cents each 2
1 000 redeemable preference shares of 4 cents each -
Total authorised share capital 20
Issued share capital
The issued share capital of Imperial at the last practicable date is set cut below:
Issued R’ million
212 129 870 ordinary shares of 4 cents each 8
16 781 968 deferred ordinary shares of 4 cents each 1
14 516 617 preferred ordinary shares of 4 cents each 1
4 540 041 non-redeemable, non-participating preference shares of 4 cents each -
Share premium 672
Total issued share capital 682

Major beneficial shareholders

At the Iast practicable date, the following Imperial ordinary shareholders were beneficially interesied in
5% or more of the issued share capital of Imperial, either directly or indirectly:

Percentage

Number of of Imperial

Imperial voting shares

Name of shareholder Share class shares held held
("000)

Public Investment Corporation Ordinary 39 043 17.8

Ukhamba Ordinary 5973 2.7

Ukhamba Deferred ordinary 16 782 7.8

Lereko Mobhility Preferred ordinary 14 517 6.6

17



8. Directors and management

8.1 Imperial directors

Imperial shareholders are referred to Annexure 7 to this circular for detail on the Imperial
directors.

8.2 Directors’' emoluments
8.2.1 The directors’ emoluments will not be affected by the transaction.

8.2.2 W S Hill will in June 2012 become entitled to a performance bonus of a maximum of
R4 500 000 depending on the profit before tax of Egstra for the five years from June 2008
to June 2012, ’

8.2.3 Directors’ emoluments for the 2007 financial year were as follows:

Retire- Sub-
ment sidiaries
and associates
Salaries medieal and sub-
and contri- Other Directors’ committee 2007
Director fees Bonus bution benefits fees fees Total
R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R’000 R'000 R'000
Non-Executive
L Boyd 224 88 312
P L Erasmus 112 22 134
P Langeni 112 54 166
M J Leeming 112 262 374
J R McAlpine 112 186 298
P Molefe 112 112
V Moosa 112 112
A Tugendhaft 112 186 298
V J Mokoena 648 500 76 162 112 1 498
C E Scott 112 88 200
M V SBisulu 112 270 382
R Sparks i1z 76 188
Y Waja 112 54 166
Sub-total 648 500 76 162 1 568 1 286 4 240
Executive
W G Lynch 2 B96 1 750 415 211 5 272
(deceased)
R J Boéttger 1 935 1 000 500 392 3 827
H R Brody 2 144 1 500 364 94 4 102
M P de Canha 2 349 1 750 396 226 4721
R L Hiemstra 2 298 1 500 388 113 4 299
W S Hill 2 323 1 500 392 T2 4 287
A H Mahomed 2 901 1 750 484 184 5 319
G W Riemann 3274 4 093 633 370 84 8 454
Sub-total 20 120 14 843 3572 1 662 84 40 281
Total 20 768 15 343 3 648 1 824 1 652 1 286 14 521
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8.3 Directors’ interests in securities
The director’s interests in Imperial ordinary shares, at the last practicable date, are set out below:

8.3.1 On the last practicable date, the directors of Imperial and their associates held the following
interests in Imperial ordinary shares:

Beneficial Beneficial Percentage
Director direct indirect held
Non-Executive
1, Boyd 928 0.00
M J Leeming 928 0.00
V J Mokoena 35 000 0.02
R J A Sparks 40 000 0.02
Y Waja 927 0.00
Executive
O S Arbee 150 000 0.07
H R Brody 175 000 0.08
M P de Canha 876 219 0.41
R L Hiemstra 212 221 Q.10
W S Hill 177 783 0.08
N Hoosen 169 500 0.08
A H Mahomed 351 509 G 444 0.17

Executives and non-executives interests are 0.99% and 0.04%, respectively.

8.4 Directors’ service contracts

8.4.1 No service agreements have been entered into between Imperial and its directors for periods
longer than two years, except for Mr G W Riemann whose contract expires in 2009. No
retrenchment or termination payments were made by Imperial to any of its directors in the
past two years.

8.4.2 The executive directors’ service contracts are all subject tc termination notice of no longer
than three months. No terms conlained in the executive directors’ service contracts are
outside of those prescribed by the Labour Relations Act, 66 of 1995, as amended.

8.5 Directors’ interest in transactions

No director has or had any interest, directly or indirectly, in any transaction which was effected by
Imperial during the current financial year or in respect of any previous financial year and which
remains in any respect outstanding or unperformed.

8.6 Directors’ interest in Egstra

None of the directors had any shareholding in Eqgstra at the last practicable date. As a consequence
of the unbundling, the directors holding ordinary shares in Imperial will be entitled to the same
ratio of Egstira ordinary shares.

Information relating to Egstra

The pre-listing statement relating to the listing of Egstra in the Diversified Industrials sub-sector of the
General Industrial sector of the JSE under the share code EQS and ISIN: ZAE000117123 enclosed
together with this circular, contains all the relevant information relating to Egstra.
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10.

11.

12,

13.
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Material changes

As was communicated in the interim results announcement published on 27 February 2008, the
following changes have occurred in the financial and trading position of the Company since the end of
the last financial period:

+ the Commercial Vehicle Holdings business which assembled and distributed commercial vehicles, was
discontinued;

+ the group commenced a process of disposing of the Aviation division, excluding NAC;

s the process of disposing of the group’s 66% interest in Tourism Investment Corporation Limited, a
listed entity was commenced; and

* trading conditions in the motor retail and related markets deteriorated.

10.1 Rationale for the disposal of Tourvest

Tourvest is an integrated tourism organisation mainly focusing on sub-Saharan Africa. Imperial
announced on 28 August 2007 Lhat it was re-assessing its portfolio in order to achieve the optimal
business mix, given the economic outlook, the cost of capital and its proven skills set. Although
Imperial has other tourism-related businesses in car rental, coach touring and selected inbound
tourism services, much of Tourvest’s operations are regarded as falling outside of its chosen frame
of tourism activities.

10.2 Rationale for the disposal of the Aviation division

At the time of announcing the process of reassessing Imperial's business mix, it was also
announced that Imperial had earmarked its Aviation division (excluding NAC) for disposal.
Aviation leasing requires the ongoing contribution of significant amounts of capital in order to
grow and be competitive. Furthermore it requires a very low cost of capital that can only be
achieved through high levels of gearing, which is normally not achievable on the balance sheet of
an industrial company. It was therefore concluded that Imperial would not be able to continue being
competitive in this industry. The volatility of the Rand also makes the operation of an essentially
UJS$ denominated business difficult and unpredictable.

As reported in the interim results announcement on 27 February 2008, the discontinuation of the
Commercial Vehicle Holdings and aviation businesses resulied in a loss of R1.5 billion. The
proposed sale of Tourvest is expected to generate a profit on sale.

Material contracts

Other than the proposed disposals referred to in paragraph 10 above, the various transactions forming
part of the unbundling agreements in terms of which the businesses and subsidiaries of the Imperial
group referred to in paragraph 2 above, have been disposed of to Egstra, the MCC minority transaction
referred to in paragraph 4 above and the BEE transactions with Ukhamba and Lereko Mobility
restructured, as a prelude to the unbundling, Imperial has not entered into any material contracts, other
than in the ordinary course of business, carried on by Imperial and ils subsidiaries.

Litigation

There are no legal or arbitration proceedings which may have, or have had, during the 12-month period
preceding the date of this circular, a material effect on the financial position of Imperial or any of its
subsidiaries. Furthermore, Imperial is not aware of any such proceedings that are pending or
threatened.

Working capital statement

The directors are of the opinion and have reasonable grounds for believing that, subsequent to the
unbundling, the working capital available to the Imperial Group will be sufficient for its requirements
and will remain sufficient for the 12 months following the date of issue of this circular, and specifically,
the directors, having considered the effect of the unbundling, are of the opinion that:

¢ the Imperial Group will be able in the ordinary course of business to pay its debis for a period of
12 months after the date of issue of this circular;

¢ the assets of the Imperial Group will be in excess of the liabilities of the Imperial Group for a period
of 12 months after the date of issue of this circular. For this purpose, the assets and liabilities should
be recognised and measured in accordance with the accounting policies used in the latest audited
annual Imperial Group financial statements;



the share capital and reserves of the Imperial Group will be adequate for ordinary business purposes
for a period of 12 months after the date of issue of this circular; and

the working capital of the Imperial Group will be adequate for ordinary business purposes of the
Imperial Group for a pericd of 12 months after the date of issue of this circular.

14. Directors’ responsibility statement

The directors of Imperial, whose names are given on page 8, collectively and individually, accept full
responsibility for the accuracy of the information given and certify to the best of their knowledge and
belief there are no facts that have been omitted which would make any statement false or misleading,
and that all reasonable enquiries to ascertain such facts have been made and that this circular contains
all informalion required by the Listings Requirements.

15. Documents available for inspection

Copies of the following documents will be made available for inspectiion at the registered office of
Imperial, during normal office hours from the date of issue of this circular up to and including the date
of the combined general meeting:

this circular;

the Eqgstra pre-listing statement (mailed together with this circular) and the documents referred to in
paragraph 13 of the pre-listing statement;

the memoranda and articles of association of Imperial and its subsidiaries;
the memorandum and articles of association of Eqgstra;

audited annual financial statements of Imperial for the three financial years ended 25 June 2007,
20086, 2005 and the unaudited interim results for the six months ended 31 December 2007;

the unbundling agreements;
the MCC minorily transaction agreement;
all other material contracts referred to in paragraph 11 above;

independent reporting accountants’ report on the pro forma financial information and the pro forma
financial effects contained in this circular;

the fairness opinions of the independent professional expert, the text of which is included as
Annexures 3 and 4;

written consents from TWB, Deloitte & Touche, RMB, MLSA and ENS for Lhe inclusion of their names
and reports in this circular in the form and context in which they appear; and

rules of the relevant share and bonus schemes, for which amendmenis are to be approved by
shareholders at the combined general meeting.

For and on behalf of

IMPERIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

H R Brody
Chief Executive Officer

who warrants that he is duly authorised hereto in terms of a resolution passed by the board of directors of
Imperial Holdings Limited

Johannesburg
20 March 2008
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Annexure 2

Independent reporting accountants’ report on the pro forma financial
information regarding the unbundling

“The Directors

Imperial Heoldings Limited
Imperial Place

Jeppe Quondam

79 Boeing Road East
Bedfordview

2007

12 March 2008

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANTS' ASSURANCE REPORT ON THE PRO FORMA
FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF IMPERIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

We have performed our limited assurance engagement in respect of the pro forma financial information
set out in Annexure 1 of this circular to be dated on or about 20 March 2008 issued in connection with the
unbundling of the Leasing and Capital Equipment Division that is the subject of this circular of Imperial
Holdings Limited. The pro forma financial information has been prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the JSE Limited {"JSE”) Listings Requirements, for illustrative purposes only, to provide
information about how the unbundling might have affected the reported historical financial information
presented, had the corporate action been undertaken at the commencement of the period or at the date of the
pro forma balance sheet being reported on.

Directors’ responsibility

The directors are responsible for the compilation, contents and presentation of the pro forma financial
information contained in the circular and for the financial information from which it has been prepared.
Their responsibility includes determining that: the pro forma financial information has been properly
compiled on the basis stated; the basis is consistent with the accounting policies of Imperial Holdings
Limited; and the pro forma adjustments are appropriate for the purposes of the pro forma financial
information disclosed in terms of the JSE Listings Requirements.

Reporting accountants’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express our limited assurance conclusion on the pro forma financial information
included in the circular to Imperial Heldings Limited shareholders, We conducted our assurance engagement
in accordance with the International Standard on Assurance Engagements applicable to Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information and the Guide on Pro Forma
Financial Information issued by the South African Institute of Chartered Accountants.

This standard requires us to obtain sufficient appropriate evidence on which to base our conclusion. We do
not accept any responsibility for any reports previously given by us on any financial information
used in the compilation of the pro forma financial information, beyond that owed to those to whom those
reports were addressed by us at the dates of their issue.

Sources of information and work performed

Our procedures consisted primarily of comparing the unadjusted financial information with the source
documents, considering the pro forma adjustments in light of the accounting policies of Imperial Holdings
Limited, the issuer, considering the evidence supporting the pro forma adjusiments and discussing the
adjusted pro forma financial information with the directors of the company in respect of Lthe corporate
actions that are the subject of the circular.

In arriving at our conclusion, we have relied upon financial information prepared by the directors of Imperial
Holdings Limited and other information from various public, financial and industry sources.
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Whilst our work performed has involved an analysis of the historical published audited financial information
and other information provided to us, our assurance engagement does not constitute an audit or review
of any of the underlying financial information conducted in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing or International Standards on Review Engagements and accordingly, we do nol express
an audit or review opinion.

In a limited assurance engagement, the evidence-gathering procedures are more limiled than for
a reasonable assurance engagement and therefore less assurance is obtained than in a reasonable assurance
engagement. We believe our evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
conclusion.

Conclusion

Based on our examination of the evidence obiained, nothing has come to our attention, which causes
us to believe that, in terms of Sections 8.17 and 8.30 of the JSE Listings Requirements:

* the pro forma financial information has not been properly compiled on the basis stated;

« such basis is inconsistent with the accounting policies of the issuer;

+ the adjustments are not appropriate for the purposes of the pro forma financial information as disclosed.

Consent

We consent to the inclusion of this report, which will form part of the circular to shareholders of Imperial
Holdings Limited, to be issued on or about 20 March 2008, in the form and context in which it appears.

Deloitte & Touche
Per B W Smith
Partner

Deloitte & Touche
Registered Auditors

Woodlands Drive
Woodmead
Sandton

2196”7
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Annexure 3

Fairness opinion - MCC minority transaction

“The Directors

Imperial Holdings Limited
Imperial Place

Jeppe Quondam

79 Boeing Road East
Bedfordview, 2007

12 March 2008
Dear Sirs

Fairness opinion on the proposed acquisition of the shares in MCC not already held by Imperial
Holdings Limited (“Imperial”) to be settled by the issue of ordinary shares in Eqstra Holdings Limited
{("Eqgstra’) immediately following the unbundling of Egstra to shareholders of Imperial ("the Imperial
unbundling transaction’)

Introduction

Imperial holds 50.1% of the shares in the MCC group of companies (“MCC"), which comprise Civil Finance
Company (Proprietary) Limited, Explotech Marketing Services (Proprietary) Limited, Five Six Seven Glen
Auslin (Proprietary) Limited, MCC Contracts {(Proprietary) Limited, Mutual Constiruction Company
(Transvaal) (Proprietary) Limited, Dorstland Earth Moving (Proprietary) Limited, and MCC Mining
{Proprietary) Limited. Imperial and the minority shareholders of MCC have agreed that, should the Imperial
unbundling transaction proceed, it will be beneficial for all stakeholders if the minority shareholders of MCC
(“the MCC minorities”) become shareholders in Eqstra, thereby constituting MCC as wholly-owned
subsidiaries of Egstra following the unbundling. Accerdingly, Imperial and the MCC minorities have
agreed that Imperial would acquire the shares of the MCC minorities for a purchase consideration
of R1 156 500 000 to be settled by the issue of 46 260 000 ordinary shares in Egstra immediately following
the Imperial unbundling transaction (“the MCC roll up™).

Full details of the MCC roll up and the Imperial unbundling transaction are contained in the circular to
shareholders of Imperial (“the circular™), dated on or about 20 March 2008, of which this letter forms part.

Scope

In terms of the Listings Requirements (the “Listings Requirements”) of the JSE Limited (“the JSE"), the MCC
roll up is a related party transaction as certain of the MCC shareholders are also directors of MCC companies.
Under Section 10.4 of the Listings Requirements, a fairness opinion is required from an independent
professional expert accepiable to the JSE on the terms and conditions of the MCC roll up.

As a consequence of the above, the board of directors of Imperial has appointed the Corporate Finance
division of Deloitte & Touche to provide the required opinion, indicating whether the MCC roll up is fair
to all the shareholders of Imperial.

For purposes of our opinion, fairness is primarily based on a quantitative assessment. The MCC roll up would
be considered fair to Imperial shareholders if the value of the shares to be acquired in MCC were equal
to or greater than the value of Eqstra shares o be issued to the MCC minorities.

Our fairness opinion does not purport to cater for individual shareholder positions but rather the general
body of shareholders,

Information utilised and procedures earried ont
In arriving at our opinion we have considered information from the following sources:

* information on MCC and Egstra, including the history, nature of business, products and services, key
customers and compeltitor activity. This information was acquired from a variety of sources, including
discussions with senior management of MCC and Eqgsira;
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* strategic analyses of MCC and Egstra, including, inter alia, the strengths, weaknesses, opportunities
and threats applicable thereto and details of market share and market growth rates;

s audited financial information of MCC and the legal entities forming part of Egstra for the financial years
from 2005 to June 2007 and unaudited interim financial information for the 2008 financial year;

+ forecast financial information of MCC and Egstra for the financial years from 2008 to June 2012, prepared
by management;

+ analysts’ reports on Imperial and the industry in which MCC and Eqstra cperates and on competitors
of Egstra;

» valuations of Egstra and MCC, prepared by Rand Merchant Bank (“RMB™), acting as advisers to Imperial;
+ an indicative valuation of MCC ordinary shares, which we have prepared;

* an indicative valuation of Eqstra ordinary shares, which we have prepared;

» the sale of shares agreement governing the MCC roll up;

» a review of the circular: and

* discussions with management of MCC and Egstra and RMB personnel.

Our approach to considering the MCC roll up

In considering the MCC roll up, we performed independent indicative valuations of the equity of MCC and
Egstra, using discounted cash flow valuation methodeclogy. We corrcborated our discounted cash flow
valuation results by considering earnings and price to book valuation multiples.

We used our indicative valuation results to quantify the value of the MCC minorities’ shares in MCC and the
value of the Eqstra shares to be issued in settlement of the purchase consideration after the Imperial
unbundling transaction.

Opinion

Based upon and subject to the aforegoing, we are of the opinion that the terms and conditions of the MCC
roll up are fair to the shareholders of Imperial.

Qur opinion is based upon the markel, regulatory and trading conditions as they currently exist and can
only be evaluated as at the date of this letter. It should be understood that subsequent developments may
affect our opinion, which we are under no obligation {o update, revise or re-affirm.

Each Imperial shareholder’s decision may be influenced by their particular circumstances. We suggest
that a shareholder should consult an independent advisor if they are in any doubt as to the merits of the
MCC roll up considering their personal circumstances.

Limiting conditions

Forecasts relate to uncertain future events and are based on assumptions, which may not remain valid for
the whole of the forecast period. Consequently, forecast financial information cannot be relied upon to the
same extent as that derived from audited financial statements for completed accounting periods. We express
no opinion as to how closely actual results will correspond to projections made by the management of MCC
and Egstra and made available to us during the course of our review.

Our procedures and inquiries did not constitute an audit in terms of International Standards on Auditing.
Accordingly, we cannot express an audit opinion on the financial data or other information used in arriving
al our fairness opinion.

Independence

We confirm that we have no financial interest in Imperial, Egstra, and MCC and the cutcome of the MCC roll
up. Furthermore, we confirm that our professional fees are not contingent upon the successful conclusion
of the MCC roll up.

Deloitte & Touche, of which Deloitte & Touche Corporate Finance forms a part, are appointed as the
independent auditors of Imperial, Egstra and MCC.
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Consent

We hereby consent to the inclusion of this letter and references thereto in the circular in the form and context
in which they appear.

Yours faithfully

D McDuff
Partner

Deloitte & Touche
Corporale Finance
Registered Auditors

Woodlands Drive
Woodmead
Sandton

2196"
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Annexure 4

Fairness opinion - issue of unlisted voting instruments

“The Directors
Imperial Holdings Limited
Imperial Place
Jeppe Quondam
79 Boeing Road East
Bedfordview, 2007
' 12 March 2008

Dear Sirs

Fairness opinion on the proposed issue of “A” and “B” deferred ordinary shares by Eqstra Holdings
Limited (“Eqstra”) as part the unbundling of Eqstra to shareholders of Imperial Holdings Limited
("Imperial”) (“the Imperial unbundling transaction™)

Introduction

The Board of Directors of Imperial proposes to unbundle the shares of Eqgstra to Imperial shareholders
in terms of the Imperial unbundling transaction. There are a number of consequent adjustments and
transactions required in order to ensure all shareholders of Imperial are placed in the same economic
position after the Imperial unbundling transaction to that which they were in prior to the unbundling
("the consequent adjustments”). These are described below:

Ukhamba deferred ordinary shares in Imperial

Ukhamba Holdings (Proprietary) Limited (“Ukhamba”) was used as Lthe vehicle to Tlacilitate the
implementation of Imperial’s first Black Economic Empowerment (“BEE”)} transaction in 2004. As a
consequence of this transaction, Ukhamba currently holds 16 781 968 deferred ordinary shares in Imperial.

The deferred ordinary shares held by Ukhamba do not have a right to dividends but in all other respects,
including voling rights, the instruments rank pari passu with the Imperial ordinary shares. A number
of these deferred ordinary shares convert io Imperial ordinary shares on a one-for-one basis annually
to June 2011, based on Imperial’'s achievement of pre-determined headline earnings targets for each year.

Imperial and Ukhamba have agreed that: (1) Imperial will amend the headline earnings based formula
to make allowance for the unbundling of Egsira and (2) Egstra will allot and issue 16 781 968 Class “A”
deferred ordinary shares in Egstra to Ukhamba at their par value of 0.1 cent each at the effective date
of the Imperial unbundling transaction with rights and conditions that mirror those of the deferred ordinary
shares in Imperial before the unbundling. In order to place Ukhamba in the same economic position, the
revised figures in the two headline earnings based formulae will equate to the total figures in the headline
earnings formula for Ukhamba’s deferred ordinary shares in Imperial before the unbundling.

Lereko Mobility preferred ordinary shares in Imperial

Lereko Mobility (Proprietary) Limited (“Lereko Mobility”) holds 14 516 617 preferred ordinary shares
in Imperial. Lereko Mobility was established as a special purpose vehicle to facilitate the implementation
of Imperial’s second BEE transaction in 2006.

The preferred ordinary shares held by Lereko Mobility pay a fixed cumulative total annuat preferred
distribution of 535 cents per share but in all other respects, including voting rights, the instruments
rank pari passu with Imperial ordinary shares. They convert to ordinary shares on a one-for-one basis
on 1 Oclober 2010.

Imperial and Lereko Mobility have agreed that Egstra will allot and issue to Lereko Mobility 14 516 617
Class “B” deferred ordinary shares at their par value of 0.1 cent each. These instruments will enjoy
no dividend righis until such time as the preferred ordinary shares held by Lereko Mobility in Imperial
convert into ordinary shares. Upon this event, the Egsira "B” deferred ordinary shares will convert
to ordinary shares in Egstra and commence paying a dividend.
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The terms and conditions of the preferred ordinary shares in Imperial held by Lereko Mobility, including
the fixed distribution, will be unchanged by the Imperial unbundling transaction.

The Imperial call option against Lereko Mobility

Lereko Mobility has granted a call option to Imperial (“the Imperial call option”) as part of the terms
of vendor financing provided by Imperial. By agreement, Lereko Mobility will grant a similar call option
to Egstra relating Lo Eqgstra’s ordinary shares (“the Egstra call option™).

Full details of the Imperial unbundling transaction, including the consequent adjustments outlined above,
are contained in the circular to shareholders of Imperial (“the circular™), dated on or about 20 March 2008,
of which this letter forms part.

Scope

In terms of Seclion 4.24 of the JSE Limited (“JSE”) Listings Requirements (“the Listings Reguirements™),
Ukhamba and Lereko Mobilily, as holders of unlisted deferred ordinary shares in Egstra (“unlisled voting
instrumenis”) upon completion of the Imperial unbundling transaction, would not be permitted to vote
at shareholder meetings. The JSE has issued dispensation in respect of this rule to allow the holders of these
unlisted voting instruments to vote at shareholder meetings. Furthermore, it is a requirement of the JSE that
an opinicn should be obtained from an independent professional expert, acceptable to the JSE, indicating
whether or not the proposed issue of unlisted voting instruments of Egstra is fair to the shareholders
of Imperial.

As a consequence of the above. the board of directors of Imperial has appointed the Corporate Finance
division of Deloitte & Touche to provide the required opinion, indicating whether the issue terms of the
unlisted “A” and “B” deferred ordinary shares of Egsira are fair to all the ordinary shareholders of Imperial.

For purposes of our opinion, fairness is primarily based on a quantiiative assessment. The issues of the
deferred ordinary shares would be considered fair to Imperial shareholders if the consequent adjustments,
as defined above, did not create enhanced rights and benefits for Ukhamba or for Lereko Mobility in relation
to those enjoyed before the Imperial unbundling transaction.

Our fa.irness opinion does not purport to cater for individual shareholder positions but rather the general
body of shareholders.

Information utilised and procedures carried out
In arriving at our opinion we have considered information from the following sources:

« information on Imperial and Eqgstra, and the proposed unbundling transaction and consequent
adjustments. This information was acquired from a variety of sources, including discussions with senior
management of Imperial and Egstra and Rand Merchant Bank ("RMB”) personnel, acting as advisers
to Imperial;

» strategic analyses of Egstra, including, inter alia, the strengths, weaknesses, opportunilies and threalts
applicable thereto and details of markel share and market growth rates;

« audited financial information of Imperial and the legal entities forming part of Egstra for the financial
years from 2005 to June 2007 and unaudited interim financial information for the 2008 financial year;

» forecast financial information of Imperial and Egstra for the financial years from 2008 to June 2012,
prepared by management;

* analysts’ reports on the industry in which Eqgstra operates and on competitors of Eqstra;
* a valuation of Egstira prepared by RMB;

* an indicative valuation of Eqgstra ordinary shares, which we have prepared;

* headline earnings and dividend projections made by management of Imperial and Eqgstra;

¢ jindicative valuations, which we have prepared, of the deferred ordinary shares of Imperial issued
to Ukhamba and “A” deferred ordinary shares of Egstra to be issued to Ukhamba,

s indicative valuations, which we have prepared, of the preferred ordinary shares of Imperial issued
to Lereko Mobility and “B” deferred ordinary shares of Egstra to be issued to Lereko Mobility;

¢ indicative valuations, which we have prepared, of the call option granted by Lereko Mobility to Imperial
and the call option to be granted to Egstra;
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» indicative valuations of the JSE listed equity-linked debentures of Lereko Mobility, which we have
prepared;

¢ draft legal agreemenis required to give effect to the Imperial unbundling transaction, including the
consequent adjustments; and

¢ a review of the circular.

Our approach to considering the proposed issues of “A” and “B” deferred ordinary shares

In order to express an opinion on the proposed issues of “A” and “B” deferred ordinary shares by Eqstra,
we have considered the consequent adjustments, as outlined above, and whether these may have created
enhanced rights and benefits for Ukhamba or for Lercko Mobility in relation to those enjoyed before
the Imperial unbundling transaction. To do this we reviewed the documentation made available to us on the
Imperial unbundling transaction and the consequent adjustments and we performed an indicative valuation
of Egstra preparatory to indicative valuations which we performed on the deferred and preferred ordinary
shares of Imperial, the “A” and “B” deferred ordinary shares of Eqstra, and the call options described above.
We corroborated our results by reference to valuation performed by RMB on Eqgstra.

We adopted a discounted cash flow (“DCF”) valuation methodology for our indicative valuation of Egstra and
a combination of DCF and option valuation methcdologies, as appropriate, for our indicative valuations
of the deferred and preferred ordinary shares and the call options. We corroborated our discounted cash flow
valuation results of Egsira by considering earnings and price to book valuation multiples.

We have applied the above valuation information tc enable us to conclude whether the consequent
adjustments have not given rise to material, additional rights and benefits to parties other than Imperial
ordinary shareholders. In terms of this approach, the issues of the “A” and “B” deferred ordinary shares
would be fair to Imperial shareholders if that were found to be the case.

Opinion
Based upon and subject to the aforegoing, we are of the opinion that the issues of “A” and “B” deferred
ordinary shares of Egstra are fair to the shareholders of Imperial.

QOur opinion is based upon the market, regulatory and trading conditions as they currently exist and can
ortly be evaluated at the date of this letter. It should be understood that subsequent developments may affect
our opinion, which we are under no obligation Lo updalte, revise or re-affirm.

Each Imperial shareholder’s decision may be influenced by their particular circumstances. We suggest that
a shareholder should consull an independent adviser if they are in any doubt as to the merits of the Imperial
unbundling transaction considering their personal circumstances.

Limiting conditions

Forecasts relate to uncertain future events and are based on assumptions, which may not remain valid for
the whole of the forecast period. Consequently, forecast financial information cannot be relied upon to the
same extent as that derived from audited financial statements for completed accounting periods. We express
no opinion as to how closely actual results will correspond to projections made by the management
of Imperial and Egstra and made available to us during the course of cur review.

Our procedures and inquiries did not constitute an audit in terms of International Standards on Auditing.
Accordingly, we cannot express an audit opinion on the financial data or other information used in arriving
at our fairness opinion.

Independence

We confirm that we have nc financial interest in Imperial, Eqstra, Ukhamba, Lereko Mobility, and the
outcome of the proposed Imperial unbundling transaction, including the issues of A and B deferred ordinary
shares. Furthermore, we confirm that our professional fees are not contingent upon the successful
conclusion of the unbundling.

Deloitte & Touche, of which Deloitte & Touche Corporate Finance forms a part, are appointed as the
independent auditors of Imperial, Egstra, Ukhamba and Lereko Mobility.
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Consent

We hereby consent to the inclusion of this letter and references thereto in the circular in the form and context

in which they appear.
Yours faithfully

D McDuff
Partner

Deloitte & Touche
Corporate Finance
Registered Auditors

Woodlands Drive
Woodmead
Sandion

21967
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Annexure 5

Information for foreign Imperial ordinary shareholders

1.

40

Distributions to foreign Imperial ordinary shareholders

The distribution of Eqstra shares to foreign Imperial ordinary shareholders, in terms of the
unbundling, may be affected by the laws of such foreign Imperial ordinary shareholders relevant
Jurisdiction. Those foreign Imperial ordinary shareholders should consult their professional
advisers as to whether they require any governmental or other econsents or need to observe any
other formalities to enable them to receive the Eqsira shares.

This paragraph sets oui the restrictions applicable to Imperial ordinary shareholders who have
registered addresses outside South Africa, who are nalionals, cilizens or residents of countries other
than South Africa, or who are persons {including, without limitation, custodians, nominees and trustees)
who have a contractual or legal obligation to forward this document to a jurisdiction outside South
Africa or who hold Imperial ordinary shares for the account or benefit of any such foreign Imperial
ordinary shareholder.

It is the responsibility of any foreign Imperial ordinary shareholder (including, without limitation,
nominees, agents and trustees for such persons) receiving this circular and wishing to take up their
entitlement to unbundled Eqstra shares to satisfy themselves as to full observance of the applicable laws
of any relevant territory, including obtaining any requisite governmental or other consents, observing
any other requisite formalities and paying any issue, transfer or other taxes due in such lerritories,
Foreign Imperial ordinary shareholders are obliged to observe the applicable legal requirements of their
relevant jurisdictions.

Receipt of this circular will not constitule an offer of unbundled Egstra shares (“offer”™) in those
jurisdictions in which it would be illegal to make such an offer and, in those circumstances, this circular
if sent, will be sent for information only and should not be copied or redistributed. No person receiving
a copy of this circular in any territory, other than Scuth Africa, may treat the same as constituling
an offer to such person unless, in the relevant territory, such an offer could lawfully be made to him
without contravention of any registration or other legal requirements.

Accordingly, persons (including, without limitation, nominees, agents and trustees) receiving a copy
of this cireular should not distribute or send the same to any person in, or citizen or resident
of, or otherwise into any jurisdiction where to do so would or might contravene local securities laws
or regulations. Any person who does distribute this circular into any such territory (whether under
a contractual or legal obligation or otherwise) should draw the recipient’s atiention to the contents of this
annexure.

Imperial reserves the right, bul shall not be obliged, to treat as invalid any distribution of Egstra shares,
in terms of the unbundling, which appears to Imperial or its agents to have been executed, effected
or dispaiched in a manner which may involve a breach of the securities laws or regulations of any
jurisdiction or if Imperial believes or its agents believe that the same may violate applicable legal
or regulatory requirements.

An “exchuded foreign Imperial ordinary shareholder” includes any foreign shareholder who is unable
to receive any of the Egstra shares to be distributed to him because of the laws of the jurisdiction of that
shareholder, or any foreign shareholder that Imperial is not permitted to distribute any of the Egsira
shares to because of the laws of the jurisdiction of that shareholder. The Egstra shares to which excluded
foreign Imperial ordinary shareholders would be entitled in terms of the unbundling may be aggregated
and disposed of on the JSE by the transfer secretaries on behalf of and for the benefit of excluded foreign
Imperial ordinary shareholders as soon as is reasonably practical after the implementation of the
unbundling at the best price that can reasonably be obtained al the time of sale. CSDPs will be responsible
for informing the transfer secretaries of all dematerialised Imperial ordinary shares held by them
on behalf of such excluded foreign [mperial ordinary shareholders. The transfer secretaries will
determine which certificated foreign lmperial ordinary shareholders are such excluded foreign Imperial
ordinary shareholders.

Excluded foreign Imperial ordinary shareholders will, in respect of their entitlement to the unbundled
Eqgstra shares, receive the average cor.sideration per unbundled Eqstra share (net of transaction and
currency conversion costs). The averag: consideration per unbundled Egstra share due to each excluded
foreign Imperial ordinary shareholder will only be paid once all such unbundled Egstra shares have been
disposed of.



2.

Exchange Control

The unbundled Egstra shares are not freely transferable from the common monetary area and must
be deait with in terms of the Exchange Conirol Regulations. The following is a summary of the Exchange
Control Regulations, is nol comprehensive and is intended as a guide only. In the event that Imperial
ordinary shareholders have any doubts in respect of their obligations in terms of the Exchange Control
Regulations, they should consult their professional advisers. '

2.1

2.2

Emigrants from the common monetary area

The unbundled Egstra shares received by the Imperial ordinary shareholders who are emigrant
from the common monetary area and whose registered address is outside the common monetary
area will:

in the case of dematerialised Iinperial ordinary shareholders be credited to their blocked share
accounts at the CSDP controlling their blocked portfolios; or
in the case of certificaled Imperial ordinary shareholders whose documents of title have been

restrictively endorsed under the Exchange Control Regulations, be endorsed "Non-Resident” and
will be sent to the Authorised Dealer in foreign exchange controlling their blocked assets.

All other non-residents of the common monetary area

The unbundled Eqstra shares received by the Imperial ordinary shareholders who are non-residents
of the common monetary area and who have never resided in the common monetary area and whose
registered address is outside the common monetary area will:

in the case of dematerialised Imperial ordinary shareholders be credited to their share accounts
at the CSDP controlling their portfolios; or

in the case of a certificated Imperial ordinary shareholder whose documents of title have been
restirictively endorsed under the Exchange Control Regulations, be deposited with an Authorised
Dealers in foreign exchange in South Africa nominated by such Imperial ordinary shareholder.
It will be incumbent on the Imperial ordinary shareholder concerned to nominate the Authorised
Dealer and to instruct the nominated Authorised Dealer as to the disposal of the relevanti shares.
If the information regarding the Authorised Dealer is not given, the unbundled Eqgstra shares
will be held in trust for the Imperial ordinary shareholder concerned pending the receipi of the
necessary information or instruction.



Annexure 6

Taxation considerations regarding the unbundling

The summary below is a general guide and is not intended to constitute a complete analysis of the
taxation consequences of the unbundling provisions in terms of South African taxation law. It is not
intended to be, nor shounld be considered as legal or taxation advice. Imperial and its advisers cannot
be held responsible for the taxation consequences of the unbundling and therefore, Imperial ordinary
shareholders are advised to consult their own taxation advisers in this regard.

The unbundling will be a disposal by Imperial of its Egsira shares o the Imperial ordinary shareholders.
The disposal will be effected utilising the tax concessions provided for in section 46 of the Income Tax Act.

The concessions provided for in section 46 are outlined below:
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Disposal of Eqstra shares by Imperial

The distribution of Eqstra shares by Imperial, in terms of the unbundling, will be disregarded
by Imperial in determining ils taxable income or assessed loss in the tax year thal the unbundling
takes place.

STC

The distribution of the Egstra shares {o Imperial ordinary shareholders, in terms of the unbundling,
will be deemed not to be a dividend declared by Imperial or a dividend received by an Imperial
ordinary shareholder who is a company in determining their respective STC labilities. Consequently,
no STC credits will be allowable to Imperial ordinary shareholders as a result of the unbundling.

Imperial ordinary shares held as trading stock

Any Imperial ordinary shareholder holding Imperial ordinary shares as trading stock will be deemed
to acquire the unbundled Egstra shares as trading stock. The combined expenditure of such Imperial
ordinary shares and Egsira shares will be the amount originally taken inlo account by the shareholder
in respect of those Imperial ordinary shares, as contemplated in section 11(a), section 22(1), or
section 22(2) of the Income Tax Act.

An Imperial ordinary shareholder musi determine the portion of the combined expenditure, as above,
atiributable to the Egstra shares as follows:

A = B x [C/C + D)]

where:

A = the expenditure of the Egstira shares, to be determined;

B = the combined expenditure, as contemplated above;

C = the market value of the Egstra shares received pursuant to the unbundling as at the close
of the day after the unbundling date; and

D = the market value of the Imperial ordinary shares, in respect of which the Egstra shares

in “C” were received, as a- the close of the day after the unbundling date.

An Imperial ordinary shareholder must determine the portion of the combined expenditure attributable
to the Imperial ordinary shares contemplated in “D” above as follows:

E=B-A

where:

E = the revised expenditure of the Imperial ordinary shares, to be determined;
B = the combined expenditure;, as contemplated above; and

A = the expenditure of the Egstra shares, as determined above.

The expenditure to be allocated to the unbundled Egstra shares will be determined by applying a specified
ratio to the cost of the Imperial ordinary shares. Imperial will advise Imperial ordinary shareholders
of the specified ratio, being the result of [C/(C + D)), as above, by way of an announcement to be released
on SENS on or about 14 May 2008.



Imperial ordinary shares held as capital assets

Any Imperial ordinary shareholder holding Imperial ordinary shares as capital assets will be deemed
to acquire the unbundled Eqgstra shares as capital assets. The original expenditure incurred in respect
of the Imperial ordinary shares, in terms of paragraph 20 of the Eighth Schedule to the Income Tax Act,
and (where applicable) the CGT valuaticn of the Imperial shares, as contemplated in paragraph 29 of the
Eighth Schedule to the Income Tax Act, will be apportioned between the Egstra shares and the Imperial
ordinary shares as follows:

A = B x [CAC + D))
where:

A = the deemed expenditure and, where applicable, deemed CGT valuation of the Eqgsira shares,
to be determined;

B = each of the original expenditure incurred and, where applicable, CGT valualion of the
Imperial ordinary shares, in respect of which the Eqgstra shares in “C” were received;

C = the market value of the Ejgstra shares received pursuant to the unbundling at the close of
the day after the unbundling date; and

D = the market value of the Imperial ordinary shares, in respect of which the Egstra shares
in “C” were received, as at the close of the day after the unbundling date.

An Imperial ordinary shareholder must determine the portion of the original expenditure incurred
in respect of the Imperial ordinary shares and (where applicable) the CGT valuation of the Imperial
ordinary shares attributable to the Imperial ordinary shares contemplated in “I)” above as follows:

E=B-A

where:

E = the revised expenditure and, where applicable, the revised CGT valuation of the Imperial
ordinary shares, Lo be determined;

B = each of the original expenditure incurred and, where applicable, CGT valuation of the
Imperial ordinary shares, in respect of which the Egstra shares in “C” above were received;
and

A = the deemed expenditure and, where applicable, deemed CGT valuation of the Egsira shares,

as determined above.

Imperial will advise Imperial ordinary shareholders of the specified ratio, being the result of {C/{C + D)],
as above, by way of an announcement Lo be released on SENS on or about 14 May 2008. The base cost
1o be allocated to the unbundled Eqgstra shares will be determined by applying a specified ratio to the base
cost of the Imperial ordinary shares.

The base cost so allocated to the unbundled Egstra shares will reduce the base cost of the Imperial
ordinary shares held, thus allocating the base cost between the Imperial ordinary shares and the
unbundled Eqstra shares,

Imperial ordinary shareholders will be deemed to have acquired the unbundled Eqgstra shares on the date
on which the Imperial ordinary shares were originally acquired.

Stamp duties and uncertificated securities tax

The registration of the unbundled Eqgstra shares in the names of the Imperial ordinary shareholders will
be exempt from the payment of any stamp duties or uncertificated securities tax.

Non-resident Imperial ordinary shareholders

Imperial ordinary shareholders who are non-resident for tax purposes in South Africa are advised
to consult their own professional tax advisors regarding the tax treatment of the unbundling in their
respective jurisdictions, having regard o the tax laws in their jurisdiction and any applicable tax treaties
between South African and their count:y of residence.
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Annexure 7

Details of Imperial directors

The name, age, qualifications, business address, occupation and a brief CV of the directors of Imperial are set
out below:

Name, age and qualifications Business address Occupation
Leslie Boyd (70) 54 Tweeddale Road Non-executive Chairman
C.Eng F.I.M. (UK} Hyde Park

Sandton

Leslie is a retired execulive vice chairperson of Anglo American Ple. He is currently non-executive
chairperson of Datatec, Highveld and Universal Industries and Metmar and a director of Aspen, Columbus
Stainless and Sun International. He was appointed to the board and as chairperson in June 2001,

Hubert Rene Brody (43) Imperial Place Chief Executive Officer
BAcc (Hons), CA(SA) Jeppe Quondam

79 Boeing Road East

Bedfordview

Hubert is the chief executive of Imperial. Hubert joined the group in April 2000 as chief financial officer
of Imperial Bank. He was appointed as chief executive of the Motor Division in 2003. He was appointed to the
board in August 2006 and as chief executive on 4 July 2007.

Osman Suluman Arbee (48} Imperial Place Executive director
B Acc, CA(SA), H Dip Tax Jeppe Quondam

79 Bozing Road East

Bedfordview

Osman is the CEO of the Car Rental and Tourism division and responsible for the Motor Dealerships
and Automotive Parts Distribution divisions. He is a director of Distribution and Warehousing Network
(DAWN) Limited and Ukhamba Holdings (Pty) Limited, the group’s empowerment pariner. He joined the
group and the executive committee in September 2004 and was appointed to the board on 4 July 2007.

Manuel Pereira de Canha (58) Imperial Place Execulive director
Jeppe Quondam
79 Boeing Road East
Bedfordview

Manny is the chief executive of Associated Motor Heldings, responsible for the import and distribution
of motor vehicles. He joined the group in 1996. He was appointed to the Board in November 2002.

Recht Louis Hiemstra (52) Imperial Place Executive director
BCompt (Hons) Jeppe Quondam

79 Beceing Road East

Bedfordview

Tak is the executive director, stralegic development of the group. He is the former managing director
of Imperial Bank. He is responsible for Enterprise and Business Development and is Imperial’'s representative
on the board of Ukhamba, the group’s empowerment partner and serves on the board of Tourvest. He joined
the group in 1992 and was appointed to the board in July 1993.

Walter Stanley Hill (48) Imperial Place Executive director
HN Dip (Ind Eng), AEP Jeppe Quondam

79 Boeing Road East

Bedfcrdview

Walter is the chief executive of the Leasing and Capital Equipment Division. He joined the Group in 19988
as Managing Director of Imperial Fleet Services and was appointed to the executive committee in November
2002 and to the board in August 2006. Walter will resign as a director of Imperial upon unbundling and
continue Lo serve on the board of Egstra.
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Name, age and qualifications Business address Ocenpation
Nazeer Hoosen (43) Imperial Place Executive director
BCompt, MBA Jeppe Quondam

79 Boeing Road East

Bedfordview

Nazeer is the chief executive of Regent Life. He joined the group in November 1996 as financial manager
of Regent Life and was appointed to the Regent Life board in 1998 and became the chief executive
in June 2002. He was appointed to the executive committee in March 2004 and to the board in July 2007.

Abdul Hafiz Mahomed (57) Imperial Place Group Financial director
BCompt {(Hons), CA(SA), H Dip Tax Jeppe Quondam

79 Boeing Road East

Bedfordview

Hafiz is the deputy chiefl execulive and the Group Financial Director. He joined the group as financial
manager in 1982 and was appointed o the board in March 1989.

Gerhard Wessel Riemann (62) Kasteelstrasse 8 Executive director
47119 Duisburg
Germany

Gerhard is the chief executive of Imperial Logistics International in Germany and is responsible for logistics
operalicns in Europe. He joined the group and the board in January 2000,

Thulani Sikhuiu Geabashe (50) Megawatt Park Non-execulive deputy chairman
Maxwell Drive
Sunninghill
Sandton
Thulani is the retired chief executive of Eskom and is currently the special advisor to the Chairman
of Eskom. He was appointed to the board in January 2008.

Phumezile Langeni {33) First Floor North Wing Non-executive director
BAcc 43 Wierda Road West

Wierda Valley

Sandton

Phumzile is currently a director of Afropulse and an independent non-execulive director of Massmart
Holdings Limited and Emperor's Palace. £he is the JSE representative on the Securities Regulation Panel
(SRP). She was appointed to the board in June 2004,

Michael John Leeming (64) 10 Somerset Estate Non-executive director
BCom, MCom, FCMA, FIBSA, AMP 100 East Avenue
Atholl

Mike is a former executive director of Nedcor Limited. He has served as chairperson of the Banking
Council of South Africa and president of this country’s Institute of Bankers, He is currently a non-executive
director of the Altron Group, AECI, Woolworths and Real Africa Holdings. He was appointed to the Board
in November 2002.

James Roy McAlpine (67) Suite 115 Non-executive director
BSc, CA Killarney Office Block
Killarney

Roy is a former executive director of Liberty Life. He is currently a non-executive director of African Rainbow
Minerals and Hyprop Investments, and is a past chairperson of the Association of Unit Trusts of South
Africa. He was appointed to the Board in August 1998.

Veli Joseph Mokoena (48) 55 Ferge Road Non-executive director
BA Post-Graduate Diploma Spartan

in Management (Wits) Executive Kempton Park

Development Program (New York)

Veli is the chief executive of Ukhamba Holdings, the group’s empowerment partner and is currently
a non-execulive director of Distribution and Warehousing Network Limited. He was appointed to the Board
in March 2004. Veli will resign as a director of Imperial upon unbundling and continue to serve on the
board of Eqgstra.
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Name, age and qualifications Business address Occupation
Popo Simon Molefe (55) ist Floor Non-executive director
Phd (Hon) 5 Commerce Square

39 Rivonia Road’

Sandhurst

Popo was the Premier of the North West Province and Chairperson of the ANC in the North West Province.
He is a former member of the ANC National Executive Commiitee and was the Chairperson of the ANC's sub-
committee on governance and legislatures. He has been appointed chairperson of Petro SA and a board
member of the Central Energy Fund, Strategic Fuel Fund, Xantium Technology Holdings Limited and
Armscor, He was appointed to the Board in June 2005. Popo will resign as a director of Imperial upon
unbundling and continue to serve on the board of Eqgstra.

Mohammed Valli Moosa (51) 1st Floor Non-executive director
BSe 5 Commerce Square

39 Rivonia Road

Sandhurst

Valli is the Non-Executive Chairman of liskom and is Non Execulive Director of Sanlam Limited and
Sun International. He is the Executive Chairman of Lereko Investments. He is also President of JUCN and
serves on the National Executive Commiitez of the ANC. He previously served as Minister for Constitutional
Development and Minister of Environmental Affairs and Tourism.

Max Vuyisile Sisulu (82} 349 Elizabeth Grove Non-executive director
MA, MPA Lynnvrood
Pretoria

Max is a prominent public figure and is currenily the group general manager of SASOL. He is a
non-executive director of African Rainbow minerals and the Resolve group. He is also the non-executive
chairperson of Ukhamba Holdings, the group’s empowerment partner. He was appointed to the Board
in March 2004. He serves on the national executive committee of the ANC.

Roderick John Alwyn Sparks (49) 14 Welbeloond Road Non-executive director

BCom (Hons), CA(SA), MBA Constaniia

Roddy is a former Managing Director of Old Mutual South Africa and Old Mutual Life Assurance Company
(SA) and former chairperson of Old Mutual Unit Trust, Old Mutual Specialised Finance and Old Mutual Asset
Managers (SA). He is a director of Worldwide African Investments and serves on the board of governors
of the UCT Graduate School of Business. He was appoinied to the Board in July 2006.

Ashley (Oshy) Tugendhaft (59) 20th Floor Non-executive director
BA LLB Sandton City Office Towers

5th Street

Sandcwn

Sandton

QOshy is the senior partner of Tugendhaft 'Wapnick Banchetti & Partners, a leading Johannesburg law firm
and a non-execulive director of African Bank Investments Limited and Pinnacle Technology Holdings
Limited. He was appointed Lo the Board in April 1998.

Younaid Waja (56) 63 Dclly Rathebe Road Non-executive director
BCom, Hons B Compt, Fordshurg
CA(SA), H Dip Tax Law Joharmesburg

Younaid is a director of the Public Investment Corporation (PIC), the largest shareholder in Imperial.
He is the chairperson and senior tax pariner of APF Chartered Accountants Inc., a director of Pareto Limited
as well as Blue 1Q Investment Holdings (Pty) Limited, a trustee of the Diabo Trust (Telkom Employees’
2% Share) and an accountant member of the Special Income Tax Court. He is also a former chairperson of the
Public Accountants’ and Auditors’ Board. /e was appointed to the Board in June 2004.
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Annexure 8

Trading history of Imperial ordinary shares on the JSE

The price history of Imperial shares on the JSE is set out below:

High Low Close Volume
(cents) {cents) {cents)
Quarterly
2005
March 10 850 9 460 9 751 30 851 423
June 10 500 9 350 10 230 28 488 035
September 13 500 10 005 13 300 44 634 701
December 14 433 11 400 14 060 50 612 182
2006
March 17 600 13 600 17 100 66 477 874
June 17 549 12 001 13 500 T3 206 533
September 14 595 12 160 12 925 61 878 373
December 16 574 12 835 16 399 55 0039 650
Monthly
2007
February 17 900 15 600 16 400 1 840 860
March 16 800 14 128 15 150 2 714 557
April 16 600 15 000 16 000 2 571 356
May 16 800 15 015 15 150 2 056 254
June 15 550 13 501 14 580 4 154 087
July 14 600 13 101 14 000 2 321 535
August 14 495 12 200 14 300 1 965 778
September 14 700 12 413 12 900 1 951 965
QOctober 13 750 12 460 13120 2 639 575
November 13 289 10 1900 10 290 2 056 957
December 11 293 9 500 10 438 1 645 779
2008
January 10 500 7425 7 600 22 835 077
Daily
2008
January
28 8 250 7 880 T 998 865 740
29 8 270 7 900 8 045 718 389
30 8 000 7710 T 799 556 406
31 7 995 7425 7 600 595 103
February
3 8 000 7 500 7 995 1172 211
4 8124 7 850 7011 981 764
5 8 001 T 263 7 401 1 100 562
6 7 699 7 100 7 495 1 812 693
7 7700 7 400 7 500 1 202 991
8 7 600 7 261 7 261 1470 199
11 7 350 7 002 7 010 800 810
12 7 270 7 000 7270 1 146 379
13 7 300 7151 7 400 1 468 661
14 7 680 7270 7 510 1117 803
15 7 740 7 400 7 600 1 632 086
18 7 800 7 420 7 661 394 987
19 7923 7 600 7 900 1111 355
20 7 820 7 800 7 765 1 510 236
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High Low Close Volume
{cents) {cents) (cents)
Daily
2008
February
21 7 900 7 620 7 851 1 052 358
22 8 352 T 700 8 130 1183 594
25 8 501 8 157 8 345 1 339 457
26 8 600 8174 8 500 828 071
27 8 399 7915 T 999 1572 252
28 8 084 7775 TTIS 494 930
29 8 084 7 610 8 000 966 355
March
3 7 974 7 700 7 9056 686 111
4 8 238 7 B850 7 800 1 105 990
S 8 000 7 499 7 614 1 206 058
6 7 695 7T 475 7513 1 552 679
7 7 400 6 930 7075 1 572 025
10 7075 6 779 6 950 1707 732
11 7 000 6 8OO 6 900 1 361 798

Source: I-Net Bridge.
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. Imperial Holdings Limited
| Imperial Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in the Republie of South Africa)
(Registration number 1946/021048/06)
Ordinary share code: IPL ISIN: ZAEOOOG67211
Preference share code: IPLP ISIN: ZAEQQO088076

(“Imperial” or “the Company”)}

Notice of general meeting of shareholders

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a general meeting of holders of ordinary shares of 4 cents each, deferred
cordinary shares of 4 cents each, preferred ordinary shares of 4 cents each and the non-redeemable,
non-participating preference shares of 4 cents each in the issued share capital of Imperial, will be held
at 10:00 on Friday, 18 April 2008, at the registered office of the Company, Imperial Place, 79 Boeing Road
East, Jeppe Quondam, Bedfordview, for tl.e purpose of considering and if, deemed fit, passing, with or
without modification, the Special and Ordinary Resolutions set out below in the manner required by the
Companies Act, 1973 (Act 61 of 1973), as amended (“the Companies Act”).

1. Special Resolution Number 1 — Amendment of Article 55 - Rights and Conditions of the Deferred
Ordinary Shares

“RESOLVED THAT, subject to the passing and registration of Special Resolution Number 2 and the
passing of Ordinary Resolution Number 1 and Ordinary Resolution Number 2, the articles of
association of the Company be, and are hereby amended by the deletion of the existing Article 55 and its
substitution by the new Article 55 which is contained in Schedule 1 hereto, which is a replica of the
existing Article 55 with all the proposed amendments marked up.”

It is recorded that the holders of the deferred ordinary shares have, in terms of Article 55.8, given their
written consent toc the amendment of Article 55.

The reason for and effect of this Special Resolution is to amend Article 55 of the Articles of Association
of the Company to accommodate the unbundling by the Company of its shares in Egstra Holdings
Limited in terms of section 90 of the Companies Act, as read with section 46 of the Income Tax Act,
58 of 1962 and the effect of the amendment of the Company’s financial year-end to 30 June.

2. Special Resolution Number 2 - Amendment of Article 56 — Rights and Conditions of the Preferred
Ordinary Shares

“RESOLVED THAT, subject to the passing and registration of Special Resolution Number 1 and the
passing of Ordinary Resolution Number 1 and Ordinary Resclution Number 2, the articles of association
of the Company be, and are hereby amended by the deletion of the existing Article 56 and ils substitution
by the new Article 56 which is contained in Schedule 2 hereto, which is a replica of lhe existing
Article 56 with all the proposed amendraents marked up.

The reason for and effect of this Special Resolution is {o amend Article 56 of the Articles of Association
of the Company to accommodate the unbundling by the Company of its shares in Egstra Holdings
Limited in terms of section 90 of the Companies Act, as read with section 46 of the Income Tax Act, 58
of 1962, and the effect of the amendment of the Company’s financial year-end to 30 June.

It is recorded that, as required by Article 56.12, the amendment of Article 56 in the manner provided
in this Special Resolution, has received the approvals of:
(1) the Lereko Mobility preference shareholders;

(2) a special resolution of the debenture holders at a general meeting of the debenture holders held prior
{o this general meeting;

(3) the JSE.
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Ordinary Resolution Number 1 - Approval of the Unbundling

“RESOLVED THAT, subject to the passing and registration of Special Resolution Number 1 and Special
Resolution Number 2 and the passing of Ordinary Resolution Number 2, the Company be and is hereby
authorised to distribute to its ordinary shareholders pro rata to their respective holdings of ordinary
shares in the Company, as an unbundling transaction as contemplated in section 46 of the Income Tax
Act, 1962 (Act 58 of 1962), as amended, and as permitted by section 90 of the Companies Act, all of the
ordinary shares which will be held by the Company in Egstra Holdings Limited (registration number
1998/011672/06), on the date of the fulfilment of the suspensive condition to which this resolution is
subject as set out below, upon the terms and subject to the conditions set out in the circular to the
Imperial shareholders, dated 20 March 2008, of which this notice of general meeting forms part, which
resolution is subject to the suspensive ondition that the aforesaid ordinary shares in Eqstra Holdings
Limited are listed on the JSE.”

Ordinary Resolution Number 2 — Approval of the MCC Minority Transaction

“RESOLVED THAT, subject {0 the passing and registration of Special Resolution Number 1 and Special
Resolution Number 2 and the passing of Ordinary Resolution Number 1, the Company hereby approves
the transaction described as the “MCC minority transaction” in the circular to the Imperial shareholders,
dated 20 March 2008, of which this notice of general meeting forms part.”

Those directors of the MCC companies (as defined in the circular) who are shareholders of the Company
shall not be entitled to vole on the above resolution since they are classified as related parties in terms of
the Listings Requirements of the JSE.

Ordinary Resolution Number 3 — Amendment of the Imperial Executive Share Purchase Scheme

“RESOLVED THAT, that the Company be and is hereby authorised to amend the provisions of the
Imperial Executive Share Purchase Schame, as follows:

5.1 by the addition of a new definition. to read as follows:

“1.1.20 “Eqgsira” means Egstra Holdings Limited (Registration number 1998/011672/06), a public
company incorporated in accordance with the laws of the Republic of South Africa, all
of the issued ordinary shares of which will be listed on the JSE;”

5.2 by the addition of a new definition to read as follows:
“1.1.21 “Eqgsira shares” means ordinary shares of a par value of 0.1 cent each in the capital
of Egstra;”
5.3 by the addition of a new definition to read as follows:

“1.1.22 “Egsira unbundling” means the transaction in terms of which Imperial will distribute
to its ordinary shareholders all of its ordinary shares in Eqstra in terms of section 90
of the Act, as read with section 46 of the Income Tax Act, 58 of 1962;”

5.4 by the insertion of a comma and addition of the following words “subject also to the provisions
of clause 23.3, which shall mutatis mutandis apply” after the word “concerned” at the end
of clause 1.1.31.1;

5.5 by the insertion of a comma and by the addition of the following words "subject, however to the
right of the board to extend the period in terms of clause 23.1" after the word “employment”
at the end of clause 1.1.31.2;

5.6 by the addition of the words “(treating each share and each Eqgstra share, as though its was one
combined share)” after the words “pledged shares” in the second line of clause 1.1.38;

5.7 by the addition of a new clause 1.1.44 .4 to read as follows:

“1.1.44.4 the unbundled Eqgstra shares; and”;

5.8 by the addition of a new clause 1.1.44.5 to read as follows:

“1.1.44.5 shares or other securities in Egstra or in any other company allotted, issued
or transferred by way of exchange for the unbundled Egsira shares, pursuant io any
conversion or redemption of shares in accordance with Egstra’s articles of association
for so long as those shares or securities remain subject to the pledge;”;



5.9

5.10

5.11

5.12

5.13

5.14

5.15

5.16

5.17

by the addition of a new definition to read as follows:

“1.1.55 “unbundled Eqgstra shares” means the Egstra shares distributed to a participant in terms
of the Egstra unbundling in respect of the participant’s holding of allocation shares.”;

by the deletion of the word “scheme” in clause 22.1 and the replacement thereof with the word
“allocation”;

by the insertion of a new clause 2:2.2 to read as follows:

“22.2 The unbundled Eqgstra shares of each participant shall be deemed, as against receipt by such
participant of the unbundled Egstra shares, to be subject to the pledge and cession in terms
of this 22.”;

by the insertion of the words “and the unbundled Egstra shares,” following the words “allocation
shares” in clause 22.5.1;

by the insertion of the words “and,or the unbundled Egstra shares” following the words “allocation
shares” in clause 22.5.1.1;

by the deletion in clause 23.1 of the words in parenthesis in the third line “(except in any event
referred to in 1.1.28.2 or 1.1.28.3)” and the remainder of this clause after the words “prejudice
to the participant”;

by the deletion of clause 23.3, and the replacement thereof with a new 23.3 to read as follows:

“23.3 Without derogating from the provisions of 23.1, if, as at the expiry date, (excep! in any event
referred to in 1.1.31.2 or 1.1.31.3), the total share debt exceeds the fair market value of the
pledged shares as at that dzte and the board has not extended the maximum period in terms
of 23.1 by not less than 3 years, any participant may, on written notice (“the notice™) given
to the trustees by the expiry date, require the maximum period to be extended for a further
period, not exceeding 3 years as specified in the notice, whereupon the maximum period
shall be deemed tc have been so extended.”

by the deletion of clauses 23.3.1, £23.3.1.1, 23.3.1.2, 23.3.1.3, 23.3.1.4 and 23.3.1.5.
by the insertion of a new clause 23 to read as follows:

“28.PRECLUSION OF VOTING AND TRADING PURPOSES

28.1 Shares held by the trust shall not have their votes at general/annual general meetings of
the company taken account of lor the Listings Requirements’ resolution approval
purposes. Such shares shall also not be allowed to be taken account of {or purposes of
determining categorisations as detailed in Section 9 of the Listings Requirements.

28.2 The scheme shall be used to incentivise participants and may not be used for trading
purposes.”

The directors of the Company who have an interest in the Imperial Executive Share Purchase Scheme
shall not be entitled to vote on the above resolution.

Ordinary Resoluntion Number 4 - Amendment of the Imperial Bonus Right Scheme

“RESOLVED THAT, the Company be and is hereby authorised to amend the provisions of the Imperial
Bonus Right Scheme, as follows:

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

by making Eqgstra Holdings Limited a party to the Imperial Bonus Right Scheme Agreement;

by the insertion of the words “or the Egstra Group, as the case may be,” after the word “group”
in clause 1.1.2;

by the insertion of the words “or Egstra, as the case may be,” after the word “Imperial” in
clause 1.1.4;

by the insertion of the words “or Eqstra, as the case may be,” after the word “Imperial” in
clause 1.1.5;

by the insertion of the words “or Eqgsira, as the case may be,” after the word “Imperial” and
by insertion of the words “of Imperial” after the word “board” in clause 1.1.6;
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6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

6.10

6.11

6.12

6.13

6.14

6.15

6.16

6.17

6.18

6.19

by the insertion of the words “or Egstra, as the case may be,” after the word “Imperial” in
clause 1.1.8;

by the deletion of the word “and” as it appears between the references made to clauses 1.1.9.2
and 1.1.9.3 and by the insertion of a comma after the reference made to clause 1.1.9.2, as well
as insertion of the words “and 1.1.9.4” after the reference made to clause 1.1.9.3 in the first line
of clause 1.1.9.1;

by the insertion of the words “and clause 1.1.9.4” afler the reference made to clause 1.1.9.3
in clause 1.1.9.2;

by the insertion of the words “subject to clause 1.1.9.4,” at the beginning of clause 1.1.9.3;

by the addition of a new clause 1.1.9.4 to read as follows:

“1.1.9.4 in respect of original bonus rights, if the aggregate of the fair market value of the
notional Imperial shares and the notional Egstra shares as at the end of the period
referred to in clause 1.:..9.1 is less than the fair market value of the Imperial shares
as at the commencement date, a period of 5 years commencing on the commencement
date, provided that if, as at that dale, the aforementioned aggregate fair market value
is still less than the fair market value of the notional Imperial shares as at the
commencement date, a period of 6 years commencing on the commencement date;”;

by the insertion of a comma and the addition of the following words “which, in respect of original
bonus rights granted to Eqgstra participants, shall be deemed to have been made by Eqstra or any
company of the Egstra group nominated by Egstra as at the bonus payment date, and failing such
nomination, Eqstra;” after the word “scheme” at the end of clause 1.1.10;

by the insertion of the words “or Eqgstra shares. as the case may be,” after the words “Imperial
shares” and by insertion of the words “or Eqgstra, as the case may be,” after the words “to which
Imperial” in clause 1.1.12;

by the deletion of clause 1.1.15 which read as follows:

“1.1.15 “the directors” means the directors of Imperial;”;

by the addition of a new definition. to read as follows:

“1.1.16 “Egstra” means Egstra Holdings Limited (Registration number 1998/011672/08);"

by the addition of a new definilion to read as foliows:

“1.1.17 “BEgstra group” means Eqgstra, its subsidiaries and associated companies from time
to time;”

by the addition of a new definition to read as follows:

“1.1.18 “Egstira participant” means a participant who, consequent upon the Egstra unbundling,
ceases (o be employed by the group and is instead employed by the Egstra group;”

by the addition of a new definition to read as follows:

“1.1.19 “Eqgstra shares” means ordinary shares of a par value of 0.1 cent each in the capital
of Eqstra;”

by the addition of a new definition to read as follows:

“1.1.20 “Egstra unbundling” means the transaction in terms of which Imperial will distribute all
of its shares in Eqstra to the ordinary shareholders of Imperial in terms of section 90
of the Companies Aci, No. 61 of 1973, as amended, as read with section 46(1Xa) of the Act;”

by the addition of a new clause 1.1.22.2 o read as follows:

“1.1.22.2 an Eqstra share or a notional Egstra share, means the volume weighted average price
per share for trades in Egstra shares made on the JSE calculated over the 30 trading
days preceding the exp:ry date;”



6.20

6.21

6.22

6.23

6.24

6.25

€.26

6.27

6.28

6.29

6.30

6.31

6.32

6.33

6.34

6.35

by the insertion of the words “or Egstra, as the case may be,” after the word “Imperial” in
clause 1.1.23;

by the insertion of a comma and the addition of the following words “or the Egstra group, as the
case may be,” after the word “group” in clause 1.1.25;

by the addition of a new definition. to read as follows:

“1.1.30 “notional Egsira shares” means notional Eqgstra shares equivalent in number io the
notional Imperial shares;”;

by the addition of a new definilion to read as follows:

“1.1.33 ‘“original bonus rights” means bonus rights offered and accepted by a participant prior
to the Egstra unbundlingr;”;

by the insertion of a comma and the addition of the following words “provided that in respect
of original bonus rights granted te Egstra participants, the participating company in respect
of any such bonus rights shall be deemed to be any company of the Egstra group nominated
by Eqgstra as at the bonus payment date, and failing such nomination, Egstra” after the word “them”
at the end of clause 1.1.35;

by the addition of the word “Imperial” after the word “means” and by the insertion of a comma and
the addition of the word “Egstra” after the word “companies” in clause 1.1.36;

by the insertion of the words “or the Egstra group, as the case may be,” after the word “group”
in the second line of clause 1.1.39 and by the insertion of the words “or the Egstra group” after the
word “group” in the fifth line of clause 1.1.39;

by the insertion of the words “or the Egstra Group, as the case may be,” after the word “group”
in clause 1.1.40;

by the insertion of the words “or, from the Eqstra group, in respect of original bonus rights granted
to Egsira participants,” after the words “bonus right,” in clause 1.1.41;

by the insertion of the words “or Eqgstra, as the case may be,” after the word “Imperial” in
clause 1.1.43;

by the insertion of a comma and the addition of the following words “, or who were employed
by the group at the commencement date and will continue to be employed by the Eqstra group
consequent upon the Egstra unbundling™ after the word “term” at the end of clause 2;

by the insertion of a comma and the addition of the words “, and Eqstra participants in respect
of original bonus rights,” after the word “participants” in clause 3;

by the insertion of the words “Subject to clause 4.8,” and amending the capital letter “T" affixed
to the word "The” to a small letter “t” at the beginning of clause 4.2;

by the insertion of the words “Subject to clause 4.8,” and amending the capital letter “I” affixed
to the word "If” to a small letter “i” at the beginning of clause 4.3;

by the addition of the words “or Eqgstra, as the case may be™ after the word “Imperial” in the first
line, as well as after the word “shares” in the fourth line of clause 4.5 and by the insertion
of a comma and the addition of the following words “provided that, an Egstra participant shall
be required to apply his bonus to subscribe for, or at the election of Egstra, purchase Eqgstra shares
on the bonus payment date, in the circumstances contemplated in clause 11.12” after the word
“date” at the end of clause 4.5;

by the insertion of the words “or Egstra shares” after the word “shares” in clause 4.6;
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6.36

6.37

6.38

6.39

6.40

6.41

6.42

6.43

6.44

6.45

6.46

6.47

by the addition of a new clause to read as follows:

“4.8 In respect of original bonus rights, the amount of the bonus will be equivalent to the
difference, if any, between the aggregate of the fair market value of an Imperial share and
an Eqgstra share, as at the expiry date and the fair market value of an Imperial share as at
the commencement date, multiplied by the number of notional Imperial shares to which the
bonus right is linked, but subject to clause 4.4.”;

by the insertion of the words “subject to clause 10.5.3,” at the beginning of clause 10.5.1;
by the deletion of the full stop and replacement thereof with a semi-colon at the end of clause 10.5.2;

by the insertion of a new clause to read as follows:

“10.5.3 in respect of original bonus rights granted to an Egstra participant, upon such Egstra
participant ceasing pricr to the expiry date, to be employed by any company in the
Egstra group for whatevar reason, including retirement and retrenchment, but excluding
age retirement, ill-healil: retirement and death.”;

by the insertion of the words “or Eqgstra participant, as the case may be,” after the word
“participant” in clause 10.8,;

by the insertion of a comma and “he addition of the words “, but subject to clause 11.2” afier the
words “clause 11.3" at the end of clause 11.1:

by the insertion of a new clause to read as follows:

“11.2 Subject to the acceptance o a bonus right in terms of clause 10.3, in respect of an original
bonus right granted to an ligstra participant, such Egsira participant shall be paid a bonus
by the participating company concerned in the amount referred to in clause 11.4.7;

by the deletion of the reference made to clause “11.3” and replacement thereof with reference now
being made to “11.5” in clause 11.3 as well as by the insertion of the words “of the designated
shares as" after the words “If the fair market value” in the fifth line of clause 11.3;

by the addition of a new clause to read as follows:

“11.4 Subject to clause 11.5, the bonus payable in terms of clause 11.2 shall be an amount
equivalent to the difference between the aggregate of the fair market value of an Imperial
share and an Eqstra share as at the expiry date and the fair market value of an Imperial
share as al the commencement date, multiplied by the number of designated shares. If the
aforesaid amount is a negative amount, no bonus shall be payable.”;

by the addition of a new clause to read as follows:

“11.5 Any bonus shall be subject to the performance criteria, which may provide for its reduction
or elimination in its entirety.”;

by the insertion of the words “or Egstra, as the case may be,” after the word “Imperial” and by the
insertion of the words “or clause 11.11, as the case may be,” after the words “clause 11.7”
in clause 11.6;

by the addition of a new clause to read as follows:

“11.12 In respect of original bonus rights, an Eqgstra participant, in accordance with clause 4.5,
shall apply the bonus, at the election of Egstra:

11.12.1 to subscribe for Egsira shares (“the Eqstra specified shares”) at a price per Egstra
share equivalent to the last closing price in respect of trades in Egsira shares
which will have occurred immediately prior io the bonus payment date; and/or

11.12.2 topurchase Egsira shares (“the Egsira specified shares”) at the best price at which
the stockbroker referred to in clause 11.7.2 is able to acquire Egsira shares on Lthe
JSE within the 3 day period commencing on the bonus payment date,

and the provisions of clauses 11.7 to 11.11 shall, mutatis mutandis, apply in respect of the
Egstra specified shares.”;



6.48 by the insertion of the words “or, in respect of original bonus rights granted to Eqstira participants,
any of the aforegoing in respect of Egstra shares or share capital” after the word “Imperial” and
by the insertion of the words "or Eqstra participant, as the case may be,” after the word
“participant” in clause 12.1;

6.49 by the addition of a new clause to read as follows:

“12.2 I is recorded that the Egstra unbundling will be deemed not to be an adjustment event
as contemplated in clause 12.1, the amendment of the scheme in the respects set out in this
amended scheme, being intended to accommodate the Egstra unbundling.”;

6.50 by the insertion of the words “or Egstra, as the case may be,” after the word “Imperial”
in clause 13;

6.51 by the insertion of ithe words “specified in Schedule 1 hereto” after the word “companies”
in clause 16.1.1;

6.52 by the insertion of the words “or Egstra group’s, as the case may be,” after the word “group’s”
in clause 16.1.2;

6.53 by the addition of a new clause to read as follows:

“16.1.8 Eqstra group - 12 Corobrick Road
-  Mecadowdale
Fax No - 085 674 94207;

6.54 by the insertion of the words “or “he Egstra group” after the word “company” in c¢lause 16.5;

6.55 by the deletion of the words “will be” in Schedule 1 and replacement thereof with the word “are”,
as well as the addition of the wcrd “amended” after the word “this” and by the insertion of the
acronym “(Pty)”’ between the words “Ukhamba Holdings” and “Limited” at the end of Schedule 1.

The directors of the Company who have an interest in the Imperial Bonus Right Scheme shall not
be entitled to vole on the above resolution.

Ordinary Resolution Number 5 — Authority for Directors and Secretary to Sign and Act

“RESOLVED THAT, any director or th2 secretary of the Company be and is hereby authorised to do all
such things and sign all such documents as are necessary to give effect to the aforegoing
Special Resolutions and Ordinary Resolutions.”

VOTING

The holders of the ordinary shares, tne deferred ordinary shares and the preferred ordinary shares
in the issued share capital of the Company will be enlitled to attend the general meeting and to vote
on all the resolutions set out above. On a show of hands every such shareholder of the Company who
is present in person or by proxy at the general meeting will have one vote (irrespective of the number
of shares held in the Company), and on a poll, every such shareholder of the Company will have one vote
for every share held or represented.

The holders of the non-redeemable, non-participating preference shares (“preference shares”) in the
Company will be entitled to attend the general meeting and to vote on Ordinary Resolution Number 1.
On a show of hands every preference shareholder of the Company who is present in person or by proxy
at the general meeting will have one vote (irrespective of the number of the preference shares held in the
Company). In terms of section 195(1) of the Companies Act, 1973 (Act 61 of 1973), as amended, on a poll,
every preference shareholder will have that proportion of the total votes in the Company which the
aggregate amount of the par value of the preference shares held by him bears to the aggregate amount
of the par value of all shares issued by the Company, provided that the total voting rights attributable to
the preference shares at such meeting shall be limited to a maximum of 24.9% of the total voting rights
of all the shareholders exercisable at the general meeting.

PROXIES

An Imperial ordinary shareholder, deferred ordinary shareholder, preferred cordinary shareholder
or preference shareholder entitled to attend and vole at the general meeting may appoint one or more
persons as its proxy to attend, speak and vote in its stead. A proxy need not be a shareholder of the
Company.
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A form of proxy (blue) is attached for the convenience of certificated shareholders and “own name’
dematerialised shareholders who are unable to attend the general meeting, bul who wish to be
represented thereat. In order to be valid, duly completed proxy forms must be received by the Company’s
transfer secretaries, Computershare Investor Services (Pty) Limited, Ground Floor, 70 Marshall Street,
Johannesburg, 2001, or posted to the transfer secretaries at PO Box 61051, Marshalliown, 2107, or
forwarded by fax to number (011) 688-5238, to be received by 10.00 on Wednesday, 16 April 2008.

Dematerialised shareholders, other than with “own name”, registration, who have not been contacted
by their Central Securities Depository Participant (“CSDP”) or broker with regard to how they wish
to cast their votes, should contact their CSDP or broker and instruct their CSDP or broker as to how they
wish to cast their votes at the Company’s general meeting in order for their CSDP or broker to vote
in accordance with such instructions. If such dematerialised shareholders wish to attend the Company’s
general meeling in person, they musti request their CSDP or broker to issue the necessary letter
of representation to them. This must be done in terms of the agreement entered into between such
dematerialised shareholders and the CSDP or broker.

By order of the board of directors

IMPERIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

R A Venter
Company Secretary

20 March 2008

Registered office Transfer secretaries

Imperial Place Computershare Investor Services (Proprietary) Limited
Jeppe Guondam Ground Floor

79 Boeing Road East 70 Marshall Street

Bedfordview, 2004 Johannesburg, 2001

(PO Box 3013, Edenvale, 1610) (PO Box 61051, Marshalltown, 2107)
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Schedule 1

New Article 55 of the Articles of Association of Imperial

(Amendments to existing Article 55 marked-up)

55. Special Rights and Conditions attached to the Deferred Ordinary Shares

55.1 Interpretation

For the purposes of this Article 55, the following terms shall have the meanings assigned to them
hereunder:

55.1.1

55.1.2

55.1.3

55.1.4

55.1.

[4)]

-]

a5.1.

65.1.7
55.1.8

55.1.9

58.1.10

55.1.11

55.1.12

55.1.13

556.1. 14

55.1.15

65-1-1455.1.16

“AC 110" means “AC 11C: accounting for investments in associates”, being the accounting
statement of Generally Accepted Accounting Praclice as issued by The South African
Institute of Chartered Accountants to prescribe principles for accounting for investments
in associates, or any accounting standard which may be substituted in place thereof;

“Annexure A” means Armexure A to this Article 55, which is to be read as incorporated
herein;

“the articles” means the articles of association of the company;
“associale” means associale as defined in AC 110;
“the auditors” means the auditors for the time being of the company;

“Base Headline Earnings Hurdles” means Base Headline Earnings Hurdles as defined
in Section 1 of Annexur: A;

“the board” means the board of directors of the company;
“the company” or “Impecrial” means Imperial Holdings Limited;

“the conversion” means the conversion of any particular number of deferred ordinary
shares into ordinary shares;

“the converted shares” means, at any Lime, the cumulative total number of deferred
ordinary shares that have been converted into ordinary shares during the initial
conversion period, the extended conversion period and the indefinite conversion period;

“CSDP” means a Central Securities Depository Participant, accepted as a participant
in terms of the Custodvy and Administration of Securities Act, 1992 (Act 85 of 1992),
as amended;

“the date of conversion” means the date upcn which each conversion concerned occurs
in terms of 55.13;

“the deferred ordinary shares” means deferred ordinary shares of a par value of 4 cents
each in the capital of the company;

it

‘Fgsira” means Egstra oldings Limited (Registration number 1998/011672/06);

1

‘Bgstra unbundling” means the transaction in terms of which the company will distribule
its shares in Eqgstra to the ordinary shareholders of the company in terms of section 90
“the expert” means a person appointed by agreement of the board, the board of Eqstra and
the holders of the deferred ordinary shares, and failing such agreement, by the Chairman
of the Johannesburg Bar Council or failing him, by the President of The South African
Institute of Chartered Accountants;

S6—44+555,.1.17 “the extended conversicn period” means the period commencing on 86-durel July 2011

and ending 14 days afier the dale of approval by the board of the financial statements
of the company in respect of the financial period ended 86830 June 2018, provided that if
the company’s financial year-end should be changed, those dates shall be adjustied
approprialely;
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6613655.1.18

B6-1-4555.1.19

65-3-4855.1.20

B64-16855.1.21

56:4-2055.1.22

“financial period” means each financial periocd of the company as more fully described
in Section 1 of Annexure A;

“financial statements” means the audited consolidated annual financial statements of the
company in respect of each of the financial periods;

“the formula” means the formula set out in Annexure A, upon the application of which
the conversion during the initial conversion period and the extended conversion period
will occur;

“the Group” means, collectively, the company, its subsidiaries and associates;

“headline earnings” means headline earnings as defined in Cireular 7/2002 issued
on 17 December 2002 by The South African Institute of Chartered Accountants, or any
subsequent amendment thereof, provided that the following shall be excluded from the
determination of headline earnings:

S631-96-155.1.22. 1 any pains/losses arising from the sale of any businesses by the Group;

S6-130-355,1.22 2 impairment of the Group’s aviation assets, provided that to the extent that such

an impairment is reversed in subsequent financial periods, any gains from
such reversal shall also be excluded from the calculation of headline earnings
in respect of “hose financial periods, and provided further, that the calculation
of headline earnings shall not be adjusted for any impairment of such aviation
assets in respect of any financial periods subsequent to 25 June 2004;

So--36-355.1.22 3 any gains/losses arising from the issue of the deferred ordinary shares and/or

86—4-3455.1.23
56-4-8355.1.24

6613835.1.25

6634-3455.1.26

66:4+3655.1.27

their conversion;

55 1.22 4 any gainsflosses arising from the shares held by the company in Egstra;

“the Hurdles” means the Base Headline Earnings Hurdles and the Hurdle growth rates;
“Hurdle growth rates” means Hurdle growth rates as defined in Section 1 of Annexure A;

“the indefinite conversion period” means the period commencing on-86-dunel July 2018
(or such adjusted date if the company’s financial year-end should be changed) and ending
on the date that the cumulative total of the converted shares equals 10.1% of the total
issued ordinary shares as at that date {excluding treasury shares but including the
converted shares);

“the initial conversion period” means the period commencing on 26 June 2004 and ending
14 days after the dale of approval by the board of the financial statements of the company
in respect of the financial period ended 8830 June 2011, provided that if the company’s
financial year-end should be changed, that period shall be adjusted to expire 14 days after
the date of approval by the board of the financial statements in respect of the last completed
financial year of the cornpany, which is not earlier than 3630 June 2011;

“JIBAR” means:

66-4-35-455.1.27 1 the quarter year (91-day) Johannesburg Inter-Bank Agreed Rate as quoted

by Safexy and published on the first day of the given period for deposits
in a comparable amount to that on which interest is to accrue and for a period
comparable to the relevant interest period and which appears on the Reuters
screen Safesy page of First Rand Bank Limited at 11:00 Johannesburg time
on that date, expressed as a percentage and converted to a nominal annual
compounded annually in arrear rate; and

H6:4-225-8553.1.27 2 if the rate it 55.1.27.1 is not quoted, the arithmetic mean (rounded upward

H6-1-8655,.1.28

to the nearest decimal place) of the mid-marketl rate between deposits and loans
in South African Rands for the total number of days in such interest period
as quoted on the Reuters page of First Rand Bank Limited al approximately
11:00 Johannesburg time on that date;

“the Listings Requirements” means the Listings Requirements of the JSE;



S65-4-0%55. 1,29 “major company” means any company in which Imperial has any direct or indirect
shareholding interest, which, in respect of the last financial period of Imperial prior
to any unbundling of thal shareholding, contributed to the headline earnings of Imperial
not less than 5% of the {otal headline earnings in respect of that financial period;

H6-4-8855.1,30 “ordinary shares” means ordinary shares of a par value of 4 cents each in the capital
of the company;

£6-$-8655.1.31_ "pro rata proportion” means the equation represented by:

D
365

Where;

D = the number of unexpired days in any financial period, reckoned from the
effective date of any unbundling as contemplated in 55.14.1.1 or date
of payment of any special dividend as contemplated in 55.15.1.1, as the
case may be;

86-4-3655.1.32 “special dividend” means any dividend or ca.pital. distribution declared and paid by the
company which is of an extraordinary nature and which is recognised by the company
as a special dividend or capital distribution, but excluding any capitalisalion issue;

664-3455.1.33 “the sponsor” means the sponsor of the company as described in Section 2 of the Listings
Requirements;

8643855, 1.34 “subsidiary” means a Subsidiary as defined in Section 1.3 of Annexure A;

66-4-3855.1.35 “treasury shares” means any ordinary shares which are owned by any subsidiary of the
company; and

66-4-3455.1.36 “unbundling” means any transaction in terms of which the sharehoclding or part thereof
in any company in which Imperial has any direct or indirect shareholding is distributed
to the shareholders of Iiperial in terms of Section 90, or any other provisions of the Act.

55.2 Rights, privileges and conditions

The rights, privileges and conditions which attach to the deferred ordinary shares are set out
in 55.3 to 55.23 hereof.

55.3 Issue price

Each deferred ordinary share shall be issued at its par value, of 4 cents, on the bases that:

55.3.1 if the issued ordinary shares of a par value of 4 cents each in the capital of the company
are consolidated or sub-divided, the same shall apply, mutatis mutandis, to the deferred
ordinary shares;

55.3.2 if any rights issue is implemented by the company in respect of the ordinary shares, the
holders of the deferred orclinary shares shall not be entitled to participate in the rights issue;

55.3.3 if the board so determines, and subject to the approval of the holders of the ordinary shares
in general meeting and of the JSE, if required, the holders of the deferred ordinary shares
may be given the right in respect of any rights issue as contemplated in 55.3.2, to subsecribe
al a par value of 4 cenls each, for that number of additional deferred ordinary shares,
which together with the deferred ordinary shares originally allotted and issued, will
constitule 10.1% of the total issued share capital of the company after the rights issue
(excluding any treasury shares but including the deferred ordinary shares);

55.3.4 if any capitalisation or bonus issue is implemented by the company, the holders of the
deferred ordinary shares shall be entitled and confined to a distribution from the company
of so many additional deferred ordinary shares, which together with the deferred ordinary
shares originally allotted and issued, will constitute 10.1% of the total issued share capital
of the company after the capitalisation or bonus issue (excluding any treasury shares but
including the additional deferred ordinary shares).

55.4 No participation in dividends or ¢ther distributions

Save as provided in 55.3.4 and 55.5, the deferred ordinary shares shall not participate in, or receive
any dividends or capital distributions distributed by the company and/or any other payments made
by the company in terms of secticn 90 of the Act.
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55.5

55.6

535.7

55.8

556.9

55.10

55.11

55.12

60

Rights on winding-up

The deferred ordinary shares shall confer on the holders thereof the right, in a winding-up,
to repayment of the par value thereof, pari passu with the holders of the ordinary shares, but
no further right to participate in the profits or assetls of the company.

Voting rights

55.6.1 The deferred ordinary shares shall rank parf passu in all respects with the ordinary shares
with respeet to voling righis.

55.6.2 In accordance with 55.3.1, notwithstanding anything to the contrary which may
be contained in the Articles, the holders of the deferred ordinary shares shall not
be entitled to veto any resolution that would otherwise have been capable of being passed
by the required majority of votes, collectively, of the holders of the ordinary shares and the
deferred ordinary shares.

Separate class

The deferred ordinary shares shall constitute a separate class of shares for the purposes
of Article 5.1.1 as read with Article 15.1.9 of the articles.

Variation of rights

All or any of the rights attaching to the deferred ordinary shares may only be modified, altered,
varied, added to or abrogated, with the prior written consent of the holders of at least 75% of the
issued deferred ordinary shares or the sanction of a resolution of the holders of the issued deferred
ordinary shares passed at a separate general meeling of such holders and at which members
holding in the aggregale not lesz than 75% of Lhe total voles of all the holders of the deferred
ordinary shares entitled to vote at thal meeting are present in person or by proxy and the resolution
has been passed by not less than 75% of the total votes to which the holders of the deferred ordinary
shares presenl in perscn or by proxy are entitled.

Meetings and quorum

Subject to 55.8, at every separale meeting of the holders of the deferred ordinary shares the
provisions of the articles relating to general meetings of ordinary members shall apply
mutatis mutandis, except that a quorum at any such general meeting of the holders of the deferred
ordinary shares shall be a person or persons holding or representing by proxy al least 75% of the
issued deferred ordinary shares, provided that if at any adjournment of such meeting a quorum
is not present, then the provisions of the articles relating to adjourned meetings shall,
mutatis mutandis, apply.

Restriction on transfer

The holders of the deferred ordinary shares shall not, whether directly or indirectly, be entitled
to sell, alienate, or in any other manner dispose of, transfer, relinquish any rights to, beneficial
or otherwise, pledge, or in any other manner encumber, any of the deferred ordinary shares save
to, or in favour of the company. In the event of the holder of any deferred ordinary shares breaching
the provisions hereof, then without prejudice to any other rights which the company may have, the
deferred ordinary shares which are the subject matter of the breach shall no longer be eligible for
conversion in terms of 55.11 and the provisions of 55.13.2.1 1o 55.13.2.3 shall be deemed to apply,
mulatis mutandis, in respect of the said deferred ordinary shares.

Conversion

On the date of conversion, the ceferred ordinary shares to which the conversion applies shall
automatically be converted into ordinary shares, on a one-for-one basis, and the appropriale
amendment shall be made to the custody agreement entered into beltween each holder of the
deferred ordinary shares and its CSDP or broker.

Ranking on conversion

Any ordinary shares so converted from deferred ordinary shares in terms of 55.11 shall rank from
the date of conversion, pari passu in all respects with the other ordinary shares and shall
accordingly qualify for any dividends or eapital distributions declared by the company after the
date of conversion.



55.13 Method of conversion and creation of preference shares

55.13.1

55.13.2

55,13.3

55.13.4

55.13.5

The conversion of the deferred ordinary shares into ordinary shares shall occur
in respect of each financial pericd in accordance with the formula, within seven days
of the dale of approval by the board of the financial statements of the company in respect
of each of the financial periods, respectively, against delivery to the secretary of the
company, of a report from the auditors, which the board shall procure, supporting
the calculation of the number of deferred ordinary shares which are to be converted,
as determined by the board.

Once the cumulative tctal of the converted shares equals 10,1% of the total issued
ordinary shares (excluding treasury shares but including the converted shares), the
remaining deferred ordinary shares:

55.13.2.1 shall not be capable of conversion;

55.13.2.2 shall confer on each holder of the deferred ordinary shares, one vote for every
deferred ordinary share held up to 100 and thereafter, one vole for every ten
thousand deferred ordinary shares held;

55.13.2.3 shall automatically be converted into an equivalent number of redeemable
preference shares of a par value of 4 cents each, carrying the rights and
condition sel put in 55.13.5.

If by the end of the initial conversion pericd, there are any deferred ordinary shares which
have not been converted into ordinary shares (“the remaining deferred ordinary shares”),
the following provisions shall apply:

55.13.3.1 subject to 55.13.3.2, at the end of each financial period during the extended
conversion period, that number of the remaining deferred ordinary shares,
determined in terms of Section 10 of the formula, shall convert into
a corresponding number of ordinary shares; and

55.13.3.2 once the total number of converted shares equals 10,1% of the total
issued ordinary share capital of the company (excluding any treasury
shares but including the converted shares) the provisions of 55.13.2 shall,
mutatis mutandis, apply.

If by the end of the extended conversion period, there are any deferred ordinary shares
which have not been converted into ordinary shares (“the remaining deferred ordinary
shares”), the following provisions shall apply:

55.13.4.1 subject to 55 13.4.2, at the end of each financial period during the indefinite
conversion pariod, that number of the remaining deferred ordinary shares,
determined in terms of Section 11 of the formula, shall convert into
a corresponding number of ordinary shares until all the remaining deferred
ordinary shares have been so converted; and

55.13.4.2 once the total number of converted shares equals 10,1% of the total
issued ordinary share capital of the company (excluding any treasury
shares but including the converted shares) the provisions of 55.13.2 shall,
mutatis mutandis, apply.

Every redeemable preference share referred to in 55.13.2.3 shall:

55.13.5.1 confer on the holder thereof the right, in a winding-up, to repayment of the par
value thereof, pari passu with the holders of the ordinary shares, but no
further right to participate in the profits or assets of the company;

55.13.5.2 not confer on the holder the right to vote alt meetings of the company, except:

(a) during any period determined as provided in 55.13.6, during which any
winding-up dividend or any part of any such dividend on such share or
any redemnption payment thereon remains in arrear and unpaid; or

(b) in regard to any resolution proposed which directly affects any of the
rights attached to such preference share or the interests of the holder
thereof, including a resolution for the winding-up of the company or for
the reduction of its capital;
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55.13.6

55.13.5.3 subject to Section 98 of the Act, be redeemable at par at the option of the
company at any time, on the following terms and conditions:

{a) notice of the exercise of such option shall be given by the company to the
holder of the preference share in writing, whereupon such preference
share shall be regarded as redeemed and cancelled; and

(b) upon receipt of such notice, the holder shall deliver the certificate of such
preference share to the company at its registered office and the company
shall pay to such holder in consideration of the redemption, the par value
of the share;

the period referred to in 55.13.5.2(a) shall commence 6 months afler the end of the
financial year of the company in respect of which such dividend accrued or such
redemption payment became due.

55.14 Unbundling

55.14.1

65.14.2

55.14.3

If at any time, there is any unbundling by the company of any major company, the
Hurdles for:

55.14.1.1 the financial period in which the unbundling occurs, shall be decreased by the
pro rata proportion of the headline earnings which the major company will
have contributed to Imperial in respect of the immediately prior financial
period, escalated by 13%;

55.14.1.2 the immediately succeeding financial period, shall be decreased by the headline
earnings which the major company will have contributed to Imperial in respect
of the immediately prior financial period referred to in 55.14.1, escalated
by 1.13%

55.14.1.3 all future unexpired financial periods. shall be decreased by the same amount
referred to in 55.14.1.2 escalated by 13% per annum compounded,

pro rata, if the unbundling comprises less than the total shareholding of Imperial in the
major company concerned,

The amount of any decrease in terms of 55.14.1 shall be determined in accordance with
the provisions of 55.17.1 (excluding 55.17.2) which shall, mutatis mutandis, apply.

The provisions of 55,14, shall not apply in respect of the Eqgstra unbundling, it being
recorded that the amendm f fi la in terms of th ial resolution
at the general meetin f the 41} whi rov he Egstra u 1i

accommodates the Egsira unbundling.

55.15 Special dividend
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55.15.1

If at any time, a special dividend is paid by the company, the Hurdles for:

55.15.1.1 the financial period in which.the payment of the special dividend occurs shall
be decreased by the pro rata proportion of the interest per annum, less notional
tax payable thereon, that would have been earned by the company in respect
of that financial period on the cash amount of the special dividend, on the
assumption that the amouni would have been invested by the company
at JIBAR plus 50 basis points and would have been taxable at the normal rate
of tax appliceble to companies, without any deductions or rebates;

55.15.1.2 the immediately succeeding financial period, shall be decreased by the interest
per annum, less notional tax payable thereon, that would have been earned
by the compuny for the full financial period concerned on the cash amount
of the special dividend, on the assumption that the amount would have been
invested by the company at JIBAR (at the rate applicable in the financial period
referred to in 55.15.1.1) plus 50 basis points and would have been taxable
at the normal rate of tax applicable to companies (at the rate applicable in the
financial period referred to in 55.15.1.1), without any deduclions or rebates,
plus 13%;

55.15.1.3 all fuiure firancial periods shall be decreased by the same amouni referred
to in 55.15.1.2 escalated by 13% per annum compounded.



55.15.2

55.15.3

The amount of any decr2ase in terms of 55.15.1 shall be determined in accordance with
the provisions of 55.17.1 (excluding 55.17.2), which shall, mutatis mutandis, apply.

The provisions of 55.15 shall not apply in respect of the distribution in terms of section 90
of the Act of the shares in FEgstr, Imperial its shareholders in terms of the Egstra

unbundling, it being recprded_that the amendment of the formula in terms of the special
resolution passed at the general meeting of the company which approved the Egstra
unbundling accommodates such distribution.

55.16 Revision of the hurdles

§55.16.1

55.16.2

55.16.3

85.16.4

It is recorded that the Hurdles were determined, taking into consideration the following
factors (“the economic factors”) at their prevailing levels at December 2003:

55.16.1.1 the consumer price inflation (excluding interest rates) as published by
Statistics South Africa (“CPIX™):

55.16.1.2 interesi rates;
55.16.1.3 exchange rates; and

55.16.1.4 economic growth rates.

Subject to 55.16.3 and 55.16.4, in the event that, during the initial conversion period
and/or the extended conversion period, any material change occurs in respect of the CPIX
subsequent to December 2003, which does, or is likely to impact materially on the Hurdles
in respect of any financial period, the company and the holders of the deferred shares
shall agree on the necessary revision of the Hurdles based on a comparison of the
economic factors at December 2003 and their prevailing and anticipated future levels
at the date of the revision. In the absence of such agreement, the matter shall be referred
for determination to the expert, who shall be entitled to revise the Hurdles in such manner
as he may determine necessary Lo accommodate the change, taking into consideration the
same factors.

A material change in ths CPIX as contemplated in 55.16.2 shall be deemed only to have
occurred if the average of the annualised median quarterly expectations of CPIX (for the
quartiers comprising the relevant financial periods in respect of which the amendment
is sought), as published by Reuters Information Services’ consensus forecast on screen
"ZACPIX1”, is outside the range of 2% to 9% for that financial period.

No revision of the Hurdles in respect of any financial period shall occur in terms
of 55.16.2 unless:

55.16.4.1 the amendment will lead to more than a 10% change in the Hurdles concerned;

55.16.4.2 a request for a revision, either by the company or the holders of the deferred
ordinary shares, is made in writing delivered to the other party not less than
three months prior to the commencement of the financial period in respect of
which the revision is sought.

55.17 Variation of the formula

55.17.1

In the event that the application of the formula or any component thereof, including,
without limiting the generality, the definition of headline earnings consequent upon any
change in the applicable accounting statement, or any calculation required to be made
in terms of the formula, including the escalation factors in 55.14.1.2, 55.15.1.2
and 55.15.1.3, proves tc be incorrect, unworkable, deficient in any respect or incapable
of' achieving the underlying objective of the formula, or resuits in a consequence not
reasonably intended or contemplated as at the date referred to in 55.16.1, or if the
financial year-end of the company is changed, {each of the aforegoing being referred
to as “the deficiency”), the formula shall be amended by agreement of the board and the
holders of the deferred ordinary shares al the relevant time, in any respect which may
be considered necessary to cure the deficiency. In the absence of such agreement, the
matter shall be referred for determination to the expert. The determination of the expert
shall be final and binding on the company and the holders of the deferred ordinary shares
and may include any variation {o, amendment or revision of the formula.
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55.17.2 No amendment of the formula in terms of 55.17.1 shall be made unless the request for
an amendment, either by the company or the holders of the deferred ordinary shares,
is made in writing, delivered to the other party not less than three months prior to the
commencement of the financial period in respect of which the amendment is sought and
any amendment made shall only apply in respect of future financial periods which have
not commenced as at the date of the request.

Absence of limitations or restrictions

Nothing in this Article 55, or arising out of the issue of the deferred ordinary shares, shall,
or be construed Lo prevent or preclude the Group, subject to any normal shareholder approvals
which may at any time be required (but without derogating from 55.6), from being able to carry
on and conduct its business as it deems fit, or restrict or limit the conduct of its business in any
manner whatsoever, nor to restrict or limit the Group, inter alia, in respect of any sales or other
disposals of any assets, material orr otherwise, mergers, takeovers and acquisitions.

Capacity of auditors and expert

Any report by the auditors or delermination by the expert in terms of this Article 55, as read with
Annexure A, shall, whether or n¢t the provision in question so provides, be deemed to be made,
respectively, as an expert and not as an arbitrator and shall, in the absence of any manifest error,
be final and binding on the company and its shareholders, including the holders of the deferred
ordinary shares.

Arbitration

Save as expressly otherwise provided in this Article 55, any dispute between any of the holders
of the deferred ordinary shares and the company shall be finally resolved in accordance with the
Rules (“the Rules™) of The Arbitration Foundation of South Africa (“AFSA™) and in accordance with
the following:

55.20.1 there shall be one arbitrator who shall be a judge, former judge or retired judge of the
High Court or the Supreme Court of Appeal of the High Court of the Republic of South
Africa or a senior counsel of at least ten years’ standing as such at the Johannesburg Bar;

55.20.2 the appointment of the arbitrator shall be agreed upon between the parties, but failing
agreement between them within a period of 14 days afler the arbitration has been
demanded, either of Lthe parties shall be entitled to request the chairman at the relevant
time of AFSA (or if AFSA shall not be in existence at the time, by the Chairman of the
Johannesburg Bar Council) or his representative to make the appointment and, in making
his appointment, to have regard to the nature of the dispute;

55.20.3 the arbitration shall be held at a venue agreed upon in writing by the parties or, failing
such agreement, at a venue in Sandton;

55.20.4 the decision of the arbitrator shall be subject to a right of appeal by either party in terms
of Article 22 of the Rules to an Arbitration Tribunal consisting of three arbitrators who
shall:

55.20.4.1 be persons who hold the same qualifications and who have the same status
as the persons referred to in 55.20.1; and

55.20.4.2 be appointed in the manner referred to in 55.20.1 and 55.20.2;

55.20.5 1ihe decision of the arbitrator or the Arbitration Tribunal, as the case may he, shall be final
and binding on the parties in the absence of a manifest error in calculation and shall
be carried into effect and may be made an order of competent jurisdiction. For this
purpose, each of the parties shall be deemed to have submitted itself to the jurisdiction
of the Witwatersrand Local Division of the High Court of the Republic of South Africa and
all appeal courts therefrom should either party wish to make the arbitrator’s decision
an order of that court;

55.20.6 the provisions of this Article 55.20:

55.20.6.1 constitule an irrevocable consent by the parties to the procedure envisaged
in this Article 55.20 and neither party shall be entitled to withdraw therefrom
or claim at any stage of the proceedings that it is not hound by such
proceedings;



55.21

55.22

55.23

55.20.6.2 are severable from the rest of these articles and shall remain in effect despite
the terminaticn of or invalidity or alleged invalidity for any reason of any part
of these articlzss; and

55.20.6.3 shall not preclude any party from instituting any injunctive proceedings
in any appropriale court of competent jurisdiction.
JSE Listings Requirements
The deferred ordinary shares are entirely subject to the provisions of the JSE Listings
Requirements.
The formula

The formula is set out in Annexure A hereto and makes provision for the number of deferred
ordinary shares that will convert into ordinary shares during the initial conversion period, the
extended conversion period and the indefinite conversion period.

Restriction on issue of deferred ordinary shares

Subject to 55.3.3 and 55.3.4, after the alloimenit and issue of the deferred ordinary shares to
Ukhamba Holdings (Proprietary) Limited in terms of Ordinary Resolution Number 1, which forms
part of the Notice of General Meeting at which the articles are to be amended by the insertion of this
Article 55, the company shall not zllot and issue any further deferred ordinary shares, except with
the approval of shareholders in general meeting and the JSE.
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Annexure A

1. Interpretation

For the purposes of this Annexure A, in addition to the terms defined in Section 55.1 having the same
meaning, the following terms shall have the meanings assigned to them hereunder:

1.1

1.2

“AC 104" means “AC 104: Earnings per share”, being the accounting statemeni of Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice as issued by The South African Institute of Chartered Accountants
to prescribe principles for the determination and presentation of earnings per share as applicable
at the relevant time, or any accounting standard which may be substituted in place thereof;

“AC 132" means “AC 132: Consolidated financial statements and accounting for investments
in subsidiaries”, being the accoanting statemeni of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
as issued by The South African Institute of Chartered Accountiants to prescribe principles for the
determination and presentation of consolidated financial statements and accounting for
investments in subsidiaries as applicable at the relevant time, or any accounting standard which
may be substituted in place therecf;

“Egstra auditors” means the auditors of Egstra;

“Egstra effective date” means the ond of th n 30 Apri ing th n_which

will commence tradin nsequen; u he implementation of the various transactions which wil
be concluded between Imperial and Egstra as a prelude to the Egstra unbundling;

“Hurdie growth rates” means the headline earnings per share growth rates of 10%, 11%, 12%

and 13%, or as subsequently amended, as implied in the determination of Total N wn cusverson v in1
Section 10 of this Annexure A.

“Issue Dale” means the date of issue of the deferred ordinary shares to Ukhamba in terms

of Ordinary Resolution Number 1, forming part of the Notice of General Meeling at which the
articles will be amended by the insertion of Article 55;

“Specified Period” means the pericd from the Eqgstra effective date to 30 June 2008, being the end
of the 2008 financial year of Fgstra:

“Subsidiary” means a subsidiary as defined in AC 132;

“Ukhamba” means Ukhamba Holdings (Pty) Limited;

Periods:

+%1.10

“FY2004"” means the financial year of the company beginning on 26&¢% June 2003 and ending
25¢k! June 2004.

“1* Period” means the financial year of the company beginning on 26t June 2004 and ending
2560 June 2005.

“2rd* Period” means the financial year of the company beginning on 26¢! June 2005 and ending
25400 June 2006,

4-101.13 “3% Period” means the financial year of the company beginning on 26+ June 2006 and ending

+=31.14

+=481.15

2541 June 2007,

“442 Period” means the financial year of the company beginning on 26#8% June 2007 and ending

3086+kY June 2008.

“sll Period” means the finanecial year of the company beginning on 86th—Jdune 1% July 2008 and
ending 3088+ June 2009.



“6'™ Period” means the financial year of the company beginning on 8&th—dune 1% July 2009 and

ending 3088+ June 2010.

“7'" Period” means the financial year of the company beginning on 86¢h-dure-1% July 2010 and
ending 3086+h® June 2011.

“N'* Period” means the financial year of the company beginning on Seth-dunel® July of the N'* year
immediately following 2003 and eading 3026 June of the N*' year immediately following 2004,
for N = 8, 9, 10, 11, and so on.

Conversion Dates:

“1% Conversion Date” means 264&" June 2005.

“2m Conversion Date” means 26¢h™ June 2006,

“3™ Conversion Date” means 26tk June 2007.

“4" Conversion Date” means f&th-darne-1% July 2008.

“s5™ Conversion Date” means 86th-June-12 July 2009.

“6™ Conversion Date” means 86th-dune-12 July 2010.

“7'" Conversion Date” means 9&th-dane-12 July 2011.

“N' Conversion Date” means 36th-dure-15 July of the N*" year immediately following 2004, for N

=8,9,10, 11, and so on.

Actual Headline Farnings:

+8241.27

“Actual HE weoo” means the headline earnings achieved by the company for the FY2004,
as determined by the company and supported by a report thereon by the auditors.

“Actual HE . pend” means the headline earnings achieved by the company for the 1* Period, as

determined by the company and supported by a report thereon by the auditors.

“Actual HE e rerd” means the headline earnings achieved by the company for the 2™ Period, as

determined by the company and supported by a report thereon by the auditors.

“Actual HE aurene” means the hezdline earnings achieved by the company for the 3" Period, as

determined by the company and sapported by a report thereon by the auditors.
“Actual HE . red” means the aggregate of the headline earnings achieved by:

1.31.1 the company for the 4th Period, as determined by the company and supported by a report
thereon by the auditors; and

1.31.2 Egsta for the specified period, as determined by Egstra and supported by a report thereon
by the Egstra auditors.

“Actual HE sn renee” Ineans the hezdline earnings achieved by the company for the 5" Period, as
determined by the company and supported by a report thereon by the auditors.

“Actual HE o» mne” means the headline earnings achieved by the company for the 6™ Period, as
determined by the company and supported by a report thereon by the auditors.

“Actual HE 7 re” means the hecdline earnings achieved by the company for the 7% Period, as
determined by the company and supported by a report thereon by the auditors.

“Actual HE mnrenee” means the headline earnings achieved by the company for the Nth Period, as
determined by the company and supported by a repoert thereon by the auditors.
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Base Headline Earnings Hurdles:

1-831.36 “Base HE rv.e” means R1 633 950 844.

3+341.37 “Base HE Hurdle u mie” means Base HE rviaoe multiplied by 1.13, subject to Sections 55.14

to 55.18 of this article.

4+351.38 “Base HE Hurdle z rd” means Base HE rysoos mulliplied by (1.13)°, subject to Sections 55.14

to 55.16 of this article.

4361.39 “Base HE Hurdle s mne” means Base HE rvoood mulliplied by (1.13)°, subject to Sections 55.14

to 55.16 of Lhis article.

1:3%1.40 “Base HE Hurdle .nreed” means R2 664 113 731 in total allocated to R2 178 172 318 to Imperial

(“Imperial Base HE Hurdle s pened”) and R485 941 413 to Egstra (“Eqgstra Base HE Hurdle , nPeed. HREHE
HEwvocorrrutbiplied-by—H—3-8 " —subject-te-Beohions-66-1H4+to-Bb-t6-ef-this-arbiele:

.41 “Base HE Hurdle sn mnw” means BaseHE-rem~muttiphied-by—1-33y"R2 178 172 318 multiplied by
(1.13), subject Lo Sections 55.14 to 55.186 of this article._

+3681.42 “Base HE Hurdie o mne” means Base HE Hurdle mwess5™ Period multiplied by (1.13)%, subject to

Sections 55.14 to 55.16 of this article.

4401.43 “Base HE Hurdle - r.” means Base HE Hurdle muwenS™ Period multiplied by (1.13)%, subject to
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Sections 55.14 o 55.16 of this ariicle.

Caleulations

All calculations in this Annexure A will be determined based on generally accepted financial and
mathematical conventions. Where calculations £ m with referenc E unl

expressly defined or described in this Annexure A, the terms shall be deemed to be a reference to the
applicable definitions or descriptions in_Annexure A to Article 56 of the articles of association of Egstra,

Determining the number of deferred ordinary shares that convert into ordinary shares in respect
of the financial period ending on the day immediately prior to the 1* Conversion Date

Adjustment of Base HE Hurdle for share issues/buy-backs:

Weighted average
number of shares in

Adjusted Base HE Hurdle w i = Base HE Hurdle i renw X ISSUE 1at penca

Reference number of
shares in iSsue 1 renx

Inputs:

“Weighled average number of shares in issue 1erenod” is the weighted average number of ordinary shares

in issue for the 1* Period as determined by the company in accordance with AC 104 and confirmed by

the auditors in writing.

“Reference number of shares in issue e pericd” 1S Shares in ISsue 1esve pate, increased only for:

* share splits;

« capitalisation issues;

* bonus element of rights issues;

» bonus elements of any other issues, excluding the impact, if any, of deferred ordinary shares that have
converted into ordinary shares in terms of this article,

that have occurred up until the end of the 1* Period, and decreased only for share consolidations that
have occurred up until the end of the 1* Period, which number will be determined by the company
in accordance with AC 104 and supportied by a report thereon by the auditors.

“Shares in Issue 1ssuenaie” 1S the total number of ordinary shares of the company in issue, less that number
of ordinary shares held by the Group as treasury shares, al the end of the day immediately preceding
the Issue Date.



Calculation of headline earnings performance thresholds:

1.15
1 HE Hurdle Threshold e = Adjusied Base HE Hurdle wmne X ——
1.13
1.17
2" HE Hurdle Threshold i rews = Adjusied Base HE Hurdle wipme X ——
1.13
Calculation of value attributed to Ukhawmba:
Value Attributed to Ukhamba :x rera = 25% x Actual HE above 1 Band s renoa

+ 25% x Actual HE above 2™ Band su rerou
+ 25% x Aciual HE above 3™ Band i peio
Inputs:

“Actual HE above 1 Band w e is the amount that Actual HE st penca exceeds Adjusted Base
HE Hurdle ist perod.

“Actual HE above 2™ Band i reee” is the amount that Actual HE e renod €Xceeds

1st HE Hurdle Threshold i penoa.

“Actual HE above 3™ Band e s the amount that Actual HE 1 renes exceeds 2™ HE Hurdle
Threshold . reroa.

Calculation of share price t used to translale value attributed to Ukhamba into a number of shares:

Share Price iumae = Maximum of VWAP . bened And NAV 1a pecwna

Inputs:

“VWAP uimne” 15 the volume weighted average price of one ordinary share of the company, as listed on
the JSE, from 1 March in the 1 Period to 31 July (both dates inclusive) in the 2™ Period,
as determined and certified by the sponsors, acting as experts.

“NAV e i8 the NAV of an ordinary share at the end of the 1* Period as confirmed by the auditors in

writing.

Calculation of maximum and minimum number of deferred ordinary
ordinary shares:

Maximum N i covemon e = 2.5% x Weigthled average number of shares in issue . pew.

L. Weighted average number of shares in issue :xmen
Minimum N s conermen e = 1,000,000 c1g £ 2.8 SUE sat ronoe

Shares in iISSUE imu bur

or zero if HEPS i1 eerca < HEPS mvzoos x 1.1,

Inputs:

“HEPS inrene” 18 Actual HE 14 pencs divisded by the weighted average number of shares in issue for the
1* Period as determined by the company in accordance with AC 104 and supported by a report thereon
by the auditors.

“HEPS raer” is Restated Actual HE weon divided by the weighted average number of shares in issue for
the FY2004 as determined by the company in accordance with AC 104 at the end of the 1 Period and
supported by a report thereon by the auditors.

“Restated Actual HE rvaoe” is the headline earnings achieved by the company for the FY2004, restated for:

» the impact on headline earnings, if any, of the adoption of new accounting standards in the 1* Period
causing a restatement of headline earnings for the FY2004;

* the pro forma impact of any unbuniling that has occurred in the 1* Period, which calculation shall
assume that such unbundling took place 12 months immediately prior to the actual effective date of
the unbundling and which calculation will be determined in accordance with the principles outlined
in Section 55.14 of this article; and
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* the pro forma impact of any special dividend that has occurred in the 1* Period, which ealculation
shall assume that such special dividend took place 12 months immediately prior to the actual effective
date of the special dividend, and which calculation which will be determined in accordance with the
principles outlined in Section 55.15 of this arlicle,

as determined by the company and supported by a report thereon by the auditors.

lcuiation of the number of deferred crdinary shares that wili convert info ordinary shares:
Formula N a1 converason Dawe = Value Attributed to Ukhamba 1a rere

Share Price iu beric

The number of deferred ordinary shares that will convert into ordinary shares on the 1* Conversion Date
(“Actual N 1. coaverson e’} Will be determined as follows:

[ Minimum N i coeson e, i Formula N . convermeon oaie <
Minimum N . conversion pate

Formula N 1. converswn Daw, i Minimum N 4 conversion ate <
Formula N s conversion taie
< Maximum N ;. conversion pae

Actual N 1a conversion tate =

Maximum N :c comversion e, i FOrmula N u converaron bat >
\ Maximum N 1. conversion Date,

subject Lo Actual N i converson b being limited to that number of shares such that Actual N . conversion Tate
equals 10.1% of the sum of Shares in [£SUe 1. converson bee ANA Actual N in conversion B

Inputs:

“Shares in ISSUe iu conwrson pne 1S the total number of ordinary shares of the company in issue less
that number of ordinary shares held by the Group as treasury shares at the end of the last day of the
1% Period, as confirmed by the auditors in writing.,

Calculation of the deficit/surplus number of deferred ordinary shares that will carry forward:

If Formula N . converson b < Minimunm N i conversion Date:
Deficit IN 1 conversion bate = Minimum N s converson e — FOrmula N u conversson oate
If Formula N .. converswn pae > Maximum N conversion Daw:

Surplus N u conversion Date = Formula N iu converson bae — Maximum N 1w cosversion nu

Determining the number of deferred crdinary shares that convert into ordinary shares in respect of
the financial period ending on the day immediately prior to the 2™ Conversion Date

Adjustment of Base HE Hurdle for share issues/buy-backs and deficits:

Weighted average
number of shares
Adjusted Base HE Hurdle zearerice = Base HE Hurdle e rews X in 1SSUE end Percd
Reference number
of shares in issue

2nd Period

+ Deficit HE 1s perca

Inputs:

“Weighted average number of shares ir: issue e is the weighted average number of ordinary shares
in issue for the 2™ Period as determined by the company in accordance with AC 104, but deducting the
Reference number of converted shares n iSSU€ zu rerice. aNnd supported by a report thereon by the auditors.

“Reference number of converted shares in issue wemmd” is the cumulative number of ordinary shares that
have converted from deferred ordinary shares up until and including the 1* Conversion Date in terms of
this article, increased only for:

* share splits;
* capitalisation issues;



* bonus element of righis issues;

» bonus elements of any other issues, excluding the impact, if any, of deferred ordinary shares that have
converted into ordinary shares in terms of this article,

that have occurred up until the end of the 2" Period, and decreased only for share consolidations that
have occurred up until the end of the 2™ Period, which number will be determined by the company in
accordance with AC 104 and supported by a report thereon by the auditors.

“Reference number of shares in iSSue ena rerica” is Shares in ISSUE issue hate, increased only for:

* share splits;

+ capitalisation issues;

* bonus element of rights issues;

* bonus elements of any other issues, excluding the impact, if any, of deferred ordinary shares that have
converted into ordinary shares in terms of this article,

that have occurred up until the end of the 2™ Period, and decreased only for share consolidations that
have occurred up until the end of the 2™ Period, which number will be determined by the company in
accordance with AC 104 and supported by a report thereon by the auditors.

“Deficit HE 1w paed” is the amount, if any, that Adjusted Base HE Hurdle . re exceeded Actual HE 1arenca.

Calculation of headline earpings performance thresholds;

1.15

1®* HE Hurdle Threshold zure = ——— %X {Adjusted Base HE Hurdle 2 renes — Deficit HE v ranca)
1.13
+ Deficit HE 1apenos
1.17 ) )

2™ HE Hurdle Threshold ssmme = ——— X% (Adjusted Base HE Hurdle z-smma— Deficit HE ' Fered)
1.13

+ Deficit HE sai soncs

Caleulation of value attributed to Ukhamba:

Same as Section 3, save that “1% Period” means “2"™ Period”.

Calculation of share price to be used to translate value attributed f¢ Ukhamba J a niunber of shares:
Same as Section 3. save that:
e “1% Period” means “2™ Period”; and

« “2™ Pariod” means “3™ Period”.

Caleulation of maximum and minimum number of deferred ordinary shares thatl will convert into
ordinary shargs:

Maximum N iwncomeseon e = 2.5% x Weigrhted average number of shares in iSSue€ i penca.

Weighted average number of shares in issue s b
Shares in iS8U€ e bue

Minimum N .. comersion bae = 1,000,000 x;
or zerc if HEPS ixrroa < HEPS fvaon X 1.1,

Inputs:

“HEPS 2nd porod” 18 Actual HE 2na renee divided by the weighted average number of shares in issue for the
2nd Period as determined by the company in accordance with AC 104 at the end of the 2" Period (which
is not to be confused with the meaning of Weighted average number of shares in issue 2™ Period in this
article), which number will take into account the impact of those deferred ordinary shares that have
converted into ordinary shares up uniil and including the 1* Conversion Date in terms of this article,
and supporlied by a reporl thereon by the auditors.

“HEPS 1a»a” is Restated Actual HE wurens divided by the weighled average number of shares in issue for
the 1* Period as determined by the company in accordance with AC 104 (which is not to be confused with
the meaning of weighted average nuraber of shares in issue .. nw in this article) and supported by a
report therecn by the auditors.
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“Restated Actual HE wirewd’ is the headline earnings achieved by the company for the 1% Pertod, restated

for:

= the impact on headline earnings, if any, of the adoption of new accounting standards in the 2™ Period
causing a restatement of headline earnings for the 1% Period;

* the pro forma impact of any unbundling that has occurred in the 2™ Period, which calculation shall
assume that such unbundling took place 12 months immediately prior to the actual effective date of
the unbundling, and which calculation will be determined in accordance with the principles outlined
in Section 55.14 of this article;

+ the pro forma impact of any special dividend that has occurred in the 2™ Period, which calculation
shall assume that such special dividend took place 12 months immediately prior to the actual effective
date of the special dividend and which calculation will be determined in accordance with the principles
outlined in Section 55.15 of this article,

as determined by the company and supported by a report thereon by the auditors.

Calculation of the number of deferred ordinary shares that will vert into ordinary shares:

Formula N zndcomemcs e = Value Atiributed to Ukhamba znd penica

Share Price ez rerioa
+ Surplus N 1u conversion paw

— Deficit N 1 converson paee

The number of deferred ordinary shares that will convert into ordinary shares on the 2™ Conversion Date

{("Actual N zu4conversen owe '} Will be determined as follows:

Minimum N 200 convermon pae, i Formula N zui conversion pare <
Minimum N zna conversion e

Minimum N zad cunverson pae <
Formula N . convermion tare, if Formula N 204 conseesion pare

< Maximum N znd consersion Date
Maximum N zne convernon Dwtr, if Formula N zna coaversion bate »
k Maximum N aud conversion Date

Actual N ansconersion pae = <

subject Lo Actual N and canersion o being limited to that number of shares such that the sum of the Reference
number of converted shares in 1SSUE 2nipewa and Actizal N zas converson nee €quals 10.1% of the sum of Shares
1n Issue 258d Cinveriion Date and Actual N 2nd Conve wwn Date.

Inputs:

“Shares in ISSUE ou cosvensn o 1§ the total number of ordinary shares of the company in issue less
that number of ordinary shares held by the Group as treasury shares, at the end of the last day of the
2™ Period, as confirmed by the auditors in writing.

Calcujation of the deficit/surplus number " rdina. 3 hat will carry

Same as Section 3, save that “1* Conversion Date” means “2" Conversion Date”.

Determining the number of deferred ordinary shares that convert into ordinary shares in respect of
the finaneial period ending on the day immediately prior to the 3™ Conversion Date

Same as Section 4, save that:

+ “1° Period” means “2" Period™;

» “2™ Period” means “3™ Period”;

s “3" Period” means “4'" Period”;

+ “1% Conversion Date” means “2nd Conversion Date”;

+ 2™ Conversion Date” means “3rd Conversion Date™.



Determining the number of deferred ordinary shares that convert into ordinary shares in respect of
the financial period ending on the day immediately prior to the 4 Conversion Date

Adjustment of Base HE Hurdle for share issues/buy-backs and deficits:

The Adjusted Base HE Hurdle iy pee is L€ aggrega f Imperial’s and Egstra’s Adjusted Base HE Hurdle
an rerxa Calculated as follows:

Imperial

Weighted average
number of shares
Imperial Adjusted Base HE Hurdle sweres = Imperial Base HE Hurdle wneee X in iSSUE wh perwa
Reference number
of shares in issue

At Percd
+ Deficit HE sypena

Inputs:

"nggthd average number of shares in_issue . ”is the wei Ver: number of ordinary share

in issue for the 4! Period as determined b mpany in rdance wit 104, but ded

Reference number of converted shares in issue ympes, and supported by a report thereon by the auditors.

“Reference number of converted shares in issue .nrenod i the cumulative number of ordinary shares that

have converied from deferred ordinary shares up until and including the 3™ Conversion Date in terms

of this article, increased only for:

* share splits;

italisation i
bonus element of rights issues; and

lem { any other issues. excluding the im if an f deferr rdinary shares that hav
nver in rdinary shares in terms of this article,

that have ogcurred up unli} the end of the 4" Period, and decreased only for share consolidations that
have occurred up until the end of the 4 Period, which number will be determined by the company in
accordance with AC 104 and supported by a report thereon by the auditors,

“Reference number of shares in issue y,pew’” 15 Shares in ISSUe e pee, increased only for:
+ share splits:

+ capitalisation jssues;

bonus element of rights issues; and

+ bonus elements of any other issues, excluding the impact, if any, of deferred ordinary shares that have
ver in rdinary shares i rms of this article,

that have gcourred up until the end of the 4% Perigd, and decreased only for share consolidations that

i»

hav ntil the end of the 4™ Period. which number will be determined by the company in
accordance with AC 104 and supported by a report thergon by the auditors,
“Deficit HE 5 peeq’ 18 the amount, if any, that Adjusted Bagse HE Hurdle sapeas exceeded Actual HE oy peres.
Eqgstra
Egstra Weighted
average number of
Eqgstra Adjusted Bage HE Hurdle swp.wo = Egstra Base HE Hurdle swpena. X shares in issue o pew
Egstra Reference
n r har

in iSSUEe 4w Proxd

Inputs:

“Egstra Weighted average number of shares in issue . raed” is the weighted average number
of ordinary shares in issue for Egstra for the 4 Period calculated as the sum of the following:

* Eqgstr; fer number of shares_in issue weigh r_the ratio of number of days from
26" June 2007 to the Eqstra effective date (both dates inglusive) over the total number of days in the
4" perjod; and
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+ Actual number of shares in issue wejghted for the ratio of number of days from the day immediately
F r ive d June 2008 over the total number of days in the 4\ Period,

but_deducting the Reference number of converted shares in issue e, and supporied by a repori
thereon by the auditors,

“Egstra Reference number of converted shares in issu "ig 5 973 421
“Egstra Reference number of shares in issue jumuwe is 212 129 870,

Calculation of headline earnings performance thresholds:

.15
1% HE Hurdle Threshold ympeas = ———— X (Adjusted Base HE Hurdle smewe — Deficit HE o peno)
A.13
+ Defi
117 :
21 HE Hurdle Threshold zuapeng = TE X  (Adjusted Base HE Hurdle s pe — Deficit HE o peao)

= Defigit HE o b

Calculation of value attributed to Ukhamba:
Same as Section 3, save that “1® Period” means “4% Period”.

Calculation of share price to be used to translate value attributed hamba in numb
)
Share Price unrue = Maximum of (Closing price un reie) and (INAV an puis)
Inputs:
“Closing price wnrnw. is the aggr gggg f aver closin ice of one ordinary share of th
li h B, fr arch j 41“ Period to 31 July in the 549 Eg iod {hoth dates inclusive) and
he avera losin ri f one grding hare of Fgstra, as listed E, from the d { listi
to 31 July 2008 (both dates inglusiv Q[, as determined and certified by th sponsgors, acting as experts,
“NAV .ored” 35 the ageregate of the NAV of rdinary share in m n ordin
Egsira at the end of the 4¥ Period as copfirmed by the auditors in writing.

lculation of maximum and minimwm number of deferred ordinary shares that will convert infg
ordinary shares:

Maximum N ncomsmsnne = 2.5% X Weighted average number of shares in issue s pe,

Weighted average number of shares in issue unrenc

Minimum N . convermon pwe = 1,000,000 x
Shares in iSSUE 1w bae

or zero if HEPS i rence < HEPS sraperica X L1,

Inputs:

MMMWW
headline earnin g§ of the company for the specified period which DH! for the MCC minority transaction
(as defined in the circular relating to the Egsira u Lmngl_lmg hich is 19 e gpgrgved at the gg g;gl
wmnmamgmm_h ye

MWMMMMM&WW
gr the 4“‘ Period as delermi gi by the company in accor dance with AC 104 as at theen ij the g“‘M

“HEPS uqren” is Restated Actual HE oo divided by the weighted average number of sh hw_n_m_sug_mxr in i
the 39 Period as determined by the com i rdance with AC 104 (which i t tol wi
M&MWMMMWMM i
report thereon by the guditors,

the impact on headline earnings, if any. of the adopiion of new accounting standards in the 4% Period
mmmmmmmmum_ﬂm ® Period:



the pro forma impact of any unbundling that has cccurred in the 4t Period, which calculation shall
assume that such unbundling took g 1 hs immedi rior 1 effectiv

the unbundling, and which calculation will be determined in accordance with the principles outlined
in 55.14 of this article;

the pro forma impact of any special dividend paid by the company in the 4 Perjod, which calculation
shall assume that such special dividend took place 12 months immedijately prior o the actual effective
date of the special dividend and which calculation will be determined in accordance with the principles
outlined in Section 55.15_of this artigle,

as determined by the company and supported by a r rt thereon the auditors;

+ there shall be no restatement of the “Restated Actual HE aupae” in consequence of the Egstra
unbundling,

Iculation of the number of deferred ordinary shares that will convert into ordinary shares:
Value Attributed to Ukhamba s pees

Share Price unpee
+ Surpius N are Conversion e

— ARl AN Deficit N od Convermon Raty

The number of deferred ordinary shares that will convert into ordinary shares on the 49 Conversion Date

Formwla N i consersion Date =

{Actual N o coveren nee ) Will be determined as follows:
r_M_ini_m,_um___N b coermon pate, 1Y Formula N iy coversion tute <
Minimum N ¢ conems Bae

Minimum N 4 convemes pae <
Actual N . convermion pate_= < Formula N i convemon e, i Formuia Ny conerson bure

< Maximum N_iw conversion ity

Maximum N ynconvemon e, if Formula Ny conserson e s

\ Maximum N i eonvermon Due
subject to Actual N v conveana pue Being limmg io that r of shar h that the sum of
number of converted shares in iSSUE un 1w and Actual N i, convermon o €quals 10.1% of the sum of Shares in
IsSHE an convermon e ANA _Actual N 4y convermien tute.
Inputs:
“Shares in_Issue " is the total number of ordinary shares of the company in issue less

that number of ordinary shares held by the Group as treasury shares, at the end of the last dav of the

4" Period, as ¢confirmed by the auditors in writing,

Iculatio: he deficit/surpius number of deferr rdinarv shares that will carry forward;

If Formula N i convernon pae_< Minimum N 4 convernion Dae}

—_Deficit N s copveman = Minimum N su cen i A N gonveron Do
If Pormula N 16 convermion paie_> Maximum Ny copvernion pae}
Surplus N snconemanme = Formula N_ i conversion nete = MaXIimum Ny eopveron pate

Determining the number of deferred ordinary shares that convert into ordinary shares in respect
of the financial period ending on the day immediately prior to the 5" Conversion Date

Same as Section 4, save that:

¢ “1* Period” means “4™ Period™;

» “2M" Period” means “5'" Period”;

* “3" Period” means “6" Period”;

+ “1® Conversion Date” means “4™ Conversion Date”; and

» 27 Conversion Date” means "5 Conversion Date”.
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Determining the number of deferred ordinary shares that convert into ordinary shares in respect
of the financial period ending on the day immediately prior to the 6 Conversion Date

Same as Section 4, save that:

» “1% Period” means “5" Period”;

« “2™ Period” means “8™ Period”;

= “3™ Period” means “7™ Period”;

« *1® Conversion Date” means “5" Conversion Dale”; and

o “gM™ Conversion Date” means “8™ Conwversion Date”.

Determining the number of deferred ordinary shares that convert into ordinary shares in respect of
the financial period ending on the day immediately prior to the 7*® Conversion Date

Adjustiment of Base HE Hurdle for share jssues/buy-backs and deficits:
Same as Section 4, save that:

» *“1% Period” means “6" Period”; and

» “2™ Period” means “7" Period”;

+ “1% Conversion Date” means “6"™ Conversion Date”.

Calcuiation of headline earnings performance thresholds:

Same as Section 4, save that “2™ Period” means “7"" Period”.

Caleulation of value attributed to Ukhainba:
Same as Section 4, save that “2"® Period” means “7" Period”.
Calculation of share price to be used to translate value attributed to Ukhamba info a puinber of shares:

Same as Section 4, save that:

= “2™ Period” means “7'" Period”; and

* “3™ Period” means “8" Period”.

Calgulation of maximum and minimum number of
ordinary shares:

Same as Section 4, save that:

« “1% Period” means “6'" Period”;
« “2™ Period” means “7" Period”; and

« “a™ Conversion Date” means “7% Conversion Date”.

Calculation of the number of deferred crdinary shares that will vert i ordinar

Same as Section 4, save that:
s “2™ Period” means “7" Period”;
+ “1% Conversion Date” means “6' Conversion Date”; and

* the number of deferred ordinary shz.res that will convert into ordinary shares on the 7" Conversion
Date (“Actual N 7 converon mic') Will be determined as follows:

Minimum N 2 converaion Dale, if Formula N 7 conversion base <

Minimum N varmion
Actual N nn conversion Date = ik Gon Dete

Formula N 1. conversion Date, otherwise,

subject to Actual N 2 canvenion e being limited to that nuwmber of shares such that the sum of the
Reference number of converted shares in iS8U€ w pra and Actual N i convension s @uals 10.1% of the sum
of Shares in I35U€ s coaverion bate A11A ACLUE]L N 2 convararon Dute.

Inpuls:

“Shares in ISSUE m» comemon b 18 the total number of ordinary shares of the company in issue less that
number of ordinary shares held by the Group as treasury shares, at the end of the last day of the
7" Period, as confirmed by the auditors: in writing.



10. Determining the number of deferred ordinary shares that convert into ordinary shares in respect

of the financial period ending on the day immediately prior to the N'® Conversion Date, for
N =8,9,10, 11 and so on up until N = 14

r 1,250,000 , if HEPS mn rr i8 greater than or equal to
HEPS maw rnd X 1.13, subject to Section
55.16 of this article,

1,000,000, if HEPS o me 18 greater than or equal to
HEPS nwreros X 1.12, but less than HEPS
wam renos X 1,13, subject to Section 55.16 of
this article.

750,000, if HEPS us wnm is greater than or equal to
HEPS Mk e X 1,11, but less than HEPS
Mamrenot X 1.12, subject to Section 55.16 of
this article.

500,000, if HEPS w» o is greater than or equal to

HEPS wiwn peres X 1.10, but less than HEFS
\ mmmne X 1.11, subject to Section 55.16 of
this article.

Total N Nth Conversion Date = <

For N = 8, 9, 10, 11, and so on up until and including N = 14, the number of deferred ordinary shares
that will convert into ordinary shares on the N Conversion Date (“Actual N mn conwrssos oee ) Will be
determined as follows:

Actual N wnconversionnae = TOLA1 N nis converson bure X Weighted average number of shares in issue mn e,

Shares in Issue e

subject to Actual N s convermon vae being limited to thal number of shares such that the sum of the Reference
number of converted shares in issue wnu peros and Actual N wn conerson i €uals 10.1% of the sum of Shares
in Issue nih conversion bate ANd Actual N s conversion Dure.

Inputs:

“HEPS ninrenca” 18 Actual HE i reee divided by the weighted average number of shares in issue for the
Nth Period as determined by the company in accordance with AC 104 {(which is not to be confused with
the meaning of weighted average number of shares in issue wmn i inl this article), which number will take
into account the impact of those deferred ordinary shares that have converted into ordinary shares up
until and including the (N-1)" Conversion Date in terms of this article, and supported by a report thereon
by the auditors.

“HEPS o is Restated Actual HE (v rers divided by the weightled averapge number of shares in issue
for the (N-1)™ Period as determined by the company in accordance with AC 104 at the end of the
N Period (which is not to be confused with the meaning of Weighted average number of shares in issue
warn perod 111 this article), and supported by a report thereon by the auditors.

“Restated Actual HE (v perncd” is the headline earnings achieved by the company for the (N-1)* Period,
restaled for:

» the impact on headline earnings, if any, of the adoption of new accounting standards in the N*™ Period
causing a restatement of headline earnings for the (N-1)™ Period;

* the pro forma impact of any unbundling that has occurred in the N*™ Period, which calculation shall
assume that such unbundling took place 12 months immediately prior to the actual effective date of
the unbundling, and which calculalion will be determined in accordance with the principles outlined
in Section 55.14 of this article;

* the pro forma impact of any special dividend that has occurred in the N** Period, which calculation
shall assume that such special dividend took place 12 months immediately prior to the actual effective
date of the special dividend and which calculation will be determined in accordance with the principles
outlined in Section 55.15 of this arlicle,

as determined by the company and supported by a report thereon by the auditors.
“Weighted average number of shares in issue mnreoe” is the weighted average number of ordinary shares

in issue for the N'* Period as determined by the company in accordance with AC 104, but deducting the
Reference number of converted shares in issue »nrna, and supported by a report thereon by the auditors.

“Reference number of converted shares in issue mnrw” is the cumulative number of ordinary shares that
have converted from deferred ordinary shares up until and including the (N-1)" Conversion Date in
terms of this article, increased only for:
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» share splits;

s capitalisation issues;

¢ bonus element of rights issues; and

+ bonus elements of any other issues, excluding the impact, if any, of deferred ordinary shares that have
converted into ordinary shares in terms of this article,

that have occurred up until the end of the N'* Period, and decreased only for share consolidations that
have occurred up until the end of the W*" Period, which number will be determined by the company in
accordance with AC 104 and supported by a report thereon by the auditors.

“Shares in ISSUe wn comermoa e 18 the total number of ordinary shares of the company in issue less that
number of ordinary shares held by the Group as treasury shares, at the end of the last day of the
Nth Period, as confirmed by the auditors in writing.

Determining the number of deferred crdinary shares that convert into ordinary shares in respect
of the financial period ending on the day immediately prior to the N* Conversion Date, for
N =15, 16, 17, 18 and so on

For N = 15, 16, 17, 18, and so on indefinitely, the number of deferred ordinary shares that will convert
into ordinary shares on the N™ Conversion Date (“Actual N s comereon ") Will be determined as follows:

Weighted average number of shares in iSs5ue mmpeme
Shares in iSsue e vae

Actual N minconvermonmae = 500,000 x

subject 1o Actual N ceeserson pee being limited to that nuwmber of shares such that the sum of the Reference
number of converted shares in iSSuUe Nih Perid and Actual N wn comemon o €quals 10.1% of the sum
of Shares in ISSUE nn convernon e aNd Actual N mn converaon bate.

Inputs:

“Weighted average number of shares in issue nnrew” is the weighted average number of ordinary shares
in issue for the N'** Period as determined by the company in accordance with AC 104, but deducting the
Reference number of converted shares in iSSue mnmnwe, and supported by a report thereon by the auditors.

“Reference number of converted shares in iSSue s 1S the cumulative number of ordinary shares that

have converted from deferred ordinary shares up until and including the (N-1)" Conversion Date

in terms of this article, increased only for:

* share splits;

« capitalisation issues;

+ bonus element of rights issues; and

+ bonus elements of any other issues, excluding the impact, if any, of deferred ordinary shares that have
converted into ordinary shares in terms of this article,

that have occurred up until the end of the N** Period, and decreased only for share consolidations that

have occurred up until the end of the N'** Period, which number will be determined by the company
in accordance with AC 104 and supported by a report thereon by the auditors.

“Shares in ISSUE mn ceersen o 18 Lhe total number of ordinary shares of the company in issue less that
number of ordinary shares held by the Group as treasury shares. at the end of the last day of the
N Period, as confirmed by the auditors in writing.



Schedule 2

New Article 56 of the Articles of Association of Imperial

{(Amendments to existing Article 56 Marked-up)

56. Special Rights and Conditions atteehedattaching to the Preferred Ordinary Shares and—the
redoomable-Breference-Shares

56.1 Interpretation

For the purposes of this Article 56, the following terms shall have the meanings assigned to them
hereunder:

56.1.1

56.1.2

56.1.3

56.1.4

56.1.5

56.1.6

56.1.7

56.1.8

56.1.9

56.1.10

56.1.11

“arrear preferred dividend” means all dividends on the preferred crdinary shares which:

56.1.1.1 should have, 1n accordance with the terms set out in this Article 56, but have
not, for whatsoever reason, been declared in respect of the preferred ordinary
shares on the relevant date thereof and which remain undeclared for any
reason whalsoever, including, without limiling the generality, any legal
impediment to their declaration; and/or

56.1.1.2 were declared, but which were (for any reason whatsoever, including without
limiting the generality, any legal impediment), nol paid in full on the
stipulated date for payment thereof in accordance with this Article, and which
remain unpaidi;

“board” means the board of direclors of the Company;

“business day” means any day which is not a Saturday, Sunday or public holiday in the
Republic of South Africa,;

“Company” or “Imperial” means Imperial Holdings Limited;

“conversion” means the conversion of the preferred ordinary shares into ordinary shares
in accordance with this Article 56;

“conversion date” means the earliest of the following dates, but subject 1o 56.15:

56.1.6.1 30 September 2010, subject to 56.15.3; or

56.1.6.2 the date on which Lereko Mobility is obliged to redeem all of the preference
shares, upon an event of default, in accordance with the terms of the preference
share agreement; or

56.1.6.3 the date upon which Lereko Mobility is obliged to redeem the debentures
in terms of the debenture trust deed;

“converted shares” means the preferred ordinary shares once they have been converted
into ordinary shares;

“debentures” means 14,532,422, (or such greater or lesser number), unsecured
subordinated debentures with a principal amount of R41.50 to be issued by Lereko
Mobility, which debentures will be listed on the JSE in the “Specialist Securities: Other
Securities” sub-sector ol the JSE, the terms and conditions of which are set out in the
debenture trust deed;

*debenture holders” means the registered holders of the debentures;

“debenture trust deed” means the debenture trust deed whieh-wiltbe concluded between
Lereko Mobility and the trustee on 22 April 2005, regulating the terms and conditions of

the debentures, as amended by th reement conclude tween those parties on 2
February 2008;

“deferred ordinary sharss” means deferred ordinary shares of a par value of 4 cents each
in the capital of the Company, having the rights, privileges and conditions set out
in Article 55 of the articles;

79



80

56.1.12

56.1.13

56.1.14

56.1.15

56.1.16

56.1.17

56.1.18

56.1.19

56.1.20

56.1.21

56.1.22

856.1.23

56.1.24

56.1.25

56.1.26

56.1.27

56.1.28

56.1.29

“financial period” means each of the successive financial years of the Company,

commencing on 26 June 2005, it being recorded, that the financial year end of the
Company has been changred to 30 June, with effect from the 2008 financial year:

“financial statements” means the audited annual financial statements, of the Company
in respect of each financial period;

“interim period” means each period of six months commencing from the beginning of
each financial period as from 26 June 2005;

“issue date” means the date of the allotment and issue of the preferred ordinary shares;

“Lereko Mobility” means Lereko Mobility (Proprietary) Limited (Registration number
2004/034154/07), being the company which will subscribe for, and be alloited and issued
the preferred ordinary shares in terms of Ordinary Resolution Number 1, contained in the
notice of general meeting;

“Listings Requirements” means the Listings Requirements of the JSE;

“notice of general meeting” means the notice of the general meeting at which the articles
will be amended by the insertion of this Article 56,

“ordinary shares” means ordinary shares of a par value of 4 cenls each in the capital
of the Company;

“preferred dividend” me:ans the preferred dividend and/or capital distribution, as the case
may be, payable in respect of the preferred ordinary shares, as provided in 56.9.1;

“preferred ordinary shares” means the cumulative preferred ordinary shares of a par
value of 4 cents each in the capital of the Company having the rights, privileges and
conditions set out in this Article 56;

“preference share agent” means the party appointed as the agent in terms of the agency
and account bank agreement which will be concluded, inter alia, between Lthe preference
shareholders, the trustee and FirstRand Bank Limited (acting through its division
of Rand Merchant Bank);

“preference share agreement” means the agreement concluded between Lereko Mobility
and persons subscribing for the preference shares, regulating their relationship as
holders of the preference: shares, and including the terms and conditions of the preference
shares as set out in the articles of association of Lereko Mobility, as further amended by

the agreement concluded between those parties on 13 March 2008;

“preference shareholders™ means the holders of the preference shares;

“preference shares” means the cumulative redeemable preference shares Lo be issued
by Lereko Mobility, the terms and conditions of which are set out in the preference share
agreement;

“prime rate” means the publicly quoted basic prime overdraft rate of interest per annum
of FirstRand Bank Limited (or its successor-in-title) from time to time (as certified by any
manager of FirstRand Bank Limited, whose appointment and authority it shall not
be necessary to prove), calculated on a daily basis, compounded monthly in arrear and
determined on a 365-day year faclor, irrespective of whether the year in question is a leap
year or not;

“subscription and shareholders agreement” means the written agreement concluded
between the Company, Lereko Mobility, Lereko Broad-Based Consortium 212 (Proprietary)
Limited, Lereko Investments (Proprietary) Limited, Valli Mocsa and Popo Molefe on
4 April 2005, providing for the subscription by the Company and Lereko Broad-Based
Consortium 212 (Proprietary) Limited of their shares in Lereko Mobility and regulating
their asscciation as shareholders of Lerekce Mobility, as further amended by ihe

agreement concluded beiween those parties on 25 February 2008;

“subsidiary” means a subsidiary of the Company as defined in the Act;

“treasury shares” means any ordinary shares which are owned by any subsidiary;



56.2

56.3

56.4

56.5

56.6

56.7

56.1.30 “trusiee” means Stleinway Trustees (Proprietary) Limited (Registration number
1999/002503/07), or its successor in accordance with the debenture trust deed.

Rights, Privileges and Conditions

The rights, privileges and conditions which attach to the preferred ordinary shares are set out
in 56.3 to 56.18 hereof.

Issue Price

Each preferred ordinary share shall be issued at its par value, that is 4 cents per preferred ordinary
share, and a premium, if any, as agreed by the Company and the subscriber concerned.

Consolidations and Subdivisions

If the ordinary shares are consolidated or sub-divided, the same shall apply, mutatis mutandis,
to the preferred ordinary shares, with the necessary consequential amendments to 56.9, which
shall be deemed to occur, to ensure that the amountis payable in terms of 56.9 will not be increased
or diminished consequent upon any such consolidation or subdivision, but thal the appropriate
adjustment is made to the coupon in 56.9 to ensure that the net amount which the holder
of a preferred ordinary share receives in terms of that paragraph, is unaffected by the consolidation
or sub-division.

Rights’ Issues

If any rights’ issue is implemented by the Company in respect of the ordinary shares, the holders
of the preferred ordinary shares sshall be entitled to participale in the rights’ issues, to all intents
and purposes as though the preferred ordinary shares held by them were ordinary shares.

Capitalisation and Bonus Issues

If any capitalisation or bonus issue is implemented by the Company, the holders of the preferred
ordinary shares shall be entitled to a distribution from the Company of that number of ordinary
shares which they would have heen eligible to receive if the preferred ordinary shares were
ordinary shares.

Special Dividend

56.7.1 The preferred ordinary cshares shall have the same rights of participation as the ordinary
shares, on a one-for-one hasis, in any special dividends declared and paid by the Company.

56.7.2 For the purposes of 56.7.1, the term “special dividend” means, in respect of any financial
period, the greater of:

56.7.2.1 the aggregate of all dividends and capital distributions, distributed by the
Company in respect of an ordinary share in respect of that financial period,
in excess of:

() 612 cents for the financial period ended 25 June 2007
(c) 710 centis for the financia riod ended 30 Jun
(e} the amoumt in (d). escalated by 20% on 1 July of each year as from

1 July 2009, in respect of each financial period as from that date,

which amourt shall be proportionately adjusted to take account of any sub-
division or consolidation of the ordinary shares; and

56.7.2.2 any dividends or other distributions declared and paid by the Company
in respect of an ordinary share in respect of that financial period, which are
described as special or extraordinary or abnormal dividends or distributions
by the board.

56.7.2.3 The provisior 7.1 shall inr iglributi
Company of ils shares in Egstira to the ordinary shareholders of the Company
in_terms of section 90 of the Act, as contemplated in the notice of general
meeting al which this Articl will amen ] i i

of this Article 56.7.2.3.
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56.8 No Further Participation in Dividends or Other Distributions

Save as provided in 56.6, 56.7 and 56.9, the preferred ordinary shares shall not participate in,
or receive any dividends or capital distributions distributed by the Company and/or any other
payments made by the Company.

56.9 Rights to Dividends and Capital Distributions

Each preferred ordinary share shall confer on the holder thereof the following rights in respect
of dividends and/or capilal distributions, which shall accrue and be payable, in each instance,
in priority to any payments of dividends or other distributions to the holders of any other classes
of shares in the capital of the Company, including the ordinary shares, in respect of each interim
period and financial period, respectively:

56.9.1

56.9.2

56.9.3

56.9.4

a preferred dividend or, at the Company's election, a preferred capital distribution of
535 cenls in respect of cach financial period, payable in the amounts and on the dates
specified hereunder, subject to 56.9.2, which dividend or capital distribution, as the case
may be, shall be declared by the company not less than 4 weeks and 1 day prior to the date
of payment specified hereunder, with reference to each period to which the payment
relates, or is deemed to relate:

Amount IDate of payment Period to which the payment relates

267.5 cents 30.09.2005 Deemed to relaie to period ended
25.06.2005, notwithstanding issue
date being subsequent thereto

267.5 cents 31.03.2006 26.06.2005 to 25.12.2005

267.5 cents 30.09.2006 26.12.2005 to 25.06.2006

267.5 cents 31.03.2007 26.06.2006 to 25.12.2006

287.5 cents 30.09.2007 26.12.2006 to 25.06.2007

267.5 cents 31.03.2008 26.06.2007 to 25.12.2007

287.5 cenis 30.09.2008 26.12.2007 to 8830.06.2008

267.5 cents 31.03.2009 26-0601,07.2008 10 8831.12.2008

28'7.5 cents 30.09.2009 86-3801.01.20089 to 8630.06.2009

267.5 cents 31.03.2010 26-6601.07.2008 to 3631.12.2009

287.5 cents 130.09.2010 26-323-306001,01 2010 to 3530.06.2010

in the event of any payrnent date referred Lo in 56.9.1 occurring on a day which is not
a business day, the payment concerned shall be made on the immediately prior business day;

without prejudice to any other rights which may accrue to the holder of the preferred
ordinary shares, consequent upon the failure of the Company to declare and pay any
preferred dividend by the due date, an additional preferred dividend shall be payable
in respect of each preferred ordinary share on the next date of payment referred to
in 56.9.1, equal to an amount calculated at the prime rate, compounded monthly in arrear,
on the arrear preferred dividend from the date on which such arrear preferred dividend
was first due to have been paid to the actual date of payment thereof by the Company;

on a deregistration or winding-up of the Company, payment of all arrear preferred
dividends and additional preferred dividends thereon in terms of 56.9.3 in priority to any
payments to the holders of any other classes of shares in the capital of the Company,
including the crdinary shares, and thereafter to participate, pari passu with the holders
of the ordinary shares, in the profits and assets of the Company.

56.10 Voting Rights

56.10.1

The preferred ordinary shares shall rank pari passu in all respects with the ordinary
shares with respect to voling rights and notwithstanding any article pertaining
to general meetings of ordinary and/or deferred ordinary and/or preferred ordinary
shareholders, the votes cast by each shareholder shall rank equally.



56.11

56.12

56.13

56.14

56.10.2 In accordance with 56.10.1, notwithstanding anything to the contrary which may be
contained in the articles, the holders of the preferred ordinary shares shall not
be entitled to velo any resolution that would otherwise have been capable of being passed
by the required majority of votes, collectively, of the holders of the ordinary shares, the
deferred ordinary shares and the preferred ordinary shares.

Separate Class

The preferred ordinary shares shall constitute a separate class of shares for the purposes
of Article 5.1.1 as read with Article 15.1.9 of the articles.

Variation of Rights

All or any of the rights attaching to the preferred ordinary shares may not be modified, altered,
varied, added to or abrogated, withoul the prior written consent of the holders of at least 75%
of the issued preferred ordinary shares or the sanction of a resolution of the holders of the issued
preferred ordinary shares passed al a separale general meeting of such helders, and at which
members holding in the aggregate not less than 75% of the total votes of all the holders of the
preferred ordinary shares entitled to vote al that meeting are present in person or by proxy and
the resolution has been passed by not less than 75% of the total votes to which the holders of the
preferred ordinary shares present in person or by proxy are entitled, provided that until such time
as the preference shares and the debentures have been redeemed and all amounts owing under the
preference share agreement and the debenture trust deed have been discharged by Lereko Mobility
no modification, alteration or variation of any of the rights attaching to the preferred ordinary
shares shall occur without the approval of the preference shareholders, a special resolution of the
debenture holders and the JSE.

Meetings and Quorum

Subjecl Lo 56.12, at every separale meeting of the holders of the preferred ordinary shares the
provisions of the articles relating to general meetings of ordinary members shall apply
mutatis mutandis, except that a querum at any such general meeting of the holders of preferred
ordinary shares shall be a person or persons holding or representing by proxy at least 75% of the
issued preferred ordinary shares, provided that if at any adjournment of such meeting a quorum
is not present, then the provisions of the articles relaling to adjourned meetings shall,
mutatis mutandis, apply.

Restriction on Transfer of Preferred Ordinary Shares

56.14.1 Subject o 56.14.2 and the provisions of the subscription and shareholders” agreement,
the holders of the preferred ordinary shares, shall not, whether directly or indirectly, be
entitled to sell, alienate or in any other manner dispose of, transfer, relinquish any
rights to, beneficial or otherwise, pledge or in any other manner encumber, any of the
preferred ordinary shares, save to, or in favour of the Company or any subsidiary. In
the event of the holder of any preferred ordinary shares breaching the provisions
hereof, then, without orejudice to any other rights which the Company may have, but
subject to 56.14.3, the Company, or any subsidiary so nominated by it, shall have the
right, at any time after the breach occurs, on written notice given to the holders of the
preferred ordinary shares concerned and in compliance with the JSE Listings
Requirements, to repurchase the preferred ordinary shares concerned, or if those
shares have since been converted into ordinary shares in terms of 56.1%, the converted
shares, al their par value, payable in cash on the date of the repurchase against transfer
of the shares concerned to the Company or the subsidiary, as the case may be.

56.14.2 The provisions of 56.14.1 shall not apply to restrict in any manner, the preference
shareholders andfor the debenture holders from exercising and/or enforcing any of
their rights against Lereko Mobility in terms of, or arising oul of, or consequent upon
any breach by Lereko Mobility of the preference share agreement or the debenture trust
deed and the provisions of 56.14.1 shall not apply to restrict any aclt provided or
conttemplated in that clause, which Lereko Mobility is required to commit or perform in
terms of the preference share agreement or the debenture trust deed, with the intention
that the preference shareholders and the debenture holders shall at all times be entitled
to enforce all their rights in terms of the preference share agreement and the debenture
trust deed, without restriction or qualification in terms of 56.14.1.
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56.14.3

56.14.4

The Company shall only be entitled to exercise its rights in terms of 56.14.1 once the
preference shares and the debentures have been redeemed and Lereko Mobility has
discharged in ful all of its obligations, actual or contingent, to the preference
shareholders in accordance with the terms of the preference share agreement (other
than those contemplated in article 108.15 of the articles of associalion of Lereko
Mobility) and to the debenture holders in accordance with the terms of the debenture
trust deed.

Notwithstanding the provisions of 56.14.1, the Company shall not register any transfer
of the preferred ordinary shares, which is not in compliance with this Article 56 and the
share certificates issued in respect of the preferred ordinary shares shall so provide.,

56.15 Conversion

56.15.1

56.15.2

56.15.8

56.15.4

56.15.5

56.15.6

For the purposes of thiz Article 56.15, the term “the specified number” means:

56.15.1.1 for so long as the preference shares have not been redeemed in full, the
number of preferred ordinary shares which are specified by notice in writing
to the Company, given at any time, and from time to time, either by all the
preference shareholders, or by the preference share agent, in their, or his
absolute discretion, as the case may be, in the event referred to in 56.1.6.2; or

56.15.1.2 after the preference shares have been redeemed in full, the number of
preferred ordinary shares which are specified by notice in writing to the
Company, given at any time, and from time to time, by the trustee, in his
absolute discretion, in the event referred to in 56.1.6.3.

On the conversion date, all the preferred ordinary shares (if the conversion date is on the
date referred to in 56.1.6.1), or the specified number (if the conversion date occurs on
either of the dates referred to in 56.1.6.2 or 56.1.6.3), shall automatically (if the
conversion date occurs on the date referred to in 56.1.6.1), or on receipt by the Company
at its registered office, of any notice referred to in 56.15.1 (if the conversion dale occurs
on either of the dates referred to in 56.1.6.2 or 56.1.6.3), be converted into ordinary
shares, on a one-for-one basis.

In order that the converted shares do not participate, beyond their entitlement in terms
of 56.9.1, in any dividends or capital distributions declared in respect of the ordinary
shares in respect of the financial period ending on 8630 June 2010, the conversion date
referred to in 56.1.6.1 shall, if necessary, be delayed until the next business day aifter the
date upon which the holder of an Imperial share is required to be registered as a
shareholder in order to participate in any dividend or capital distribution declared by the
Company in respect of the financial period ending on 8830 June 2010, provided that the
conversion shall not oczur later than 86831 December 2010,

On order to comply with any other formalities that may be required, following on the
automatic conversion of the preferred ordinary shares in terms of 56.15.1, and, without
limiting the generality, to enable the converted shares to be listed on the JSE, as soon
as reasonably possible, the Company shall be obliged, forthwith on the conversion date,
to complete all and any documents, and do all other things which may be necessary for
that purpose, and failing timeous compliance by the Company with its obligations
in terms hereof, the Company irrevocably and in rem suam appoints Lereko Mobility,
or in the event of the comversion date having occurred in terms of 56.1.6.2, or 56.1.6.3,
any person appointed by the preference share agent (while any of the preference shares
remain unredeemed) or the trustee (after all of the preference shares have been redeemed
in full) in its name and stead, to attend to all of the aforegoing.

The conversion shall not affect the accrued rights of the holders of the preferred
ordinary shares to the preferred dividends in terms of 56.9.

If, as at the conversion date, there are any arrear preferred dividends and/or additional
preferred dividends referred to in 56.9.3, the Company shall forthwith allot and issue to
Lereko Mobility, one redeemable preference share of a par value of 4 cents against
payment of the allotment price in cash, carrying the rights and conditions set out in
56.15.7.



58.15.7

56.15.8

56.15.9

Every redeemable preference share referred to in 56.15.6 shall:

56.15.7.1 confer on the holder thereof the right o receive payment of an amount
equivaleni to the aggregate of all arrear preferred dividends and the
additional preferred dividends referred to in 56.9.3, which were payable on all
the preferred ordinary shares, prior to their conversion (“the original
preferred ordinary shares”), plus an additional preferred dividend calculated
at the prime rate, in the same manner provided in 56.9.3, which shall mutatis
mutandis apply, on the aforesaid amounts from their due date of payment to
the date of aztual payment, in priority to any payments of dividends or other
distributions of any nature whatsoever to the holders of any other classes of
shares in the capital of the Company, including the crdinary shares, but no
further right to participate in the profits or assets of the Company;

56.15.7.2 confer on the holder thereof the right, in a winding-up, to a payment
of the arrear preferred dividends and additional preferred dividends referred
{o in 56.9.3 and Lo repayment of the par value thereof, in priority to any
payments to the holders of any cther classes of shares in the capital of the
Company, including the ordinary shares, but no further right to participate
in the profits or assets of the Company;

56.15.7.3 not confer on the holder the right to vote at meetings of the Company, except:

(a) during any period determined as provided in 56.15.8 during which any
dividend or any part of any such dividend on such preference share or
any redemption payment thereon remains in arrear and unpaid; or

(b) in regard Lo any resolution proposed which directly or indirectly affects
any of the rights attached to such preference share or the interests of the
holder thereof, including a resolution for the winding-up of the Company
or for the reduction of its capital;

56.15.7.4 subject to section 98 of the Act, be redeemable at par at the option of the
Company at any time, on the following terms and conditions:

{a) notice o the exercise of the option may not be given by the Company
unless all amounts owing in respect of arrear preferred dividends and
additional preferred dividends referred Lo in 56.15.7.1 have been paid;

(I notice of the exercise of such option shall be given by the Company to the
holder cf the preference share in writing, whereupon such preference
share shall be regarded as redeemed and cancelled; and

{¢) upon receipt of such notice, the holder shall deliver the certificate of such
preference share to the Company at its registered office and the Company
shall pay 1o such holder in consideration of the redemption, the par value
of the preference share.

The period referred to in 56.15.7.3(a) shall commence from the conversion date and
continue indefinitely thereaflter.

All or any of the rights attaching to the redeemable preference shares may not
be modified, altered, varied, added to or abrogaled, without the prior written consent
of the holders of at least 75% of the issued redeemable preference shares or the sanction
of a resolution of the holders of the issued redeemable preference shares passed at
a separate general meeting of such holders, and at which members holding in the
aggregate not less than 75% of the total votes of all the holders of the redeemable
preference shares entitled to vote at that meeting are present in person or by proxy and
the resolution has been passed by not less than 75% of the total votes to which the
holders of the redeemable preference shares present in person or by proxy are entitled,
provided that until such time as the preference shares and the debentures have been
redeemed and all amounts owing under the preference share agreement and the
debenture trust deed have been discharged by Lereko Mobility, no modification,
alteration or variation of any of the rights attaching to the redeemable preference shares
shall occur without the approval of the preference shareholders, a special resolution
of the debenture holders and the JSE.
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56.16

56.17

56.18

Ranking on Conversion

Any ordinary shares so converted from preferred ordinary shares in terms of 56.15 shall rank
from the conversion date, pari passu, in all respects with the other ordinary shares and shall
accordingly qualify for any dividends or capital disiributions declared by the Company after the
conversion date.

Listings Requirements

The preferred ordinary shares are entirely subject to the provisions of the Listings Requirements
and are not to be taken into account for categorisation purposes.

Restriction on Issue of Preferred Ordinary Shares

Subject to 56.6, after the allotment and issue of the preferred ordinary shares to Lereko Mobility
in terms of Ordinary Resclutivcn Number 1, contained in the notice of general meeting, the
Company shall not allot and issuz any further preferred ordinary shares, except with the approval
of shareholders in general meeting and the JSE.”
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. Imperial Holdings Limited

Imperial Holdings Limited
(Incorporuted in the Republic of South Africa)
{Registration number 1946/021048/068)

Ordinary share code: IPL ISIN: ZAE000087211
Preference nhare code: TPLP ISIN: ZAEGOOC8B0T6
(“Imperial” or “the Company"”)

Form of proxy - general meeting

If you are a dematerialised shareholder, other than with “own name” registration, do not use this form. Dematerialised shareholders,
other than with “own name” registration, instructions should be provided to their appoinied Ceniral Securities Depository
Participant ("CSDP"} or broker in the form stipulated in the custody agreement entered inte between the shareholder and the CSDP
or broker.

For use by shareholders of Imperial at the general meeting to be held at Imperial Place, Jeppe Guondam, 79 Boeing Road East,
Bedfordview on Friday, 18 April 2003 at 10:00.

L'We (please print names in full}

of (address)

(delete whichever is not applicable)

ordinary shores/deferred ordinery shares/preferred ordinary shares/preference
shares in Imperial appoint (see note 1);
ordinary shares/deferred ordinary shares/preferred ordinary shares/preference

being the holderfs of I |
I shares in Imperial appoint (see note 1):

ordinary shares/deferred ordinary shares/preferred ordinary shares/preference
shares in Imperial appoint (see note 1):

ordinary shares/deferred ordinary shares/preferred ordinary shares/preference
shares in Imperial appoint (see note 1)

|
|
|

1. or failing him/herfit,
2. or failing him/her/it,
3. the chairperson of the general meeting, {delete whichever is not applicable}

as, my/our proxy to act for me/us and on myfour behalf at the general meeting which will be held for the purpese of considering, and if
deemed fit, passing, with or without modification, the Special and Ordinary Resolutions to be proposed thereat and al any adjournment
thereof, and to vote for and/or against such resolutiors and/or abstain from voting in respect of the ordinary shares/deferred ordinary
shares/preferred ordinary shares/preference shares registered in my/our name/s, in accordance with the following instructions (see note 2).

Number of votes (one vote per share)

For Against Abstain

Special Resclution Number 1

Amendment of Article 55 of the articles of associntion
for the rights and conditions of the deferred

ordinary shares

Special Resolution Nnmber 2

Amendment of Article 56 of the articles of association
for the rights and conditions of the preferred
ordinary shares

Ordinary Resolution Number 1
Approval of the unbundling

Ordinary Resolotion Number 2
Approval of the MCC Minority Transaction

Ordinary Resolotion Number 3
Amendment of the Imperial Executive Share
Purchase Scheme

Ordinary Resolotion Number 4
Amendment of the Imperial Bonus Right Scheme

Ordinary Resolntion Number &
Authority for directors and secretary to sign and act

Signed at on 2008

Signature

Assisted by me (where applicable)

Please road the notes on the reverss side hersof,



Notes:

1.

10.

Each member is entitled to appoint on2 or more proxies (who need not be a member of the Company)
to atlend, speak and, on a poll, vote in place of that member at the general meetling.

A member may insert the name of a proxy or the names of two alternative proxies of the member’s choice
in the space provided, with or without deleting “the chairperson of the general meeting”. The person
whose name stands first on this form of proxy and who is present at the general meeting will be entitled
to act as proxy to the exclusion of thosz whose names follow,

A member’s instructions to the proxy must be indicated by the insertion of the relevant number of votes
exercisable by that member in the appropriate box provided. Failure to comply with the above will
be deemed to authorise the chairperscn of the general meeting, if the chairperson is the authorised
proxy, to vote in favour of the Special and Ordinary Resolutions at the general meeting, or any other
proxy to vote or to abstain from voting at the general meeting as he/she deems fit, in respect of all the
member’s votes exercisable thereat.

A member or his/her proxy is not obliged to vote in respect of all the ordinary shares/deferred ordinary
shares/preferred ordinary shares/preference shares held or represented by him/her, but the total number
of votes for or against the Special ancd Ordinary Resolutions and in respect of which any abstention
is recorded may not exceed the total number of votes o which the member or his/her proxy is entitled.

Forms of proxy must be lodged with or posted to the office of the transfer secretaries, to be received by
no later than 48 hours prior to the allctted time for the general meeting.

The completion and lodging of this forin of proxy will not preclude the relevant member from attending
the general meeting and speaking and voting in person to the exclusion of any proxy should such
member wish to do so.

Any alterations or corrections to this form of proxy must be initialled by the signatory/ies.

Documentary evidence establishing the authority of a person signing this form of proxy in
a representative capacity must be attached to this form of proxy unless previously recorded by the
Company's transfer secretaries or waived by the chairperson of the general meeting.

The chairperson of the general meeting may reject or accept any form of proxy which is completed
and/or received, other than in accordance with these notes, provided that the chairperson is satisfied as
to the manner in which a member wishes to vote.

Dematerialised shareholders who are not registered with own name registration in the sub-register
who wish to attend the general meeting or be represented by proxy must timeously contact their CSDP
or broker, who will furnish them with the necessary authority to attend the general meeting or be
represented by proxy.

.
INCE



Imperial
Holdings

Imperial Holdings Limited
{Incorpoerated in the Republic of South Africa)
{Registration number 1946/021048/06})
Ordinary share code: IPL  ISIN: ZAE0OQ0067211
Preference share code: IPLP ISIN: ZAEODO0O88076
{(“lenperial” or “the Company")

Detailed cautionary announcement regarding the proposed listing on the JSE Limited of
Imperial’s Leasing and Capital Equipment division and the unbundling of 100% of Imperial’s
interest in the Leasing and Capital Equipment division and the proposed buy-out of MCC
minority shareholding

1. Introduction

Further to the cautionary announcermnents released on SENS on 1 November 2007, 13 December
2007 and 24 January 2008, Imperial is pleased to announce details of the proposed transaction
framework which, if implemented, will result in listing on the JSE Limited {*JSE"} of its Leasing
and Capital Equipment division which will have been incorporated under a single entity, Eqstra
Holdings Limited (“Egstra™) followed by the unbundling of 100% of Imperial's interest in Eqstra
{“the unbundling™), the replication of the Imperial Black Economic Empowerment ("BEE™) structure
in Eqstra ("BEE transactions”) and the proposed buy-out of the MCC group of companies’
("MCC") minerity shareholders in exchange for shares in the listed Egstra ("MCC minority
transaction™) (“collectively the *transactions™).

2. Rationale for the transactions

Through its decentralized approach, Imperial has proven its ability to create businesses of
considerable scale and with the maturity to grow independently and attract their own debt and
equity investor bases. The Imperial board is of the apinion that Eqstra, which comprises Imperial
Fleet Services, Imperial Flexi Fleet, Saficon Industrial Equipment, Impact Forklifts (UK}, MCC and
the distributorships for Terex and New Holland earth moving equipment, being a business of
significant scale which lends itself to a high degree of financial leverage, has reached that point.

The capital structure of Imperial, which is maintained in accordance with the rating parameters of
its debt capital market funding program, does not allow Imperial to attract the requisite debt
funding to continue to fund the robust growth that is being experienced by Egstra. The asset
intensive nature of the Eqstra balance sheet and its strong annuity cash flow stream, allows thig
business to adopt and maintain substantially higher gearing parameters in order to fund its growth
on a sustainable basis.

Eqgstra as a provider of earthmoving services and equipment is well positioned as a supplier to the
mining and construction sectors. These sectors offer significant growth potential given global
demand for commodities and the South African infrastructural development curve. Furthermore,
Egstra is an established leasing company offering full lifecycle leasing services to the corporate
sector, local and national government. It had an asset base of R 7.6 billion at 25 June 2007,
comprising of earthmoving and materials handling equipment, commercial and passenger
vehicles.

The board believes that the unbundling will enhance shareholder value through:



3.

. unlocking the growth potential of Eqstra by structuring its balance sheet
appropriately;

. unlocking more growth potential for Imperial by the elimination of the high ¢apital
demands of the leasing business from its portfolic of businesses;

. providing shareholders with direct exposure to a mining and infrastructure related
investment;

. achieving sharper focus in the operations of the two listed entities; and

. an improved exposure of the intrinsic value of the two listed entities.

Future prospects of the Imperial Group

Subsequent to the unbundling of Eqstra and the intended disposal of its aviation leasing
businesses, Safair (Proprietary) Limited, Air Contractors Limited and the 50% interest in Safair
Lease Finance (Proprietary) Limited, and the disposal of its interest in Tourism Investment
Corporation (Proprietary) Limited, Imperial will be simplified through the removal of its
consolidated capital intensive, quasi-banking activities. It will, however, retain its exposure to
vehicle related banking through its 2quity accounted share in Imperial Bank, for which it has no
funding obligations. This will not only ensure management focus but will also create a balance
sheet with sufficient capital to pursue: new and related growth opportunities.

The closure of the heavy truck assembly and distribution operations of Commercia! Vehicle
Holdings, which was previously announced, eliminated another capital intensive business with the
long working capital cycle typical of that business. The group retains its truck dealerships which
are part of its vehicle franchise operations.

After the unbundling the group will cperate in logistics in South Africa and Europe, car rental, and
in integrated motor vehicle importation, retailing and financiat services. Its objective will be to
capitalise on the market leading positions and scale in these areas and enhance its exposure
through organic and acquisitive means. Enabled by the release of capital from the
abovementioned strategic initiatives, expansion into new initiatives refated to logistics and
services will be explored. Diversification will be aimed at service related fields and areas of the
economy where Imperial's distribution, logistics, and financial services skills and platforms create
an advantage.

Subsequent to the unbundling and disposals Imperial will consist of three primary divisions,
Logistics and Transport, Car Rental and Related Tourism Services, and Retail and Financial
Services.



imperial

Loglstics and Transpart Gar Rental and Related Tourlam Retail Motor and Financlal
Sarvices Services

Southern Alrica ~Car Rertal +  Distibution

-Europa ) ~Tourism Services +  Motor deaterships

Insurance
Imperial Bank 3V

4. Details of the transactions

The unbundling will result in the creation of a separately listed entity.

Egstra will comply with relevant BEE legisfation and anticipates obtaining an independent
assessment from a recognised BEE rating agency. From an ownership perspective, Eqstra is
anticipated to have approximately 15.7% black equity ownership at the outset (when considering
the impact of the MCC minority transaction as referred ta below).

The unbundling and listing of Egstra will be accompanied by the repfication of the existing
Imperial BEE ownership structure, consisting of two BEE partners, namely Ukhamba Holdings
(Proprietary) Limited (“Ukhamba™) and Lereko Mobility (Proprietary) Limited {“Lereko Mobility”).
Furthermore, through the MCC minority transaction set out below, Nozala Investments
{Proprietary) Limited (“"Nozala"} will become a direct shareholder in Egstra.

The capital structure of Imperial and Egstra will be optimised, including elevating the MCC
minorities to the leve! of the fisted Egstra and retaining the balance sheet capacity to take
advantage of growth opportunities.

The salient terms of the respective transactions, which transactions will be implemented
consecutively, are set out below:

41. MCC minority transaction

In anticipation of the unbundling, an agreement has been reached for Imperial to
acquire, subject to the listing of Egstra, the minority interests in MCC by issuing new
shares in the listed Eqgstra to the MCC minority shareholders (“the minority
consideration shares”). As a consequence, MCC minorities will receive 46,260,000
shares in Egstra, representing approximately 16% of the issued shares of Eqstra, as
consideration and MCC will be one of the largest business units in Egstra.

The acquisition of the MCC minority interest will better position Egstra for growth as it
simplifies and strengthens the capital structure and aligns sharehclder interests.
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Background on MCC

MCC specialises in opencast contract mining of chrome, platinum, gold and other
base metals. MCC is an industry leader in the opencast hard rock mining,
environmental mining and planning, bulk earthworks and ground rehabilitation. MCC
will design and implement a mining plan and deliver the final product at an economical
cost per cubic meter or tonnes. In-depth project planning, rehabilitation, surface
blasting, hard rock mining and ore recovery are all part of the complete mining
package offered by MCC. MCC does not take any operational mining risk, which
remains with the mining company.

MCC and its subsidiaries {“the MCC Group™} offer one of the largest fleets of opencast
mining equipment in South Africa. The MCC group’s commitment extends to provide
drilling and blasting expertise by providing explosive technology and products to
support the mining and earthmoving industry. MCC’s project management division
offers an all-in-one service, backed by the most sophisticated software and design
expertise to assist clients in assessing any job and recommending the right plant at
the most economical cost per unit. Project management is a service that is equipped
with experienced qualified professionals. This division has operated throughout
Southern Africa with projects currently in South Africa, Zimbabwe and Namibia.

Parties to the MCC minarity transaction

MCC consists of Civil Finance Company (Proprietary) Limited, Explotech Marketing
Services (Proprietary) Limited, Five Six Seven Glen Austin {Proprietary) Limited, MCC
Contracts (Proprietary) Limited, Mutual Construction Company (Transvaal)
(Proprietary) Limited, Dorstland Earth Moving {Proprietary) Limited and MCC Mining
(Proprietary) Limited.

The MCC minorities consist of BM Coetzer, SD Coetzer, Topclass Ventures
{Proprietary} Limited (a company centrolled by MR Barnes), Michael Reid Barnes
Investments (Proprietary) Limited (a company controlled by MR Barnes), TJ Adams,
RD Bethwaite, NM Claassen, Newshelf 774 (Proprietary} Limited (a company
controlled by Nozala) and JC Pretorius.

Related Parties

Certain of the MCC minorities are also directors of MCC companies and are,
therefore, classified as related parties as defined in the JSE Listings Requirements.
Consequently, a fairness opinion from an independent professional expert acceptable
to the JSE, required in terms of paragraph 10.4{f) of the JSE Listings Requirements is
being obtained.

The relevant directors are as follows:

Director Directorship held in Effective interest in MCC

minority transaction (%)




Director Directorship held in Effective interest in MCC
minority transaction (%)
MR Barnes MCC Contracts (Proprietary) | 68.5% of the minority
Limited consideration shares
Explotech Marketing 10.9% interest in Egstra with
Services (Proprietary) 31 238 650 shares through
Limited Topclass Ventures
(Proprietary) Limited) and
Mutual Construction 450 551 shares through
Compgny (Trapsyaal) Michael Reid Bames
(Proprietary) Limited Investments (Proprietary)
Limited
Civil Finance Company
(Proprietary) Limited
Five Six Seven Glen Austin
(Proprietary) Limited
MCC Mining (Proprietary)
Limited
T Adams MCC Contracts (Proprietary) | 2.4% of the mincrity

Limited

consideration shares

0.4% interest in Egstra with
1 118 400 shares

JC Pretorius

MCC Contracts (Proprietary)
Limited

7.3% of the minority
consideration shares

1.2% interest in Eqstra with
3 355 200 shares

S Dakile-Hlongwane
{nominated by

MCC Contracts (Proprietary)
Limited

17.8% of the minority
consideration shares

Nozala)
Mutual Construction 2.9% interest in Eqstra with
Company (Transvaal) 8 272 000 shares held by
(Proprietary) Limited Nozala through Newshelf
774 {Propristary) Limited
SD Coetzer Explotech Marketing 1.0% of the minority
Services (Proprietary) consideration shares
Limited
0.2% interest in Eqstra with
434 160 shares in Eqgstra
S Vos Mutual Construction 0.8% of the minarity
Company (Transvaal) consideration shares
(Proprietary) Limited
0.1% interest in Eqstra with
367 200 shares
N Claassen Mutual Construction 0.8% of the minority

Company (Transvaal)
(Proprietary} Limited

consideration shares

0.1% interest in Egstra with
367 200 shares
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Director Directorship held in Effective interest in MCC
minority transaction (%)
R Bethwaite Mutual Construction 0.8% of the minority
Company (Transvaal) consideration shares

(Proprietary} Limited
0.1% interest in Eqgstra with
367 200 shares

In addition, as described in 5.2 below, the related parties will not be allowed to vote on
the approval for the MCC minority transaction, in accordance with the JSE Listings
Requirements.

Pricing

The original agreement between Imperial and the MCC minorities provided for a buy-
out in 2010 at a price based on a pre-determined formula. The parties have agreed,
based on the terms of that agreement and also the anticipated performance of MCC,
that a value of R1 156 500 000 would be placed on the 49.9% interest currently
owned by the minority shareholders. In consideration for their shares in MCC, MCC
minorities will be issued shares in the listed company, Eqsira. Based on the agreed
terms, MCC minorities will hold approximately 16% equity interest in Eqstra.

The purchase price pavable shall be discharged through the issue of the minority
consideration shares, subject to the fulfiiment of the conditions precedent (contained
in paragraph 5 below), by the atlotment and issue to each MCC minority, on the
Egstra listing date, of the relevant number of Eqstra shares which eguates to the
value, of the relevant shareholders' minority interest.

Listing and unbundling

Egstra will, subject to the fulfiment of the suspensive conditions of the unbundling
(contained in paragraph 5 below), be listed on the JSE on or about 12 May 2008,
upon which Imperial will unbundle 100% of its interest in Eqstra to all Imperial
shareholders. Accordingly, Imperial will distribute, in compliance with section 90 of the
Companies Act and in terms of section 46 of the Income Tax Act, 212 129 870 Eqstra
shares to the Imperial ordinary shareholders in proportion to such Imperial ordinary
shareholders’ ordinary shareholding in Imperial.

Taking into account the 46 260 000 shares issued to the MCC mincrities, as set out
above, Egstra will have a total of 258 389 870 ordinary share outstanding and listed
after the implementation of the transaction.

4.2.1.Entitlement ratio

At 27 February 2008, the number of ordinary shares in the issued share capital of
Imperial was 212 129 870. At the record date, the number of Egstra shares which will
be held by Imperial will be the same number of ordinary shares as the issued share
capital of Imperial at that date. Following the fulfilment of the suspensive conditions of
the unbundling, each Irnperial ordinary shareholder will receive one Eqgstra share for
each Imperial ordinary share held on the record date of the unbundling.

Due to its helding of treasury shares Imperial will receive 23 864 456 Egstra shares
upeon unbundling.




4.3.

4.3.1.

43.2.

BEE transactions

Imperial has implemented two BEE transactions with Ukhamba and Lereko Mobility
(“existing Imperial BEE sharsholders”). It is the intention that both Ukhamba and
Lereko Mability will be placed in the same position as before the unbundling.

In addition to the existing BEE shareholders, Nozala, a BEE shareholder in MCC, will
convert its holding MC Contracts {Proprietary) Limited and Mutual Construction
Company (Transvaal) (Proprietary) Limited into 8 272 000 Egstra shares upon listing.
This transaction is dealt with in more detail under section 4.1,

immediately after unbundling, Ukhamba will subscribe for 16 781 968 “A" deferred
ordinary shares in Egstra and Lereko Mobility will subscribe for 14 516 617 “B”
deferred ordinary shares. These two classes of shares will give the existing Imperial
BEE shareholders a 11% interest in Eqgstra. The terms and conditions of these two
classes of shares will be substantially similar to the terms and conditions they have in
Imperial.

Ukhamba

At the last practicable date Ukhamba held 5 973 421 and 16 781 968 Imperial ordinary
shares and deferred crdinary shares respectively. In terms of the unbundling,
Ukhamba will receive 5 973 421 ordinary shares in Eqstra.

In order for Ukhamba to e placed in the same position as it presently is, Ukhamba will
subscribe for 16 781 968 “A” deferred ordinary shares in Egstra at their par value of
0.1 cent each. As a consequence, the hurdle rate which regulates the conversion of
the Imperial deferred ordinary shares to Imperial ordinary shares will be amended to
exclude Egstra. As a consequence, the hurdle rate which regulates the conversion of
the deferred ordinary shares to Imperial ordinary shares will be amended to exclude
Eqstra while an equivalent hurdle rate, based on Eqgstra’s performance, will apply to
the Eqstra “A” deferred crdinary shares..

The salient terms anc conditions of the “A" deferred ordinary shares will be
substantially the same as the current Imperial deferred ordinary shares except for the
hurdte rates that govern their conversion into ordinary shares.

Lereko Mobility

Lereko Mobility currently holds 14 516 617 preferred ordinary shares in Imperial.
These preferred ordinary shares currently pay a fixed annual coupon of 535 cents per
preferred ordinary share.

As part of the unbundling and in order to ensure that Lereko Mobility is not
disadvantaged by the unbundling, Eqstra will allot and issue to Lereko Mobility 14 516
617 “B" deferred ordinary shares in Eqgstra at their par value of 0.1 cent each.

The terms and conditions, including the preferred dividend, of the current Imperial
preferred ordinary shares will not be amended. Therefore, Imperial will still pay the
fixed dividend coupon in respect of the preferred ordinary shareholders.

The salient terms and conditions of the “B” deferred ordinary shares will be
substantially the same as the preferred ordinary shares except that the “B” deferred
ordinary shares will nol pay a dividend until 30 September 2010. As such, the “B”
deferred ordinary shares to be issued by Eqstra to Lereko Mobility will have the
following key features;

+ will not pay any dividend until 30 September 2010;
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+ will convert on a one for one basis into Egstra shares on 30 September 2010;
and
* will rank pari passu with Egstra ordinary shares in terms of voting.

Lereko Debenture holders

In order for the redeemable equity-linked debenture holders (“debenture holders™}, to
be placed in the same pcsition as they presently are after the unbundling, the terms of
the debentures will be amended such that they remain as one single instrument, but
with the equity-tinked interest bonus being split, so as to be determined based on the
performance of the Imperial ordinary shares as well as the Eqgstra ordinary shares.
The calculation of the equity finked interest bonus will be split based on the relative
Volume Weighted Average Price ("WWAP”) of both an Imperial and Eqstra ordinary
share on the first day of trading immediately after the listing of Eqstra. Details on the
calculation of the equity-linked interest bonus wilt be contained in the notice to
debenture holders.

The debentures will therafore be backed by 14 516 617 preferred ordinary shares in
Imperial and 14 516 677 “B” deferred ordinary shares in Egstra. Other than the
adjustment to the equity-linked interest bonus formuta and conseguential changes
arising therefrom, there are no other adjustments to the terms of the debentures or
financial implications to the debenture holders.

5. Conditions precedent

The following are the key conditions precedent to the various transactions:

5.1.

5.2,

Conditions precedent applying to all the transactions
The unbundling is conditional upon the following suspensive conditions being fulfilled:

o the approval of the unbundling by the board of directors of Imperial;

« approval by the Imperial shareholders in a general meeting of the various special
and ordinary resolutions required to implement the unbundling and amend the
articles of association of Imperial to accommodate the unbundling as set out in the
notice of general meeting included in the circutar to Imperial shareholders;

+ obtaining the requisite regulatory approvals, including JSE approval, and third party
opinions; :

¢ listing of Eqstra on the JSE;

e approval of the spec al resolution by the debenture holders in a general meeting
required to effect the amendment of the debenture trust deed to accormmodate the
unbundling; and

+ the registration by the Companies and Intellectual Property Registration Office
("CIPRQC") of the special resolutions referred to above.

Specific conditions precedent applying to the MCC minority transaction
The MCC minority transaction is subject to and conditional upon the fulfilment of the
following conditions precedent:

» the approval of the MCC minority transaction by the shareholders of Imperial,
excluding the related parties, in general meeting; and

+ the final pre-listing statement to be issued to Imperial shareholders on or about 19
March 2008 does not differ in any material respect from the draft pre-listing



statement which was provided to the MCC minority shareholders, so as to impact
adversely on the value: of the minority specified shares.

Should the conditions precedent not be fulfilled by 25 June 2008, or such later date as
the parties may agree to in writing then, the provisions of the agreement shall lapse
and be of no force and effect.

6. Fairness opinions

Fairness opinions from an independent professional expert, in terms of the JSE
Listings Requirements, zre required regarding whether the MCC minority transaction
and the issuance of unlisted voting instruments ("A" and “B” deferred ordinary shares)
by Eqgstra to both Ukhamba and Lereko Mobility are fair to Imperial shareholders.

In addition, an expert’s cpinion is required in terms of the debenture trust deed on the
impact of the LeaseCo unbundling on the redeemable equity-linked debentures.

Deloitte & Touche Corporate Finance bhas been appointed as independent
professional to opine on the fairness to Imperial’s sharehoiders of the MCC minority
transaction and the issuzance of unlisted voting instruments as well as the impact of
the unbundling on the redeemable equity linked debentures. Their opinions will be
contained in the respective circulars to shareholders and debenture holders referred
to in paragraph 8 below.

7. Cautionary announcement

A further announcement will be released at the appropriate time and when the financial effects
have been finalised and a detailed transaction timetable is available.

Accordingly, Imperial shareholders are advised to continue exercising caution when dealing in
their imperial securities until a further announcement is made.

8. Documentation

Pursuant to the aforementioned announcement being released, a circular will be posted to
Imperial shareholders which will record the detailed transaction terms and the resolutions the
shareholders will be asked to approve in order to implement the transactions.

In addition a circular will be posted to the debenture holders setting out the impact that the
unbundling will have on debenture holders and the necessary amendments required to the
debenture trust deed to accommodzte the unbundling.

Johannesburg

27 February, 2008
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